
   
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 
AGENDA  

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 
SECOND MONTHLY MEETING 

May 25, 2016 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Accept comments from the public. 
 

3. Approve minutes from the March 9, 2016 meeting. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
4. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

(Government Code Section 54957.6) 
 
Agency designated representative: 
Christina Dunn, Admin/HR Manager 
 
Employee Organization: AFSCME Local 2700 
 

5. The Board will continue in closed session under Gov. Code Section 54957 to evaluate 
the performance of the following public employee: 
 
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
 

6. The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(4) to confer with legal counsel regarding whether to initiate litigation (one 
case).  
 

7. The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(2) to confer with legal counsel regarding potential litigation (one case).  

 
OPEN SESSION 
 

8. Consider and take possible action to establish the Disability Specialist classification 
based on the recommendation received from Koff and Associates, effective June 1, 
2016. 
 



   
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

9. Consider and take possible action to grant a 3% increase in base pay and a $500 lump 
sum payment for all unrepresented staff, except for the CCCERA executive 
classifications.  

 
a. Adopt BOR Resolution 2016-2 granting a 3% increase in base pay effective 

July 1, 2016 and lump-sum payment in the amount of $500, to be paid on July 
10, 2016 for all unrepresented staff, except for the Chief Executive Officer, 
Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Compliance Officer, General Counsel, and 
Chief Investment Officer positions. 

b. Adopt CCCERA Position Pay Schedules effective July 1, 2016 which reflects a 
3% increase in base pay for all CCCERA classifications, except for those 
classifications listed above. 

10. Review of total portfolio performance for period ending March 31, 2016. 
 

11. Consider and take possible action to add or remove investment managers from the 
watch list. 

 
12. Presentation and recommendation from Verus regarding the establishment of a pool of 

transition managers. 
 

13. Consider and take possible action to establish a pool of transition managers and 
execute standing agreements with one or more transition managers. 
 

14. Presentation and recommendation from Verus regarding cash overlay services. 
 

15. Consider and take possible action to contract with a cash overlay manager. 
 

16. Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a lease agreement 
with Caltronics for copier machines effective June 1, 2016. 

 
17. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff:  

a. DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners Annual Meeting, June 15, 2016, New York, 
NY. 

b. Modern Investment Theory & Practice for Retirement Systems, SACRS, July 
17-20, 2016, Berkeley, CA. 
 

18. Miscellaneous 
a.     Staff Report 
b.     Outside Professionals’ Report 
c.     Trustees’ comments 







































































PERIOD ENDING: MARCH  31,  2016

Investment Performance Review for

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association



VERUSINVESTMENTS.COM

SEATTLE  206‐622‐3700
LOS ANGELES  310‐297‐1777

SAN FRANCISCO  415‐362‐3484

Table of contents

Investment Landscape TAB  I

Investment Performance 
Review

TAB  I I

Risk Dashboard TAB  I I I

Transition Management 
Search

TAB  IV

Overlay Search TAB  V



2ND QUARTER 2016
Investment Landscape



VERUSINVESTMENTS.COM

SEATTLE  206‐622‐3700
LOS ANGELES  310‐297‐1777

SAN FRANCISCO  415‐362‐3484

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and eligible 
institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, outlooks, projections and 
other “forward‐looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing 
entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment 
Advisors Act of 1940, as amended. 

Table of contents

Economic environment 4

Fixed income rates & credit 16

Equity 22

Other assets 33

Appendix 41

2



1st quarter summary

THE  ECONOMIC  CLIMATE

—Global growth expectations continue to be revised 
downward. Emerging economies continue to struggle 
while developed economies continue to grow 
modestly. U.S. real GDP grew more slowly quarter‐
over‐quarter at 1.4%. p. 6, 13

—Global inflation remains low but some signs of 
positive price movement can be seen, partly due to 
the effects of lower oil price dissipating and stability 
in overall commodity markets. Global manufacturing 
overcapacity will likely act as a headwind to inflation 
for some time. p. 13

MARKET  PORTFOLIO  IMPACTS

—The U.S. dollar fell slightly in Q1 as expectations 
dampened regarding the pace of further Fed rate 
hikes. USD weakness will have benefited U.S. 
investors whose international assets are unhedged. 
p. 39

—Emerging market equities rebounded, helped by 
rising commodity prices and emerging currency 
appreciation. p. 30, 32

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

THE   INVESTMENT  CLIMATE

—During the first 10 trading days of 2016 the S&P 500 
saw its worst start to a year ever. This drawdown was 
followed by a strong rally and full recovery in major 
equity markets. p. 25, 40

—The benefits of monetary easing seem to be waning. 
Interest rates in many nations are now in negative 
territory. The Federal Reserve has taken a more 
dovish stance, and the market now expects two rate 
increases in 2016. p. 5, 18

ASSET  ALLOCATION  ISSUES

—We continue to remain underweight risk, and believe 
that market risks are asymmetrically skewed to the 
downside. p. 25, 31

—With increasing probability of a Brexit, investors 
should be aware of the potential impacts to 
continental European risk premia.  p. 15

—Inflation expectations remain low based on both 
survey and market pricing data, although investors 
have historically done a poor job of forecasting 
inflation. p. 11

We remain 
underweight to 
risk

Continue to be 
watchful of 
global growth 
and corporate 
earnings 
trends

3



Economic environment

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 4



U.S. economics summary
—U.S. real GDP growth 

expectations have fallen to 0.1% 
quarter‐over‐quarter, as of April 
13th, according to the Atlanta 
Fed GDPNow. Lower consumer 
spending and weaker trade 
detracted from growth 
expectations.

—U.S. real GDP growth was 2% 
during 2015 (Q4 2014 to Q4 
2015), slightly down from 2.1% 
in Q3. Consumption was the 
predominant driver of growth.

—Headline inflation during the 
quarter rose to 0.9% from 0.7% 
in December, and core inflation 
has shown a strong trend 
upwards. Both survey based and 
market based inflation 
expectations increased.

— The Federal Reserve left the 
Federal Funds Target Rate 

unchanged at its March meeting. 
Janet Yellen explained the Fed 
will remain accommodative, 
citing continued risks within 
global financial markets.

— The unemployment rate 
increased slightly to 5.0% from 
4.9% in February. This rise in 
unemployment can be partly 
explained by the increase in the 
participation rate from 62.9% to 
63.0% as new job seekers 
entered the market. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 5

Most Recent 12 Months Prior

GDP (annual YoY) 2.0%
12/31/15

2.5%
12/31/14

Inflation 
(CPI, Headline)

0.9%
3/31/16

(0.1%)
3/31/15

Expected Inflation 
(5yr‐5yr forward)

1.8%
3/31/16

2.0%
3/31/15

Fed Funds Rate 0.25%
3/31/16

0.12%
3/31/15

10 Year Rate 1.8%
3/31/16

1.9%
3/31/15

U‐3 Unemployment 5.0%
3/31/16

5.5%
3/31/15

U‐6 Unemployment 9.8%
3/31/16

10.9%
3/31/15



LONG‐TERM  U.S.  GDP  GROWTH MEDIUM‐TERM  U.S.  GDP  GROWTH GDP  COMPONENTS

U.S. economics – GDP growth
The U.S. economy grew 1.4% QoQ in the fourth quarter 
with a majority of that growth coming from the 
consumer. Household spending has been the strongest 
driver of expansion contributing nearly 1.7% to growth. 
A tightening job market has contributed to consumer 
spending strength. The participation rate moved up and 
we are beginning to see upward pressure on wages. 
Inventory investment remains a patch of weakness and 
has been a drag on U.S. growth over the past two 
quarters. Additionally, the stronger U.S. dollar has acted 

as a headwind for U.S. exports – further detracting 
from fourth quarter GDP. The economy grew at 2.0% for 
the year. Looking ahead to growth in GDP, companies 
will still face headwinds as inventory build has been 
strong and demand for durable goods is weak. 
Additionally, multi‐national companies continue to face 
the risk of a stronger dollar which would put downward 
pressure on profits. As of April 13th, the Atlanta Fed 
GDPNow indicator is forecasting disappointing growth 
of 0.1% for Q1 2016.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: FRED, as of 12/31/15  Source: FRED, as of 12/31/15  Source: FRED

Consumer 
expenditures 
were the only 
notable 
contributor to 
growth in Q4

6

‐6
‐4
‐2
0
2
4
6
8
10

M
ar
‐5
5

M
ar
‐6
1

M
ar
‐6
7

M
ar
‐7
3

M
ar
‐7
9

M
ar
‐8
5

M
ar
‐9
1

M
ar
‐9
7

M
ar
‐0
3

M
ar
‐0
9

M
ar
‐1
5

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

Real GDP % Change YoY

‐5
‐4
‐3
‐2
‐1
0
1
2
3
4

O
ct
‐0
6

O
ct
‐0
7

Se
p‐
08

Se
p‐
09

Se
p‐
10

Se
p‐
11

Se
p‐
12

Se
p‐
13

Au
g‐
14

Au
g‐
15

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

Real GDP % Change YoY

4.6
4.3

2.1
0.6

3.9

2.0
1.4

‐3

‐1

1

3

5

7

2014
Q2

2014
Q3

2014
Q4

2015
Q1

2015
Q2

2015
Q3

2015
Q4

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge
 G
ro
w
th
 (%

)

Consumption Investment Government

Exports Imports Inventories



UNEMPLOYMENT  SINCE  1948 UNEMPLOYMENT  DURATION LABOR  FORCE  PARTICIPATION  RATE

U.S. economics – unemployment
The U.S. labor market was mixed in Q1. The 
unemployment rate increased slightly to 5.0% from 
4.9% in February. However, higher unemployment was 
influenced by a 0.1% rise in the labor participation rate 
to 63.0% as new job seekers entered the market. 
Unemployment duration rose slightly after multiple 
years of improvement since the financial crisis.

The labor market continued to add jobs, with nonfarm 
payrolls increasing by 215,000 in March vs an expected 

205,000. Average hourly wages have steadily improved 
since the financial crisis, with the recent print at 2.3% 
year‐over‐year. 

It is interesting to dive deeper into unemployment 
duration and examine the magnitude of 2008‐2009 
deterioration by age group rather than an aggregate 
figure. The drastic increases in unemployment duration 
for older workers shows the unevenness of the 
situation across age groups. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 Source: OECD, as of 12/31/14 Source: FRED, as of 3/31/16

7

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Mar‐48 Aug‐64 Jan‐81 Jun‐97 Nov‐13

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

U‐3 US Unemployment Rate Total

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

Feb‐84 Aug‐89 Jan‐95 Jul‐00 Jan‐06 Jul‐11

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

US Labor Force Participation Rate

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

1970 1980 1990 2000 2010

M
on

th
s

15 to 19 20 to 24 25 to 54
55+ Total



Consumer expenditures predominantly drove real GDP 
in Q4, as other components of GDP rested near zero 
growth. We continue to be watchful of these trends as 
consumer credit expansion and spending is a key 
tenant of economic growth. 

The condition of the U.S. consumer base has improved 
as the labor market tightens, real wage growth 
continues at a moderate pace, debt payments remain 
manageable relative to history, credit growth is 

trending up, and current levels of savings leave room 
for higher consumption levels.

However, the average health of the consumer base may 
be somewhat deceptive due to unevenness across 
demographics. Rising student loan burdens are 
dampening housing demand and spending habits of 
younger individuals, as the price of education has 
outstripped broader inflation measures. 

CREDIT  GROWTH PERSONAL  SAVINGS  RATE GROWTH  OF  DISPOSABLE  INCOME

U.S. economics – the consumer

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: FRED, as of 2/1/16 Source: FRED, as of 2/1/16 Source: FRED, as of 2/1/16

8

‐10

‐5

0

5

10

15

20

25

Apr‐01 Mar‐04 Jan‐07 Dec‐09 Oct‐12 Sep‐15

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

Consumer Loans % Change YoY

‐6

‐4

‐2

0

2

4

6

8

May‐65Aug‐73 Oct‐81 Jan‐90 Mar‐98 Jun‐06 Aug‐14

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

Real Disposable Personal Income Per Capita % Change YoY

 ‐

 2

 4

 6

 8

 10

 12

Sep‐85 Mar‐91 Aug‐96 Feb‐02 Aug‐07 Jan‐13

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

US Personal Savings Rate as % of Disposable Income



CONSUMER  COMFORT   INDEX CONSUMER  SENTIMENT ECONOMIC  SURPRISE

U.S. economics – sentiment
Consumer sentiment has stabilized in a normal range 
after trending upwards following the financial crisis. 
The Citi Economic Surprise index remains near the 
lower end of a normal range as economic data has 
missed expectations on average.

Sentiment may be an increasingly important indicator 
in the near future as the consumer remains a core 
support of economic growth. Given the positive 
fundamentals surrounding the consumer ‐ ability to 

borrow, to increase spending through less savings, and 
the prospects of higher real wages – positive sentiment 
may be a deciding factor in economic growth.

Despite this environment, consumers remain 
stubbornly timid which may be an indication of deeper 
economic problems. We believe the cautious state of 
consumers, given the reliance of the economy on 
consumption in the current environment, creates 
downside risks for growth and the markets.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/27/16 (see Appendix) Source: University of Michigan, as of 3/31/16 (see Appendix) Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 (see Appendix)

9

‐150

‐100

‐50

0

50

100

Ju
n‐
05

Ju
n‐
06

Ju
n‐
07

Ju
n‐
08

Ju
n‐
09

Ju
n‐
10

Ju
n‐
11

Ju
n‐
12

Ju
n‐
13

Ju
n‐
14

Ju
n‐
15

Citigroup Economic Surprise

 40

 60

 80

 100

 120

Ju
n‐
85

Ju
n‐
90

Ju
n‐
95

Ju
n‐
00

Ju
n‐
05

Ju
n‐
10

Ju
n‐
15

U of Michigan Consumer Sentiment Survey

20

30

40

50

60

70

Ju
l‐8

5

Ju
l‐9

0

Ju
l‐9

5

Ju
l‐0

0

Ju
l‐0

5

Ju
l‐1

0

Ju
l‐1

5

Bloomberg US Weekly Consumer Comfort Index



HOME  AFFORDABILITY HOMEOWNERSHIP  RATE NEW  &  EXISTING  HOME  SALES

U.S. economics – housing 
Home prices continued a healthy appreciation of 5.4% 
year‐over‐year as of January, according to the 
S&P/Case‐Shiller US National Home Price Index, though 
values remain below pre‐crisis levels. Affordability is 
materially above average despite a recovery in prices. A 
low rate of homeownership may indicate pent up 
demand. 

A steady rise in housing prices over previous years has 

affected housing affordability, though near‐record low 
borrowing rates have had an overwhelmingly positive 
effect on affordability, resulting in a net positive. 
Further tightening of the labor and wages increase 
should flow through to strength in housing. 

Large student loan burdens have delayed home 
purchases, and millennials have been starting families 
at a later age which also affects purchasing habits. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: National Association of Realtors, as of 12/31/15 Source: FRED, as of 1/1/2016 Source: Bloomberg, as of 2/29/16

10

61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70

Ja
n‐
85

Ja
n‐
90

Ja
n‐
95

Ja
n‐
00

Ja
n‐
05

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
15

Homeownership Rate (%)

50

100

150

200

250

Mar‐90 Mar‐95 Mar‐00 Mar‐05 Mar‐10 Mar‐15

Housing Affordability Composite Index

 (60)

 (40)

 (20)

 ‐

 20

 40

 60

1982 1990 1998 2006 2014

G
ro
w
th
 (%

)

US New One Family Houses Sold
US Existing Homes Sales YoY SA

Homes more affordable

Homes less affordable



LONG‐TERM  U.S.  CPI  (YOY) MEDIUM‐TERM  U.S.  CPI  (YOY) MARKET  EXPECTATIONS  OF  INFLATION

U.S. economics – inflation
Inflation expectations rose materially during Q1, as 
proxied by the 10yr TIPS Breakeven Rate and the 
University of Michigan Inflation Expectations Survey. 

Headline inflation exhibited volatility in Q1 but remains 
muted. Core inflation (ex‐food & energy) has shown a 
strong uptrend in recent months, buoyed most recently 
by a rise in housing and medical costs. We remain 
watchful of domestic inflation; if the dollar depreciates 
and wages increase,  we could see the return of price 
increases which also may affect the path of Fed policy.

As we have mentioned before, investors’ track record at 
forecasting inflation has been very poor. We can 
conclude, however, that times of low inflation tend to 
coincide with depressed prices for those assets which 
are held to protect against rises in inflation. Investors 
feeling the dual effect of lower inflation expectations 
along with losses from their inflation protecting assets 
can easily become discouraged and divest. However, 
today’s prices may present an inopportune time to sell, 
and as history suggests we should not place too much 
weight on the market’s expectation of future inflation.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: FRED, as of 3/31/16 Source: FRED, as of 3/31/16 Source: Bloomberg, University of Michigan, as of 3/31/16

11

‐4

0

4

8

12

16

Jun‐68 Feb‐82 Oct‐95 Jul‐09

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

US CPI Ex Food & Energy US CPI

‐3
‐2
‐1
0
1
2
3
4
5
6

Jan‐04 Oct‐06 Jul‐09 Apr‐12 Dec‐14

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

US CPI Ex Food & Energy US CPI

‐2

0

2

4

6

Apr‐01 Apr‐04 Apr‐07 Apr‐10 Mar‐13 Mar‐16

In
fla
tio

n 
(%

)

USA CPI
US Breakeven 10 Year
UMich Expected Change in Price



International economics summary

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

—Global growth remains sluggish. 
The IMF currently forecast 
growth of 3.2% in 2016, down 
from 3.4% in January. Upcoming 
geopolitical tensions surrounding 
Brexit and the current migrant 
crisis may have implications on 
GDP growth this year.

— China remains in the headlines. 
However, the country continues 
to be the largest growth engine 
among both developed and 
developing economies. China is 
in the midst of large structural 
shifts, but it should not be 
assumed that an economic crisis 
is inevitable.

— Euro area unemployment has 
come down about a percent from 
last year to 10.3%, but youth 
unemployment remains at 
extremely high levels, with 
February coming in at 21.6%, up 

nearly a percent from last year.

— The ECB further eased existing 
monetary policy. Among other 
accommodations, they moved 
their deposit rate into further 
negative territory and they 
included investment grade bonds 
as a part of eligible investment 
vehicles.

—Despite adopting negative 
interest rates in January, Japan 
has struggled to catalyze strong 
economic growth and lift 
inflation.

—After further conversations 
surrounding the anticipated 
Brexit, markets are likely to 
remain volatile until June 23rd, 
the date of the referendum.

12

Area
GDP 

(Real, YoY)
Inflation 
(CPI)  Unemployment

United States 2.0%
12/31/15

0.9%
3/31/16

5.0%
3/31/16

Western 
Europe

1.6%
12/31/15

0.0%
3/31/16

8.7%
12/31/15

Japan 0.7%
12/31/15

0.3%
2/29/16

3.3%
2/29/16

BRIC Nations 4.6%
12/31/15

3.9%
12/31/15

5.0%
12/31/15

Brazil (5.9%)
12/31/15

10.4%
2/29/16

7.4%
12/31/15

Russia (3.8%)
12/31/15

7.3%
3/31/16

5.7%
12/31/15

India 7.3%
12/31/15

5.2%
2/29/16

8.2%
4/12/16

China 6.8%
12/31/15

2.3%
2/29/16

4.1%
12/31/15



With continued downward revisions to global GDP, many 
countries are feeling the effects of suppressed inflation, 
lackluster growth, and waning consumer confidence. As a 
result, the first quarter saw multiple expansions of 
monetary policy, notably the ECB further cutting their 
deposit rate to ‐0.4% and the BOJ joining NIRP and 
implementing a deposit rate of ‐0.1% on excess reserves. 

Western Europe continues to face uncertainty surrounding 
the migrant crisis. Policy around this challenge may affect 
border control and free movement of people issues which 
could have effects on trade within the EU. A possible Brexit 

may affect the ability of the European Union’s central 
institutions to act in a coordinated manner when needed to 
address economic issues.

Emerging markets experienced ongoing deflationary forces 
including the downturn in the global commodity cycle, 
repatriation of developed market sourced capital, and 
slowing economic activity in China. As some of these 
effects flatten or reverse course in the coming months, 
emerging market countries may see an opportunity for 
improvement.

INTERNATIONAL   INFLATION  (CPI) REAL  GDP GROWTH CONSUMER  CONFIDENCE

International economics

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 Source: Bloomberg, as of 12/31/15 Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16

13

‐10

‐6

‐2

2

6

10

Mar‐95 Jan‐99 Oct‐02 Aug‐06 Jun‐10 Apr‐14

Re
al
 G
DP

 G
ro
w
th
 (%

)

World GDP (YoY %) US GDP (YoY%)
Japan GDP (YoY%) Euro GDP (YoY%)
BRICS GDP (YoY%)

‐50

‐40

‐30

‐20

‐10

0

10

Apr‐01 Mar‐05 Mar‐09 Feb‐13

Germany France Italy Spain

‐4

‐2

0

2

4

6

8

10

Jun‐00 Apr‐04 Feb‐08 Dec‐11 Oct‐15

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

USA CPI Japan CPI China CPI
UK CPI Eurozone CPI



The Chinese economy continues to grow at a steady, yet 
slower pace than recent years. Considerable investments 
into infrastructure over the years produced large gains in 
industrial capacity which has led to excesses following the 
growth slowdown. The government is investing to reduce 
this excess capacity and reposition workers which will be 
a fragile process given the significant employment shifts 
required to bring the economy to equilibrium. 

Unemployment in China is very low (4.1% in Q4), 
economic growth is among the highest in the world (6.8% 
in Q4), inflation is moderate (2.3% in February), they 

remain a net creditor with a healthy current account, and 
foreign‐exchange reserves are large at around $3.2 Trillion 
USD. Debt levels in the country are worrying (237% of 
GDP in Q1), though mostly owned internally which poses 
less risk to global investors.

China’s deceleration has had far reaching impacts across 
the globe and the country continues to own its share of 
economic problems. However, China remains the world’s 
largest contributor to growth and potentially a large 
source of untapped consumer demand. 

‐7%

‐3%

1%

5%

9%

13%

1990 1994 1998 2002 2006 2010 2014

G
lo
ba
l G

ro
w
th
 (%

)

China US
Euro Area Japan
Rest of World World GDP Growth

DRIVERS  OF  GLOBAL  GROWTH TOTAL  GDP – 4  LARGEST  ECONOMIES CURRENCY  RESERVES

China – the world’s question mark

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Valid 
concerns for 
the future 
but many 
strong 
economic 
indicators 
still persist

14

0.0
0.5
1.0
1.5
2.0
2.5
3.0
3.5
4.0
4.5

Jan‐04 Jan‐07 Jan‐10 Jan‐13 Jan‐16

$ 
Tr
ill
io
ns
 (U

SD
)

Currency Reserves (USD)

0

5

10

15

20

Dec‐99 Dec‐03 Dec‐07 Dec‐11 Dec‐15

$ 
Tr
ill
io
ns
 (U

SD
)

US China Germany Japan



‐3

‐2

‐1

0

1

2

3

Exchange Rate 
Mechanism

Sterling 
shadows 

Deutsche Mark

UK  GDP  QOQ BREXIT  POLLS DIFFERENT  ECONOMIES

Brexit – it’s complicated
“Brexit” refers to the U.K. voting to leave the European 
Union. Current polling seems equally balanced regarding 
the chance of an exit. Market sentiment assumes that 
Brexit would be a negative result, but the reality is likely 
more nuanced.

During the early 1990s the U.K. joined the Exchange Rate 
Mechanism, a currency management agreement regarded 
as a precursor to the Euro, tying U.K. monetary policy to 
that of Germany. The strains involved produced “Black 
Wednesday”, when George Soros and other hedge funds 
forced the Bank of England to pull out of the 

mechanism. Despite predictions of disaster the resulting 
economic expansion was one of the longest in U.K. 
history. Similar predictions of doom around the decision 
of the U.K. not to enter the Euro also proved wrong.

While Brexit could cause volatility, the long term effect for 
the U.K. (if not for the other EU members) could turn out 
to be positive as much as negative. Similarly, a vote to 
stay in could turn market attention to a new raft of 
regulatory proposals from an EU no longer restrained by 
the danger of U.K. threats to leave. As always the future 
is hard to predict.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: UK Office for National Statistics, as of 12/31/2015. Source:  YouGov, as of 4/18/2016 Source: UK Office for National Statistics, Bloomberg
Shaded area represents UK membership of ERM

Brexit would 
not 
necessarily 
be bad

Remaining 
would not 
necessarily 
be good

15

0

10

20

30

40

50

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

Remain Leave Don't Know

UK Europe

GDP YoY 2.1% 1.6%

Inflation 0.5% 0.0%

Unemployment 5.1% 8.7%

10 Year Interest 
Rate 1.48% 0.16%



Fixed income
rates & credit

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 16



Interest rate environment

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source:  Bloomberg, as of 3/31/15 *Shortest term rate for Russia is 1Y

—With significant volatility in 
financial markets at the start of 
2016, investors fled to U.S. 10 
Year Treasuries which rallied 
from 2.3% at the start of the year 
to 1.65% a week into February, 
then retraced some of that move 
to 1.77%.

— Interest rates decreased broadly 
across developed markets in Q4, 
most notably in the U.S. and 
Germany. Australia and China 
saw little movement in their 10 
year rate.

—Global financial market turmoil 
has pushed investors into safe 
haven assets such as U.S. 
Treasuries which continue to be 
one of the higher yielding 
developed market bonds. 

—The ECB expanded their existing 
monetary policy by further 
cutting rates to ‐40 bps. The 
German bund rallied from over 
60 bps at the start of the year to 
under 9 bps in early April.

— Japan implemented a negative 
interest rate on excess deposits 
in January, which brought their 
10 year yield into negative 
territory for the first time ever.

—As the U.S. continues to 
contemplate further rate hikes, 
most other countries are 
contemplating easier monetary 
policy with intention of devaluing 
currency, increasing investment, 
and generating economic 
growth.

17

Area Short Term (3M) 10 Year

United States 0.20% 1.77%

Germany (0.59%) 0.15%

France (0.42%) 0.49%

Spain (0.23%) 1.43%

Italy (0.22%) 1.22%

Greece 2.63% 8.48%

UK 0.45% 1.42%

Japan (0.09%) ‐0.035%

Australia 2.06% 2.49%

China 2.10% 2.84%

Brazil 13.99% 13.97%

Russia* 9.79% 9.09%



Negative interest rates
— Facing limitations of already record low policy rates, a 

few central banks have adopted a novel monetary 
policy approach phenomenon, NIRP (Negative 
Interest Rate Policy).

— Negative deposit rates have further suppressed 
global sovereign yields that were already at historic 
lows.

— With limited ability to expand balance sheets and no 
ability to push rates lower, the Eurozone pioneered 
the implementation of NIRP to achieve target 
inflation levels and spur economic growth.

— While investors still seem to be prepared to hold 
bonds at these negative rates, implications include 
adverse effects on banking profitability and investors 
being pushed towards taking excessive risk. 
Additionally, the U.S. has seen a tailwind in the form 
of dollar strength as other currencies continue to be 
devalued.

— The consequences of the spread of NIRP remain to be 
seen and there is little historical data to rely on when 
assessing likely outcomes.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16

18

‐1.5%

‐1.0%

‐0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

M
ar
‐1
1

Ju
n‐
11

Se
p‐
11

De
c‐
11

M
ar
‐1
2

Ju
n‐
12

Se
p‐
12

De
c‐
12

M
ar
‐1
3

Ju
n‐
13

Se
p‐
13

De
c‐
13

M
ar
‐1
4

Ju
n‐
14

Se
p‐
14

De
c‐
14

M
ar
‐1
5

Ju
n‐
15

Se
p‐
15

De
c‐
15

M
ar
‐1
6

In
te
re
st
 R
at
e 
(%

)

Eurozone Japan Sweden Denmark Switzerland



Yield environment

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16

19

YIELD  CURVE  CHANGES  OVER  LAST  FIVE  YEARS IMPLIED  CHANGES  OVER  NEXT  YEAR  

GLOBAL  GOVERNMENT  YIELD  CURVESU.S. YIELD  CURVE

‐1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1M3M6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 4Y 5Y 6Y 7Y 8Y 9Y 10Y 12Y 15Y 20Y 25Y 30Y

Yi
el
d 
(%
)

US Treasury Curve 3/31/16 Japan Curve 3/31/16
Canada Curve 3/31/16 Germany Curve 3/31/16
United Kingdom Curve 3/31/16 France Curve 3/31/16
Italy Curve 3/31/16 China Curve 3/31/16

‐1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1M3M6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 5Y 7Y 10Y 30Y

Yi
el
d 
(%
)

US Treasury Curve 3/31/16 US Treasury Curve 12/31/15
US Treasury Curve 06/30/15 US Treasury Curve 09/30/10
US Treasury Curve 09/30/05

‐5%

‐4%

‐3%

‐2%

‐1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

1M3M6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 4Y 5Y 6Y 7Y 8Y 9Y 10Y 12Y 15Y 20Y 25Y 30Y

Yi
el
d 
Ch

an
ge

US Japan Canada Germany

United Kingdom France Italy China

‐0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1M 2M 3M 6M 9M 1Y 2Y 3Y 4Y 5Y 7Y 9Y 10Y 12Y 15Y 20Y 30Y 50Y

Yi
el
d 
Ch

an
ge
 (%

)

U.S. U.K. Japan Germany
Canada Australia Italy

The U.S. 
yield curve 
has come 
down across 
all major 
tenors since 
the end of 
the fourth 
quarter



High yield spreads and high yield energy spreads 
widened to begin the year, in line with a general market 
wide risk‐off move. However, spreads retraced on the 
back of the oil rebound and market rally. 

Credit spreads remain above average but in a normal 
range. A number of sectors, particularly the high yield 
energy space, are depending on continuing access to 
the credit markets. Were spreads to stay elevated or 
move higher, the ongoing viability of these issuance 

dependent companies may be increasingly called into 
question. 

The perceived risk of emerging market debt remains 
high, and country specific.  The effect of lower oil prices 
on commodity exporters is notable, and this has 
contributed to spreads remaining at higher levels 
compared to intermediate term history. The recent 
increase in the oil price has brought spreads closer 
towards average levels.

CREDIT  SPREADS EMERGING  MARKET  SPREADS SPREADS

Credit environment

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Barclays Capital Indices, Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 Source: Barclays, Credit Suisse, Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16

Sensitivity of 
high yield 
spreads to oil 
is much 
higher in a 
low oil price 
environment

20

0

50

100

150

0

200

400

600

800

2004 2006 2009 2012 2014

BRAZIL CDS USD SR 5Y RUSSIA CDS USD SR 5Y

CHINAGOV CDS USD SR 5Y Crude Oil (RHS)

Market
Credit Spread 
(3/31/2016)

Credit Spread 
(1 Year Ago)

Long US Corporate 2.1% 1.8%

US Aggregate 1.1% 1.0%

US High Yield 7.0% 5.1%

US High Yield
Energy 11.9% 9.3%

US Bank Loans 3.9% 3.9%

0

4

8

12

16

20

Dec‐95 Dec‐98 Dec‐01 Dec‐04 Dec‐07 Dec‐10 Dec‐13

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

Barclays Long US Corp. Barclays US Agg.
Barclays US HY Bloomberg US HY Energy
IG Energy



IG  &  HIGH  YIELD  ISSUANCE BANK  LOAN  &  GLOBAL  HY  ISSUANCE HY  DEFAULT  TRENDS  (ROLLING  1  YEAR)

Issuance and default

Issuance has slowed significantly across the higher‐risk 
debt markets. Lending standards are tightening, 
covenants increasing and high yield defaults are 
accelerating. These movements suggest that the credit 
cycle is maturing. We remain cautious regarding 
overexposure to higher risk credit. We would suggest 
investors tilt accordingly – bank loans vs. high yield, 
high grade corporate vs. high yield, and so on. 

Defaults are rising in the high yield market, fueled by 
the energy sector. Hedges put in place by energy‐

related companies continue to roll off. There exists a 
surprising level of funding available through distressed 
credit funds which may make its way to struggling firms 
and perhaps prolong the pain and prevent the needed 
restructuring within the industry. 

With continued issues in the credit market, investors 
should take care to understand and control the degree 
of credit exposure in portfolios, and where possible tilt 
gently away from high yield rather than increasing 
exposures.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16                                                                       Source: BofA Merrill Lynch Global Research, as of 3/31/16 Source: Credit Suisse, BofA, as of 3/31/15

Credit cycle 
appears to be 
maturing

We favor 
investment 
grade over 
higher risk 
issues

21

0

5

10

15

20

Jan‐98 Jan‐02 Jan‐06 Jan‐10 Jan‐14

De
fa
ul
t (
%
)

Global High Yield
Developed Market High Yield
US High Yield

0
50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15 YT
D

$ 
Bi
lli
on

Global Bank Loan Issuance Global HY Issuance

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15 YT
D

$ 
Bi
lli
on

IG Underwriting Volume HY Underwriting Volume



Equity

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 22



Equity environment

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Russell Investments, MSCI, STOXX, FTSE, Nikkei, as of 3/31/16

—We remain underweight to risk 
assets. Market risks continue to 
appear asymmetrical to the 
downside. 

—The first quarter earnings growth 
estimate for the S&P 500 was ‐
9.1% as of April 8th. If an 
earnings decline is reported it 
will mark the first time since the 
four quarters ending Q3 2009 
that the index has experienced 
four consecutive quarters of 
earnings contraction (see slide 
31 for further coverage of 
domestic and international 
earnings trends).

— Telecom and utilities sectors 
showed strong performance in 
Q1 at 16.6% and 15.6%, 
respectively. Financials and 
health care underperformed at ‐
5.1% and ‐5.5%. 

—Size and value factors have failed 

to produce positive premia over 
the past 1, 3, 5, 7, and 10 years. 

—Emerging market equities fell to 
start the year but have since 
rallied along with a bounce in 
commodity prices. Strong 
appreciation in emerging market 
currencies have also buoyed 
returns for U.S. investors in these 
markets. 

—The U.S. dollar fell in Q1, 
resulting in gains for domestic 
investors with unhedged 
international currency exposure. 

23

QTD       
Total 
Return 

(unhedged)

QTD       
Total 
Return 
(hedged)

YTD       
Total 
Return 

(unhedged)

YTD       
Total 
Return 
(hedged)

1 Year      
Total 
Return 

(unhedged)

1 Year      
Total 
Return 
(hedged)

US Large Cap    
(Russell 1000)

1.2% 1.2% 0.5%

US Small Cap    
(Russell 2000)

(1.5%) (1.5%) (9.8%)

US Large Value
(Russell 1000 Value)

1.6% 1.6% (1.5%)

US Large 
Growth (Russell 
1000 Growth)

0.7% 0.7% 2.5%

International 
Large (MSCI EAFE)

(3.0%) (6.0%) (3.0%) (6.0%) (8.3%) (11.2%)

Eurozone   
(Euro Stoxx 50)

(3.3%) (7.5%) (3.3%) (7.5%) (11.6%)

UK            
(FTSE 100)

(2.2%) (2.4%) (2.2%) (2.4%) (7.6%) (10.2%)

Japan           
(NIKKEI 225)

(4.8%) (12.3%) (4.8%) (12.3%) (5.3%) (13.4%)

Emerging 
Markets

(MSCI Emerging 
Markets)

5.7% 2.5% 5.7% 2.5% (12.0%) (9.5%)



The domestic equity recovery coming out of the 
financial crisis has been driven fairly equally by strong 
earnings growth and strong upward movement in 
valuations. From a fundamental perspective we may 
need to see an improvement in earnings growth from 
the current contracting trend in order to realize further 
equity market upside, barring additional expansion of 
equity valuations which seems unlikely at current 
levels. 

We remain underweight risk on an intermediate 

timeframe. Risks today seem asymmetrical to the 
downside as corporate earnings turn lower, global 
growth expectations continue to be revised downward, 
and credit markets indicate there may be pain ahead. 

However, equity exposure remains an integral part of 
the portfolio and is the primary means for investors to 
access the long‐term productive capacity of the 
economy.  Shorter term disruption notwithstanding, 
the equity investment experience remains positive over 
the long term.

LONG‐TERM  PERFORMANCE S&P  500  EPS  ESTIMATE  &  PRICE DOWNSIDE  EVENTS

Domestic equity historical return

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: FRED, as of 3/31/16 Source: Standard & Poor’s, as of 3/31/16 Source: FRED, as of 3/31/16

24

100

400

1600

6400

De
c‐
85

De
c‐
90

De
c‐
95

De
c‐
00

De
c‐
05

De
c‐
10

De
c‐
15

Lo
g 
Sc
al
e

Russell 3000

‐40

‐20

0

20

40

60

Ju
n‐
80

Ju
n‐
85

Ju
n‐
90

Ju
n‐
95

Ju
n‐
00

Ju
n‐
05

Ju
n‐
10

Ju
n‐
15

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

Rusell 3000 % Change YoY

‐40%

‐20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Apr‐07 Apr‐09 Apr‐11 Apr‐13 Apr‐15

Ch
an
ge
 in
 v
al
ua
tio

ns

P/E Forward P/E



The U.S. equity market has effectively been range‐
bound since late 2014. The market fell sharply to start 
the year amid risk‐off sentiment and global growth 
concerns, but retraced losses in March.

The return of risk‐on sentiment and a dovish Fed 
helped stabilize equity markets. The timing of rate hikes 
continues to add uncertainty; however, market 
expectations of such a rise have been pushed back 
once again. 

Weak corporate earnings may be a headwind for equity 
markets in the short‐term. For Q1, the April 8th
estimate of year over year earnings decline was ‐9.1%. 
If a decline does occur, it will mark four consecutive 
quarters of earnings contraction. With the effect of 
monetary easing diminishing, investors may find it 
more difficult to overlook another poor earnings 
season. Investors should remember, however, that low 
expectations for earnings growth provide the possibility 
for positive earnings surprise which might have the 
effect of changing sentiment.

SHORT  TERM  PERFORMANCE  (3YR) SMALL/LARGE  &  GROWTH/VALUE FORWARD  P/E

Domestic equity recent

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16 Source: Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16 Source: Standard & Poor’s, Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16

Keep 
watchful of 
domestic 
equities as 
earnings 
growth 
remains 
negative

25

3500

4000

4500

5000

5500

6000

6500

7000

De
c‐
12

Ju
n‐
13

De
c‐
13

Ju
n‐
14

De
c‐
14

Ju
n‐
15

De
c‐
15

Russell 3000

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55
60

Ju
l‐9

5

Ju
l‐9

9

Ju
l‐0

3

Ju
l‐0

7

Ju
l‐1

1

Ju
l‐1

5

S&P 500 Russell 2000

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

Ja
n‐
12

M
ay
‐1
2

Se
p‐
12

Ja
n‐
13

M
ay
‐1
3

Se
p‐
13

Ja
n‐
14

M
ay
‐1
4

Se
p‐
14

Ja
n‐
15

M
ay
‐1
5

Se
p‐
15

Ja
n‐
16

Ra
tio

Small/Large ‐ 36 Month Rolling Performance
Growth/Value ‐ 36 Month Rolling Performance

Large & Value Outperformance

Small & Growth Outperformance



LONG‐TERM  VOLATILITY INTERMEDIATE‐TERM  VOLATILITY INTERNATIONAL  EQUITY  VOLATILITY

Equity volatility

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: CBOE, as of 3/31/16 Source: CBOE, as of 3/31/16  Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16

26

Despite starting the year with heightened volatility due 
to a risk‐off sentiment, uncertainty in global central 
bank policy, lowered economic growth expectations, 
and concerns around financial market stability, equity 
volatility came down to more normal levels towards the 
end of the quarter. Most major markets recovered 
losses from the start of the year and found stable 
ground as central banks continued a dovish stance, oil 
found a trading range from upper 30’s to lower 40’s, 
and the dollar continued to weaken.

Domestic volatility still remains the lowest compared to 
other major markets. 

International markets are seeing more volatility as the 
Brexit referendum approaches, as questions continue 
regarding economic growth, and as geopolitical 
tensions persist. Emerging market volatility has come 
down slightly with the stabilization of oil prices. 

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Se
p‐
13

De
c‐
13

M
ar
‐1
4

M
ay
‐1
4

Au
g‐
14

N
ov

‐1
4

Fe
b‐
15

M
ay
‐1
5

Au
g‐
15

N
ov

‐1
5

Fe
b‐
16

VIX VIX 100 Day Average

10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

Ju
n‐
90

De
c‐
92

Ju
n‐
95

De
c‐
97

Ju
n‐
00

De
c‐
02

Ju
n‐
05

De
c‐
07

Ju
n‐
10

De
c‐
12

Ju
n‐
15

Vo
la
til
ity

 (%
)

VIX

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

M
ar
‐0
5

M
ar
‐0
7

M
ar
‐0
9

M
ar
‐1
1

M
ar
‐1
3

M
ar
‐1
5

MSCI EAFE ‐ 3 month Rolling Risk
MSCI EM ‐ 3 month Rolling Risk



SMALL  CAP  VS  LARGE  CAP  (YOY) VALUE  VS  GROWTH  (YOY) ROLLING  5  YEAR  RETURN

Domestic equity size and style
Value stocks outperformed growth stocks during the 
quarter as the Russell 1000 Value Index and Russell 
1000 Growth Index returned 1.6% and 0.7%, 
respectively. However, the value factor has not 
provided positive returns to investors over the past 1, 3, 
5, 7, and 10 years, leading many to question the 
efficacy of the value premium, or alternatively to 
suggest that a reversion to a value market is long 
overdue. 

Large cap equities outperformed small cap equities 

during the quarter. The Russell 1000 Index and Russell 
2000 Index returned 1.2% and 1.5%, respectively. The 
Russell 1000 Index has outperformed the Russell 2000 
Index on an absolute and risk‐adjusted basis over the 
past 1, 3, 5, 7, 10, and 20 years. 

This lack of performance from both the size premium 
and the value premium over the past 10‐20 years is 
certainly worth noting. We will be examining these 
effects more closely during the coming quarters. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16 Source: Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16  Source: Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16

27

‐40
‐30
‐20
‐10
0
10
20
30
40
50

Ju
l‐9

5

Ju
l‐9

9

Ju
l‐0

3

Ju
l‐0

7

Ju
l‐1

1

Ju
l‐1

5

Re
tu
rn
 D
iff
er
en

ce
 (%

)

R3000 Value minus R3000 Growth

‐40
‐30
‐20
‐10
0
10
20
30
40
50

Ju
l‐8

5

Ju
l‐9

0

Ju
l‐9

5

Ju
l‐0

0

Ju
l‐0

5

Ju
l‐1

0

Ju
l‐1

5

Re
tu
rn
 D
iff
er
en

ce
 (%

)

Russell 2000 minus Russell 1000

‐10

0

10

20

30

Jan‐07 Jan‐09 Jan‐11 Jan‐13 Jan‐15

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

Russell 1000 Value Russell 2000 Growth

Russell 2000 Value Russell 1000 Growth



12  MONTH  FORWARD  P/E EQUITY  YIELD  LESS  BOND  YIELD SHILLER  P/E  LONG‐TERM

Domestic equity valuations
Domestic equity valuations fell to start the year along 
with the broader equity market decline. Valuations of 
large cap equities have since returned to prior levels 
while small cap valuations remain lower. 

Attempts to gauge whether equities are over or 
undervalued on a cross asset class basis is made 
difficult by the fact that bond yields are extremely low. 
Investors are willing (or forced) to hold greater 
allocations to risk assets as most safer assets offer very 

low return potential. The natural level of equity 
valuations could reasonably be expected to be higher in 
today’s environment as investors have fewer 
alternatives available to meet return targets. 

The Shiller P/E ratio remains at a relatively elevated 
level, although it should be noted that this indicator 
does not necessarily imply, particularly in the current 
interest rate environment, that U.S. equities are 
necessarily due for a significant downturn.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Standard & Poor’s, Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16 Source: Standard & Poor’s, Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 Source: Shiller, as of 3/31/16

28

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55

O
ct
‐0
6

O
ct
‐0
8

O
ct
‐1
0

Se
p‐
12

Se
p‐
14

S&P 500 Russell 2000

0
5
10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45

Jul‐26 Jul‐46 Jul‐66 Jul‐86 Jul‐06

US Large Shiller



EAFE  LONG  TERM  (USD) EMERGING  MARKETS  LONG  TERM  (USD) EM EFFECT  ON  GLOBAL  EQUITY  PORTFOLIO

International equity historical return
Domestic equities exhibited a significant run over the 
past 10 years, which led investors with home country 
bias to outperform. However, international and 
domestic markets tend to move in cycles. Domestic 
equities underperformed international equities 
materially during the early 2000’s. 

Emerging market equities showed a strong rebound in 
Q1. Countries have seen deeply depressed valuations 
following the downturn of the commodity super cycle 
and weakened currencies. Severe pessimism 

surrounding these markets has allowed for potential 
upside movement if/when expectations are adjusted. 

Equities can be thought of in terms of the entire 
opportunity set – the global equity market. Through 
gaining exposure to the whole opportunity set, 
investors should expect to realize greater risk‐adjusted 
returns due to less than perfect correlation across 
equity markets. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16

29

200

400

800

1600

Feb‐95 Feb‐00 Feb‐05 Feb‐10 Feb‐15

Lo
g 
Sc
al
e

Emerging Markets Standard (Large+Mid Cap)

600

1200

2400

Feb‐90 Feb‐94 Feb‐98 Feb‐02 Feb‐06 Feb‐10 Feb‐14

MSCI EAFE

‐1.0

‐0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

Nov‐01 Aug‐04 Apr‐07 Jan‐10 Oct‐12 Jul‐15

3y
r R

ol
lin
g 
An

nu
al
iz
ed

 R
et
ur
n 
(%

)

Effect of adding 5% EM to ACWI portfolio



The euro and yen strengthened despite relatively looser 
monetary policy, contributing to underperformance of 
developed international markets. Local currency 
appreciation has the dual effect of hurting the 
competitiveness of export prices, a negative for the 
equity markets, while helping returns of foreign 
investors who hold local equities on an unhedged basis. 
The net benefit/loss is determined by the nature of 
trade within each economy and the reaction of equity 
investors to the currency move. 

In Europe, negative interest rates continue to put banks 
under pressure and financials were one of the worst 
performing sectors in Q1. Banks compose 14% of the 
index. Japan equity valuations continued lower after 
the sell‐off, moving from a trailing P/E of 21 at the start 
of the year to 18.8 at quarter‐end.

A weaker U.S. dollar and stronger commodity prices 
fueled a rally in emerging market equities in Q1. 

SHORT‐TERM  PERFORMANCE   CUMULATIVE  RETURN USD/EUR,  USD/YEN

International equity recent

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16

30

Forward PE of each 
market

‐20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

Dec‐03 Dec‐06 Dec‐09 Dec‐12 Dec‐15

Cu
m
ul
at
iv
e 
To
ta
l R
et
ur
n 
(%

)

MSCI EAFE Unhedged MSCI EAFE Hedged

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

Mar‐14 Sep‐14 Mar‐15 Sep‐15 Mar‐16

G
ro
w
th
 o
f $

10
00

MSCI Emerging Markets MSCI EAFE

MSCI EAFE Small Cap MSCI EM Hedged

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

Ap
r‐
15

M
ay
‐1
5

Ju
n‐
15

Ju
l‐1

5

Au
g‐
15

Se
p‐
15

O
ct
‐1
5

N
ov

‐1
5

De
c‐
15

Ja
n‐
16

Fe
b‐
16

M
ar
‐1
6

USD/JPY USD/EUR

Displayed as parity on 
12/31/15



MSCI EM  EPS  ESTIMATE  &  PRICE MSCI EAFE  EPS  ESTIMATE  &  PRICE S&P  500  EPS  ESTIMATE  &  PRICE

International equity valuations
International valuations remain relatively cheap on a 
traditional P/E basis. However, P/E ratios can be 
deceiving due to their point‐in‐time nature (price of 
equities at a certain time divided by equities earnings 
at a certain time). As the value of equities are 
determined by the present value of future earnings it is 
worth noting the directional trend of earnings across 
each equity marketplace. Trend may add color to 
current valuation levels. 

MSCI EM and MSCI EAFE valuations remain cheaper 
relative to the U.S. markets, though these indices have 
exhibited downward trends in earnings‐per‐share (EPS) 
estimates. MSCI EAFE has seen a gradual deterioration 
in earnings estimates while EM has seen a sharp falloff 
following the downward movement in commodity 
prices and recession in many countries. The U.S. has 
exhibited a steady upward trend in earnings until the 
recent turnover. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: Standard & Poor’s, as of 3/31/16

31

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

400
500
600
700
800
900
1000
1100
1200
1300

Oct‐08 Oct‐10 Oct‐12 Oct‐14

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 E
PS

 E
st
im

at
e

Pr
ic
e 
Le
ve
l

EPS Estimate MSCI EM

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

2200

Oct‐08 Oct‐10 Oct‐12 Oct‐14

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 E
PS

 E
st
im

at
e

Pr
ic
e 
Le
ve
l

EPS Estimate MSCI EAFE

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Oct‐08 Oct‐10 Oct‐12 Oct‐14

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 E
PS

 E
st
im

at
e

Pr
ic
e 
Le
ve
l

EPS Estimate S&P 500



LONG  TERM  PERFORMANCE ROLLING  3  YEAR  RETURN FORWARD  P/E

Emerging market equity
Emerging markets sold off at the start of the year along 
with broader equity markets, but experienced a full 
recovery bringing returns positive year‐to‐date. The rally 
in the oil market was mirrored by many oil producing 
emerging market currencies, providing a boost for 
unhedged U.S. based investors. Brazil was one of the best 
performing equity markets, supported by further 
speculation that top government leadership might be 
replaced.

Equities in this space have faced significant headwinds. 

Despite sharp drawdowns in recent years, emerging 
markets have delivered returns since December 2000 that 
outpaced international developed by a very large margin. 

Further accommodative central bank policies and 
continued low yields in developed markets should help 
emerging market fund flows as higher yielding investment 
options remain limited. Furthermore, as borrowing rates 
tend to follow those of the developed market, an 
accommodative Fed provides a flow‐through stimulus 
effect to these economies. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16

32

Forward PE of each 
market

0

5

10

15

20

Dec‐04 Dec‐06 Dec‐08 Dec‐10 Dec‐12 Dec‐14
MSCI Emerging Markets
MSCI EAFE
MSCI ACWI exUS

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Dec‐00 Dec‐03 Dec‐06 Dec‐09 Dec‐12 Dec‐15

G
ro
w
th
 o
f $

1,
00
0

MSCI EAFE MSCI EAFE Small Cap MSCI EM

‐40

‐20

0

20

40

60

Oct‐06 Sep‐08 Sep‐10 Sep‐12 Aug‐14

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

MSCI EM Asia MSCI EM Europe
MSCI EM Latin America MSCI EM EMEA
MSCI EM Europe & Middle East



Other assets

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 33



FIXED  INCOME  VOLATILITY FX VOLATILITY COMMODITY  VOLATILITY

Other asset volatility
With the first Fed rate hike completed, weak 
commodity prices, and fear of a continued strength in 
the U.S. dollar versus other major currencies, the start 
of the first quarter saw increased financial volatility 
across major asset classes. Since the start of the year, 
global financial stress has calmed down and foreign 
exchange volatility has reverted. With dovish comments 
from the Fed and increased easing from the ECB, BOJ, 
and PBOC, most financial assets seem to be priced for a 
stable market environment going forward.

Oil volatility has retreated sharply since the start of the 
year as talks of potential production output remain a 
possibility in OPEC countries. Additionally, rig counts in 
the U.S. dropped, indicating there may be a slight 
reprieve of supply in the near term.

Fixed income implied volatility remains below average 
despite the anticipation of rate hikes and extended 
durations in a low yield environment. Even with market 
attention focused on rate movement, the expected 
short term risk of fixed income continues to be low.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Merrill Lynch, as of 3/31/16 (see Appendix) Source: JP Morgan, Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16 Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16

34

0

50

100

150

200

250

1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015

Im
pl
ie
d 
Tr
ea
su
ry
 V
ol
at
ili
ty
 (b

ps
)

Merrill Lynch Option Volatility Estimate MOVE Index

0

5

10

15

20

25

Jan‐04 Dec‐06 Nov‐09 Oct‐12 Oct‐15

Vo
la
til
ity

 (%
)

JPMorgan G7 Volatility Index
Russell Conscious Currency

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Oct‐92 Dec‐96 Feb‐01 Apr‐05 Jun‐09 Aug‐13

Vo
la
til
ity

 (%
)

Bloomberg Commodity Bloomberg Sub Energy



Core real estate has now provided six consecutive years of 
steady returns between 10‐14%.  Correlations between GDP 
growth and real estate have historically been very high.  A 
slow, but steady recovery in the job market, combined with 
low interest rates has created an environment conducive to 
positive results in the asset class.  Lending standards have 
remained tighter than previous cycles keeping new supply 
from overheating the market.

Fundamentals remain strong as vacancy rates continue to 
decline overall.  Industrial property vacancy rates have 

shown the steepest declines as e‐commerce has increased 
demand for infill warehouse space.  Apartment vacancies 
ticked up slightly at the end of 2015 as new supply has been 
heavier in this sector.  Net operating income growth remains 
positive overall, but has slowed in recent quarters with the 
exception of apartments, which continue to grow over 10%.

Cap rates have continued to steadily decline along with 
interest rates, although the spreads to U.S. Treasuries 
remain attractive.

REAL  ESTATE  &  THE  BUSINESS  CYCLE REAL  ESTATE  VACANCY  BY  TYPE CAP  RATE  SPREADS

Real estate & REITs

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: NCREIF, as of 12/31/15 Source: NCREIF, as of 12/1/15 Source: NCREIF, as of 12/1/15

REITs Rich

REITs Cheap

35

3

8

13

18

1988 1991 1994 1997 2000 2003 2006 2009 2012 2015

Va
ca
nc
y 
(%

)

Multifamily Industrial Office Retail

0

1

2

3

4

5

0

2

4

6

8

10

19
95

 Q
1

19
96

 Q
2

19
97

 Q
3

19
98

 Q
4

20
00

 Q
1

20
01

 Q
2

20
02

 Q
3

20
03

 Q
4

20
05

 Q
1

20
06

 Q
2

20
07

 Q
3

20
08

 Q
4

20
10

 Q
1

20
11

 Q
2

20
12

 Q
3

20
13

 Q
4

20
15

 Q
1

Ca
p 
Ra

te
 S
pr
ea
d 
(%
)

Ca
p 
Ra

te
, T
re
as
ur
y 
Yi
el
d 
(%
)

Cap Rate Spread % (RHS)
Cap Rate % (LHS)
10‐yr Treasury Yield % (LHS)

‐10

‐5

0

5

10

Mar‐99 Mar‐02 Mar‐05 Mar‐08 Mar‐11 Mar‐14

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 (%

)

GDP QoQ NCREIF Property



3  YR ROLLING  RETURNS COMMODITY  CORRELATION  (3YR  ROLLING) COMMODITY  CUMULATIVE  RETURNS

Commodities
After months of prolonged negative performance for 
commodities, Q1 provided a positive reprieve. Along with 
other risky assets, crude oil saw a rough start to the year, 
falling below $30 in February. With stronger market 
sentiment and indications of production ceilings from major 
oil producers, the price has recovered to the low $40’s. The 
WTI forward curve has begun to flatten which could be 
positive for long investors seeking to reduce their losses on 
the roll yield.

U.S. oil and gas rig counts dropped to the lowest level on 
record back to 1949, reflecting the dramatic downturn in 

activity from the U.S. energy sector. This reduction in supply 
was a tailwind for crude oil prices.

While oil continues to hover around all time low prices, 
Americans are approaching peak driving season and could 
bolster upward price movement.

Gold started 2016 just above $1100 and has since rallied 
past $1250. While the initial rally seemed to have been 
supported by uncertainty around Fed policy and instability 
across global financial markets, gold has remained range 
bound over the last month.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Standard & Poor’s, Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 Source: MPI, as of 3/31/16 ‐ correlation to Bloomberg Commodity Source: S&P Dow Jones, as of 3/31/16

36

‐0.4

‐0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

Dec‐03 Dec‐06 Dec‐09 Dec‐12 Dec‐15
S&P 500 MSCI EAFE
Barclays US Agg Bond Inflation (CPI)

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000

Dec‐98 Jun‐02 Dec‐05 Jun‐09 Dec‐12

G
ro
w
th
 o
f $

1,
00
0

S&P GSCI Energy S&P GSCI Livestock
S&P GSCI Precious Metal S&P GSCI Industrial Metal
S&P GSCI Agricultural

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

‐20

‐10

0

10

20

30

40

Jun‐88 Jun‐94 Jun‐00 Jun‐06 Jun‐12

In
fla
tio

n 
(%

)

Co
m
m
od

ity
 R
et
ur
n 
(%

)

Inflation S&P GSCI Bloomberg Commodity



GLOBAL  PRIVATE  EQUITY‐BACKED  BUYOUT  DEALS GLOBAL  PRIVATE  EQUITY‐BACKED  BUYOUT  EXITS

Private equity buyouts
With pricing rich in the buyouts space, harvesting volume is 
outpacing new capital deployment.  This bodes well for LPs 
given higher levels of distributions than capital calls in a 
frothy investment environment. While exhibiting a 
continued downward trend in the number of exits, the 
aggregate value of Buyout exits continued to outpace new 
investments.

The first quarter of 2016 saw 874 private equity‐backed 
buyout deals globally, worth a combined $44 Billion. This 
represents a sharp decrease from the 962 deals in the 

previous quarter, and is 57% lower than the $101 Billion 
recorded across 904 deals in Q1 2015.

Private equity buyout‐backed exits also contracted in Q1 
2016, as 343 exits with a total value of $62 Billion were 
announced. The number of exits is 19% lower than the 421 
exits seen in Q4 2015, and 15% lower than the 402 exits in 
Q1 2015. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 37

Source: Preqin, as of 3/31/16 Source: Preqin, as of 3/31/16

814
903 862 926 868

988 974
1046

904 912 976 962
874

95
73

67
75

87
91 90 95

101
98

86

137

44

0.0
20.0
40.0
60.0
80.0
100.0
120.0
140.0
160.0

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2013 2014 2015 2016

Aggregate Deal Value ($ Billion)

N
o.
 o
f D

ea
ls

Number of Deals Aggregate Deal Value ($ Billion)

363
424

392
461

390

465 464 463
402

434 439 421

343

52

105
79

91 101

153

112
97 103

125 119

72
62

0
20
40
60
80
100
120
140
160
180

0

100

200

300

400

500

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2013 2014 2015 2016

Aggregate Exit Value ($ Billion)

N
o.
 o
f E
xi
ts

No. of Exits Aggregate Exit Value ($ Billion)



GLOBAL  VENTURE  CAPITAL  INVESTMENTS* GLOBAL  VENTURE  CAPITAL  EXITS

Venture capital
Venture Capital fund managers are not finding exit 
markets as receptive and have adjusted capital 
deployment to somewhat lower levels, with a focus on 
existing portfolio companies.  With the funding 
environment generally more stringent for new startups 
and later stage companies that have yet to gain traction, 
we see signs that the venture space is going through a 
modest correction.

With aggregate exit values generally lagging in 2015, VC 
investment activity has turned more cautious, with a 

focus on selectively funding existing portfolio companies.

Globally the first quarter saw 2,403 deals, worth a 
combined $34 Billion. Both the quantity and value of new 
deals have fallen over the last two quarters.

The venture‐backed exit market contracted in Q1, as 265 
exits were announced globally worth a total of $17 
Billion. The number of exits was 15% lower than the 304 
exits seen in Q4 2015, and 6% lower than the 282 exits in 
Q1 2015. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 38

Source: Preqin, as of 3/31/16 Source: Preqin, as of 3/31/16
* Figures exclude add‐ons, mergers, grants, venture debt & secondary stock purchases.

2,285

2,714
2,468 2,453 2,460

2,765
2,543

2,358 2,371
2,573 2,533

2,366 2,403

12
14 14

17 19

25
22

29 30

37
42

27

34

0.0
5.0
10.0
15.0
20.0
25.0
30.0
35.0
40.0
45.0

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2013 2014 2015 2016

Aggregate Deal Value ($ Billion)

N
o.
 o
f D

ea
ls

No. of Deals Aggregate Deal Value ($ Billion)

214

259

310

264 267

328 315

264
282

308

233

304
265

8

15

28
32

41

23

45

17 18 17
11

28

17

0
5
10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2013 2014 2015 2016

Aggregate Exit Value ($ Billion)

N
o.
 o
f E

xi
ts

No. of Exits Aggregate Exit Value ($ Billion)



LONG‐TERM  TRADE  WEIGHTED  USD EFFECT  OF  CURRENCY  (1YR  ROLLING) CURRENCY  MARKET  BEHAVIOR

Currency
The U.S. dollar depreciated against a broad basket of 
currencies in Q1, resulting in moderate to significant 
gains for investors with unhedged international equity 
exposure. Emerging market currencies rallied 
particularly hard in March as the U.S. dollar fell 
following a more accommodative sounding Fed and 
market risk‐on sentiment. 

The currency headwind faced by unhedged U.S. 
investors has reversed, bringing the effects of currency 

back to neutral on a 1‐year rolling basis. 

Forecasting the future path of the U.S. dollar is an 
extremely difficult task. The dollar has appreciated 
greatly over the last few years, although this quarter 
some of that progression had been given back. The 
dollar is influenced by relative interest rates and is 
therefore influenced by central bank actions. 
Furthermore, trade and inflows/outflows of U.S. dollars 
around the globe has great impact on valuations. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: FRED, as of 3/31/16 Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16 Source: Russell Investments, as of 3/31/16

39

60

80

100

120

140

160

Ju
l‐7

5

Ju
l‐8

0

Ju
l‐8

5

Ju
l‐9

0

Ju
l‐9

5

Ju
l‐0

0

Ju
l‐0

5

Ju
l‐1

0

Ju
l‐1

5

Trade Weighted US Dollar Index

‐20

‐10

0

10

20

30

Jan‐09 Jan‐11 Jan‐13 Dec‐14

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

MSCI EAFE MSCI ACWI ex USA MSCI EM

‐5

0

5

10

15

20

Nov‐00 Nov‐03 Nov‐06 Nov‐09 Nov‐12 Nov‐15

Pe
rc
en

t (
%
)

RCCI Index ‐ 1 Year Rolling Return



‐11.3% ‐10.3%
‐12.8%

‐16.3%
‐13.3%

12.2% 12.0% 11.6% 11.3%

20.1%

‐0.6%

0.5%

‐2.7%
‐6.8%

4.1%

‐20%

‐15%

‐10%

‐5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

MSCI ACWI S&P 500 FTSE Japan Emerging Markets

%
 M

ov
em

en
t

Drawdown Rebound Net change

Peak to trough

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

EQUITY  DRAWDOWN  AND  RECOVERY

40

SPREAD  EXPANSION  AND  COMPRESSION

Source: Bloomberg, as of 4/11/2016     Returns are for the period observed during from 1/1/2016 to 4/11/2016. Indices are stated in USD and returns are gross.  

21.6%

46.5%
37.7%

46.5%

101.8%

28.1%

‐27.8%
‐35.9% ‐39.4% ‐35.9%

‐55.3%

‐30.9%

‐7.3% ‐6.1% ‐10.1% ‐6.1%

29.2%

‐6.4%

‐60%

‐40%

‐20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%
High Yield High Yield Energy Investment Grade IG Energy Venezuela CDS Russia CDS

Drawdown Rebound Net change



Appendix

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 41



Periodic table of returns – March 2016 

42

Source Data: Morningstar, Inc., Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFR), National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (NCREIF).  Indices used: Russell 1000, Russell 1000 Value, Russell 1000 Growth, Russell 
2000, Russell 2000 Value, Russell 2000 Growth, MSCI EAFE, MSCI EM, BC Agg, T‐Bill 90 Day, Bloomberg Commodity, NCREIF Property, HFRI FOF, MSCI ACWI, BC Global Bond.

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

BE
ST

W
O
RS

T

Large Cap Equity Small Cap Growth Commodities

Large Cap Value International Equity Real Estate

Large Cap Growth Emerging Markets Equity Hedge Funds  of Funds

Small Cap Equity US Bonds 60% MSCI ACWI/40% BC Global Bond

Small Cap Value Cash

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 YTD 5‐Year 10‐Year

Emerging Markets Equity 74.8 16.6 38.4 23.2 35.2 38.7 66.4 31.8 14.0 25.9 56.3 26.0 34.5 32.6 39.8 5.2 79.0 29.1 14.3 18.6 43.3 13.5 10.1 5.7 12.4 8.3

US Bonds 32.9 8.1 37.8 23.1 32.9 27.0 43.1 22.8 8.4 10.3 48.5 22.2 21.4 26.9 16.2 1.4 37.2 26.9 7.8 18.1 38.8 13.2 5.7 3.0 11.9 7.6

60/40 Global Portfolio 26.3 6.4 37.2 22.4 31.8 20.3 33.2 12.2 7.3 6.7 47.3 20.7 20.1 23.5 15.8 ‐6.5 34.5 24.5 2.6 17.9 34.5 13.0 0.9 2.6 11.4 7.1

Real Estate 23.8 4.4 31.0 21.6 30.5 19.3 27.3 11.6 3.3 1.6 46.0 18.3 14.0 22.2 11.8 ‐21.4 32.5 19.2 1.5 17.5 33.5 11.8 0.6 2.2 10.2 6.0

Small Cap Value 19.3 3.2 28.5 21.4 22.4 16.2 26.5 7.0 2.8 1.0 39.2 16.5 7.5 18.4 11.6 ‐25.9 28.4 16.8 0.4 16.4 33.1 6.0 0.0 1.7 7.7 5.7

Large Cap Value 18.9 2.6 25.7 16.5 16.2 15.6 24.3 6.0 2.5 ‐5.9 30.0 14.5 7.1 16.6 10.9 ‐28.9 27.2 16.7 0.1 16.3 32.5 5.6 ‐0.4 1.6 7.2 5.3

Large Cap Equity 18.1 0.4 19.6 14.4 13.9 8.7 21.3 4.1 ‐2.4 ‐6.0 29.9 14.3 6.3 15.5 10.3 ‐33.8 23.3 16.1 ‐2.1 15.3 23.3 4.9 ‐0.8 1.2 6.7 4.9

Large Cap Growth 13.4 ‐1.5 18.5 11.3 12.9 4.9 20.9 ‐3.0 ‐5.6 ‐11.4 29.7 12.9 5.3 15.1 7.0 ‐35.6 20.6 15.5 ‐2.9 14.6 12.1 4.2 ‐1.4 0.7 4.0 4.5

Commodities 10.2 ‐1.8 15.2 10.3 10.6 1.2 13.2 ‐7.3 ‐9.1 ‐15.5 25.2 11.4 4.7 13.3 7.0 ‐36.8 19.7 13.1 ‐4.2 11.5 11.0 3.4 ‐2.5 0.4 3.8 4.4

Cash 9.7 ‐2.0 11.6 9.9 9.7 ‐2.5 11.4 ‐7.8 ‐9.2 ‐15.7 23.9 9.1 4.6 10.4 5.8 ‐37.6 18.9 10.2 ‐5.5 10.5 9.0 2.8 ‐3.8 0.1 2.3 3.0

Small Cap Equity 3.1 ‐2.4 11.1 6.4 5.2 ‐5.1 7.3 ‐14.0 ‐12.4 ‐20.5 11.6 6.9 4.6 9.1 4.4 ‐38.4 11.5 8.2 ‐5.7 4.8 0.1 0.0 ‐4.4 ‐1.5 1.4 1.8

Hedge Funds of Funds 2.9 ‐2.9 7.5 6.0 2.1 ‐6.5 4.8 ‐22.4 ‐19.5 ‐21.7 9.0 6.3 4.2 4.8 ‐0.2 ‐38.5 5.9 6.5 ‐11.7 4.2 ‐2.0 ‐1.8 ‐7.5 ‐2.5 0.1 1.5

International Equity 1.4 ‐3.5 5.7 5.1 ‐3.4 ‐25.3 ‐0.8 ‐22.4 ‐20.4 ‐27.9 4.1 4.3 3.2 4.3 ‐1.6 ‐43.1 0.2 5.7 ‐13.3 0.1 ‐2.3 ‐4.5 ‐14.9 ‐3.0 ‐4.1 1.0

Small Cap Growth ‐1.1 ‐7.3 ‐5.2 3.6 ‐11.6 ‐27.0 ‐1.5 ‐30.6 ‐21.2 ‐30.3 1.0 1.4 2.4 2.1 ‐9.8 ‐53.2 ‐16.9 0.1 ‐18.2 ‐1.1 ‐9.5 ‐17.0 ‐24.7 ‐4.7 ‐14.1 ‐6.2



Major asset class returns

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16 Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16

43

ONE YEAR ENDING MARCH TEN YEARS ENDING MARCH

‐19.6%

‐12.0%

‐11.8%

‐9.8%

‐8.3%

‐7.7%

‐3.7%

‐1.5%

0.9%

1.7%

1.8%

2.0%

2.4%

2.5%

4.8%

‐25% ‐20% ‐15% ‐10% ‐5% 0% 5% 10%

 Bloomberg Commodity

 MSCI EM

 Russell 2000 Growth

 Russell 2000

 MSCI EAFE

 Russell 2000 Value

 BC US Corp. High Yield

 Russell 1000 Value

 BC US Credit

 BC US Agency Interm

 S&P 500

 BC US Agg Bond

 BC US Treasury

 Russell 1000 Growth

 Wilshire US REIT

‐6.2%

1.8%

3.0%

3.7%

4.4%

4.6%

4.9%

5.3%

5.7%

5.7%

6.0%

6.3%

7.0%

7.0%

8.3%

‐10% ‐5% 0% 5% 10% 15%

 Bloomberg Commodity

 MSCI EAFE

 MSCI EM

 BC US Agency Interm

 Russell 2000 Value

 BC US Treasury

 BC US Agg Bond

 Russell 2000

 Russell 1000 Value

 BC US Credit

 Russell 2000 Growth

 Wilshire US REIT

 S&P 500

 BC US Corp. High Yield

 Russell 1000 Growth



S&P 500 and S&P 500 sector returns

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16                                                                                            Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16

44

QTD ONE YEAR ENDING MARCH

‐5.5%

‐5.1%

1.3%

1.6%

2.6%

3.6%

4.0%

5.0%

5.6%

15.6%

16.6%

‐10% ‐5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20%

 Health Care

 Financials

 S&P 500

 Consumer Discretionary

 Information Technology

 Materials

 Energy

 Industrials

 Consumer Staples

 Utilities

 Telecom

‐15.5%

‐6.0%

‐5.2%

‐4.5%

1.8%

3.2%

6.7%

8.1%

11.4%

16.0%

18.7%

‐25% ‐15% ‐5% 5% 15% 25%

 Energy

 Materials

 Health Care

 Financials

 S&P 500

 Industrials

 Consumer Discretionary

 Information Technology

 Consumer Staples

 Utilities

 Telecom



Detailed index returns

45

Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape

DOMESTIC EQUITY FIXED INCOME
Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

 Core Index  Broad Index

 S&P 500 6.8  1.3  1.3  1.8  11.8  11.6  7.0   BC US Treasury US TIPS 1.8  4.5  4.5  1.5  (0.7) 3.0  4.6 

 S&P 500 Equal Weighted 7.9  3.0  3.0  (1.0) 11.8  11.5  8.2   BC US Treasury Bills 0.1  0.1  0.1  0.2  0.1  0.1  1.2 

 DJ Industrial Average 7.2  2.2  2.2  2.1  9.3  10.3  7.5   BC US Agg Bond 0.9  3.0  3.0  2.0  2.5  3.8  4.9 

 Russell Top 200 6.5  0.7  0.7  2.6  12.0  11.8  6.9   Duration

 Russell 1000 7.0  1.2  1.2  0.5  11.5  11.4  7.1   BC US Treasury 1‐3 Yr 0.2  0.9  0.9  0.9  0.8  0.9  2.5 

 Russell 2000 8.0  (1.5) (1.5) (9.8) 6.8  7.2  5.3   BC US Treasury Long (0.0) 8.2  8.2  2.8  6.1  9.7  8.0 

 Russell 3000 7.0  1.0  1.0  (0.3) 11.1  11.0  6.9   BC US Treasury 0.2  3.2  3.2  2.4  2.1  3.6  4.6 

 Russell Mid Cap 8.2  2.2  2.2  (4.0) 10.4  10.3  7.4   Issuer

Style Index  BC US MBS 0.3  2.0  2.0  2.4  2.7  3.2  4.8 

 Russell 1000 Growth 6.7  0.7  0.7  2.5  13.6  12.4  8.3   BC US Corp. High Yield 4.4  3.4  3.4  (3.7) 1.8  4.9  7.0 

 Russell 1000 Value 7.2  1.6  1.6  (1.5) 9.4  10.2  5.7   BC US Agency Interm 0.2  1.5  1.5  1.7  1.3  1.9  3.7 

 Russell 2000 Growth 7.7  (4.7) (4.7) (11.8) 7.9  7.7  6.0   BC US Credit 2.5  3.9  3.9  0.9  2.9  5.0  5.7 

 Russell 2000 Value 8.3  1.7  1.7  (7.7) 5.7  6.7  4.4 

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY OTHER

 Broad Index  Index

 MSCI EAFE 6.5  (3.0) (3.0) (8.3) 2.2  2.3  1.8   Bloomberg Commodity 3.8  0.4  0.4  (19.6) (16.9) (14.1) (6.2)

 MSCI AC World ex US 8.1  (0.4) (0.4) (9.2) 0.3  0.3  1.9   Wilshire US REIT 10.4  5.2  5.2  4.8  11.1  12.1  6.3 

 MSCI EM 13.2  5.7  5.7  (12.0) (4.5) (4.1) 3.0  Regional Index

 MSCI EAFE Small Cap  8.0  (0.6) (0.6) 3.2  7.3  5.6  3.4   JPM EMBI  Global Div 3.3  5.0  5.0  4.2  3.4  6.2  7.2 

 Style Index  JPM GBI‐EM Global Div 9.1  11.0  11.0  (1.6) (6.7) (2.0) 5.0 

 MSCI EAFE Growth 6.4  (2.1) (2.1) (3.7) 3.8  3.7  2.9 

 MSCI EAFE Value 6.6  (4.0) (4.0) (12.8) 0.6  0.8  0.6 

 Regional Index

 MSCI UK 4.8  (2.3) (2.3) (8.8) 0.2  2.2  2.0 

 MSCI Japan 4.7  (6.5) (6.5) (7.1) 3.8  4.0  (0.4)

 MSCI Euro 7.4  (2.5) (2.5) (9.9) 4.0  0.6  0.8 

 MSCI EM Asia 11.4  1.9  1.9  (12.6) (0.1) (0.7) 5.0 

 MSCI EM Latin American 20.4  19.1  19.1  (9.2) (14.8) (11.5) 1.5 



Definitions
Bloomberg US Weekly Consumer Comfort Index ‐ tracks the public’s economic attitudes each week, providing a high‐frequency read on consumer sentiment. The index, 
based on cell and landline telephone interviews with a random, representative national sample of U.S. adults, tracks Americans' ratings of the national economy, their 
personal finances and the buying climate on a weekly basis, with views of the economy’s direction measured separately each month. (www.langerresearch.com) 

University of Michigan Consumer Sentiment Index ‐ A survey of consumer attitudes concerning both the present situation as well as expectations regarding economic 
conditions conducted by the University of Michigan. For the preliminary release approximately three hundred consumers are surveyed while five hundred are 
interviewed for the final figure. The level of consumer sentiment is related to the strength of consumer spending. (www.Bloomberg.com) 

Citi Economic Surprise Index ‐ objective and quantitative measures of economic news. Defined as weighted historical standard deviations of data surprises (actual 
releases vs Bloomberg survey median). A positive reading of the Economic Surprise Index suggests that economic releases have on balance been beating consensus. The 
indices are calculated daily in a rolling three‐month window. The weights of economic indicators are derived from relative high‐frequency spot FX impacts of 1 standard 
deviation data surprises. The indices also employ a time decay function to replicate the limited memory of markets. (www.Bloomberg.com) 

Merrill Lynch Option Volatility Estimate (MOVE) Index – a yield curve weighted index comprised of a weighted set of 1‐month Treasury options, including 2.5.10 and 
30 year tenor contracts. This index is an indicator of the expected (implied) future volatility in the rate markets. 

2nd Quarter 2016
Investment Landscape 46

Notices & disclosures
Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This report or presentation is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and 
eligible institutional counterparties only and should not be relied upon by retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a 
recommendation to buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. The opinions and information expressed are current as 
of the date provided or cited only and are subject to change without notice. This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or 
warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or reliability. Verus Advisory Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC expressly disclaim any and all implied warranties or originality, 
accuracy, completeness, non‐infringement, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.  This report or presentation cannot be used by the recipient for 
advertising or sales promotion purposes. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward‐looking statements.” Such statements can be identified by the use of terminology such as 
“believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipates,” or the negative of any of the foregoing  or comparable terminology, or by discussion of strategy, or 
assumptions such as economic conditions underlying other statements. No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking 
information will be achieved. Actual events may differ significantly from those presented. Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Risk controls and 
models do not promise any level of performance or guarantee against loss of principal.  

“VERUS ADVISORY™ and VERUS INVESTORS™ and any associated designs are the respective trademarks of Verus Advisory, Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC.  Additional 
information is available upon request. 



Investment Performance Review
Period Ending:  March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 2

Contributions and withdrawals may include intra-account transfers between managers/funds.

Portfolio Reconciliation

Sources of Portfolio Growth Last Three
Months Year-To-Date

_

Beginning Market Value $7,095,924,143 $7,095,924,143

Net Additions/Withdrawals -$80,931,073 -$80,931,073

Investment Earnings $78,543,594 $78,543,594

Ending Market Value $7,093,536,664 $7,093,536,664
_

Total Fund
Portfolio Reconciliation Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 3

Total Fund
Asset Allocation History Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 4

Allocation vs. Long Term Target
Current

Balance
Current

Allocation
Long Term

Target Difference Long Term Target
Range

Within IPS
Range?

_

Global Equity $3,309,156,809 46.7% 42.6% $287,310,190 40.0% - 55.0% Yes
Global Fixed Income $1,599,889,403 22.6% 24.4% -$130,933,543 20.0% - 30.0% Yes
High Yield Fixed Income $320,085,905 4.5% 5.0% -$34,590,929 2.0% - 9.0% Yes
Inflation Hedge/Real Assets $349,993,795 4.9% 5.0% -$4,683,038 0.0% - 10.0% Yes
Real Estate $823,648,890 11.6% 12.5% -$63,043,193 10.0% - 16.0% Yes
Alternative Investments $582,760,298 8.2% 10.0% -$126,593,368 5.0% - 12.0% Yes
Opportunistic $33,165,026 0.5% 0.0% $33,165,026 0.0% - 5.0% Yes
Cash $74,836,538 1.1% 0.5% $39,368,854 0.0% - 1.0% No
Total $7,093,536,664 100.0% 100.0%

XXXXX

Allocation vs. Current Targets
Current

Balance
Current

Allocation
Current
Target Difference

_

Global Equity $3,309,156,809 46.7% 46.6% $3,568,724
Global Fixed Income $1,599,889,403 22.6% 23.6% -$74,185,250
High Yield Fixed Income $320,085,905 4.5% 5.0% -$34,590,929
Inflation Hedge/Real Assets $349,993,795 4.9% 5.0% -$4,683,038
Real Estate $823,648,890 11.6% 12.5% -$63,043,193
Alternative Investments $582,760,298 8.2% 6.0% $157,148,099
Opportunistic $33,165,026 0.5% 0.8% -$23,583,267
Cash $74,836,538 1.1% 0.5% $39,368,854
Total $7,093,536,664 100.0% 100.0%

XXXXX

Total Fund
Asset Allocation vs. Long Term Target Policy Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 5

Policy Index (as of 4/1/2012): 27.7% Russell 3000, 10.6% MSCI ACWI ex-US (Gross), 12.3% MSCI ACWI (Net), 19.6% Barclays U.S. Aggregate, 5% Bank of America High Yield Master II, 4% Barclays Global Aggregate, 13.5% Real Estate 
Benchmark, 6.8% S&P 500 +4% (Lagged), 0.5% 91-Day T-Bills. Real Estate Benchmark: 40% Wilshire REIT, 50% NCREIF Property Index, 10% FTSE/EPRA NAREIT Developed ex-USA. 

Total Fund
Executive Summary (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

 
QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs

_

Total Fund 1.2 1.2 0.0 7.6 8.0 6.3
Policy Index 2.4 2.4 0.5 7.4 8.0 --
CPI + 4% 1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 5.3 5.8

InvestorForce Public DB > $1B Gross Rank 43 43  28 5 2 6

Total Domestic Equity -0.4 -0.4 -2.7 11.2 11.2 7.2
Russell 3000 1.0 1.0 -0.3 11.1 11.0 6.9

eA US All Cap Equity Gross Rank 54 54  42 37 29 51

Total International Equity 0.0 0.0 -5.2 4.3 3.7 1.9
MSCI ACWI ex USA Gross -0.3 -0.3 -8.8 0.8 0.8 2.4
MSCI EAFE Gross -2.9 -2.9 -7.9 2.7 2.8 2.3

eA All ACWI ex-US Equity Gross Rank 35 35  52 38 45 94

Total Global Equity 0.3 0.3 -0.7 7.8 6.1 --
MSCI ACWI 0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 5.2 --

eA All Global Equity Gross Rank 49 49  31 43 67 --

Total Domestic Fixed Income 2.8 2.8 2.4 4.0 5.6 6.1
Barclays U.S. Universal 3.1 3.1 1.8 2.5 3.9 5.0
Barclays Aggregate 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9

eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Rank 76 76  29 2 4 9

Total High Yield 2.1 2.1 -4.0 1.6 4.8 7.1
BofA ML High Yield Master II 3.2 3.2 -4.0 1.8 4.7 6.8

eA US High Yield Fixed Inc Gross Rank 71 71  73 76 66 40

Total Global Fixed Income 5.7 5.7 3.9 0.6 1.7 3.7
Barclays Global Aggregate 5.9 5.9 4.6 0.9 1.8 4.3

eA All Global Fixed Inc Gross Rank 24 24  16 72 76 94



Policy Index (as of 4/1/2012): 27.7% Russell 3000, 10.6% MSCI ACWI ex-US (Gross), 12.3% MSCI ACWI (Net), 19.6% Barclays U.S. Aggregate, 5% Bank of America High Yield Master II, 4% Barclays Global Aggregate, 13.5% Real Estate 
Benchmark, 6.8% S&P 500 +4% (Lagged), 0.5% 91-Day T-Bills. Real Estate Benchmark: 40% Wilshire REIT, 50% NCREIF Property Index, 10% FTSE/EPRA NAREIT Developed ex-USA. 

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 6

Total Fund
Executive Summary (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

 
QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs

_

Total Inflation Hedge -2.0 -2.0 -10.3 -3.1 -- --
CPI + 4% 1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 -- --

Total Real Estate 1.3 1.3 6.1 13.1 13.2 5.9
Real Estate Benchmark 3.8 3.8 7.9 10.9 12.1 8.0
NCREIF-ODCE 2.2 2.2 13.7 13.6 13.3 6.4
NCREIF Property Index 2.2 2.2 11.8 11.9 11.9 7.6

Total Alternatives 2.6 2.6 7.1 15.4 13.3 12.4
S&P 500 Index +4% (Lagged) 8.1 8.1 5.4 19.7 17.0 11.6

Total Opportunistic -1.5 -1.5 -13.7 2.2 2.7 --
CPI + 4% 1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 5.3 --

XXXXX



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 7

Policy Index (as of 4/1/2012): 27.7% Russell 3000, 10.6% MSCI ACWI ex-US (Gross), 12.3% MSCI ACWI (Net), 19.6% Barclays U.S. Aggregate, 5% Bank of America High Yield Master II, 4% Barclays Global Aggregate, 13.5% Real Estate 
Benchmark, 6.8% S&P 500 +4% (Lagged), 0.5% 91-Day T-Bills. Real Estate Benchmark: 40% Wilshire REIT, 50% NCREIF Property Index, 10% FTSE/EPRA NAREIT Developed ex-USA.

Total Fund
Executive Summary (Net of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

 
QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs

_

Total Fund 1.1 1.1 -0.5 6.9 7.4 5.7
Policy Index 2.4 2.4 0.5 7.4 8.0 --
CPI + 4% 1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 5.3 5.8

Total Domestic Equity -0.6 -0.6 -3.1 10.7 10.8 6.8
Russell 3000 1.0 1.0 -0.3 11.1 11.0 6.9

Total International Equity -0.1 -0.1 -5.6 4.0 3.2 1.4
MSCI ACWI ex USA Gross -0.3 -0.3 -8.8 0.8 0.8 2.4
MSCI EAFE Gross -2.9 -2.9 -7.9 2.7 2.8 2.3

Total Global Equity 0.1 0.1 -1.4 7.1 5.4 --
MSCI ACWI 0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 5.2 --

Total Domestic Fixed Income 2.7 2.7 2.1 3.6 5.1 5.7
Barclays U.S. Universal 3.1 3.1 1.8 2.5 3.9 5.0
Barclays Aggregate 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9

Total High Yield 2.0 2.0 -4.3 1.2 4.5 7.0
BofA ML High Yield Master II 3.2 3.2 -4.0 1.8 4.7 6.8

Total Global Fixed Income 5.7 5.7 3.7 0.3 1.5 3.5
Barclays Global Aggregate 5.9 5.9 4.6 0.9 1.8 4.3

Total Inflation Hedge -2.1 -2.1 -11.0 -4.0 -- --
CPI + 4% 1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 -- --



Policy Index (as of 4/1/2012): 27.7% Russell 3000, 10.6% MSCI ACWI ex-US (Gross), 12.3% MSCI ACWI (Net), 19.6% Barclays U.S. Aggregate, 5% Bank of America High Yield Master II, 4% Barclays Global Aggregate, 13.5% Real Estate 
Benchmark, 6.8% S&P 500 +4% (Lagged), 0.5% 91-Day T-Bills. Real Estate Benchmark: 40% Wilshire REIT, 50% NCREIF Property Index, 10% FTSE/EPRA NAREIT Developed ex-USA.

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 8

Total Fund
Executive Summary (Net of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

 
QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs

_

Total Real Estate 1.2 1.2 5.4 11.8 12.0 4.9
Real Estate Benchmark 3.8 3.8 7.9 10.9 12.1 8.0
NCREIF-ODCE 2.2 2.2 13.7 13.6 13.3 6.4
NCREIF Property Index 2.2 2.2 11.8 11.9 11.9 7.6

Total Alternatives 2.6 2.6 6.3 13.5 11.3 9.9
S&P 500 Index +4% (Lagged) 8.1 8.1 5.4 19.7 17.0 11.6

Total Opportunistic -1.5 -1.5 -13.8 2.2 2.6 --
CPI + 4% 1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 5.3 --

XXXXX



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 9

Total Fund
Risk Analysis - 5 Years (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

 Anlzd Ret
Ann

Excess BM
Return

Anlzd Std
Dev

Anlzd
Alpha Beta Tracking

Error R-Squared Sharpe
Ratio Info Ratio Up Mkt

Cap Ratio
Down Mkt
Cap Ratio

_

Total Fund 8.03% 0.07% 7.62% -0.08% 1.02 1.17% 0.98 1.05 0.06 100.80% 100.08%
XXXXX



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 10

Individual closed end funds are not shown in performance summary table.

Total Fund
Performance Summary (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Market Value % of
Portfolio 3 Mo YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Fund 7,093,536,664 100.0 1.2 1.2 0.0 7.6 8.0 6.3 2.6 8.4 16.4 14.3 2.7
Policy Index   2.4 2.4 0.5 7.4 8.0 -- 0.6 9.0 15.6 14.6 2.8
CPI + 4%   1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 5.3 5.8 4.8 4.8 5.6 5.8 7.1

InvestorForce Public DB > $1B Gross Rank    43 43  28 5 2 6  6 6 33 13 9
Total Domestic Equity 1,615,153,672 22.8 -0.4 -0.4 -2.7 11.2 11.2 7.2 1.1 11.4 36.2 18.2 1.1

Russell 3000   1.0 1.0 -0.3 11.1 11.0 6.9 0.5 12.6 33.6 16.4 1.0
eA US All Cap Equity Gross Rank    54 54  42 37 29 51  36 36 41 24 34

Intech Large Cap Core 299,555,680 4.2 1.4 1.4 0.6 13.1 12.4 -- 3.8 14.7 32.7 15.3 3.6
S&P 500   1.3 1.3 1.8 11.8 11.6 -- 1.4 13.7 32.4 16.0 2.1

eA US Large Cap Core Equity Gross Rank    34 34  39 18 25 --  16 31 54 54 25
PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return 246,789,500 3.5 1.0 1.0 -1.4 10.3 11.5 7.1 -1.2 13.6 31.4 20.6 2.3

S&P 500   1.3 1.3 1.8 11.8 11.6 7.0 1.4 13.7 32.4 16.0 2.1
eA US Large Cap Core Equity Gross Rank    41 41  64 79 46 66  73 45 68 4 36

Jackson Square Partners 295,830,816 4.2 -6.1 -6.1 -3.4 11.7 13.0 7.6 6.1 13.9 35.4 16.9 8.9
Russell 1000 Growth   0.7 0.7 2.5 13.6 12.4 8.3 5.7 13.0 33.5 15.3 2.6

eA US Large Cap Growth Equity Gross Rank    97 97  81 67 18 56  37 31 40 37 3
Robeco Boston Partners 318,956,768 4.5 -0.1 -0.1 -4.1 9.9 11.0 7.6 -3.9 12.0 37.4 21.6 0.9

Russell 1000 Value   1.6 1.6 -1.5 9.4 10.2 5.7 -3.8 13.5 32.5 17.5 0.4
eA US Large Cap Value Equity Gross Rank    68 68  70 53 32 27  65 55 24 5 46

Emerald Advisers 215,420,230 3.0 -6.1 -6.1 -11.1 11.4 10.4 7.5 4.1 7.3 50.3 18.5 -0.6
Russell 2000 Growth   -4.7 -4.7 -11.8 7.9 7.7 6.0 -1.4 5.6 43.3 14.6 -2.9

eA US Small Cap Growth Equity Gross Rank    69 69  55 19 24 29  19 21 27 22 42
Ceredex 238,600,679 3.4 8.0 8.0 0.6 9.1 -- -- -4.4 3.3 36.5 19.0 --

Russell 2000 Value   1.7 1.7 -7.7 5.7 -- -- -7.5 4.2 34.5 18.1 --
eA US Small Cap Value Equity Gross Rank    3 3  7 37 -- --  52 74 66 38 --

Total International Equity 798,781,365 11.3 0.0 0.0 -5.2 4.3 3.7 1.9 -1.2 0.3 17.8 18.5 -11.5
MSCI ACWI ex USA Gross   -0.3 -0.3 -8.8 0.8 0.8 2.4 -5.3 -3.4 15.8 17.4 -13.3
MSCI EAFE Gross   -2.9 -2.9 -7.9 2.7 2.8 2.3 -0.4 -4.5 23.3 17.9 -11.7

eA All ACWI ex-US Equity Gross Rank    35 35  52 38 45 94  61 17 69 63 43
Pyrford 400,611,673 5.6 2.6 2.6 -3.5 -- -- -- -2.9 -- -- -- --

MSCI ACWI ex USA Value   -0.4 -0.4 -12.3 -- -- -- -10.1 -- -- -- --
eA ACWI ex-US Value Equity Gross Rank    19 19  47 -- -- --  59 -- -- -- --

William Blair 397,634,341 5.6 -2.9 -2.9 -7.1 3.5 4.6 -- 0.5 -1.2 20.9 24.3 -13.2
MSCI ACWI ex USA Growth   -0.3 -0.3 -6.1 1.9 1.6 -- -1.3 -2.6 15.5 16.7 -14.2

eA ACWI ex-US Growth Equity Gross Rank    71 71  80 70 48 --  69 37 44 6 55



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 11

Individual closed end funds are not shown in performance summary table.

Total Fund
Performance Summary (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Market Value % of
Portfolio 3 Mo YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

International Equity Transition 535,351 0.0            
Total Global Equity 895,221,772 12.6 0.3 0.3 -0.7 7.8 6.1 -- 2.2 5.2 23.7 11.1 -5.6

MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 5.2 -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 16.1 -7.3
eA All Global Equity Gross Rank    49 49  31 43 67 --  31 44 64 90 40

Artisan Partners 304,254,574 4.3 -0.5 -0.5 3.2 10.2 -- -- 9.2 3.9 26.1 -- --
MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 -- -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 -- --

eA All Global Equity Gross Rank    58 58  12 12 -- --  4 56 51 -- --
First Eagle 304,825,696 4.3 3.6 3.6 1.3 6.5 7.2 -- 0.2 4.5 17.9 13.9 --

MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 5.2 -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 16.1 --
eA All Global Equity Gross Rank    23 23  20 65 49 --  49 51 80 78 --

Intech Global Low Vol 23,575,791 0.3 6.0 6.0 6.8 10.4 -- -- 4.1 11.2 24.2 -- --
MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 -- -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 -- --

eA All Global Equity Gross Rank    10 10  6 11 -- --  18 14 62 -- --
JP Morgan Global Opportunities 262,565,710 3.7 -2.8 -2.8 -7.7 6.4 5.9 -- -2.9 6.7 26.9 19.2 -9.0

MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 5.2 -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 16.1 -7.3
eA All Global Equity Gross Rank    86 86  85 66 68 --  75 30 46 32 63

Total Domestic Fixed Income 1,358,764,900 19.2 2.8 2.8 2.4 4.0 5.6 6.1 1.7 7.3 1.3 9.7 7.2
Barclays U.S. Universal   3.1 3.1 1.8 2.5 3.9 5.0 0.4 5.6 -1.3 5.5 7.4
Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8

eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Rank    76 76  29 2 4 9  8 8 2 5 71
AFL-CIO 231,209,102 3.3 2.9 2.9 2.7 3.0 4.2 5.3 1.6 6.6 -1.9 4.7 8.3

Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8
eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Rank    70 70  14 24 54 56  15 25 78 80 23

Goldman Sachs Core Plus 323,525,529 4.6 3.1 3.1 1.2 3.0 4.9 -- 0.8 6.0 -0.4 7.9 7.6
Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 -- 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8

eA US Core Plus Fixed Inc Gross Rank    32 32  55 27 32 --  36 47 49 59 43
GSAM Workout Portfolio 4,078 0.0            
Lord Abbett 324,508,910 4.6 3.1 3.1 1.3 2.8 4.9 -- 0.0 6.7 -0.6 8.6 8.2

Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 -- 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8
eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Rank    39 39  92 36 9 --  94 18 18 8 27

PIMCO Fixed Income 347,577,183 4.9 2.8 2.8 1.8 2.3 4.1 6.0 0.5 6.3 -1.6 8.5 5.0
Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8

eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Rank    72 72  73 88 65 14  75 34 61 8 97



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 12

Individual closed end funds are not shown in performance summary. Willows Office Property liquidated 3/24/2016. Willows Property sold for $8,180,770 on March 24th. A final income distribution of $771,325 occurred on April 16th.

Total Fund
Performance Summary (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Market Value % of
Portfolio 3 Mo YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total High Yield 320,085,905 4.5 2.1 2.1 -4.0 1.6 4.8 7.1 -3.5 1.2 8.8 14.1 6.4
BofA ML High Yield Master II   3.2 3.2 -4.0 1.8 4.7 6.8 -4.6 2.5 7.4 15.6 4.4

eA US High Yield Fixed Inc Gross Rank    71 71  73 76 66 40  68 83 28 73 19
Allianz Global Investors 320,085,905 4.5 2.1 2.1 -4.0 1.6 4.8 7.1 -3.5 1.2 8.8 14.1 6.4

BofA ML High Yield Master II   3.2 3.2 -4.0 1.8 4.7 6.8 -4.6 2.5 7.4 15.6 4.4
eA US High Yield Fixed Inc Gross Rank    70 70  73 76 66 40  68 83 28 73 21

Total Global Fixed Income 241,124,503 3.4 5.7 5.7 3.9 0.6 1.7 3.7 -3.0 0.4 -3.5 6.7 5.6
Barclays Global Aggregate   5.9 5.9 4.6 0.9 1.8 4.3 -3.2 0.6 -2.6 4.3 5.6

eA All Global Fixed Inc Gross Rank    24 24  16 72 76 94  59 77 83 68 40
Lazard 241,124,503 3.4 5.7 5.7 3.9 0.6 1.7 -- -3.0 0.4 -3.5 6.7 5.6

Barclays Global Aggregate   5.9 5.9 4.6 0.9 1.8 -- -3.2 0.6 -2.6 4.3 5.6
eA All Global Fixed Inc Gross Rank    24 24  16 72 76 --  59 77 83 68 40

Total Inflation Hedge 350,649,858 4.9 -2.0 -2.0 -10.3 -3.1 -- -- -5.9 -0.6 1.3 -- --
CPI + 4%   1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 -- -- 4.8 4.8 5.6 -- --
PIMCO All Asset Fund 120,307,685 1.7 5.4 5.4 -3.2 -0.3 -- -- -8.0 1.7 -- -- --

CPI + 4%   1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 -- -- 4.8 4.8 -- -- --
Wellington Real Total Return 175,405,143 2.5 -7.0 -7.0 -15.7 -5.3 -- -- -4.9 -2.5 -- -- --

CPI + 4%   1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 -- -- 4.8 4.8 -- -- --
Total Real Estate 823,648,890 11.6 1.3 1.3 6.1 13.1 13.2 5.9 12.6 20.6 10.5 16.7 10.4

Real Estate Benchmark   3.8 3.8 7.9 10.9 12.1 8.0 8.2 18.8 7.1 13.6 13.6
NCREIF-ODCE   2.2 2.2 13.7 13.6 13.3 6.4 15.0 12.5 13.9 10.9 16.0
NCREIF Property Index   2.2 2.2 11.8 11.9 11.9 7.6 13.3 11.8 11.0 10.5 14.3
Adelante 94,985,235 1.3 3.8 3.8 2.7 12.7 12.7 6.0 5.1 33.4 3.6 17.7 9.2

Wilshire REIT   5.2 5.2 4.8 11.1 12.1 6.3 4.2 31.8 1.9 17.6 9.2
INVESCO International REIT 56,735,574 0.8 3.5 3.5 -3.7 1.5 5.4 -- -2.9 2.8 5.4 42.3 -16.5

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed ex-USA   5.2 5.2 -1.7 2.1 5.3 -- -3.2 3.2 6.1 38.6 -15.3
Willows Office Property 0 0.0 -20.6 -20.6 -18.7 5.0 5.6 1.6 4.8 32.8 7.5 6.3 6.1

NCREIF Property Index   2.2 2.2 11.8 11.9 11.9 7.6 13.3 11.8 11.0 10.5 14.3



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 13

Individual closed end funds are not shown in performance summary. 

Total Fund
Performance Summary (Net of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Market Value % of
Portfolio 3 Mo YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Fund 7,093,536,664 100.0 1.1 1.1 -0.5 6.9 7.4 5.7 2.0 7.7 15.6 13.6 2.1
Policy Index   2.4 2.4 0.5 7.4 8.0 -- 0.6 9.0 15.6 14.6 2.8
CPI + 4%   1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 5.3 5.8 4.8 4.8 5.6 5.8 7.1
Total Domestic Equity 1,615,153,672 22.8 -0.6 -0.6 -3.1 10.7 10.8 6.8 0.6 11.0 35.7 17.8 0.8

Russell 3000   1.0 1.0 -0.3 11.1 11.0 6.9 0.5 12.6 33.6 16.4 1.0
Intech Large Cap Core 299,555,680 4.2 1.3 1.3 0.1 12.6 11.9 -- 3.3 14.2 32.2 14.8 3.3

S&P 500   1.3 1.3 1.8 11.8 11.6 -- 1.4 13.7 32.4 16.0 2.1
PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return 246,789,500 3.5 0.9 0.9 -1.6 10.0 11.2 6.8 -1.4 13.2 31.0 20.3 2.0

S&P 500   1.3 1.3 1.8 11.8 11.6 7.0 1.4 13.7 32.4 16.0 2.1
Jackson Square Partners 295,830,816 4.2 -6.2 -6.2 -3.8 11.2 12.5 7.2 5.6 13.4 35.0 16.4 8.4

Russell 1000 Growth   0.7 0.7 2.5 13.6 12.4 8.3 5.7 13.0 33.5 15.3 2.6
Robeco Boston Partners 318,956,768 4.5 -0.2 -0.2 -4.4 9.6 10.7 7.2 -4.2 11.6 37.0 21.2 0.6

Russell 1000 Value   1.6 1.6 -1.5 9.4 10.2 5.7 -3.8 13.5 32.5 17.5 0.4
Emerald Advisers 215,420,230 3.0 -6.3 -6.3 -11.6 10.7 9.7 6.9 3.5 6.6 49.4 17.8 -1.2

Russell 2000 Growth   -4.7 -4.7 -11.8 7.9 7.7 6.0 -1.4 5.6 43.3 14.6 -2.9
Ceredex 238,600,679 3.4 7.9 7.9 0.0 8.5 -- -- -5.0 2.7 35.8 18.6 --

Russell 2000 Value   1.7 1.7 -7.7 5.7 -- -- -7.5 4.2 34.5 18.1 --
Total International Equity 798,781,365 11.3 -0.1 -0.1 -5.6 4.0 3.2 1.4 -1.6 0.0 17.4 17.9 -12.0

MSCI ACWI ex USA Gross   -0.3 -0.3 -8.8 0.8 0.8 2.4 -5.3 -3.4 15.8 17.4 -13.3
MSCI EAFE Gross   -2.9 -2.9 -7.9 2.7 2.8 2.3 -0.4 -4.5 23.3 17.9 -11.7
Pyrford 400,611,673 5.6 2.5 2.5 -3.9 -- -- -- -3.3 -- -- -- --

MSCI ACWI ex USA Value   -0.4 -0.4 -12.3 -- -- -- -10.1 -- -- -- --
William Blair 397,634,341 5.6 -3.0 -3.0 -7.5 3.0 4.2 -- 0.0 -1.7 20.4 23.7 -13.7

MSCI ACWI ex USA Growth   -0.3 -0.3 -6.1 1.9 1.6 -- -1.3 -2.6 15.5 16.7 -14.2
International Equity Transition 535,351 0.0            

Total Global Equity 895,221,772 12.6 0.1 0.1 -1.4 7.1 5.4 -- 1.6 4.5 22.9 10.6 -6.1
MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 5.2 -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 16.1 -7.3
Artisan Partners 304,254,574 4.3 -0.7 -0.7 2.4 9.4 -- -- 8.4 3.1 25.2 -- --

MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 -- -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 -- --
First Eagle 304,825,696 4.3 3.4 3.4 0.5 5.7 6.4 -- -0.6 3.7 17.1 13.1 --

MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 5.2 -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 16.1 --
Intech Global Low Vol 23,575,791 0.3 6.0 6.0 6.5 10.0 -- -- 3.9 10.8 23.8 -- --

MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 -- -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 -- --
JP Morgan Global Opportunities 262,565,710 3.7 -2.9 -2.9 -8.1 5.9 5.5 -- -3.3 6.2 26.4 18.7 -9.4

MSCI ACWI   0.2 0.2 -4.3 5.5 5.2 -- -2.4 4.2 22.8 16.1 -7.3



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 14

Individual closed end funds are not shown in performance summary.

Total Fund
Performance Summary (Net of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Market Value % of
Portfolio 3 Mo YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Domestic Fixed Income 1,358,764,900 19.2 2.7 2.7 2.1 3.6 5.1 5.7 1.4 6.7 0.9 9.2 6.8
Barclays U.S. Universal   3.1 3.1 1.8 2.5 3.9 5.0 0.4 5.6 -1.3 5.5 7.4
Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8
AFL-CIO 231,209,102 3.3 2.8 2.8 2.3 2.5 3.7 4.9 1.1 6.1 -2.4 4.3 7.9

Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8
Goldman Sachs Core Plus 323,525,529 4.6 3.1 3.1 1.0 2.9 4.7 -- 0.6 5.8 -0.6 7.7 7.3

Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 -- 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8
GSAM Workout Portfolio 4,078 0.0            
Lord Abbett 324,508,910 4.6 3.1 3.1 1.1 2.6 4.7 -- -0.2 6.5 -0.8 8.4 8.0

Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 -- 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8
PIMCO Fixed Income 347,577,183 4.9 2.8 2.8 1.6 2.1 3.8 5.7 0.3 6.0 -1.9 8.2 4.7

Barclays Aggregate   3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9 0.6 6.0 -2.0 4.2 7.8
Total High Yield 320,085,905 4.5 2.0 2.0 -4.3 1.2 4.5 7.0 -3.9 0.8 8.4 13.7 6.4

BofA ML High Yield Master II   3.2 3.2 -4.0 1.8 4.7 6.8 -4.6 2.5 7.4 15.6 4.4
Allianz Global Investors 320,085,905 4.5 2.0 2.0 -4.3 1.2 4.4 6.7 -3.9 0.8 8.4 13.6 6.0

BofA ML High Yield Master II   3.2 3.2 -4.0 1.8 4.7 6.8 -4.6 2.5 7.4 15.6 4.4
Total Global Fixed Income 241,124,503 3.4 5.7 5.7 3.7 0.3 1.5 3.5 -3.3 0.1 -3.8 6.4 5.3

Barclays Global Aggregate   5.9 5.9 4.6 0.9 1.8 4.3 -3.2 0.6 -2.6 4.3 5.6
Lazard 241,124,503 3.4 5.7 5.7 3.7 0.3 1.5 -- -3.3 0.1 -3.8 6.4 5.3

Barclays Global Aggregate   5.9 5.9 4.6 0.9 1.8 -- -3.2 0.6 -2.6 4.3 5.6
Total Inflation Hedge 350,649,858 4.9 -2.1 -2.1 -11.0 -4.0 -- -- -6.8 -1.5 0.3 -- --

CPI + 4%   1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 -- -- 4.8 4.8 5.6 -- --
PIMCO All Asset Fund 120,307,685 1.7 5.2 5.2 -4.1 -1.2 -- -- -8.8 0.8 -- -- --

CPI + 4%   1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 -- -- 4.8 4.8 -- -- --
Wellington Real Total Return 175,405,143 2.5 -7.1 -7.1 -16.2 -5.8 -- -- -5.4 -3.1 -- -- --

CPI + 4%   1.7 1.7 4.9 4.8 -- -- 4.8 4.8 -- -- --
Total Real Estate 823,648,890 11.6 1.2 1.2 5.4 11.8 12.0 4.9 11.5 19.1 8.9 15.7 9.4

Real Estate Benchmark   3.8 3.8 7.9 10.9 12.1 8.0 8.2 18.8 7.1 13.6 13.6
NCREIF-ODCE   2.2 2.2 13.7 13.6 13.3 6.4 15.0 12.5 13.9 10.9 16.0
NCREIF Property Index   2.2 2.2 11.8 11.9 11.9 7.6 13.3 11.8 11.0 10.5 14.3
Adelante 94,985,235 1.3 3.7 3.7 2.3 12.1 12.1 5.5 4.6 32.7 3.0 17.2 8.6

Wilshire REIT   5.2 5.2 4.8 11.1 12.1 6.3 4.2 31.8 1.9 17.6 9.2



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 15

Individual closed end funds are not shown in performance summary. Willows Office Property liquidated 3/24/2016. Willows Property sold for $8,180,770 on March 24th. A final income distribution of $771,325 occurred on April 16th.

Total Fund
Performance Summary (Net of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Market Value % of
Portfolio 3 Mo YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

INVESCO International REIT 56,735,574 0.8 3.4 3.4 -4.3 0.8 4.7 -- -3.5 2.2 4.7 41.3 -17.0
FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed ex-USA   5.2 5.2 -1.7 2.1 5.3 -- -3.2 3.2 6.1 38.6 -15.3

Willows Office Property 0 0.0 -20.6 -20.6 -18.7 5.0 5.6 1.6 4.8 32.8 7.5 6.3 6.1
NCREIF Property Index   2.2 2.2 11.8 11.9 11.9 7.6 13.3 11.8 11.0 10.5 14.3



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 16

Total Fund
Closed End Funds - Investment Summary Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 17

Total Fund
Closed End Funds - Investment Summary Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 18

Total Fund
Closed End Funds - Investment Summary Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 19

Total Fund
Closed End Funds - IRR Summary Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 20

Total Fund
Closed End Funds - IRR Summary Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 21

Performance Analysis excludes closed end funds and those funds without 3 years of performance.

Total Fund
Performance Analysis - 3 Years (Net of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

3 Years

 Anlzd Ret Ann Excess
BM Return

Anlzd Std
Dev Anlzd Alpha Beta Tracking

Error R-Squared Sharpe Ratio Info Ratio Up Mkt Cap
Ratio

Down Mkt
Cap Ratio

_

Intech Large Cap Core 12.62% 0.79% 8.25% 2.17% 0.88 3.72% 0.81 1.52 0.21 97.98% 58.84%
PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return 10.04% -1.78% 10.11% -3.93% 1.18 2.35% 0.97 0.99 -0.76 97.90% 158.51%
Jackson Square Partners 11.21% -2.40% 11.80% -6.51% 1.30 4.98% 0.87 0.95 -0.48 87.97% 136.22%
Robeco Boston Partners 9.56% 0.18% 9.62% -0.01% 1.02 2.77% 0.92 0.99 0.06 99.37% 93.29%
Emerald Advisers 10.69% 2.78% 16.42% 2.61% 1.02 6.79% 0.83 0.65 0.41 113.51% 90.70%
Ceredex 8.50% 2.78% 13.31% 2.87% 0.98 5.32% 0.84 0.63 0.52 113.06% 84.26%
William Blair 3.03% 1.11% 10.59% 1.20% 0.95 2.68% 0.94 0.28 0.42 105.57% 92.18%
Artisan Partners 9.37% 3.84% 10.02% 3.91% 0.99 3.78% 0.86 0.93 1.01 128.52% 71.28%
First Eagle 5.68% 0.14% 7.50% 1.53% 0.75 3.47% 0.88 0.75 0.04 94.83% 87.20%
Intech Global Low Vol 10.04% 4.50% 6.45% 7.26% 0.50 6.43% 0.53 1.55 0.70 122.38% 45.80%
JP Morgan Global Opportunities 5.89% 0.35% 10.72% -0.20% 1.10 3.00% 0.93 0.54 0.12 97.41% 87.65%
AFL-CIO 2.53% 0.03% 3.15% 0.11% 0.97 0.53% 0.97 0.79 0.06 96.90% 90.68%
Goldman Sachs Core Plus 2.87% 0.37% 3.20% 0.68% 0.88 1.58% 0.77 0.88 0.23 92.90% 60.76%
Lord Abbett 2.63% 0.13% 3.34% 0.16% 0.99 1.07% 0.90 0.77 0.12 95.79% 82.17%
PIMCO Fixed Income 2.07% -0.43% 3.43% -0.54% 1.05 0.74% 0.96 0.59 -0.58 93.17% 109.78%
Allianz Global Investors 1.17% -0.58% 5.09% -0.43% 0.91 1.07% 0.97 0.22 -0.55 84.79% 94.55%
Lazard 0.32% -0.55% 5.32% -0.52% 0.97 1.14% 0.96 0.05 -0.48 85.02% 97.09%
PIMCO All Asset Fund -1.16% -5.95% 7.85% -12.69% 2.41 7.22% 0.24 -0.15 -0.82 -3.57% 771.76%



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 22

Performance Analysis excludes closed end funds and those funds without 5 years of performance.

Total Fund
Performance Analysis - 5 Years (Net of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

5 Years

 Anlzd Ret Ann Excess
BM Return

Anlzd Std
Dev Anlzd Alpha Beta Tracking

Error R-Squared Sharpe Ratio Info Ratio Up Mkt Cap
Ratio

Down Mkt
Cap Ratio

_

Intech Large Cap Core 11.93% 0.35% 12.74% 0.73% 0.97 3.28% 0.93 0.93 0.11 99.35% 93.10%
PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return 11.22% -0.36% 13.96% -1.36% 1.09 2.17% 0.98 0.80 -0.17 104.37% 113.89%
Jackson Square Partners 12.50% 0.12% 14.17% -0.60% 1.06 4.26% 0.91 0.88 0.03 99.71% 97.54%
Robeco Boston Partners 10.70% 0.46% 15.12% -0.32% 1.08 3.01% 0.97 0.70 0.15 107.75% 105.86%
Emerald Advisers 9.69% 1.99% 21.51% 1.20% 1.10 6.61% 0.91 0.45 0.30 121.68% 104.14%
William Blair 4.17% 2.56% 14.72% 2.59% 0.99 2.43% 0.97 0.28 1.06 116.05% 91.87%
First Eagle 6.45% 1.22% 9.20% 2.96% 0.67 4.97% 0.94 0.69 0.25 84.82% 69.19%
JP Morgan Global Opportunities 5.48% 0.26% 15.03% -0.31% 1.11 2.85% 0.97 0.36 0.09 106.12% 103.46%
AFL-CIO 3.73% -0.04% 2.91% 0.15% 0.95 0.55% 0.97 1.26 -0.08 96.87% 91.10%
Goldman Sachs Core Plus 4.66% 0.88% 2.96% 1.37% 0.87 1.41% 0.79 1.56 0.63 109.52% 54.33%
Lord Abbett 4.72% 0.94% 2.99% 1.39% 0.88 1.42% 0.79 1.56 0.66 114.21% 68.13%
PIMCO Fixed Income 3.77% -0.01% 2.98% 0.87% 0.77 2.00% 0.60 1.25 0.00 98.07% 92.46%
Allianz Global Investors 4.39% -0.32% 6.14% 0.04% 0.92 1.12% 0.97 0.71 -0.29 89.93% 90.28%
Lazard 1.46% -0.35% 4.71% -0.31% 0.98 1.18% 0.94 0.30 -0.29 90.42% 98.03%
Adelante 12.13% 0.01% 14.22% 0.76% 0.94 1.93% 0.99 0.85 0.01 92.04% 87.79%
INVESCO International REIT 4.68% -0.67% 15.24% -0.84% 1.03 1.92% 0.99 0.30 -0.35 97.52% 103.71%

XXXXX



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 23

 Mutual fund fees shown are sourced from Morningstar and are as of the most current prospectus.

Total Fund
Investment Fund Fee Analysis Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Name Asset Class Fee Schedule Market Value Estimated Fee Value Estimated Fee
 

Intech Large Cap Core Global Equity

0.50% of First $100.0 Mil,
0.45% of Next $100.0 Mil,
0.35% of Next $100.0 Mil,
0.30% of Next $200.0 Mil,
0.25% Thereafter

$299,555,680 $1,293,445 0.43%

PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return Global Equity 0.15% of Assets $246,789,500 $370,184 0.15%

Jackson Square Partners Global Equity
0.50% of First $100.0 Mil,
0.40% of Next $150.0 Mil,
0.35% Thereafter

$295,830,816 $1,260,408 0.43%

Robeco Boston Partners Global Equity 0.50% of First $25.0 Mil,
0.30% Thereafter $318,956,768 $1,006,870 0.32%

Emerald Advisers Global Equity 0.75% of First $10.0 Mil,
0.60% Thereafter $215,420,230 $1,307,521 0.61%

Ceredex Global Equity
0.85% of First $10.0 Mil,
0.68% of Next $40.0 Mil,
0.51% Thereafter

$238,600,679 $1,318,863 0.55%

Pyrford Global Equity
0.70% of First $50.0 Mil,
0.50% of Next $50.0 Mil,
0.35% Thereafter

$400,611,673 $1,652,141 0.41%

William Blair Global Equity

0.80% of First $20.0 Mil,
0.60% of Next $30.0 Mil,
0.50% of Next $50.0 Mil,
0.45% of Next $50.0 Mil,
0.40% of Next $50.0 Mil,
0.30% Thereafter

$397,634,341 $1,607,903 0.40%

Artisan Partners Global Equity 0.75% of Assets $304,254,574 $2,281,909 0.75%
First Eagle Global Equity 0.75% of Assets $304,825,696 $2,286,193 0.75%

Intech Global Low Vol Global Equity

0.25% of First $100.0 Mil,
0.21% of Next $100.0 Mil,
0.18% of Next $100.0 Mil,
0.16% of Next $200.0 Mil,
0.14% Thereafter

$23,575,791 $57,761 0.25%

JP Morgan Global Opportunities Global Equity 0.50% of First $100.0 Mil,
0.40% Thereafter $262,565,710 $1,150,263 0.44%

AFL-CIO Global Fixed Income 0.43% of Assets $231,209,102 $994,199 0.43%



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 24

 Mutual fund fees shown are sourced from Morningstar and are as of the most current prospectus. 

Total Fund
Investment Fund Fee Analysis Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Name Asset Class Fee Schedule Market Value Estimated Fee Value Estimated Fee
 

Goldman Sachs Core Plus Global Fixed Income 0.18% of First $500.0 Mil,
0.16% Thereafter $323,525,529 $566,170 0.18%

GSAM Workout Portfolio Global Fixed Income $4,078

Lord Abbett Global Fixed Income
0.20% of First $250.0 Mil,
0.15% of Next $250.0 Mil,
0.13% Thereafter

$324,508,910 $611,763 0.19%

PIMCO Fixed Income Global Fixed Income 0.25% of First $600.0 Mil,
0.15% Thereafter $347,577,183 $868,943 0.25%

Allianz Global Investors High Yield Fixed Income
0.50% of First $50.0 Mil,
0.40% of Next $50.0 Mil,
0.35% Thereafter

$320,085,905 $1,220,301 0.38%

Lazard Global Fixed Income
0.40% of First $25.0 Mil,
0.30% of Next $25.0 Mil,
0.25% Thereafter

$241,124,503 $652,811 0.27%

PIMCO All Asset Fund Inflation Hedge/Real Assets 0.87% of Assets $120,307,685 $1,046,677 0.87%
Wellington Real Total Return Inflation Hedge/Real Assets 0.55% of Assets $175,405,143 $964,728 0.55%



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 25

Total Fund
Peer Universe Comparison: Cumulative Performance (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 26

Total Fund
Peer Universe Comparison: Consecutive Periods (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



     Domestic Equity Managers



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 28

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

Domestic equity large cap core portfolio with high correlation exposure to a broad universe seeking enhanced returns. Primary personnel include Adrian Banner, Vassilios
Papathanakos, Joseph Runnels, and Phillip Whitman.

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

FISERV 1.33 12.16 0.16
MARSH & MCLENNAN 0.98 10.29 0.10
CMS ENERGY 0.54 18.55 0.10
SEMPRA EN. 0.85 11.49 0.10
CONSTELLATION
BRANDS 'A' 1.45 6.31 0.09

CVS HEALTH 1.39 6.58 0.09
O REILLY AUTOMOTIVE 1.12 7.99 0.09
TYSON FOODS 'A' 0.35 25.28 0.09
EDWARDS
LIFESCIENCES 0.75 11.69 0.09

ALLSTATE 0.96 9.06 0.09

Intech Large Cap Core
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Largest Holdings
End Weight Return

CONSTELLATION BRANDS 'A' 1.43 6.31
FISERV 1.38 12.16
NORTHROP GRUMMAN 1.36 5.25
LOCKHEED MARTIN 1.34 2.78
KROGER 1.30 -8.30
O REILLY AUTOMOTIVE 1.22 7.99
AVAGO TECHNOLOGIES 1.03 6.79
MARSH & MCLENNAN 1.03 10.29
ANTHEM 1.03 0.17
CVS HEALTH 1.02 6.58

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

AMERISOURCEBERGEN 1.14 -16.22 -0.18
MCKESSON 0.85 -20.13 -0.17
REGENERON PHARMS. 0.45 -33.60 -0.15
KROGER 1.43 -8.30 -0.12
ALLERGAN 0.78 -14.23 -0.11
DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE 0.81 -12.08 -0.10
TESORO 0.54 -17.85 -0.10
ROYAL CARIBBEAN
CRUISES 0.43 -18.40 -0.08

MARATHON PETROLEUM 0.25 -27.56 -0.07
CARDINAL HEALTH 0.87 -7.77 -0.07

Characteristics
Portfolio S&P 500

Number of Holdings 252 504

Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 38.74 128.86

Median Market Cap. ($B) 19.63 18.28

Price To Earnings 27.33 22.73

Price To Book 5.08 4.24

Price To Sales 3.41 2.98

Return on Equity (%) 20.19 17.79

Yield (%) 1.61 2.16

Beta 0.88 1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 29

Intech Large Cap Core
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 30

Intech Large Cap Core
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 31

Intech Large Cap Core
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

3 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Intech Large Cap Core 13.1% 8.3% 1.6
S&P 500 11.8% 8.4% 1.4
eA US Large Cap Core Equity Gross Median 11.5% 11.5% 1.0

5 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Intech Large Cap Core 12.4% 12.7% 1.0
S&P 500 11.6% 12.7% 0.9
eA US Large Cap Core Equity Gross Median 11.3% 12.6% 0.9



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 32

PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return
Manager Portfolio Overview

Domestic equity large cap core portfolio with high correlation exposure to a broad universe seeking enhanced returns. Primary personnel include Mohsen Fahmi and Scott Mather.

54%

3%
15% 17% 11%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%

AAA AA A BBB <BBB

Quality Distribution

-20%

21%
35%

4% 1%
8% 3%

48%

1%

-50%

-25%

0%

25%

50%

U.S. Government MBS/Securitized Invest. Grade Credit High Yield Credit Non-U.S. Developed Emerging Markets Muni Cash/Liabilities Other

Sector Distribution

PIMCO 
Stocks+

Effective Duration 0.28

Furtures Adjusted Duration 0.22

Yield to Maturity 2.68

Average Quality AA-

-9%

43% 46%

24%

2%

-5%-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

<0 Yrs 0-1 Yrs 1-3 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5-8 Yrs 8+ Yrs

Du
ra

tio
n 

(Y
rs

)

Maturity (Duration Weighted)



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 33

PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return
Manager Performance Comparisons  (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 34

PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 35

PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

3 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return 10.3% 10.1% 1.0
S&P 500 11.8% 8.4% 1.4
eA US Large Cap Core Equity Gross Median 11.5% 11.5% 1.0

5 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return 11.5% 14.0% 0.8
S&P 500 11.6% 12.7% 0.9
eA US Large Cap Core Equity Gross Median 11.3% 12.6% 0.9



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 36

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

Domestic equity large cap growth portfolio concentrated in companies with sustainable long-term growth characteristics. Primary personnel include Jeffrey Van Harte, 
Christopher Bonavico, Christopher Ericksen, and Daniel Prislin.

Jackson Square Partners
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

EQUINIX 4.21 10.00 0.42
FACEBOOK CLASS A 3.14 9.02 0.28
PAYPAL HOLDINGS 3.81 6.63 0.25
NIELSEN 1.61 13.63 0.22
QUALCOMM 5.14 3.28 0.17
INTUIT 1.99 8.12 0.16
DISCOVERY COMMS.'C' 1.24 7.06 0.09
DISCOVERY COMMS.'A' 0.70 7.31 0.05
CROWN CASTLE INTL. 4.50 1.10 0.05
BAIDU 'A' ADR 10:1 2.17 0.97 0.02

Largest Holdings
End Weight Return

VISA 'A' 5.74 -1.19
QUALCOMM 5.59 3.28
ALLERGAN 5.24 -14.23
CELGENE 4.98 -16.42
MICROSOFT 4.84 0.25
WALGREENS BOOTS ALLIANCE 4.68 -0.61
CROWN CASTLE INTL. 4.63 1.10
PAYPAL HOLDINGS 4.58 6.63
LIBERTY INTACT.QVC GROUP 'A' 4.39 -7.58
MASTERCARD 4.33 -2.74

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

VALEANT PHARMS. (NYS)
INTL. 3.01 -74.13 -2.23

CELGENE 5.29 -16.42 -0.87
ALLERGAN 5.59 -14.23 -0.79
TRIPADVISOR 'A' 2.64 -21.99 -0.58
BIOGEN 3.43 -15.03 -0.52
EBAY 3.14 -13.17 -0.41
LIBERTY INTACT.QVC
GROUP 'A' 4.45 -7.58 -0.34

INTERCONTINENTAL EX. 3.39 -7.91 -0.27
NOVO NORDISK 'B' ADR
1:1 3.33 -5.06 -0.17

L BRANDS 3.04 -5.45 -0.17

Characteristics

Portfolio
Russell

1000
Growth

Number of Holdings 31 635

Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 96.17 125.80

Median Market Cap. ($B) 28.59 8.50

Price To Earnings 34.41 25.33

Price To Book 6.24 6.65

Price To Sales 6.73 3.66

Return on Equity (%) 19.51 24.23

Yield (%) 1.04 1.61

Beta 1.30 1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 37

Jackson Square Partners
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 38

Jackson Square Partners
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 39

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Jackson Square Partners 11.7% 11.8% 1.0
Russell 1000 Growth 13.6% 8.4% 1.6
eA US Large Cap Growth Equity Gross Median 12.7% 12.2% 1.0

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Jackson Square Partners 13.0% 14.2% 0.9
Russell 1000 Growth 12.4% 12.8% 1.0
eA US Large Cap Growth Equity Gross Median 11.3% 13.4% 0.8

Jackson Square Partners
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 40

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

Domestic equity large cap value portfolio exhibiting low turnover in companies with low valuations relative to intrinsic value. Primary personnel include Mark Donovan and 
David Pyle.
 

Robeco Boston Partners
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Largest Holdings
End Weight Return

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY 'B' 4.90 7.45
JP MORGAN CHASE & CO. 4.07 -9.69
JOHNSON & JOHNSON 3.91 6.09
WELLS FARGO & CO 3.00 -10.34
MICROSOFT 2.94 0.25
CAPITAL ONE FINL. 2.83 -3.34
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS 2.56 18.46
OCCIDENTAL PTL. 2.37 2.40
CITIGROUP 2.35 -19.22
PHILLIPS 66 2.31 6.67

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

BARRICK GOLD (NYS) 0.65 84.28 0.55
CANADIAN NATURAL
RES. 1.44 25.64 0.37

VERIZON
COMMUNICATIONS 2.00 18.46 0.37

CBS 'B' 1.83 17.23 0.32
TYSON FOODS 'A' 1.02 25.28 0.26
AES 1.02 24.73 0.25
BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY
'B' 3.27 7.45 0.24

HEWLETT PACKARD
ENTER. 1.14 17.05 0.19

LIBERTY BROADBAND
SR.C 1.63 11.74 0.19

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

CITIGROUP 1.90 -19.22 -0.37
JP MORGAN CHASE &
CO. 3.03 -9.69 -0.29

WELLS FARGO & CO 2.56 -10.34 -0.27
EXPRESS SCRIPTS
HOLDING 1.14 -21.42 -0.24

MCKESSON 1.15 -20.13 -0.23
WESTROCK 1.52 -13.42 -0.20
FIFTH THIRD BANCORP 1.20 -16.32 -0.20
EBAY 1.26 -13.17 -0.17
PFIZER 2.05 -7.25 -0.15
ACTIVISION BLIZZARD 1.16 -11.87 -0.14

Characteristics

Portfolio Russell
1000 Value

Number of Holdings 91 684

Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 100.92 105.28

Median Market Cap. ($B) 29.65 6.91

Price To Earnings 14.57 20.00

Price To Book 2.96 2.26

Price To Sales 2.18 2.54

Return on Equity (%) 15.87 11.46

Yield (%) 2.00 2.59

Beta 1.02 1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 41

Robeco Boston Partners
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 42

Robeco Boston Partners
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 43

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Robeco Boston Partners 9.9% 9.6% 1.0
Russell 1000 Value 9.4% 9.0% 1.0
eA US Large Cap Value Equity Gross Median 10.0% 11.7% 0.8

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Robeco Boston Partners 11.0% 15.1% 0.7
Russell 1000 Value 10.2% 13.8% 0.7
eA US Large Cap Value Equity Gross Median 10.3% 12.9% 0.8

Robeco Boston Partners
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 44

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

Domestic equity small cap growth portfolio of companies with significantly high growth rates. Primary personnel include Kenneth Mertz, Joseph Garner, and Stacey Sears.

Emerald Advisers
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

BURLINGTON STORES 1.42 31.10 0.44
TREX 1.67 26.00 0.44
SUPER MICRO
COMPUTER 0.97 39.05 0.38

FIVE BELOW 1.29 28.78 0.37
WELLCARE HEALTH
PLANS 1.96 18.59 0.37

ALARMCOM HOLDINGS 0.81 42.09 0.34
SPIRIT AIRLINES 1.23 20.40 0.25
MICROSEMI 1.22 17.55 0.21
GIGAMON 1.20 16.75 0.20
CANTEL MED. 1.18 14.96 0.18

Largest Holdings
End Weight Return

MICROSTRATEGY 2.17 0.24
BANK OF THE OZARKS 2.09 -14.86
WELLCARE HEALTH PLANS 1.87 18.59
LENDINGTREE 1.83 9.52
TREX 1.82 26.00
EPAM SYSTEMS 1.80 -5.02
VEEVA SYSTEMS CL.A 1.77 -13.21
APOGEE ENTERPRISES 1.63 1.19
OPUS BANK 1.60 -7.60
MICROSEMI 1.51 17.55

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

RELYPSA 0.74 -52.19 -0.39
PORTOLA
PHARMACEUTICALS 0.60 -60.35 -0.36

VONAGE HOLDINGS 1.71 -20.38 -0.35
FIRST NBC BANK
HOLDING 0.78 -44.93 -0.35

ADAMAS
PHARMACEUTICALS 0.70 -48.94 -0.35

BANK OF THE OZARKS 2.15 -14.86 -0.32
NEUROCRINE
BIOSCIENCES 1.03 -30.09 -0.31

IMPERVA 1.47 -20.23 -0.30
KFORCE 1.31 -22.03 -0.29

Characteristics

Portfolio
Russell

2000
Growth

Number of Holdings 114 1,181

Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 1.90 2.02

Median Market Cap. ($B) 1.17 0.69

Price To Earnings 26.54 27.42

Price To Book 4.14 4.21

Price To Sales 3.77 3.18

Return on Equity (%) 15.66 16.59

Yield (%) 0.48 0.58

Beta 1.02 1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 45

Emerald Advisers
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 46

Emerald Advisers
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 47

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Emerald Advisers 11.4% 16.4% 0.7
Russell 2000 Growth 7.9% 14.6% 0.5
eA US Small Cap Growth Equity Gross Median 8.2% 16.0% 0.5

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Emerald Advisers 10.4% 21.5% 0.5
Russell 2000 Growth 7.7% 18.6% 0.4
eA US Small Cap Growth Equity Gross Median 8.4% 17.3% 0.5

Emerald Advisers
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 48

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

Domestic equity small cap value portfolio of companies with dividend yields and low valuations. Primary personnel include Brett Barner and David Maynard.

Ceredex
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

PLANTRONICS 2.40 -17.02 -0.41
BRISTOW GROUP 0.93 -26.60 -0.25
SONIC AUTOMOTIVE 'A' 1.09 -18.60 -0.20
ADVANCED DRAINAGE
SYS. 1.45 -11.13 -0.16

PRIMERICA 2.17 -5.34 -0.12
AAR 0.85 -11.17 -0.09
EVERCORE PARTNERS
'A' 2.02 -3.63 -0.07

KFORCE 0.26 -22.03 -0.06
DAKTRONICS 0.69 -8.18 -0.06
HORACE MANN
EDUCATORS 1.35 -3.70 -0.05

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

PROGRESSIVE WASTE
(NYS) SLTN. 2.63 32.31 0.85

FAIR ISAAC 4.75 12.67 0.60
ENERGIZER HOLDINGS 3.02 19.73 0.60
HECLA MINING 1.21 47.22 0.57
AMC ENTERTAINMENT
HDG. CL.A 2.60 17.53 0.46

HANOVER INSURANCE
GROUP 3.40 11.52 0.39

COHEN & STEERS 1.36 28.67 0.39
MEDICAL PROPS.TRUST 2.51 14.83 0.37
PROGRESSIVE WASTE
SLTN. 1.02 33.58 0.34

Characteristics

Portfolio Russell
2000 Value

Number of Holdings 84 1,325

Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 2.13 1.74

Median Market Cap. ($B) 1.60 0.58

Price To Earnings 27.69 20.37

Price To Book 2.95 1.64

Price To Sales 1.84 2.50

Return on Equity (%) 12.03 7.13

Yield (%) 2.41 2.01

Beta 0.98 1.00

Largest Holdings
End Weight Return

FAIR ISAAC 4.94 12.67
PROGRESSIVE WASTE (NYS)
SLTN. 3.51 32.31

ENERGIZER HOLDINGS 3.42 19.73
HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP 3.40 11.52
AMC ENTERTAINMENT HDG.
CL.A 2.88 17.53

HILL-ROM HOLDINGS 2.82 5.04
HSN 2.67 3.90
MEDICAL PROPS.TRUST 2.65 14.83
B & G FOODS 2.43 0.60
HERMAN MILLER 2.35 8.25



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 49

Ceredex
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 50

Ceredex
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 51

3 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Ceredex 9.1% 13.3% 0.7
Russell 2000 Value 5.7% 12.4% 0.5
eA US Small Cap Value Equity Gross Median 8.3% 14.2% 0.6

Ceredex
Risk vs. Return 3 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



     International Equity Managers



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 53

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

International equity value portfolio of non-US companies with low valuations at the country and stock level. Primary personnel include Tony Cousins, Daniel McDonagh, and 
Paul Simons.

Pyrford
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

NEWCREST MINING 1.05 38.25 0.40
BRAMBLES 2.41 12.05 0.29
MALAYAN BANKING 1.47 18.17 0.27
SUMITOMO RUBBER
INDS. 1.42 17.72 0.25

VOPAK 1.55 15.73 0.24
COLRUYT 1.75 13.20 0.23
GEA GROUP 1.11 20.30 0.23
VTECH HOLDINGS 1.49 14.53 0.22
CHUNGHWA TELECOM 1.54 12.77 0.20
JAPAN TOBACCO 1.59 12.27 0.20

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

NOVARTIS 'R' 2.79 -12.89 -0.36
ROCHE HOLDING 3.59 -7.60 -0.27
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL 1.16 -17.01 -0.20
COMPUTERSHARE 1.75 -9.46 -0.17
ZURICH INSURANCE
GROUP 1.45 -9.66 -0.14

FUCHS PETROLUB PREF. 2.02 -5.93 -0.12
SANOFI 2.14 -5.43 -0.12
MERIDA INDUSTRY 0.36 -17.83 -0.06
QBE INSURANCE GROUP 1.10 -5.81 -0.06
ASSA ABLOY 'B' 0.92 -6.40 -0.06

Country Allocation
Manager Index

Ending Allocation
(USD)

Ending Allocation
(USD)

_

Totals   
Developed 91.9% 77.8%
Emerging* 8.1% 22.2%
Top 10 Largest Countries   
United Kingdom 14.3% 15.9%
Switzerland 13.0% 4.5%
Australia 10.1% 4.8%
Japan 8.9% 15.8%
Germany 7.5% 6.2%
France 7.1% 8.4%
Hong Kong 6.8% 2.7%
Netherlands 5.8% 1.1%
Singapore 4.9% 1.0%
Taiwan* 4.1% 2.6%
Total-Top 10 Largest Countries 82.5% 63.0%

_

Characteristics

Portfolio
MSCI ACWI

ex USA
Value

Number of Holdings 75 1,007
Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 49.88 45.24
Median Market Cap. ($B) 19.15 6.23
Price To Earnings 21.68 12.79
Price To Book 3.41 1.41
Price To Sales 2.20 1.58
Return on Equity (%) 16.82 10.48
Yield (%) 3.79 4.22
Beta  1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 54

Pyrford
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 55

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

International equity growth portfolio of non-US companies with high growth rates constructed from the security level. Primary personnel include Simon Fennell and Jeffrey
Urbina.

William Blair
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

TAIWAN
SEMICON.SPN.ADR 1:5 1.34 15.16 0.20

STEINHOFF INTL. 0.56 29.97 0.17
ENBRIDGE 0.70 19.50 0.14
AMBEV SPONSORED ADR
1:1 0.70 16.97 0.12

WOLTERS KLUWER 0.61 18.84 0.11
PARTNERS GROUP
HOLDING 0.83 11.84 0.10

BB SEGURIDADE ON 0.24 41.15 0.10
UNILEVER (UK) 1.52 5.87 0.09
BROOKFIELD ASSET
MAN.'A' (NYS) 0.81 10.80 0.09

KONE 'B' 0.50 17.40 0.09

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

TEVA PHARM.INDS.ADR
1:1 1.55 -18.00 -0.28

INTESA SANPAOLO 1.49 -17.32 -0.26
SUMITOMO MITSUI
FINL.GP. 1.24 -19.00 -0.24

FUJI HEAVY INDS. 1.66 -13.89 -0.23
MURATA
MANUFACTURING 1.29 -16.69 -0.22

AXA 1.53 -13.98 -0.21
PRUDENTIAL 1.40 -14.76 -0.21
NEXT 0.70 -27.12 -0.19
MITSUBISHI UFJ FINL.GP. 0.72 -25.03 -0.18
ITV 1.16 -14.96 -0.17

Country Allocation
Manager Index

Ending Allocation
(USD)

Ending Allocation
(USD)

_

Totals
Developed 87.5% 79.0%
Emerging* 12.5% 21.0%
Top 10 Largest Countries
United Kingdom 17.6% 11.9%
Japan 14.7% 16.4%
France 11.6% 6.1%
Germany 5.9% 7.0%
Canada 5.8% 6.2%
United States 4.5% 0.0%
Switzerland 4.2% 8.4%
Hong Kong 3.2% 2.3%
Denmark 2.9% 2.5%
Netherlands 2.5% 3.3%
Total-Top 10 Largest Countries 72.8% 64.0%

_

Characteristics

Portfolio
MSCI ACWI

ex USA
Growth

Number of Holdings 200 1,059
Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 36.57 48.12
Median Market Cap. ($B) 11.68 6.68
Price To Earnings 21.42 21.91
Price To Book 4.57 3.74
Price To Sales 3.16 3.14
Return on Equity (%) 21.25 18.63
Yield (%) 2.43 2.24
Beta 0.96 1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 56

William Blair
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 57

William Blair
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 58

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

William Blair 3.5% 10.6% 0.3
MSCI ACWI ex USA Growth 1.9% 10.7% 0.2
eA ACWI ex-US Growth Equity Gross Median 5.0% 12.8% 0.4

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

William Blair 4.6% 14.7% 0.3
MSCI ACWI ex USA Growth 1.6% 14.7% 0.1
eA ACWI ex-US Growth Equity Gross Median 4.4% 15.3% 0.3

William Blair
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



     Global Equity Managers



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 60

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

Global equity portfolio of companies that is benchmark agnostic with accelerating profit cycles and a focus on capital allocation. Primary personnel include James Hamel,
Craigh Cepukenas, and Matthew Kamm.

Artisan Partners
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Country Allocation
Manager Index

Ending Allocation
(USD)

Ending Allocation
(USD)

_

Totals
Developed 88.8% 89.9%
Emerging* 11.2% 10.1%
Top 10 Largest Countries
United States 60.8% 53.1%
Sweden 5.7% 1.0%
Hong Kong 5.7% 1.2%
United Kingdom 4.8% 6.5%
Japan 3.3% 7.5%
Mexico* 2.9% 0.5%
China* 2.9% 2.4%
Denmark 2.6% 0.7%
Australia 2.1% 2.4%
Taiwan* 2.1% 1.3%
Total-Top 10 Largest Countries 92.9% 76.5%

_

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

MARKIT 2.87 17.17 0.49
FACEBOOK CLASS A 4.93 9.02 0.45
ENERPLUS (NYS) 2.32 16.87 0.39
EQT 1.31 29.09 0.38
IHS 'A' 6.33 4.84 0.31
JAMES HARDIE INDS.ADR
1:1 2.76 7.58 0.21

APPLE 3.82 4.10 0.16
APPLIED MATS. 0.66 14.06 0.09
MCGRAW HILL FINANCIAL 3.24 0.82 0.03
ADOBE SYSTEMS 2.27 -0.15 0.00

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

REGENERON PHARMS. 6.08 -33.60 -2.04
GENESIS HEALTHCARE
'A' 3.56 -33.14 -1.18

ARDMORE SHIPPING 2.06 -32.42 -0.67
ILLUMINA 3.98 -15.54 -0.62
ABBOTT LABORATORIES 4.13 -6.26 -0.26
BIOGEN 1.64 -15.03 -0.25
WALT DISNEY 3.61 -5.49 -0.20
ELECTRONIC ARTS 3.55 -3.80 -0.13
WORKDAY CLASS A 2.53 -3.56 -0.09
ALPHABET 'A' 4.46 -1.94 -0.09

Characteristics
Portfolio MSCI ACWI

Number of Holdings 52 2,482
Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 67.14 87.27
Median Market Cap. ($B) 8.91 8.29
Price To Earnings 35.87 20.22
Price To Book 6.65 3.16
Price To Sales 7.15 2.70
Return on Equity (%) 22.78 15.77
Yield (%) 1.08 2.63
Beta 0.99 1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 61

Artisan Partners
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 62

Artisan Partners
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 63

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Artisan Partners 10.2% 10.0% 1.0
MSCI ACWI 5.5% 9.4% 0.6
eA All Global Equity Gross Median 7.3% 12.2% 0.6

Artisan Partners
Risk vs. Return 3 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 64

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations and Gold allocations (10.6% as of 3/31/2016).

Global equity portfolio that is benchmark agnostic comprised of companies with low valuations.Primary personnel include Matt McLennan and Kimball Brooker.

First Eagle
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

BARRICK GOLD (NYS) 0.52 84.28 0.43
NEWCREST MINING 0.89 38.25 0.34
ORACLE 2.22 12.46 0.28
GOLDCORP (NYS) 0.56 41.02 0.23
COMCAST 'A' 1.98 8.73 0.17
3M 1.48 11.42 0.17
OMNICOM GROUP 1.53 10.71 0.16
JARDINE MATHESON HDG. 0.74 19.47 0.14
SECOM 1.47 9.55 0.14
FRESNILLO 0.45 31.19 0.14

Country Allocation
Manager Index

Ending Allocation
(USD)

Ending Allocation
(USD)

_

Totals   
Developed 77.9% 89.9%
Emerging* 4.0% 10.1%
Cash 18.1%
Top 10 Largest Countries   
United States 44.5% 53.1%
Cash 18.1% 0.0%
Japan 11.8% 7.5%
France 5.8% 3.4%
Canada 3.8% 3.1%
United Kingdom 3.5% 6.5%
Korea* 1.7% 1.6%
Mexico* 1.6% 0.5%
Germany 1.5% 3.1%
Singapore 1.3% 0.5%
Total-Top 10 Largest Countries 93.6% 79.2%

_

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

AMERICAN EXPRESS 1.39 -11.32 -0.16
SOMPO JAPAN NPNK.HDG. 1.10 -13.88 -0.15
BANK OF NEW YORK
MELLON 1.36 -10.23 -0.14

FANUC 1.15 -11.22 -0.13
BERKELEY GROUP
HDG.(THE) 0.80 -14.91 -0.12

SMC 0.94 -11.61 -0.11
BB&T 0.85 -11.25 -0.10
AMERICAN INTL.GP. 0.65 -12.24 -0.08
MITSUBISHI ESTATE 0.66 -11.05 -0.07
HOYA 0.90 -8.01 -0.07

Characteristics
Portfolio MSCI ACWI

Number of Holdings 177 2,482
Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 53.20 87.27
Median Market Cap. ($B) 14.10 8.29
Price To Earnings 20.14 20.22
Price To Book 3.22 3.16
Price To Sales 2.78 2.70
Return on Equity (%) 14.51 15.77
Yield (%) 2.27 2.63
Beta 0.75 1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 65

First Eagle
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 66

First Eagle
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 67

5 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

First Eagle 7.2% 9.2% 0.8
MSCI ACWI 5.2% 13.4% 0.4
eA All Global Equity Gross Median 7.1% 14.2% 0.5

3 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

First Eagle 6.5% 7.5% 0.9
MSCI ACWI 5.5% 9.4% 0.6
eA All Global Equity Gross Median 7.3% 12.2% 0.6

First Eagle
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 68

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

Global equity diversified portfolio focused on maintaining volatility at or below the benchmark. Primary personnel include Adrian Banner, Vassilios Papthanakos, and Joseph
Runnels.

Intech Global Low Vol
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

NEXT 0.37 -27.12 -0.10
LINKEDIN CLASS A 0.16 -49.20 -0.08
TAIHEIYO CEMENT 0.36 -20.79 -0.07
EXPRESS SCRIPTS
HOLDING 0.31 -21.42 -0.07

WEST JAPAN RAILWAY 0.56 -10.53 -0.06
EISAI 0.60 -9.11 -0.05
INTERCONTINENTAL EX. 0.53 -7.91 -0.04
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL 0.24 -17.01 -0.04
CIGNA 0.63 -6.19 -0.04
KABEL DEUTSCHLAND
HLDG. 0.35 -10.13 -0.03

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

SOUTHERN 5.26 11.81 0.62
GENERAL MILLS 3.60 10.75 0.39
CONSOLIDATED EDISON 1.21 20.35 0.25
WAL MART STORES 1.83 12.56 0.23
ORIENTAL LAND 1.14 16.52 0.19
AUTOZONE 2.40 7.38 0.18
DOLLAR GENERAL 0.90 19.46 0.18
FRANCO-NEVADA 0.47 35.79 0.17
KIMBERLY-CLARK 2.57 6.40 0.16
DOLLARAMA 0.71 22.92 0.16

Country Allocation
Manager Index

Ending Allocation
(USD)

Ending Allocation
(USD)

_

Totals
Developed 97.2% 89.9%
Cash 2.8%
Top 10 Largest Countries
United States 56.7% 53.1%
Japan 16.0% 7.5%
Hong Kong 7.6% 1.2%
Canada 4.1% 3.1%
Cash 2.8% 0.0%
Israel    2.5% 0.2%
Switzerland 2.5% 3.1%
Singapore 1.7% 0.5%
Germany 1.0% 3.1%
New Zealand 1.0% 0.1%
Total-Top 10 Largest Countries 96.0% 71.8%

_

Characteristics
Portfolio MSCI ACWI

Number of Holdings 389 2,482
Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 38.43 87.27
Median Market Cap. ($B) 10.78 8.29
Price To Earnings 24.91 20.22
Price To Book 4.13 3.16
Price To Sales 3.08 2.70
Return on Equity (%) 15.64 15.77
Yield (%) 2.63 2.63
Beta 0.50 1.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 69

Intech Global Low Vol
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 70

Intech Global Low Vol
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 71

3 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Intech Global Low Vol 10.4% 6.4% 1.6
MSCI ACWI 5.5% 9.4% 0.6
eA All Global Equity Gross Median 7.3% 12.2% 0.6

Intech Global Low Vol
Risk vs. Return 3 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 72

Unclassified sector allocation includes cash allocations.

Global equity diversified portfolio focused on companies with valuations below their intrinsic value. Primary personnel include Jeroen Huysinga, Georgina Perceval-Maxwell,
and Gerd Woort-Menker.

JP Morgan Global Opportunities
Manager Portfolio Overview Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Country Allocation
Manager Index

Ending Allocation
(USD)

Ending Allocation
(USD)

_

Totals
Developed 95.1% 89.9%
Emerging* 4.9% 10.1%
Top 10 Largest Countries
United States 49.2% 53.1%
United Kingdom 12.3% 6.5%
Japan 7.7% 7.5%
Germany 5.8% 3.1%
Netherlands 3.6% 1.0%
Switzerland 2.9% 3.1%
Hong Kong 2.5% 1.2%
France 2.4% 3.4%
Finland 2.0% 0.3%
Italy 1.8% 0.7%
Total-Top 10 Largest Countries 90.2% 80.0%

_

Characteristics
Portfolio MSCI ACWI

Number of Holdings 105 2,482
Weighted Avg. Market Cap. ($B) 70.93 87.27
Median Market Cap. ($B) 38.11 8.29
Price To Earnings 22.39 20.22
Price To Book 3.63 3.16
Price To Sales 2.88 2.70
Return on Equity (%) 17.37 15.77
Yield (%) 2.12 2.63
Beta 1.10 1.00

Bottom Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

MORGAN STANLEY 2.09 -20.91 -0.44
CITIGROUP 1.69 -19.22 -0.33
VERTEX PHARMS. 0.88 -36.83 -0.32
MITSUBISHI UFJ FINL.GP. 1.26 -25.03 -0.31
DISH NETWORK 'A' 1.32 -19.10 -0.25
UNICREDIT 0.61 -35.24 -0.21
ALEXION PHARMS. 0.77 -27.01 -0.21
ALLERGAN 1.40 -14.23 -0.20
NOVARTIS 'R' 1.53 -12.89 -0.20
MCKESSON 0.93 -20.13 -0.19

Top Contributors
Avg Wgt Return Contribution

ARCELORMITTAL 0.69 37.99 0.26
ITAU UNIBANCO BANCO
HLDG.ADR 1:1 0.57 35.80 0.20

FIRST QUANTUM MRLS. 0.43 41.81 0.18
NORSK HYDRO 1.61 10.05 0.16
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP 1.48 10.02 0.15
CHARTER COMMS.CL.A 1.26 10.56 0.13
CNOOC 0.89 13.41 0.12
NEXTERA ENERGY 0.79 14.76 0.12
EQT 0.39 29.09 0.11
TJX 1.04 10.83 0.11



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 73

JP Morgan Global Opportunities
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 74

JP Morgan Global Opportunities
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 75

3 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

JP Morgan Global Opportunities 6.4% 10.7% 0.6
MSCI ACWI 5.5% 9.4% 0.6
eA All Global Equity Gross Median 7.3% 12.2% 0.6

5 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

JP Morgan Global Opportunities 5.9% 15.0% 0.4
MSCI ACWI 5.2% 13.4% 0.4
eA All Global Equity Gross Median 7.1% 14.2% 0.5

JP Morgan Global Opportunities
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



     Domestic Fixed Income Managers



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Duration and Quality distributions exclude cash.

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 77

AFL-CIO
Manager Portfolio Overview

Domestic core fixed income portfolio with an exclusive focus on mortgage-related securities. Primary personnel include Stephen Coyle and Chang Su.

94%

4% 0% 0% 0% 2%

72%

4% 11% 13%
0% 0%

0%
25%
50%
75%

100%

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not Rated

Quality Distribution
AFL-CIO
Barclays Aggregate

10%
0%

90%

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

41%
24% 30%

1% 3% 1% 0% 0%
0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

USTreasury/Agency Corportate MBS ABS Foreign Muni Other Cash

Sector Distribution
AFL-CIO
Barclays Aggregate

16% 16%
26%

15%
22%

6%1%

38%
28%

11% 8% 13%

0%

20%

40%

<1 Yr 1-3 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5-7 Yrs 7-10 Yrs >10 Yrs

Duration Distribution
AFL-CIO Barclays Aggregate

AFL-CIO
Barclays 

Aggregate

Effective Duration 4.94 5.47

Yield to Maturity 3.20 2.07

Average Quality AAA AA+

Average Coupon 3.26% 3.24%



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 78

AFL-CIO
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 79

AFL-CIO
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 80

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

AFL-CIO 3.0% 3.1% 0.9
Barclays Aggregate 2.5% 3.2% 0.8
eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Median 2.7% 3.0% 0.9

AFL-CIO
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

AFL-CIO 4.2% 2.9% 1.4
Barclays Aggregate 3.8% 3.0% 1.2
eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Median 4.2% 2.8% 1.5



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Duration and Quality distributions exclude cash.

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 81

Goldman Sachs Core Plus
Manager Portfolio Overview

Domestic core plus fixed income portfolio with a focus on security selection seeking enhanced returns. Primary personnel include Jonathan Beinner.

67%

2% 16% 16%

-1%

0%

72%

6% 13% 9% 0% 0%

-50%

0%

50%

100%

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not Rated

Quality Distribution
Goldman Sachs

Barclays Aggregate

34%
28% 31%

8% 3% 0% 0%

43%

25% 30%

1% 2% 0% 0% 0%
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%

USTreasury/Agency Corportate MBS ABS Foreign Muni Other Cash

Sector Distribution
Goldman Sachs
Barclays Aggregate

14%

27%
22% 19%

8%
13%

0%1%

38%
28%

11% 8%
13%

1%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

<1 Yr 1-3 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5-7 Yrs 7-10 Yrs 10-20 Yrs >20 Yrs

Duration Distribution

Goldman Sachs Barclays Aggregate

Goldman 
Sachs

Barclays 
Aggregate

Option Adjusted Duration 5.08 5.29

Yield to Maturity 2.72 2.07

Average Quality AA AA+

Average Coupon 3.41% 3.24%



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 82

Goldman Sachs Core Plus
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 83

Goldman Sachs Core Plus
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 84

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Goldman Sachs Core Plus 3.0% 3.2% 0.9
Barclays Aggregate 2.5% 3.2% 0.8
eA US Core Plus Fixed Inc Gross Median 2.7% 3.2% 0.9

Goldman Sachs Core Plus
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Goldman Sachs Core Plus 4.9% 3.0% 1.6
Barclays Aggregate 3.8% 3.0% 1.2
eA US Core Plus Fixed Inc Gross Median 4.6% 2.9% 1.5



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 85

Lord Abbett
Manager Portfolio Overview

Domestic core plus fixed income portfolio that is duration-neutral with a focus on sector selection seeking enhanced returns. Primary personnel include Robert Lee and Robert Gerber.

Lord Abbett
Barclays 

Aggregate

Effective Duration 5.40 5.47

Yield to Maturity 3.80 2.07

Average Quality AA AA+

Average Coupon 3.90% 3.24%

62%

3% 3%
22%

11%
0%

72%

6% 13% 9%
0% 0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not Rated

Quality Distribution
Lord Abbett

Barclays Aggregate

30% 31%
24%

0% 3% 0%

21%

43%

25% 30%

1% 2% 0% 0% 0%
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%

USTreasury/Agency Corportate MBS ABS Foreign Muni Other Cash

Sector Distribution Lord Abbett Barclays Aggregate

7%

37% 35%

8% 10% 9%
4%1%

38%
28%

11% 8%
13%

1%
0%

20%

40%

<1 Yr 1-3 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5-7 Yrs 7-10 Yrs 10-20 Yrs >20 Yrs

Duration Distribution

Lord Abbett Barclays Aggregate



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 86

Lord Abbett
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 87

Lord Abbett
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 88

Lord Abbett
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

3 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Lord Abbett 2.8% 3.3% 0.8
Barclays Aggregate 2.5% 3.2% 0.8
eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Median 2.7% 3.0% 0.9

5 Years

Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Lord Abbett 4.9% 3.0% 1.6
Barclays Aggregate 3.8% 3.0% 1.2
eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Median 4.2% 2.8% 1.5



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 89

PIMCO Fixed Income
Manager Portfolio Overview

Domestic core plus fixed income portfolio seeking enhanced returns through sector and security selection, yield curve structure, and duration decision.

15%
27%

36%

0% 0% 7% 10% 5%

43%

25% 30%

1% 2% 1% 0% 0%

-10%

10%

30%

50%

USTreasury/Agency Corportate MBS ABS Foreign Muni Other Cash

Sector Distribution
PIMCO Barclays Aggregate

64%

4%
16% 12%

4% 0%

72%

6% 13% 9%
0% 0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not Rated

Quality Distribution
PIMCO

Barclays Aggregate

12%

29%

15%

33%

0%

11%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

<0 Yrs 0-1 Yrs 1-3 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5-7 Yrs 7+ Yrs

%
 o

f D
ur

at
io

n

Maturity (Duration Weighted)

PIMCO
Barclays 

Aggregate

Effective Duration 4.99 5.47

Yield to Maturity 2.69 2.07

Average Quality AA AA+

Average Coupon 3.65% 3.24%



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 90

PIMCO Fixed Income
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 91

PIMCO Fixed Income
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 92

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

PIMCO Fixed Income 4.1% 3.0% 1.3
Barclays Aggregate 3.8% 3.0% 1.2
eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Median 4.2% 2.8% 1.5

PIMCO Fixed Income
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

PIMCO Fixed Income 2.3% 3.4% 0.7
Barclays Aggregate 2.5% 3.2% 0.8
eA US Core Fixed Inc Gross Median 2.7% 3.0% 0.9



     High Yield Managers



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Quality distribution excludes cash.

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 94

Allianz Global Investors
Manager Portfolio Overview

Domestic high yield fixed income portfolio with a focus on security selection. Primary personnel include Douglas Forsyth, Justin Kass, William Stickney, and Michael Yee.

0%

47% 44%

7%
2%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

BBB BB B <B Not Rated

Quality Distribution

10%

19%

9%

34%

12%

0%

17%

1%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Energy/Utilities Industrials Financials Telecom/Media Consumer Products Foreign Other Cash

Sector Distribution

Allianz
BofA ML HY 

Master II

Effective Duration 4.2 4.3

Yield to Maturity 8.6 8.6

Average Quality B1 B1

Average Coupon 7.1% 6.7%

4%

22%

36% 34%

4%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

<1 Yr 1-3 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5-7 Yrs >7 Yrs

Effective Duration Distribution



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 95

Allianz Global Investors
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 96

Allianz Global Investors
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 97

Allianz Global Investors
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Allianz Global Investors 1.6% 5.1% 0.3
BofA ML High Yield Master II 1.8% 5.5% 0.3
eA US High Yield Fixed Inc Gross Median 2.4% 5.4% 0.5

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Allianz Global Investors 4.8% 6.1% 0.8
BofA ML High Yield Master II 4.7% 6.6% 0.7
eA US High Yield Fixed Inc Gross Median 5.2% 6.2% 0.9



     Global Fixed Income Managers



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 99

Average Quality BBB+

Lazard
Manager Portfolio Overview

Effective Duration

Average Maturity

Lazard

5.20

6.8

Global core fixed income portfolio with a focus on country selection and currency management. Primary personnel include Yvette Klevan, Benjamin Dietrich, and Jared Daniels.

12%
22%

28% 25%
13%

0%
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not Rated

Quality Distribution

8%

20%
18% 19%

17% 15%

3%
1%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

USTreasury/Agency Non-US Govt. Other Govt. (EM) US Corporate Non-US Corporate Sovereign Muni Cash

Sector Distribution

7%

15%

26% 25%
23%

5%
0%

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%

<1 Yr 1-3 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5-7 Yrs 7-10 Yrs 10-20 Yrs >20 Yrs

Duration Distribution



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 100

Lazard
Manager Performance Comparisons (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 101

Lazard
Manager Performance - Rolling 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 102

5 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Lazard 1.7% 4.7% 0.4
Barclays Global Aggregate 1.8% 4.6% 0.4
eA All Global Fixed Inc Gross Median 3.1% 5.1% 0.6

Lazard
Risk vs. Return 3 & 5 Year (Gross of Fees) Period Ending: March 31, 2016

3 Years

 Anlzd Return Anlzd Standard
Deviation Sharpe Ratio

_

Lazard 0.6% 5.3% 0.1
Barclays Global Aggregate 0.9% 5.4% 0.2
eA All Global Fixed Inc Gross Median 1.6% 4.8% 0.3



     Inflation Hedge Managers



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 104

PIMCO All Asset
Manager Portfolio Overview

20.2%

7.2%

22.3%

16.7%

0.0%
5.7%

13.1%

3.9%
0.3%0.7%

9.3%

0.5%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Asset Allocation

Emerging Markets Equities Commodities & REITs Emerging Markets Bonds

Credit Global Bonds Inflation-Linked Bonds

Alternative Strategies U.S. Core Bonds U.S. Long Maturity Bonds

Short-Term Bonds Developed ex-U.S. Equities U.S. Equities

Third Pillar 81.9%

Second Pillar 10.8%

First Pillar 7.3%

Tactical multi‐asset class real return strategy with a primary focus on inflation protection and a secondary focus on enhanced returns

Effective Duration

Sharpe Ratio (10 year)

Volatility (10 Year)

Equity Beta (10 Year) 0.83

PIMCO All Asset

2.57

0.43

9.6%

20.2%

7.2%

22.3%

16.7%

0.0%

5.7%

13.1%

3.9%

0.3%

0.7%

9.3%

0.5%

0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0%

Emerging Markets Equities

Commodities & REITs

Emerging Markets Bonds

Credit

Global Bonds

Inflation-Linked Bonds

Alternative Strategies

U.S. Core Bonds

U.S. Long Maturity Bonds

Short-Term Bonds

Developed ex-U.S. Equities

U.S. Equities

Asset Allocation



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 105

Wellington Total Return
Manager Portfolio Overview

Tactical multi‐asset class real return strategy with a focus on managing risk of active strategies used to gain exposure to attractive assets of markets.

Number of Equity Holdings

Number of Commodity Holdings

Effective Duration (Years)

Average Quality

Wellington Total Return

444

87

3.80

USTz

29.7%

9.8%

-0.1%

61.2%

-0.5%-5.0%

15.0%

35.0%

55.0%

75.0%

95.0%

Equities Fixed Income Commodities Cash &
Equivalents

Currency

Asset Allocation

1% 0%

0%

14%

0% 0%

8%

0% 1% 1%

15%

61%

-1%
-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Continental
Europe

North
America

United
Kingdom

Japan Asia Pacific
ex-Japan

Middle East
Developed

Latin America Emerging
Europe

Emerging
Asia

Africa Middle
East

United States Cash Currency

Region Distribution



     Real Estate Managers



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 107

Adelante
Manager Portfolio Overview

Diversified portfolio of U.S. REITs with a focus on the underlying real estate assets

Company
Property 

Type Allocation

Simon Property Group Retail-Regional 12.0%

Welltower Inc. Healthcare 5.9%

Equity Residential Apartment 5.6%

Essex Property Trust Apartment 5.0%

Extra Space Storage, Inc. Storage 4.3%

Top Five Holdings

18.1%

2.6%

8.1% 7.3%
6.0%

3.6%

8.9%

16.0%

12.8%

1.9%

10.0%

0.0%
2.0%
4.0%
6.0%
8.0%

10.0%
12.0%
14.0%
16.0%
18.0%
20.0%

Property Type Allocation

2.7%

2.3%

2.0%

3.7%

3.4%

2.5%

3.0%

2.8%

2.1%

3.9%

3.4%

0% 1% 1% 2% 2% 3% 3% 4% 4% 5%

Apartments

Diversified/Specialty

Storage

Hotels

Industrial

Industrial Mixed

Retail-Local

Retail-Regional

Office

Triple-Net Lease

Healthcare

Dividend Yield by Property Type



Period Ending: March 31, 2016

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 108

Invesco Global ex-US Real Estate
Manager Portfolio Overview

Diversified portfolio of non‐US REITs with a focus on cash flow and dividends

Holding Country Allocation

Mitsui Fudosan Co. Japan 6.4%

Sun Hung Kai Property Hong Kong 5.1%

Land Securities PLC United Kingdom 4.3%

Vonovia SE Germany 3.8%

Vicinity Centers REIT Australia 3.7%

Top Five Holdings

4.0%
4.7%

4.2%
2.9%

3.5%
1.1%

2.1%
6.1%

5.2%
1.0%

2.9%

0 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.06 0.07

Australia
Canada
France

Germany
Hong Kong

Ireland
Japan

Netherlands
Singapore

Spain
Sweden

Dividend Yield by Country

13%

6%
8%

7%

15%

24%

2%
4%

2% 3% 2%

11%

1%

13%

6%
8% 7%

15%

25%

1%

4%

1%
3% 2%

12%

3%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Australia Canada France Germany Hong Kong Japan Netherlands Singapore Spain Sweden Switzerland UK Other

Country Allocation vs. Benchmark

Invesco Global ex-US FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Dev. Ex-US



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 109

Data Sources & Methodology Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 110

Data Sources & Methodology Period Ending: March 31, 2016



Allocation Effect: An attribution effect that describes the amount attributable to the managers' asset allocation decisions, relative to the benchmark.

Alpha: The excess return of a portfolio after adjusting for market risk. This excess return is attributable to the selection skill of the portfolio manager. Alpha is calculated as: Portfolio Return - [Risk-free Rate +

Portfolio Beta x (Market Return - Risk-free Rate)].

Benchmark R-squared: Measures how well the Benchmark return series fits the manager's return series. The higher the Benchmark R-squared, the more appropriate the benchmark is for the manager.

Beta: A measure of systematic, or market risk; the part of risk in a portfolio or security that is attributable to general market movements. Beta is calculated by dividing the covariance of a security by the

variance of the market.

Book-to-Market: The ratio of book value per share to market price per share. Growth managers typically have low book-to-market ratios while value managers typically have high book-to-market ratios.

Capture Ratio: A statistical measure of an investment manager's overall performance in up or down markets. The capture ratio is used to evaluate how well an investment manager performed relative to an

index during periods when that index has risen (up market) or fallen (down market). The capture ratio is calculated by dividing the manager's returns by the returns of the index during the up/down market,

and multiplying that factor by 100.

Correlation: A measure of the relative movement of returns of one security or asset class relative to another over time. A correlation of 1 means the returns of two securities move in lock step, a correlation of

-1 means the returns of two securities move in the exact opposite direction over time. Correlation is used as a measure to help maximize the benefits of diversification when constructing an investment

portfolio.

Excess Return: A measure of the difference in appreciation or depreciation in the price of an investment compared to its benchmark, over a given time period. This is usually expressed as a percentage and

may be annualized over a number of years or represent a single period.

Information Ratio: A measure of a manager's ability to earn excess return without incurring additional risk. Information ratio is calculated as: excess return divided by tracking error.

Interaction Effect: An attribution effect that describes the portion of active management that is contributable to the cross interaction between the allocation and selection effect. This can also be explained as

an effect that cannot be easily traced to a source.

Portfolio Turnover: The percentage of a portfolio that is sold and replaced (turned over) during a given time period. Low portfolio turnover is indicative of a buy and hold strategy while high portfolio turnover

implies a more active form of management.

Price-to-Earnings Ratio (P/E): Also called the earnings multiplier, it is calculated by dividing the price of a company's stock into earnings per share. Growth managers typically hold stocks with high

price-to-earnings ratios whereas value managers hold stocks with low price-to-earnings ratios.

R-Squared: Also called the coefficient of determination, it measures the amount of variation in one variable explained by variations in another, i.e., the goodness of fit to a benchmark. In the case of

investments, the term is used to explain the amount of variation in a security or portfolio explained by movements in the market or the portfolio's benchmark.

Selection Effect: An attribution effect that describes the amount attributable to the managers' stock selection decisions, relative to the benchmark.

Sharpe Ratio: A measure of portfolio efficiency. The Sharpe Ratio indicates excess portfolio return for each unit of risk associated with achieving the excess return. The higher the Sharpe Ratio, the more

efficient the portfolio. Sharpe ratio is calculated as: Portfolio Excess Return / Portfolio Standard Deviation.

Sortino Ratio: Measures the risk-adjusted return of an investment, portfolio, or strategy. It is a modification of the Sharpe Ratio, but penalizes only those returns falling below a specified benchmark. The

Sortino Ratio uses downside deviation in the denominator rather than standard deviation, like the Sharpe Ratio.

Standard Deviation: A measure of volatility, or risk, inherent in a security or portfolio. The standard deviation of a series is a measure of the extent to which observations in the series differ from the arithmetic

mean of the series. For example, if a security has an average annual rate of return of 10% and a standard deviation of 5%, then two-thirds of the time, one would expect to receive an annual rate of return

between 5% and 15%.

Style Analysis: A return based analysis designed to identify combinations of passive investments to closely replicate the performance of funds

Style Map: A specialized form or scatter plot chart typically used to show where a Manager lies in relation to a set of style indices on a two-dimensional plane. This is simply a way of viewing the asset loadings

in a different context. The coordinates are calculated by rescaling the asset loadings to range from -1 to 1 on each axis and are dependent on the Style Indices comprising the Map.

Glossary



This report contains confidential and proprietary information and is subject to the terms and conditions of the Consulting Agreement. It is being provided for use solely by the customer. The report
may not be sold or otherwise provided, in whole or in part, to any other person or entity without written permission from Verus Advisory, Inc., (hereinafter Verus) or as required by law or any

regulatory authority. The information presented does not constitute a recommendation by Verus and cannot be used for advertising or sales promotion purposes. This does not constitute an offer

or a solicitation of an offer to buy or sell securities, commodities or any other financial instruments or products.

The information presented has been prepared using data from third party sources that Verus believes to be reliable. While Verus exercised reasonable professional care in preparing the report, it
cannot guarantee the accuracy of the information provided by third party sources. Therefore, Verus makes no representations or warranties as to the accuracy of the information presented. Verus

takes no responsibility or liability (including damages) for any error, omission, or inaccuracy in the data supplied by any third party. Nothing contained herein is, or should be relied on as a promise,

representation, or guarantee as to future performance or a particular outcome. Even with portfolio diversification, asset allocation, and a long-term approach, investing involves risk of loss that the

investor should be prepared to bear.

The information presented may be deemed to contain forward-looking information. Examples of forward looking information include, but are not limited to, (a) projections of or statements
regarding return on investment, future earnings, interest income, other income, growth prospects, capital structure and other financial terms, (b) statements of plans or objectives of management,

(c) statements of future economic performance, and (d) statements of assumptions, such as economic conditions underlying other statements. Such forward-looking information can be identified

by the use of forward looking terminology such as believes, expects, may, will, should, anticipates, or the negative of any of the foregoing or other variations thereon comparable terminology, or by

discussion of strategy. No assurance can be given that the future results described by the forward-looking information will be achieved. Such statements are subject to risks, uncertainties, and

other factors which could cause the actual results to differ materially from future results expressed or implied by such forward looking information. The findings, rankings, and opinions expressed

herein are the intellectual property of Verus and are subject to change without notice. The information presented does not claim to be all-inclusive, nor does it contain all information that clients

may desire for their purposes. The information presented should be read in conjunction with any other material provided by Verus, investment managers, and custodians.

Verus will make every reasonable effort to obtain and include accurate market values. However, if managers or custodians are unable to provide the reporting period's market values prior to the
report issuance, Verus may use the last reported market value or make estimates based on the manager's stated or estimated returns and other information available at the time. These estimates

may differ materially from the actual value. Hedge fund market values presented in this report are provided by the fund manager or custodian. Market values presented for private equity

investments reflect the last reported NAV by the custodian or manager net of capital calls and distributions as of the end of the reporting period. These values are estimates and may differ

materially from the investments actual value. Private equity managers report performance using an internal rate of return (IRR), which differs from the time-weighted rate of return (TWRR)

calculation done by Verus. It is inappropriate to compare IRR and TWRR to each other. IRR figures reported in the illiquid alternative pages are provided by the respective managers, and Verus has

not made any attempts to verify these returns. Until a partnership is liquidated (typically over 10-12 years), the IRR is only an interim estimated return. The actual IRR performance of any LP is not

known until the final liquidation.

Verus receives universe data from InvestorForce, eVestment Alliance, and Morningstar. We believe this data to be robust and appropriate for peer comparison. Nevertheless, these universes may
not be comprehensive of all peer investors/managers but rather of the investors/managers that comprise that database. The resulting universe composition is not static and will change over time.

Returns are annualized when they cover more than one year. Investment managers may revise their data after report distribution. Verus will make the appropriate correction to the client account

but may or may not disclose the change to the client based on the materiality of the change.

Disclaimer



CCCERA Risk Dashboard

03/31/2016

0 16

Portfolio: 8.4%

0 16

Policy: 7.9%

0 16

Average Pension: 8.1%

2 Portfolio equity beta

0 1

Portfolio: 0.55

0 1

Policy: 0.50

0 1

Average Pension: 0.53

CCCERA Risk Dashboard 

1



3 Portfolio interest rate risk – Duration

0 18

Portfolio: 1.4

0 18

Policy: 1.3

0 18

Average Pension: 1.7

4 Portfolio credit risk – Spread duration

0 1

Portfolio: 0.2

0 1

Policy: 0.7

0 1

Average Pension: 0.1

2



5 Exposure allocation by asset class

Portfolio Policy Average Pension

Alternatives Private Credit 0.0%   17.0% 

Opportunistic 0.5%   

Risk Diversifying Strategies 8.2%   2.0% 8.1% 

Alternatives Total 8.7%   19.0% 8.1% 

Cash Cash 1.2%   1.0% 1.1% 

Cash Total 1.2%   1.0% 1.1% 

Equity Emerging Markets 0.0%   14.0% 3.4% 

Private Equity 0.0%   17.0% 6.0% 

International Large 11.2%   10.0% 

Global Equity 12.6%   15.1% 

Large Cap US Equity 22.7%   6.0% 26.1% 

Equity Total 46.5%   47.0% 50.6% 

Fixed Income Short-term Gov/Credit 0.0%   24.0% 2.4% 

US Treasury 0.0%   2.0% 

Global Bonds 3.4%   5.8% 

High Yield Fixed 4.5%   

US Bonds 19.1%   22.5% 

Fixed Income Total 27.0%   26.0% 30.7% 

Real Assets Commodites 0.0%   1.1% 

Real Assets 4.9%   1.1% 

Real Estate 11.7%   7.0% 7.4% 

Real Assets Total 16.6%   7.0% 9.5% 

Total Portfolio 100% 100% 100%

3



6 Exposure allocation

Portfolio Policy Average Pension

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Alternatives

Cash

Equity

Fixed Income

Real Assets

Currency (Home)

Currency (Foreign)

9%

1%

47%

27%

17%

80%

20%

19%

1%

47%

26%

7%

76%

24%

8%

1%

51%

31%

10%

77%

23%

4



7 Relative risk vs target by bucket

-100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 200.0% 300.0%

Portfolio

Equity

Rates

Credit

Inflation

Hedge Fund

6.7%

-0.9%

230.4%

-1.8%

-0.2%

8 Relative risk vs target by risk factor

-120.0% -60.0% 0.0% 60.0% 120.0%

Portfolio

Equity

Rates

Credit

Inflation

Currency

6.7%

27.2%

-0.0%

-62.2%

102.2%

-47.5%

9 Risk factor weight relative to target

-8.0% 0.0% 8.0% 16.0% 24.0%

Portfolio

Equity

Rates

Credit

Inflation

Currency

Hedge Fund

6.7%

19.8%

-6.3%

3.3%

-4.2%

0.0%

5



10 Tail risk – Scenario analysis

Portfolio Policy Average Pension

-50% -25% 0% 25% 50%

2009-2010 July-January

2007-2009 Subprime Meltdown

2001 Dot-com Slowdown

2007-2008 Oil Price Rise

1997-1999 Oil Price Decline

1994 US Rate Hike

1992-1993 European Currency Crisis

1989-1990 Nikkei Stock Price Correction

1987 Market Crash (Oct. 14 to Oct. 19)

1972-1974 Oil Crisis (Dec. to Sep.)

6



11 Tail risk – Stress tests

Portfolio Policy Average Pension

-12% -9% -6% -3% 0%

Commodity -20%

USD +20%

Global Equity -20%

Global Credit Spreads +100 bps

Global Interest Rate +200bps

7



12 Risk contribution by risk factor

Equity Credit Rates Inflation Currency Private Equity
Hedge Fund Selection

Portfolio Policy Average Pension
0%

3%

6%

9%

12%

8.4%
7.9% 8.1%

13 Active risk contribution by risk factor

Equity Credit Rates Inflation
Currency Private Equity Hedge Fund
Selection

Portfolio vs. Policy Portfolio vs. Average Pension
0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2.4%

0.7%

8



14 Geographic exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

US

Canada

Europe

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

77%

1%

13%

5%

1%

3%

70%

1%

9%

3%

1%

15%

15 Currency exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

US

Canada

Euro

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

80%

0%

6%

11%

1%

1%

76%

3%

9%

1%

11%

16 Net geographic exposure

-14.0% -7.0% 0.0% 7.0% 14.0%

US

Canada

Europe

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

7.0%

-0.5%

3.7%

1.7%

0.3%

-12.2%

17 Net currency exposure

-12.0% -8.0% -4.0% 0.0% 4.0%

US

Canada

Euro

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

3.7%

0.5%

3.2%

1.6%

0.4%

-9.5%

9



18 Interest rate bucket 19 Rates bucket – Geographic exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

US

Canada

Europe

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

84%

1%

7%

3%

0%

5%

89%

2%

3%

1%

0%

4%

20 Rates bucket – Currency exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

US

Canada

Euro

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

92%

0%

4%

4%

0%

0%

100%

21 Rates bucket – Security type

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Public

Private

Derivative

100%

100%

Portfolio Policy Difference

Duration 5.4 2.3 3.2

Yield to Maturity 2.5% 1.2% 1.3%

Wt. Avg. Rating Aa1 / Aa2 Aa1 / Aa2

10



22 Credit bucket 23 Credit bucket – Geographic exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

US

Canada

Europe

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

58%

4%

22%

2%

0%

14%

80%

5%

8%

1%

0%

5%

24 Credit bucket – Currency exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

US

Canada

Euro

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

79%

17%

4%

100%

25 Credit bucket – Security type

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Public

Private

Derivative

96%

4%

100%

Portfolio Policy Difference

Duration 3.9 4.0 -0.0

Coupon Yield 7.0% 7.0% 0.0%

Yield to Maturity 7.4% 8.0% -0.6%

Wt. Avg. Rating B1 B1 / B2

11



26 Inflation bucket 27 Inflation bucket – Geographic exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

US

Canada

Europe

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

100%
100%

28 Inflation bucket – Currency exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

US

Canada

Euro

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

100%
100%

29 Inflation bucket – Security type

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Public

Private

Derivative

100%

100%

Portfolio Policy Difference

Real Estate Allocation 11.7% 7.0% 4.7%

Other Real Assets 4.9%

12



30 Equity bucket 31 Equity bucket – Geographic exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

US

Canada

Europe

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

63%

1%

21%

9%

2%

3%

50%

14%

6%

2%

28%

32 Equity bucket – Currency exposure

Portfolio Policy

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

US

Canada

Euro

Other Developed

Australia

Emerging Markets

63%

1%

10%

21%

2%

2%

50%

7%

20%

2%

22%

33 Equity bucket – Security type

Portfolio Policy

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Public

Private

Derivative

100%

64%

36%

Portfolio Policy Difference

Beta 1.0 0.9 0.1

Dividend Yield 2.6% 2.9% -0.3%

PE Ratio 19.1 23.4 -4.3

13



39 Market value summary per BarraOne

Bucket Asset Class Account Name Account Market Value (millions)

Cash Cash Unallocated Cash Unallocated Cash 74.3

Transition Transition 0.5

Treasurer’s Fixed Treasurer Fixed 0.0

Cash Total 74.8

Credit High Yield Bonds Allianz Global Investors Allianz Global Investors 320.1

Opportunistic Credit Angelo Gordon Energy Credit Opportunities Angelo Gordon Energy Credit Opportunities 14.1

Credit Total 334.1

Equity EAFE Equity Pyrford Pyrford 400.6

William Blair William Blair 397.6

International Equity Transition International Equity Transition 0.5

Global Equity First Eagle First Eagle 304.8

Artisan Partners Artisan Partners 304.3

JP Morgan Global Opportunities JP Morgan Global Opportunities 262.6

Intech Global Low Vol Intech Global Low Vol 23.6

Private Equity Oaktree PIF 2009 Oaktree PIF 2009 18.5

US Equity Robeco Boston Partners Robeco Boston Partners 319.0

Intech Large Cap Core Intech Large Cap Core 299.6

Jackson Square Partners Jackson Square Partners 295.8

PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return PIMCO Stocks Absolute Return 246.8

Ceredex Ceredex 238.6

Emerald Advisors Emerald Advisors 215.4

Equity Total 3,327.6

Hedge Fund Hedge Fund Adams Street Partners Adams Street Partners 120.3

Energy Investor Fund III Energy Investor Fund III 62.8

Siguler Guff CCCERA Opportunities Fund Siguler Guff CCCERA Opportunities Fund 55.3

Energy Investor Fund IV Energy Investor Fund IV 50.1

Pathway Private Equity Fund Pathway Private Equity Fund 44.6

Energy Investor Fund II Energy Investor Fund II 43.1

Pathway 7 Pathway 7 28.3

Pathway 6 Pathway 6 27.6

Carpenter Bancfund Carpenter Bancfund 27.1

Paladin III Paladin III 23.8

Pathway Private Equity Fund 2008 Pathway Private Equity Fund 2008 22.9

Adams Street Partners II Adams Street Partners II 18.3

Adams Street Partners Fund 5 Adams Street Partners Fund 5 16.8

Ocean Avenue Fund II Ocean Avenue Fund II 14.5

Bay Area Equity Fund II Bay Area Equity Fund II 10.8

Brinson – Venture Capital Brinson Venture Capital 5.6

Bay Area Equity Fund I Bay Area Equity Fund I 5.6

14



Bucket Asset Class Account Name Account Market Value (millions)

Pathway 8 Pathway 8 3.9

Energy Investor Fund Energy Investor Fund 0.8

Nogales Nogales 0.3

Hedge Fund Total 582.5

Inflation Real Assets Wellington Real Total Return Wellington Real Total Return 175.4

PIMCO All Asset Fund PIMCO All Asset Fund 120.3

Aether Real Assets III Aether Real Assets III 35.0

Commonfund Commonfund 18.8

Wastewater Opportunity Fund LLC Wastewater Opportunity Fund LLC 0.7

Real Estate Adelante Adelante 95.0

Oaktree REOF VI Oaktree REOF VI 89.6

LaSalle Income & Growth Fund VI LaSalle Income Growth Fund VI 83.6

DLJ Real Estate IV DLJ Real Estate IV 79.3

Siguler Guff Distressed RE Opportunities Siguler Guff Distressed RE Opportunities 62.7

Angelo, Gordon & Co. Realty Fund VIII Angelo Gordon Co Realty Fund VIII 61.0

INVESCO International REIT INVESCO International REIT 56.7

DLJ Real Estate III DLJ Real Estate III 44.3

Siguler Guff Distressed RE Opportunities II Siguler Guff Distressed RE Opportunities II 43.8

DLJ Real Estate V DLJ Real Estate V 41.1

Oaktree REOF V Oaktree REOF V 33.4

Long Wharf Fund IV Long Wharf Fund IV 24.7

Paulson Real Estate II Paulson Real Estate II 21.8

INVESCO Real Estate III INVESCO Real Estate III 19.3

INVESCO Real Estate II INVESCO Real Estate II 14.9

Angelo, Gordon & Co. Realty Fund IX Angelo Gordon Co Realty Fund IX 14.0

Long Wharf Fund III Long Wharf Fund III 12.6

Siguler Guff Distressed RE Opportunities II Co-Inv Siguler Guff Distressed RE Opportunities II Co-Inv 10.0

Willows Office Property Willows Office Property 10.0

INVESCO Real Estate IV INVESCO Real Estate IV 9.5

INVESCO Real Estate I INVESCO Real Estate I 6.5

Long Wharf Fund II Long Wharf Fund II 0.0

Hearthstone Advisors II Hearthstone Advisors II -0.1

Inflation Total 1,183.7

Rates Global Bonds Lazard Lazard 241.1

US Bonds PIMCO Fixed Income PIMCO Fixed Income 347.6

Lord Abbett Lord Abbett 324.5

Goldman Sachs Core Plus Goldman Sachs Core Plus 323.5

AFL-CIO AFL CIO 231.2

Torchlight IV Torchlight IV 61.9

Torchlight II Torchlight II 48.6

Torchlight V Torchlight V 11.2

15



Bucket Asset Class Account Name Account Market Value (millions)

Torchlight III Torchlight III 10.5

GSAM Workout Portfolio GSAM Workout Portfolio 0.0

Rates Total 1,600.1

Total Portfolio (millions) 7,102.9

16



Chart Definitions

1 Portfolio risk
Total risk comparison of portfolio, Policy, and Avg. Pension. Policy is composed of 1% Cash, 14% MSCI EM, 10% MSCI EAFE, 6% S&P500D, 17% Private Equity, 24% Barclays 
Capital 1-3 Yr Gov/Credit, 2% Barclays Capital U.S. Treasury: 7-10 Year, 7% NCREIF NPI, 17% Barclays Capital U.S. Corporate High Yield, and 2% HFRI FOF Index. Average 
pension is based on median allocation of DB Plans > $1 Billion, which is composed of 1.1% Cash, 26.1% US Equity, 15.1% Global ex-US Equity, 3.4% EM Equity, 6% Private 
Equity, 22.5% US Fixed Income, 4.3% Global Fixed Income, 1.5% Global ex-US Fixed Income, 2.4% EM Fixed Income, 8.1% Hedge Fund, 1.05% Commodity, 1.05% Forestry, and 
7.4% Real Estate. 

2 Portfolio equity beta
Equity risk presented by equity beta to market. Equity beta is a measure describing the sensitivity of portfolio returns with returns of the equity market (MSCI ACWI). 

3 Portfolio interest rate risk – Duration
Interest rate risk presented by duration and dollar movement of portfolios. Duration of a financial asset that consists of fixed cash flows is the weighted average of the times 
until those fixed cash flows are received (measured in years). It also measures the percentage change in price for a given change in yields (the price sensitivity to yield). DV01 $ 
(dollar duration) is the change in price in dollars of a financial instrument resulting from a one basis point change in yield. 

4 Portfolio credit risk – Spread duration
Credit risk presented by spread duration and dollar movement of portfolios. Spread duration measures the percentage change in price for a one percentage point change in 
spreads. 

5 Exposure allocation by asset class
Exposure allocation among various asset classes. 

6 Exposure allocation
Exposure allocation among major risk buckets (rates, credit, equity, inflation, currency) and net currency exposure (domestic vs. foreign). Full Cash collateral is assumed for all 
derivatives. 

7 Relative risk vs target by bucket
Comparative riskiness of Portfolio vs. Policy on total portfolio and risk bucket levels: For example, equity bucket relative risk compares the riskiness of the Portfolio equity 
bucket vs the Policy equity bucket. 

8 Relative risk vs target by risk factor
Comparative riskiness of Portfolio vs. Policy on a total portfolio level and major risk factor levels. 

9 Risk factor weight relative to target
Contribution by factor to total relative risk of the Portfolio vs the Policy: For example, Equity is equity risk contribution to Portfolio minus equity risk contribution to the Policy, 
divided by total risk of the Policy. The factor overweights are additive to the total relative risk at the top line. 

10 Tail risk – Scenario analysis
Expected performance under various historical scenarios. For each historical scenario, the current market value is recalculated to determine total return under identical market 
conditions. Tail risk is a form of risk that arises when the possibility that an investment will have losses greater than what the normal distribution would suggest. 

11 Tail risk – Stress tests
Expected performance under various one‐risk‐factor stress tests. Directly affected asset classes are revalued at the factor levels. 

12 Risk contribution by risk factor
Risk contribution by risk factor. Volatility measures the price variation of a portfolio or financial instrument over time. 

13 Active risk contribution by risk factor
Active risk in terms of annual tracking error: Tracking Error (TE) measures how closely a portfolio follows its benchmark. It is the standard deviation of the difference between 
the portfolio and benchmark returns. 

14 Geographic exposure
Geographic exposures are calculated using the notional exposure as a percentage of market value, including derivatives, cash securities and currency holdings, but excluding 
currency derivatives. Any portfolio that uses derivatives may have a total different than 100% because both cash and derivative country exposures are included. 

15 Currency exposure
Currency portfolio allocation. Currency exposures from both the underlying securities and the purchasing currency of the futures contract are included. 

16 Net geographic exposure
Difference between portfolio and policy allocation among major geographic areas. 

17 Net currency exposure
Difference between portfolio and policy allocation among major currencies. 

18 Interest rate bucket
Coupon yield (nominal yield) of a fixed income security is a fixed percentage of the par value that does not vary with the market price of the security. Yield to Maturity (YTM) is 
the interest rate of return earned by an investor who buys a fixed‐interest security today at the market price and holds it until maturity. Ratings indicate credit quality of a 
security and the issuer’s ability to make payments of interest and principal. 

19 Rates bucket – Geographic exposure
Geographic exposures specific to the Rates bucket are calculated using the notional exposure as a percentage of market value, including derivatives, cash securities and 
currency holdings, but excluding currency derivatives. Any portfolio that uses derivatives may have a total different than 100% because both cash and derivative country 
exposures are included. 

17



Tail Risk Scenario Definitions

20 Rates bucket – Currency exposure
Currency allocation of interest rate instruments. 

21 Rates bucket – Security type
Allocation of interest rate instruments among different security types. 

22 Credit bucket
Various characteristics of credit instruments. 

23 Credit bucket – Geographic exposure
Geographic exposures specific to the Credit bucket are calculated using the notional exposure as a percentage of market value, including derivatives, cash securities and 
currency holdings, but excluding currency derivatives. Any portfolio that uses derivatives may have a total different than 100% because both cash and derivative country 
exposures are included. 

24 Credit bucket – Currency exposure
Currency allocation of credit instruments. 

25 Credit bucket – Security type
Allocation of credit instruments among different security types. 

26 Inflation bucket
Composition of inflation hedging instruments in portfolio and benchmark. Notional duration of real rates instruments is also included. 

27 Inflation bucket – Geographic exposure
Geographic exposures specific to the Inflation bucket are calculated using the notional exposure as a percentage of market value, including derivatives, cash securities and 
currency holdings, but excluding currency derivatives. Any portfolio that uses derivatives may have a total different than 100% because both cash and derivative country 
exposures are included. 

28 Inflation bucket – Currency exposure
Currency allocation of inflation instruments. 

29 Inflation bucket – Security type
Allocation of inflation instruments among different security types. 

30 Equity bucket
P/E ratio is a valuation ratio of a company’s current share price compared to its per‐share earnings. Beta measures sensitivity to Global Equities. 

31 Equity bucket – Geographic exposure
Geographic exposures specific to the Equity bucket are calculated using the notional exposure as a percentage of market value, including derivatives, cash securities and 
currency holdings, but excluding currency derivatives. Any portfolio that uses derivatives may have a total different than 100% because both cash and derivative country 
exposures are included. 

32 Equity bucket – Currency exposure
Currency allocation of equity assets. 

33 Equity bucket – Security type
Allocation of equity assets among different security types. 

39 Market value summary per BarraOne
Summary of market value of Portfolio holdings by bucket as reported through BarraOne. Some differences may exist due to timing, pricing sources and availability of 
information on new investments. 

1 2009-2010 July-January
(7/1/2009 – 12/31/2009) As global economic woes persisted, many countries were saddled with widening budget deficits, rising borrowing costs, slowing growth, higher 
unemployment, and higher inflation, which made monetary stimulus difficult. Dubai World sought to delay its huge debt repayments, shocking the global market, while the 
financial distress in Greece and Ireland began to emerge in late 2009. 

2 2007-2009 Subprime Meltdown
(1/10/2007 – 2/27/2009) The burst of the housing bubble in mid-2007 marked the beginning of the years-long subprime mortgage crisis, rooted from the easy credit, low 
interest rates, and loose regulatory environment in the early 2000s, which made low quality (subprime) mortgaging extremely easy. The contagious meltdown quickly led to 
plunging asset prices in the financial markets, rising bankruptcies, delinquencies, and foreclosures, and central bank monetary rescues and fiscal interventions by governments 
around the globe. 

3 2007-2008 Oil Price Rise
(1/18/2007 – 6/27/2008) Oil prices spiked from around $60/bbl in 2007 to a record high of $145/bbl on 3 July 2008. 

4 2001 Dot-com Slowdown
(3/10/2001 – 10/9/2002) Upon the burst of the tech bubble in 2000, more and more internet companies went out of businessas the stock market plummeted further. 

5 1997-1999 Oil Price Decline
(1/8/1997 – 2/16/1999) The combined effect of OPEC overproduction and lower oil demand due to the Asia economic crisis sent oil prices into a downward spiral. 

6 1994 US Rate Hike
(1/31/1994 – 12/13/1994) In combating inflation, the U.S. Federal Reserve raised its interest rate from 3.25% in February to 5.5% in November 1994. 

18



DISCLAIMERS AND NOTICES

All the information presented in this risk report is furnished on a confidential basis for use solely by the client in connection with Verus Advisory, Inc. and/or Verus Investors, LLC (hereinafter collectively or 
individually the "Company") and the entity to whom this risk report is provided (hereinafter the client). It is agreed that use of the risk report is acceptance that the information contained therein is subject to the 
terms and conditions of the confidentiality agreement by and between the Company and the client and that such information is being presented through the proprietary technology known as the risk report.

The information contained in the risk report may not be copied, reproduced or distributed, in whole or in part, nor may its contents or facts or terms of any securities (if any) contained therein be disclosed to any 
other person except in accordance with the terms of the confidentiality agreement or unless in full conformity with prevailing NASD or SEC regulations. The information presented does not constitute a 
recommendation by the Company and cannot be used for advertising or sales promotion purposes.

The information presented has been prepared by the Company from sources that it believes to be reliable and the Company has exercised all reasonable professional care in preparing the information presented. 
However, the Company cannot insure the accuracy of the information contained therein. Subject to specific contractual terms between the Company and the client, the Company shall not be liable to clients or 
anyone else for inaccuracy or in-authenticity of information in the analysis or for any errors or omissions in content, except to the extent arising from sole gross negligence, regardless of the cause of such 
inaccuracy, in-authenticity, error, or omission. In no event shall the Company be liable for consequential damages.

Nothing contained therein is, or should be relied on as, a promise, representation, or guarantee as to future performance or a particular outcome. Even with portfolio diversification, asset allocation, and a long-term 
approach, investing involves risk of loss that the client should be prepared to bear. The information presented may be deemed to contain "forward looking" information. Examples of forward looking information 
including, but are not limited to, (a) projections of or statements regarding return on investment, future earnings, interest income, other income, growth prospects, capital structure, and other financial terms, (b) 
statements of plans or objectives of management, (c) statements of future economic performance, and (d) statements of assumptions, such as economic conditions underlying other statements. Such forward 
looking information can be identified by the use of forward looking terminology such as "believes," "expects," "may," "will," "should," "anticipates," or the negative of any of the foregoing or other variations thereon or 
comparable terminology, or by discussion of strategy. No assurance can be given that the future results described by the forward looking information will be achieved. Such statements are subject to risks, 
uncertainties, and other factors which could cause the actual results to differ materially from future results expressed or implied by such forward looking information. Such factors that could cause the actual results 
to differ materially from those in forward looking statements include among other items, (i) an economic downturn, (ii) changes in the competitive marketplace and/or client requirements, (iii) unanticipated changes 
in Company management, (iv) inability to perform client contracts at anticipated cost levels, (v) changes in the regulatory requirements of the industry, and (vi) other factors that affect businesses within the various 
industries within which they work.

The information presented does not purport to be all-inclusive nor does it contain all information that the client may desire for its purposes. The information presented should be read in conjunction with any other 
material furnished by the Company. The Company will be available, upon request, to discuss the information presented in the risk report that clients may consider necessary, as well as any information needed to 
verify the accuracy of the information set forth therein, to the extent Company possesses the same or can acquire it without unreasonable effort or expense.

Company disclaimers required by information and service providers

(The identification of the information and service provider in the heading of each paragraph is for reference only)

Barra, LLC

This report has been prepared and provided by the Company solely for the client's internal use and may not be redistributed in any form or manner to any third party other than on a need to know basis to your board 
of directors, investment consultants, and other third parties with direct responsibility for monitoring the client's investments. The report contains proprietary third party data from Barra, LLC.

The data is provided to the client on an "as is" basis. The Company, its information providers (including without limitation Barra, LLC), and any other third party involved in or related to the making or compiling of the 
data make no representation or warranty of any kind, either express or implied, with respect to the data in this report (or the results to be obtained by the use thereof). Company, its information providers (including 
without limitation Barra, LLC) and any other third party involved in or related to the making or compiling of the data expressly disclaim any and all implied warranties of originality, accuracy, completeness, non-
infringement, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.

The client assumes the entire risk of any use the client may make of the data. In no event shall the Company, its information providers (including without limitation Barra, LLC) or any third party involved in or related 
to the making or compiling of the data, be liable to the client, or any other third party, for any direct or indirect damages, including, without limitation, any lost profits, lost savings or other incidental or consequential 
damages arising out of this agreement or the inability of the client to use the data, regardless of the form of action, even if Company, any of its information providers (including without limitation Barra, LLC), or any 
other third party involved in or related to the making or compiling of the data has been advised of or otherwise might have anticipated the possibility of such damages.

FTSE TMX Global Debt Capital Markets, Inc.

The client agrees that FTSE TMX Global Debt Capital Markets, Inc. and the parties from whom FTSE TMX Global Debt Capital Markets, Inc. obtains data do not have any liability for the accuracy or completeness of 
the data provided or for delays, interruptions or omissions therein or the results to be obtained through the use of this data. The client further agrees that neither FTSE TMX Global Debt Capital Markets, Inc. nor the 
parties from whom it obtains data make any representation, warranty or condition, either express or implied, as to the results to be obtained from the use of the data, or as to the merchantable quality or fitness of 
the data for a particular purpose.

7 1992-1993 European Currency Crisis
(9/1/1992 – 8/13/1993) Upon Germany’s reunification, the German mark appreciated rapidly, which destabilized exchange rates between European countries under the 
European Monetary System. It led to a series of European currency devaluations, interest rate increases, and the widening range of exchange rates in 1992. 

8 1989-1990 Nikkei Stock Price Correction
(12/29/1989 – 3/30/1990) After hitting the Nikkei stock index’s all-time high on December 29, 1989, the Japan financial market crashed and plunged to a low in March 1990. 

9 1987 Market Crash (Oct. 14 to Oct. 19)
(10/14/1987 – 10/19/1987) The U.S. stock market began to topple on October 14, 1987 after reaching a record high. It was triggered by reports of a larger trade deficit and the 
elimination of the tax benefits of financing mergers. The aggravating selling pressure in October 19, from confused and fearful investors, and the failing portfolio insurers’ 
models led to a substantial global market sell-off. 

10 1972-1974 Oil Crisis (Dec. to Sep.)
(12/1/1972 – 9/30/1974) Many developed countries suffered in this energy crisis as OPEC members placed an oil embargo on the U.S. and Israel’s allies during the Yom Kippur 
War in October 1973, which sent global oil prices soaring. 

19







MAY 25, 2016

Transition Management Presentation to

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association



VERUSINVESTMENTS.COM

SEATTLE  206‐622‐3700
LOS ANGELES  310‐297‐1777

SAN FRANCISCO  415‐362‐3484

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and eligible 
institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, outlooks, projections and 
other “forward‐looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing 
entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment 
Advisors Act of 1940, as amended. 

Table of contents

Overview 3

Transition managers 7

Recommendations 11

Appendix 14

2

Manager evaluations 21

Pre-trade analyses 34

Placement Agent Disclosures 112



Overview

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 3



What is transition management?
Transition management is a systematic, controlled process that uses all available 
sources of liquidity to minimize the total cost and risk of transitioning plan assets from 
one investment strategy to another.

— Using a transition manager can add accountability and transparency to the transition process.

Pre‐Trade Analysis Transition Event Post‐Trade 
Evaluation

Legacy Portfolio

In‐Kind Transfer

Internal
Crossing Network

External
Crossing Networks

Futures / Currency
Trading

Open Market
Agency Trades

Transition Account
at
Custodian

Target Portfolio

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 4



TRANSITION OF ASSETS IN, OUT AND/OR WITHIN A PORTFOLIO

The transition management decision

—Fiduciary liability

 Transition event requires fiduciary 
responsibility & oversight

—Project management & risk control

 Best execution of trade in a risk controlled 
environment

• Maximize in‐kind transfers

• Minimize market impact

—Trading costs

 Commission costs (explicit)

 Implementation shortfall (implicit)

Financial risk to CCCERA

Fiduciary 
liability

Project 
management & 
risk control Trading costs

Money moving in/out/within a portfolio = risk

Every time money is moving in/out/within a client’s portfolio, there are risks involved 
and someone is acting as transition manager.

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 5



Why transition management?
Legacy Manager Target Manager Transition Manager

Accountability Assists the transition Assists the transition Manages the transition

Alignment of 
Interest

Little – has just been 
terminated/reduced

Little – generally request 
performance holiday 

Large – performance explicitly linked to 
transition

Expertise Portfolio management 
Security selection & research

Portfolio management
Security selection & research

Transition management
Risk management, project management,  trade 
development & execution

Execution Often limited experience in high 
volume, big ticket trades

Often limited experience in high 
volume, big ticket trades Experts in high volume, big ticket trades

Project 
Management

Minimal

Client tends to be more heavily 
involved

Minimal

Client tends to be more heavily 
involved

Significant ‐ Manages and co‐ordinates whole 
transition
Client can choose level of involvement

Analysis & reporting Limited – often just trade files; 
focus on performance reporting

Limited – often just trade files; 
focus on performance reporting

Detailed pre‐trade analysis
Extensive post trade analysis

Commission Rates* Typically higher Typically higher Typically lower

*Commission rates for asset managers are typically higher since asset managers include soft dollar arrangements for research into the commission rates they charge. Transition management providers do not 
have the same arrangements and are able to offer lower commission rates on average.

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 6



Transition managers

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 7



TM Program overview
Verus conducted a search on behalf of CCCERA for transition management services 
to develop a platform of providers based on transition type:

• Direct

• Transitions within the same sub‐asset class (e.g. US large cap growth)

• Providers would include: Penserra, Russell, and Vertas

• Indirect

• Transitions within the same major asset class (e.g. domestic equities)

• Providers would include: BlackRock, Citigroup, and Russell

• Complex

• Transitions across asset classes

• Providers would include: Citigroup and Russell

March 24, 2016
CCCERA 8

Once a 
transition is 
identified, 
Staff would 
have 
discretion to 
select a 
provider from 
this platform 
based on 
transition 
type, pre-trade 
analysis, past 
experience, 
and 
transition-
specific 
considerations



Evaluation approach

—To help CCCERA select transition managers, the following managers have been evaluated:

May 25, 2016
CCCERA

 BlackRock

 Citigroup

 Penserra

 Russell

 State Street

 Vertas

 Areas of expertise

 Business model

 Transition costs

 Tenure, depth of experience, and structure of transition 
management team

 Access to liquidity

 Transparency

 Potential conflicts of interest

 Historical transition activity (i.e., client type, asset class, 
performance, etc.)

 Prior regulatory events

— The evaluation of providers took into consideration recent developments in this space, prior experiences with providers, 
due diligence on‐site visits and conference calls, and review of RFI and other due diligence materials.

— Each manager was evaluated on quantitative and qualitative factors, including but not limited to:

9



TM provider overview

May 25, 2016
CCCERA

BlackRock Citigroup Global Markets Penserra

Headquarters New York, NY New York, NY New York, NY

Firm inception 1988 1812 2007

TM service inception 1993 1996 2010

Ownership Fully owned subsidiary of 
BlackRock, Inc.

Fully owned subsidiary of 
Citigroup, Inc.

Majority employee owned

MV of assets transitioned 2014 (millions) $222,047 $505,125 $2,570

MV of assets transitioned 2014 (millions) by client type DB ‐ $136,595
DC ‐ $3,743
E&F – $1,500

DB ‐ $129,009
DC ‐ $79,517

E&F ‐ $107,188

DB ‐ $1,542
E&F ‐ $1,028

Willing to act as fiduciary? Yes Yes Yes

Agency and/or principal? Agency only Both (almost always agency) Agency Only

Key personnel (years experience/years with TM unit) Lachlan French (30/7)
Paul Francis (24/7)

Zlatko Martinic (24/18)
Jim Amorella (18/15)

Richard Metzgen (18/17)
Laura Peres (24/10)
Jon Platt (16/1)

Will Cobbett (14/9)
Sarah Kirschbaum (15/8)

James Ngai (6/5)
James Darch (20/1)

Keith Wilson (30/1)
Sam Patel (20/2)
Calvin Lee (18/2)

Steve Lowden (19/4)

Personnel dedicated exclusively to TM 56 15 5

Fees US Equity: 1‐2 c/shr
Non‐US Developed Equity: 4‐5 bps

EM Equity: 8‐10 bps
US Fixed Income: 3‐10 bps

Non‐US Fixed Income: 5‐10 bps

No commission schedule, but 
rather establishes agreed upon 

commission rate based on size and 
difficulty

US Equity: 1 c/shr
Non‐US Developed Equity: 4 bps

EM Equity: 8‐12 bps

10



TM provider overview (cont.)

May 25, 2016
CCCERA

Russell State Street Vertas

Headquarters Seattle, WA Boston, MA Baltimore, MD

Firm inception 1936 1792 2006 (Global Transition Solutions)

TM service inception 1992 1979 2006

Ownership Russell Investment Group will be 
owned by TA Associates and 
Reverence Capital Partners

Fully owned subsidiary of State 
Street Corporation

Fully owned subsidiary of Percival 
Financial Partners

MV of assets transitioned 2014 (millions) $799,437 $338,503 $23,430

MV of assets transitioned 2014 (millions) by client type DB ‐ $540,036
DC ‐ $10,934
E&F ‐ $20,187

DB ‐ $235,343
DC ‐ $66,826
E&F – 36,334

Predominantly DB

Willing to act as fiduciary? Yes Yes Yes

Agency and/or principal? Agency Only Agency Only Both (all trading outsourced to 
ATM Cowen)

Key personnel (years experience/years with TM unit) Steve Kirschner (22/10)
Travis Bagley (21/15)
Josh Houchin (10/5)

Wayne Hollister (13/13)
Scott Spinharney (16/16)
Danny Sobba (21/19)

Nicholas Bonn (36/24)
Peter Weiner (28/15)
Tom Bryant (28/19)

Steve Malinowski
Peter Romanelli
David Bergman
Kenneth Taylor

Personnel dedicated exclusively to TM 28 21 8

Fees US Equity: 1‐1.25 c/shr
Non‐US Equity: 4‐6 c/shr

EM Equity: 6‐9 bps
US Fixed Income: 1.5‐6 bps

Non‐US Fixed Income: 2.5‐8 bps

No set commission schedule; may 
on occasion agree to work on a 

fixed fee basis

US Equity 1 c/shr
Other Asset Classes: 3 c/shr
Fee structure is negotiable

11



Recommendations

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 12



Transition manager recommendations

May 25, 2016
CCCERA

Staff will solicit 
pre- trade 
analyses from 
this schedule of 
providers based 
on the transition 
type to select a 
provider.

Staff may also 
consider past 
experiences in 
their evaluation 
of transition 
providers.

13

Transition Type

Managers US equity 
(direct & 
indirect)

Non‐US
equity 

(direct & 
indirect)

US fixed
income

Complex 
multi‐asset 

class

Basis of 
recommendation

BlackRock ✔ ✔ As one of the world’s largest asset managers, 
BlackRock provides access to robust liquidity pools 
and execution venues which are important 
considerations in lowering implicit costs within less 
liquid asset classes.

Citigroup ✔ ✔ ✔ Citigroup’s team has experience in executing large, 
complex transitions, and their platform provides 
access to deep liquidity pools and trading networks 
which should be able to provide lower implicit 
costs in transitioning less liquid asset classes.

Penserra ✔ Penserra provides a competitive commission 
schedule for US equities (1 c/share).

Russell ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ Russell has the experience, depth of resources, and 
access to robust liquidity pools and trading 
networks required for less liquid, more complex 
transitions, as well as a competitive commission 
schedule for highly liquid asset classes.

State Street

Vertas ✔ Vertas provides a competitive commission 
schedule for US equities (1 c/share).



Pre-trade analysis comparison
Verus obtained “mock” pre‐trade analyses from each of the recommended transition 
managers using a standardized set of holdings. The sample transition would shift $300 mm 
from a global equity legacy portfolio to fund a $200 mm US equity strategy and a $100 mm 
international equity strategy.

May 25, 2016
CCCERA

The criteria 
summarized 
in this table 
are key 
components 
of a pre-trade 
analysis 
which should 
be considered 
when 
evaluating 
transition 
event bids

14

Commission schedule Mean cost estimates Shortfall lower 
boundary

Managers US equity Dev. non‐
US equity EM equity Explicit

costs
Implicit
costs

Total 
costs

1 standard 
deviation

2 standard 
deviations

BlackRock 1 cent / 
share 4.5 bps 8.0 bps $296,236 $335,793 $652,030 $1,603,907 $2,555,785

Citigroup 0.50 cents 
/ share 4.0 bps 8.0 bps $271,553 $575,606 $847,158 $1,941,309 $3,035,460

Penserra 0.85 cents
/ share 5.0 bps 10.0 bps $287,771 $718,438 $1,006,209 $1,934,871 $2,863,533

Russell 1.25 cents
/ share 5.0 bps 5.0 bps $314,301 $1,047,915 $1,362,216 $2,385,378 $3,408,540

Vertas 0.50 cents 
/ share 3.0 bps 3.0 bps $236,529 $2,708,228 $2,944,757 $3,752,542 $4,560,327



Next steps
— Authorize the creation of the recommended pool of transition managers to be 

used by Staff as outlined in this presentation.

— Enter into “Evergreen” agreements with BlackRock, Citigroup, Penserra, Russell 
and Vertas for transition management services subject to legal review by 
authorizing Chief Executive Officer to execute the agreements.

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 15



Appendix

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 16



Key transition management terms

― Agency Trade

 A trade where the transition manager interfaces with the market on behalf of the asset owner and does not act as a counterparty.

― Crossing (Internal)

 Refers to the ability of a transition manager to offset (“cross”) the transition flow of its client’s legacy and target portfolios against its index funds or
other internal trading flows. If natural internal crosses exit, such transactions are free of commissions with virtually no market impact.

― Crossing (External)

 Similar in concept to internal crossing; however, the transition manager uses external liquidity to “cross” its client’s transition flow. In contrast to the
internal variety, external crossing exposes the transition flow to the potential of information leakage.

― Dark Liquidity Pool

 A private alternative trading system or platform where the details of trade orders are not made available to the public. A transition manager may
utilize dark pools in an attempt to mitigate market impact when trading large orders (as compared to the security’s daily trading volume).

― Explicit Costs

 The most visible costs during the transition period. Costs include commissions, market taxes, exchange fees and custody fees. While the most
apparent, explicit costs are the least significant component of trade expenses.

― Legacy Portfolio

 The existing portfolio that the client seeks to exit. Also known as the incumbent portfolio.

Source: Northern Trust, Russell

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 17



Key transition management terms (cont.)

Source: Northern Trust, Russell

― Implementation Shortfall

 Assumes that the legacy portfolio is converted instantaneously to the target at the outset of the transition period and at zero cost. Essentially,
implementation shortfall is the measure of the total cost of the transition event.

― Implicit Costs

 The least visible costs during the transition period. Costs include market impact, bid/ask spread and opportunity costs. Implicit costs represent the
most significant expense of a trade.

― Information Leakage

 The release of material information about a pending trade before the actual order is placed. Information leakage increases the total cost of a
transition event since it allows arbitragers to “front run” the transition.

― Market Impact

 The movement of a security’s price after placing a trade order.

― Opportunity Costs

 Costs associated with the time required to complete the full transition from the legacy to the target portfolio.

— Post‐trade Analysis

 An analysis of the actual costs associated with a transition event compared to the pre‐trade estimates.

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 18



Key transition management terms (cont.)

Source: Northern Trust, Russell

— Pre‐hedging

 Trading on a bank’s account ahead of a transition event with the potential economic gain accruing to the transition manager.

— Pre‐trade Analysis

 An analysis of the estimated trading costs (both explicit and implicit) associated with a transition event compared against an unmanaged transition
benchmark providing characteristics of the legacy and target portfolios.

— Principal Trade

 A trade where the transition manager becomes the counterparty to the transaction, either by supplying liquidity from its own inventory or assuming
the risk of the position.

— T‐Standard

 A standardized performance metric designed to calculate implementation shortfall during a transition event.

— Target Portfolio

 The portfolio that a client seeks to purchase (with the proceeds from the legacy portfolio). Also known as the destination portfolio.

— Transfer‐In‐Kind

 Securities that are instantaneously transferred from the legacy to the target portfolio with no liquidity impact. Since transfer‐in‐kind securities are not
traded in the market, they incur no explicit or implicit costs.

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 19



Notices & disclosures
Past performance is no guarantee of future results.   The information presented in this report is  provided pursuant to the contractual agreement (the “Contract”) by 
and between Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (“Client”) and Verus Advisory, Inc. (“Company”). In the event of conflict between the terms of this 
disclosure and the Contract, the Contract shall take precedence. Client is an institutional counter‐party and in no event should the information presented be relied upon 
by a retail investor. 

The information presented has been prepared by the Company from sources that it believes to be reliable and the Company has exercised all reasonable professional 
care in preparing the information presented. However, the Company cannot guarantee the accuracy of the information contained therein. The Company shall not be 
liable to Client or any third party for inaccuracy or in‐authenticity of information obtained or received from third parties in the analysis or for any errors or omissions in 
content.  

The information presented does not purport to be all‐inclusive nor does it contain all information that the Client may desire for its purposes. The information presented 
should be read in conjunction with any other material furnished by the Company. The Company will be available, upon request, to discuss the information presented in 
the report that Client may consider necessary, as well as any information needed to verify the accuracy of the information set forth therein, to the extent Company 
possesses the same or can acquire it without unreasonable effort or expense. Nothing contained therein is, or should be relied on as, a promise, representation, or 
guarantee as to future performance or a particular outcome. Even with portfolio diversification, asset allocation, and a long‐term approach, investing involves risk of 
loss that the client should be prepared to bear.  

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward‐looking statements.” Such statements can be identified by the use of terminology such as 
“believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipates,” or the negative of any of the foregoing or comparable terminology, or by discussion of strategy, or 
assumptions such as economic conditions underlying other statements. No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward‐looking 
information will be achieved. Actual events may differ significantly from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Risk controls and 
models do not promise any level of performance or guarantee against loss of principal.

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 20



Manager evaluations

March 24, 2016
CCCERA 21



 
Transition Management Manager Evaluation 
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A. 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: New York, NY 

Firm inception: 1988 

TM service 
inception: 

1993 

Ownership: Fully owned subsidiary of 
BlackRock, Inc. 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions): 

$222,047 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions) by 
client type: 

DB - $136,595 

DC - $3,743 

E&F - $1,500 

Willing to act as 
fiduciary? 

Yes 

Agency and/or 
principal? 

Agency only 

Key personnel 
(years experience / 
years with TM unit) 

Lachlan French (30/7) 

Paul Francis (24/7) 

Zlatko Martinic (24/18) 

Jim Amorella (18/15) 

Richard Metzgen (18/17) 

Laura Peres (24/10) 

Jon Platt (16/1) 

Personnel 
dedicated 
exclusively to TM 

56 

Fees US Equity: 1-2 c/shr 

Non-US Developed Equity: 4-5 
bps 

EM Equity: 8-10 bps 

US Fixed Income: 3-10 bps 

Non-US Fixed Income: 5-10 bps 

Firm Background and History 
BlackRock is one of the world’s largest asset management 
firms and provider of investment management, risk 
management and advisory services to institutional, 
intermediary and retail clients worldwide. The firm was 
founded in 1988 and is based in New York with over 70 
offices in 30 countries. The firm employs over 12,000 
people globally and has more than $4.6 trillion in assets 
under management.  
 
BlackRock, Inc. (“BlackRock”) is the parent company of 
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A., the entity 
where the Transition Management group resides. 
 
BlackRock, Inc. is independent in ownership and 
governance, with no single majority stockholder and a 
majority of independent directors. As of 30 September 
2015, the PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. (“PNC”) 
owned 22.1% of BlackRock and institutional investors, 
employees and the public held economic interest of 
77.9%. With regard to voting stock, PNC owned 21.1% and 
institutional investors, employees and the public owned 
78.9% of voting shares. 
 
Transition Management Services 
Overview 
Through predecessor firm Barclays Global Investors 
(“BGI”), BlackRock has provided customized transition 
management services since 1985, initially developing 
transition management in-house through its portfolio 
management team. In 1987, BlackRock received one of the 
first crossing exemptions issued by the Department of 
Labor (“DOL”), delivering further transaction cost savings 
to their clients. In order to better serve expanding client 
demand, BlackRock formed a dedicated US Transition 
Management Team in 1993. 
 



 

2 

BlackRock currently provides a wide array of transition 
management services. They provide full project and 
portfolio management services when clients undertake a 
transition between investment managers including 
working to reduce the costs and risks of the change. 
Additionally, BlackRock will lead tactical asset allocation 
shifts in order to execute in a timely and precise manner. 
Through their overlay services, BlackRock has the 
capabilities to provide exposure management solutions to 
assist plans with staying in line with target asset allocation 
weights as well as providing liability-driven management 
services. Finally, BlackRock can lead portfolio builds and 
liquidations and seeks to add value by sourcing liquidity 
from their broad network of counterparties. 
 
Areas of Expertise / Differentiation 
BlackRock acts as a fiduciary in all transition assignments 
that they undertake. The only source of revenue that 
BlackRock derives from transitions is a portion of the 
commission charged in conjunction with trade execution 
or an agreed upon fee, which is disclosed prior to trade 
initiation. 
 
Because BlackRock is one of the largest asset managers in 
the world, they are able to decrease the costs associated 
with transition activity by sourcing internal liquidity. 
BlackRock relies both on an individual DOL exemption as 
well as a Pension Protection Act (“PPA”) exemption in 
order to engage in internal crossing activity. All crosses are 
executed pro-rata at the closing price of each security and 
they do not charge any fee for internal crossing. As part of 
their process, they distinguish between internal crossing, 
which they view as non-impact, zero-commission 
execution, and external crossing, which they view as 
agency trading with potential for market impact.  
 
In order to minimize conflicts of interest, BlackRock 
executes transition trading on an agency basis. Acting as 
an agent, BlackRock deploys an execution strategy based 
on the risk and liquidity characteristics of the transition. As 
a result, trade strategy is motivated by execution quality 
and cost control, rather than any financial incentives to 
BlackRock. With agency execution, BlackRock can access 

favorable combinations of liquidity to provide cost and risk 
savings. In addition to agency execution, BlackRock can 
also access principal bids from third parties. Because of 
the firm’s size and scale, they are able to receive 
competitive bids from Wall Street on behalf of clients. At 
no point will BlackRock commit capital, and their agency-
based model allows for continuous fiduciary responsibility 
throughout the transition. 

 

BlackRock provides transition management clients with a 
broad range of execution venues. They are able to 
leverage the size and scale of their global trading 
operations to deliver best execution to transition 
management clients. BlackRock receives over 40,000 
indications of interest per day and is able to source 
liquidity from over 100 different broker-dealers. 

 

BlackRock has continually invested in their transition 
trading and risk management applications and have 
professionals dedicated to this research. This effort allows 
them to develop quantitative tools in-house. To address 
volatility, BlackRock extensively utilizes high speed intra-
day optimizers which can optimize portfolios once a 
minute if required. These optimizers can tranche portfolios 
into slices to mitigate costs and risks efficiently. 

 

With over 20 years of transition experience and global, 
cross-asset class investment management capabilities, 
BlackRock has the capabilities to deliver strong execution 
across all global public asset classes. Their service is 
differentiated by an ability to execute low-cost, risk-
controlled transitions in those asset classes which are the 
most challenging such as small cap and emerging markets.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 



 
Transition Management Manager Evaluation 
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: New York, NY 

Firm inception: 1812 

TM service 
inception: 

1996 

Ownership: Fully owned subsidiary of 
Citigroup, Inc. 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions): 

$505,125 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions) by 
client type: 

DB - $129,009 

DC - $79,517 

E&F - $107,188 

Willing to act as 
fiduciary? 

Yes 

Agency and/or 
principal? 

Both (almost always agency) 

Key personnel 
(years experience / 
years with TM unit) 

Will Cobbett (14/9) 

Sarah Kirschbaum (15/8) 

James Ngai (6/5) 

James Darch (20/1) 

Personnel 
dedicated 
exclusively to TM 

15 

Fees No commission schedule, but 
rather establishes agreed upon 
commission rate based on size 
and difficulty 

 
Firm Background and History 
Citi is one of the world’s largest diversified financial 
services firms.  The firm provides institutions, 
governments, corporations, and consumers with banking 

and credit, corporate and investment banking, securities 
brokerage, trade and securities services, and wealth 
management services.     
 
Citigroup Global Markets Inc., the US broker dealer and 
the legal entity in which the transition management group 
resides, is a fully owned subsidiary of Citigroup Financial 
Products Inc., which is in turn owned by Citigroup Global 
Markets Holdings Inc. and ultimately owned by Citigroup 
Inc.  Citigroup Inc. is a publically traded company (ticker C) 
with a market cap of $139.1 billion (as of April 20, 2016), 
making it one of the world’s largest financial institutions. 
 
Transition Management Services 
Overview 
Citi has been providing portfolio liquidation services, the 
earliest form of transition management, for institutional 
clients for more than 25 years, and transition management 
services as a stand-alone business since 1996. The firm’s 
Global Transition Management team has offices in London 
(EMEA), New York (Americas), and Sydney (Asia-Pacific).  
 
The transition management group at Citi consists of a 
team of relationship managers and project managers who 
are 100% dedicated to transition management, and a 
network of other individuals within the broader Citi 
organization whom the group leverages to provide 
expertise in such functions as trading, legal, compliance, 
trade booking and settlement.  There are 15 individuals 
dedicated to transition management at Citi. 
 
Citi’s approach to transition management is to focus on 
partnering with the largest asset owners around the world 
on their most complex transition events, rather than 
performing the most transitions. Citi believes that this has 
led to more resources available for each engagement they 
take on, lower costs, and a focus on client service.  
 



 

2 

Their process includes gathering information in order to 
understand the objectives of the transition, developing a 
project plan that covers all aspects of operations and 
clearly identifies the responsibilities of each party 
involved, creating a strategy for execution to minimize 
costs and reduce risks, implementing the strategy using 
Citi’s firm-wide resources, and reporting throughout the 
pre, intra, and post transition process. 
 
Areas of Expertise / Differentiation 
Citi’s transition management business model brings 
together the qualities of a broker-dealer and technological 
architecture of a custodian bank model into one 
integrated platform. The platform draws on the broad 
capabilities of one of the largest trading operations in the 
world in Citi Global Capital Markets, as well as those of the 
world’s second largest global custodian bank, Citibank NA. 
Because of the scope and scale of Citi’s platform, they are 
in 99% of markets worldwide across all asset classes. 
 
Citi’s approach allows them to handle all aspects of 
transition management including analysis, project 
management, trading and settlement without having to 
outsource any component to a third party.  Because they 
leverage existing areas of expertise as well as 
technological architecture already in place, they keep their 
cost of doing business low and can pass along the savings 
to clients.  A single point of control and a fiduciary 
umbrella which extends throughout all stages and aspects 
of a transition provide clients with a service that is both 
streamlined and fully accountable. 
 
There are currently 11 exchanges, 3 ECNs and 50+ dark 
pools in the US alone, and Citi is connected to 
approximately 50 of these, nearly all of which are accessed 
as a market participant.  Citi’s internal dark pools, Citi 
Match and Citi Cross are an exception, and therefore Citi 
can access a wide array of liquidity sources, both internal 
and external.  Citi ranks all the venues they access on a  
monthly basis officially, and weekly on an unofficial basis 
in order to keep on top of where the best prices are 
available, based on factors such as speed, latency, toxicity, 

and “uniqueness.”  Citi’s only criteria when choosing a 
venue is achieving best execution for their clients, and 
they do not rank pools based on benefits received such as 
rebates or quota levels.   
 
Citi provides their transition management clients with full 
transparency at every step of the process. They provide 
time stamps for every execution, full revenue disclosure, 
and line-by-line crossing data on both a pre and post trade 
basis. Once trades are executed, Citi provides detailed post 
trade reporting based on the implementation shortfall 
methodology which captures every dollar of cost, which is 
then compared directly back to their pre trade estimates.  
 
During the entire course of a transition management 
engagement, Citi assures fiduciary coverage as all aspects 
of the transition are kept in house.  
 
Citi utilizes a proprietary Transition Management System 
that was built from the ground up in 2008 which is 
consistently upgraded and improved. This platform is used 
by uploading legacy and target portfolios into the system, 
querying multiple data providers to validate and price all 
securities, creating trade lists, reconciling positions versus 
custodial statements, and analyzing implementation costs 
in real time.  
 
Potential Concerns 
Dedicated transition team is smaller relative to some other 
providers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 



 
Transition Management Manager Evaluation 
Penserra 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: New York, NY 

Firm inception: 2007 

TM service 
inception: 

2010 

Ownership: Majority employee owned 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions): 

$2,570 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions) by 
client type: 

DB - $1,542 

E&F - $1,028 

Willing to act as 
fiduciary? 

Yes 

Agency and/or 
principal? 

Agency only 

Key personnel 
(years experience / 
years with TM unit) 

Keith Wilson (30/1) 

Sam Patel (20/2) 

Calvin Lee (18/2) 

Steve Lowden (19/4) 

Personnel 
dedicated 
exclusively to TM 

5 

Fees US Equity: 1 c/shr 

Non-US Developed Equity: 5 bps 

EM Equity: 8-12 bps 

 
Firm Background and History 
Penserra was founded in 2007 by George Madrigal, a 
former Barclays Global Investors Senior Portfolio Manager 
and Head of Transition Management. The privately held 
firm is comprised of Penserra Capital Management LLC, 

which offers transition management and ETF sub-advising 
services as a fiduciary, and Penserra Securities LLC., which 
offers execution services, analytics, banking, and research.  
 
The firm is headquartered in New York City with additional 
offices in San Francisco, Chicago, and Los Angeles. The 
firm’s team members have participated in transition 
management engagements with corporate defined 
benefit/contribution plans, public pension plans, 
foundations, endowments, Taft-Hartley and 40 Act funds. 
 
Transition Management Services 
Overview 
Penserra’s transition management team is comprised of 
11 experienced industry professionals with previous 
experience working at Russell Investments, Barclays Global 
Investors, Knight Capital, and Susquehanna who focus 
entirely on transition management. In all instances, a 
transition manager, portfolio manager and risk manager 
will be involved. Based on the size and scope of the 
transition mandate, other members of the team will also 
provide support as needed. 
 
The transition manager acts as lead project manager for 
each transition, and is the primary point of contact serving 
as a liaison between the various parties (client, consultant, 
custodian, and investment managers). They map out and 
communicate the logistics surrounding any related 
redemptions, contributions, security transfers, wire 
movements and paperwork.  
 
The portfolio manager is responsible for analyzing and 
estimating the implicit/explicit costs, exposure shifts, 
trading horizons, and formulating cost-effective and risk-
controlled trading strategies. The portfolio manager 
provides pre- and post-trade reports and works with the 
trading desk to ensure trade are executed as planned.  



 

2 

There is also a dedicated risk manager on each transition 
engagement, responsible for independent evaluation of 
each transition event. During the planning phase, the risk 
manager will identify any potential risks that may arise 
over the course of the event, and monitor areas such as 
account set-up and maintenance, compliance issues, 
portfolio holdings, trading, settlement activity and 
portfolio distributions. 
 
Penserra contracts as fiduciaries in all transition 
engagements, and employ an agency-only execution 
model. This extends to providing realistic pre-trade 
estimates and trading assumptions, monitoring of 
executions, performing clear and concise post-trade 
performance attribution, and disclosing all sources of 
revenue. All gains resulting from the transition trade are 
automatically passed along to the client. Penserra offers 
analysis of the total expected transition management 
revenue prior to the transition and attest to their actual 
revenue in writing.  
 
As part of all transitions, Penserra provides clients with 
thorough reporting throughout every step of the process. 
Once the details of the event are known, they will 
distribute a comprehensive project plan comprised of a 
transition summary, goals and objectives, transition trade 
breakdown, proposed timeline, and key contacts. Prior to 
the start of the transition, a final pre-trade analysis is 
provided including an executive summary, portfolio 
transition characteristics, recommendations, estimated 
costs, risk profile, transaction type breakdown, and 
liquidity sources.  After the completion of the transition, a 
final post-trade report provides thorough analysis 
including actual vs. estimated costs, performance 
attribution, execution details, and actual trade details.  
 
Penserra selects execution venues (exchanges, algorithms, 
networks, dark pools and counterparties) that they expect 
will achieve the best results for clients. They monitor these 
venues real-time and review them regularly by the firm’s 
best execution committee. They will also seek to add or 
replace to the list in pursuit of best execution. 

They will make use of crossing venues to save 
implementation costs, but do so only in the context of 
managing the opportunity risks related to the pace of 
trading. By using quantitative trade information, they are 
able to make informed decisions about the trade-off 
between slower, lower cost, higher-risk execution 
opportunities versus faster, higher cost, lower-risk 
execution opportunities. Additionally, any crossing they do 
engage in is completely anonymous in the marketplace. 
 
Areas of Expertise / Differentiation 
Penserra believes that the firm’s intellectual capital and 
experience in transition management is a key area of 
differentiation for the firm. Their team has an average 
industry experience of over 20 years, and key personnel 
have all held previous transition management roles with 
firms such as Barclays Global Investors/BlackRock, Russell 
Investments, BNY Mellon Beta & Transition Management 
and Knight Transition Management.  
 
Penserra also views their systematic risk management 
framework as a source of competitive advantage. As an 
additional level of scrutiny, they utilize a dedicated risk 
manager to independently manage and evaluate 
transitions from an arm’s length. The risk manager’s 
responsibility is separate from the day-to-day operations 
performed by the transition manager, portfolio manager 
and trading desks, and all findings are brought to the 
attention of senior management and compliance. 
 
Finally, they view their execution capabilities as an area of 
expertise. They have a team of in-house global equity and 
fixed income trading professionals with deep market 
structure and trading strategy knowledge and experience, 
and specialize in program trading, active trading with high-
touch, single stock trading, and fixed income execution.  
 
Potential Concerns 
Smaller team and firm relative to other providers.  Have 
done less in transition volume relative to other providers. 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 



 
Transition Management Manager Evaluation 
Russell Investments 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: Seattle, WA 

Firm inception: 1936 

TM service 
inception: 

1992 

Ownership: Will be owned by TA Associates 
and Reverence Capital Partners 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions): 

$799,437 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions) by 
client type: 

DB - $540,036 

DC - $10,934 

E&F - $20,187 

Willing to act as 
fiduciary? 

Yes 

Agency and/or 
principal? 

Agency only 

Key personnel 
(years experience / 
years with TM unit) 

Steve Kirschner (22/10) 

Travis Bagley (21/15) 

Josh Houchin (10/5) 

Wayne Hollister (13/13) 

Scott Spinharney (16/16) 

Danny Sobba (21/19) 

Personnel 
dedicated 
exclusively to TM 

28 

Fees US Equity: 1-1.25 c/shr 

Non-US Equity: 4-6 c/shr 

EM Equity: 6-9 bps 

US Fixed Income: 1.5-6 bps 

Non-US Fixed Income: 2.5-8 bps 

 
Firm Background and History 
Founded in 1936, Russell Investments is headquartered in 
Seattle, WA and has over 350 investment products which 
focus on 5 capabilities: asset allocation, capital markets 
insights, factor exposures, manager research, and portfolio 
implementation. Russell Investments operates from U.S. 
offices in Seattle, WA, New York, NY, Chicago, IL, San 
Diego, CA, and Milwaukee WI. 
 
Russel Investments is currently owned by the London 
Stock Exchange Group, however in October 2015 it was 
announced that private equity firms TA Associates and 
Reverence Capital Partners will be acquiring Russell from 
the London Stock Exchange Group. It is expected that 
Russell will retain its operational independence following 
the close of the transaction in June 2016. 
 
As of December 31, 2015, Russell had approximately 1,800 
employees across 21 offices worldwide, and approximately 
$241.8bn in assets under management.  
 
Transition Management Services 
Overview 
Russell Implementation Services has been performing 
portfolio transitions for its parent company since 1980 and 
providing transition management services to external 
institutional clients since 1992.  
 
Russell has approximately 65 full-time employees that are 
involved in the day-to-day transition process (including 
trading, operations, quantitative research and currency 
management), 28 of which dedicate all of their time to 
transition management.  
 



 

2 

More than 90% of Russell’s transition clients contract with 
Russell as an investment adviser with fiduciary oversight, 
however, at a client's request they may contract as a 
broker-dealer. 
Russell believes that agency execution leads to superior 
execution quality and better portfolio performance, so, 
like traditional quantitative investment managers, Russell 
operates in an agency only capacity, actively trading and 
transacting through numerous execution outlets globally. 
Russell utilizes a trade execution approach that seeks out 
best execution in the market place by aggregating liquidity 
across many different execution venues – direct market 
access, crossing networks, algorithms, dealers, and other 
dark pools of liquidity.  
 
Russell does not commit capital to facilitate trading nor do 
they maintain proprietary trading accounts. As a result of 
this model, they are not motivated to use one method 
over the other. If a principal transaction is an effective 
option, they will work as the client’s agent in securing the 
most promising terms possible, using competition 
amongst principal providers to garner improved pricing 
and execution quality. Russell’s process seeks to remain 
flexible and unbiased, evaluating each approach with the 
clients’ best interests in mind. 
 
Areas of Expertise / Differentiation 
Russell believes that they are able to provide transition 
management clients with best execution and full 
transparency, while having an alignment of interests with 
their clients due to having no affiliation with 
counterparties. 
 
Russell has been executing transitions for over two 
decades and has built a very deep and experienced team 
of portfolio managers. Their ten most seasoned portfolio 
managers have more than 120 years of aggregate 
experience managing transitions at Russell, which enables 
them to manage large and complex plans, and anticipate 
issues that may affect performance.  
 

Because their team is focused exclusively on transition 
management, they have developed strong client service 
and project management capabilities.  
 
Russell has no proprietary trading desk that seeks to take 
advantage of transition trade flow or relationships with 
hedge funds, nor are they tied to any other internal 
trading desk to locate liquidity. Russell is able to take 
advantage of liquidity wherever it can be accessed at the 
most favorable execution available in the market at that 
point in time. 
 
Maximizing performance is Russell’s primary goal on 
transition engagements and their pure agency execution 
model has provides value and improved execution quality 
across all asset types for their clients. Their trading desk 
has been designed specifically to meet the needs of 
transition management, and their agency-only, non-
affiliated, multi-venue execution approach leverages 
technology to aggregate market liquidity, determine 
where the deepest pools of liquidity reside, and 
agnostically access these pools to best serve the needs of 
their clients.  
 
Russell’s only source of compensation for transition 
management services is fully disclosed, explicit brokerage 
charged on securities traded, and Russell is willing to sign a 
revenue attestation for all transition events performed. 
 
Potential Concerns 
Two ownership changes since 2014, including a pending 
acquisition by two private equity firms. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 



 
Transition Management Manager Evaluation 
State Street 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: Boston, MA 

Firm inception: 1792 

TM service 
inception: 

1979 

Ownership: Fully owned subsidiary of State 
Street Corporation (NYSE: 
“STT”) 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions): 

$338,503 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions) by 
client type: 

DB - $235,343 

DC - $66,826 

E&F - $36,334 

Willing to act as 
fiduciary? 

Yes 

Agency and/or 
principal? 

Agency only 

Key personnel 
(years experience / 
years with TM unit) 

 

Nicholas Bonn (36/24) 

Peter Weiner (28/15) 

Tom Bryant (28/19) 

Personnel 
dedicated 
exclusively to TM 

21 

Fees No set commission schedule; 
may on occasion agree to work 
on a fixed fee basis 

 
Firm Background and History 
State Street Bank and Trust Company is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of State Street Corporation, a publicly traded 
bank holding company.  

 
State Street works with corporations, private and public 
pension plans, endowments and foundations, sovereign 
wealth funds, and central banks and has capabilities 
spanning both active and passive investment strategies in 
traditional and alternative asset classes. The firm also 
provides services to institutional investors including 
currency, cash, and risk management solutions. As of 
12/31/2015, firm AUM was $2.2 trillion. 
 
Transition Management Services 
Overview 
State Street began providing transition services in 1979, 
originally by the passive management team of SSGA. In 
1994, State Street Bank and Trust Company formed a team 
to specifically focus on transition management, which has 
evolved into State Street’s global Portfolio Solutions 
Group, which offers efficient reallocation of investment 
portfolios through transition management, agency 
brokerage and currency management services. 
 
State Street has approximately 95 professionals that work 
on transitions (including regionally located trading 
personnel) with 21 of these professionals dedicated 
exclusively to transition management. 
 
State Street executes equity and fixed income trades 
through its affiliated broker-dealers who execute both 
equity and fixed income trades on an agency basis.  
 
State Street uses a variety of liquidity sources to ensure 
clients receive best execution. They seek to maximize 
liquidity and, where appropriate, operate across multiple 
venues and counterparties. State Street is often able to 
cross trade transition client trades and agency brokerage 
client trades. They may also execute transition client 
trades on BlockCross, their proprietary alternative trading 



 

2 

system and block trade crossing network. Additionally, 
State Street from time to time effects systematic re-
balancing of certain index or model-driven client accounts 
or collective funds for which it acts as the investment 
manager which may create opportunities for transition 
management accounts to either buy securities from, or sell 
securities to, a client account in connection with a 
transition. State Street does not charge any transaction-
based fees in connection with these types of trades.  
 
State Street uses external crossing networks to access 
liquidity and help reduce market impact. Types of external 
crossing networks used may include alternative trading 
systems, electronic communication networks, multilateral 
trading facilities, broker-sponsored venues and exchange-
sponsored matching systems. When using external 
crossing networks, State Street exposes only small 
portions of orders to avoid any information leakage. 
 
Open market trading is undertaken by a global team of 
transition traders who will execute manually or via 
algorithms across markets. State Street’s access to market 
leading technologies, combined with optimization tools 
enable their experienced market traders to find an 
effective liquidity venue and seek best execution. 
 
For illiquid equities orders that cannot be traded direct to 
exchange, State Street utilizes a panel of specialist brokers 
to provide the necessary liquidity, which may be the case 
for listed property, emerging market, and small cap trades, 
given the concentrated nature of their liquidity. The 
majority of equity market trading, however, takes place 
direct to exchange. 
 
Areas of Expertise / Differentiation 
State Street believes that their transition management 
process provides a number of competitive advantages 
over other providers in the space. Their internal liquidity 
pool and multi-broker trading approach for illiquid assets 
allows them to minimize costs, and their internal liquidity 

pool is a significant factor in the reduction of spreads, 
market impact and timing cost.  
 
State Street has transition management experience and 
capabilities across a wide range of global markets and 
instrument types, and has invested in technology, 
personnel and exchange memberships which help 
eliminate frictional costs when accessing global markets. 
They believe this has created a robust global agency 
trading platform designed to meet the requirements of 
complex transitions.   
 
State Street also believes that there are very few types of 
transitions that they have not already executed for their 
clients, as they have had a dedicated and independent 
transition management team for over 20 years. 
 
The vast operational and technological resources of State 
Street, including their specialist portfolio solutions 
operations team, ensures that all operational aspects are 
efficiently managed in order to reduce the overall risk 
inherent with transition events. Additionally, they have a 
proprietary accounting and analytics platform (“ePAM”) 
that allows for the straight through communication of 
trades and autoreconciliations with custodians via SWIFT. 
 
State Street has also developed a full suite of customizable 
client reporting which provides detailed analysis of each 
event, before, during and after completion.  
 
Potential Concerns 
According to an April 5th, 2016 press release1 by the U.S. 
Attorney’s Office, two former State Street executives 
within the transition management business “have been 
charged with engaging in a scheme to defraud at least six 
of the bank’s clients through secret commissions applied 
to billions of dollars of securities trades”. Further details 
regarding this situation are pending the ongoing 
investigation. 
 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results 

1 Source: https://www.justice.gov/usao-ma/pr/former-senior-executives-global-financial-services-company-charged-scheme-defraud-clients. 



 
Transition Management Manager Evaluation 
Vertas 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: Baltimore, MD 

Firm inception: 2006 (Global Transition 
Solutions) 

TM service 
inception: 

2006 

Ownership: Fully owned subsidiary of 
Percival Financial Partners 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions): 

$23,430 

MV of assets 
transitioned in 
2014 (millions) by 
client type: 

Predominantly DB 

Willing to act as 
fiduciary? 

Yes 

Agency and/or 
principal? 

Both (all trading outsourced to 
ATM Cowen) 

Key personnel Steve Malinowski 

Peter Romanelli  

David Bergman  

Kenneth Taylor, Sr.  

Personnel 
dedicated 
exclusively to TM 

8 

Fees US Equity: 1 c/shr 

Other Asset Classes 3 c/shr 

Fee structure negotiable 

 
Firm Background and History 
With headquarters in Baltimore and professionals based in 
Philadelphia, New York, California, Michigan, and Florida, 

Vertas is an independent brokerage and transition 
management consulting firm specializing in minimizing the 
costs and risks of brokerage events for institutional 
investors.  
 
Vertas was formed as an independent unit of Percival 
Financial Partners in February, 2014, however the Vertas 
team has been working together managing transition 
events since 2006 and the trade administration team 
managed transition events for almost a decade prior to 
that. Prior to the formation of Vertas, the team performed 
transition management events as Global Transition 
Solutions, later known as GTS Advisors, and in February 
2014, the team joined Percival. 
  
Vertas has eight individuals fully dedicated to transition 
management, however this number does not include the 
22 available portfolio traders at ATM Cowen (outsourced 
trading provider) or the six Cowen portfolio traders 
dedicated to Vertas.  
 
Vertas is a fully owned subsidiary of Percival Financial 
Partners, which is owned 100% by Kenneth Taylor, Sr., the 
President/CEO/Chief Compliance Officer of Percival.   
 
Transition Management Services 
Overview 
The transition management team at Vertas is broken up 
into teams consisting of client consulting, trade 
administration, analytics/trade oversight, and sales/client 
relations.  Their philosophy is to separate advice and 
administration from trade execution in order to eliminate 
conflicts of interest, use actual execution data to quantify 
broker and venue performance, utilize real time trade data 
and a proprietary “liquidity scorecard” to agnostically 
route orders to more than forty-five execution venues 



 

2 

based on the characteristics of each assignment, monitor 
trades on a real time basis and report performance. 
 
Vertas’ approach to oversight is based upon a number of 
philosophical ideas which they fully integrate into their 
process, including that pre-trade reports should be much 
more than a cost estimate, no single approach, broker, or 
venue is best suited for every transaction, broker/venue 
selection decisions require a combination of historical and 
real time quantitative data, independent, real-time trade 
oversight improves performance, and independent, third-
party trade cost analysis is required for legitimate 
performance attribution. 
 
Vertas acts as a fiduciary in overseeing and managing all 
transition events under whichever fiduciary standard the 
client wants them to be governed by (i.e., ERISA). 
However, it is important to note that under the Vertas 
model, all trading is outsourced to ATM Cowen, an 
independent division of Cowen & Co. ATM Cowen utilizes 
a venue-neutral order routing process that uses a liquidity 
scorecard to execute client trades wherever liquidity for a 
specific security may exist. 
 
Under the outsourcing arrangement, ATM Cowen can act 
as an agent or principal, whichever is likely to yield the 
best results for the client. Vertas has no affiliation with 
ATM Cowen beyond their arm’s length relationship as the 
outsourced execution provider. The arrangement between 
Vertas and ATM Cowen is set up such that Cowen earns 
greater revenues by attaining better trade 
performance. Vertas independently performs post trade 
analytics in-house which they confirm through three 
separate sources in order to monitor and validate the 
performance of ATM Cowen. 
 
At the end of each transition event, a complete order 
routing table and details on the trading capacity and 
percentage of execution in each venue is provided to the 
client as part of the post trade process.   
 
Areas of Expertise / Differentiation 

Vertas believes that a key differentiator between them 
and other transition management providers is their 
independence. Because they are an independent 
brokerage and transition management consulting firm, 
they are not tied to any execution venues.  
 
Additionally, the dedicated transition team focuses solely 
on providing transition services. The core team has been 
working together continuously for over 7 years. 
 
Because Vertas separates advice and administration from 
trade execution, clients are able to consult with them well 
in advance of brokerage events knowing that their trades 
will not be subject to information leakage.   
 
Vertas manages the entire operational process eliminating 
administrative burden, and acts as a fiduciary at all stages 
of the transition.  
 
Their independent pre-trade analysis of the transition 
event provides clients with a fully transparent estimate of 
all potential costs, and their post trade reporting includes 
a venue by venue analysis of where orders were routed as 
well as a multiple benchmark analysis. 
 
In an effort to ensure their clients have access to optimal 
liquidity, Vertas continuously performs broker and venue 
research, and also provides transaction cost analysis 
services provided at no additional charge. 
 
Potential Concerns 
Trading is an outsourced function. 
 
Smaller team and volume of transitions relative to other 
service providers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 



Pre-trade analyses

March 24, 2016
CCCERA 34



Verus for Contra Costa County 

Global Equity Rebalance 

FOR PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS / QUALIFIED INVESTORS ONLY 

Date Prepared: May 11, 2016 

A pre-transition analysis from BlackRock for 



Contact Information Table of Contents

Managing Director, Global Head of Transition Management Executive Summary

Tel: 1 415 670 4337 Email: lachlan.french@blackrock.com

Strategy Summary

Vice President

Tel: 1 415 670 2854 Email: drew.pinson@blackrock.com Portfolio Activity

Analyst Summary of Total Cost

Tel:  1 415 670 6353 Email: ece.erdagoz@blackrock.com

Portfolio Structure

Managing Director, Global Head of Transition Management

Tel: 1 415 670 4337 Email: lachlan.french@blackrock.com Liquidity Analysis

Managing Director, Global Head of Transition Management Risk Analysis

Tel: 1 415 670 4337 Email: lachlan.french@blackrock.com

Conflicts

Managing Director, Global Head of Transition Management

Tel: 1 415 670 4337 Email: lachlan.french@blackrock.com Disclaimer

8

9

10

Verus for Contra Costa County

Lachlan French

Reporting Currency: USD

Lachlan French

11

Lachlan French

Drew Pinson, CFA

Ece Erdagoz

Lachlan French

5

6 -7

2 - 3

1

4

BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A. (“BTC”), a national banking association operating as a limited purpose trust company, manages the collective investment products and services discussed in this 
publication and provides fiduciary and custody services to various institutional investors. A collective investment fund is privately offered: prospectuses are not required. Strategies maintained by BTC are not 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other agency of the U.S. government, are not an obligation or deposit of, or guaranteed by, BTC or its affiliates. 
 
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A. (“BTC”) offers transition services to both its investment management clients and third party clients.  Such transition services usually include brokerage services 
through its wholly owned subsidiary, BlackRock Execution Services (“BES”), member FINRA.  BES receives commissions from the Client for trades that BES executes in the course of transitions services.  
BES itself purchases clearing or other brokerage services from third parties and/or affiliates with some or all of the commission that BES receives. 
 



Transition Structure

Page 1 of 11Verus for Contra Costa County

Executive Summary

BlackRock Transition Account 
$ 300 m 

Artisan 
 

$ 300 m 
 

Global Equities 

Jackson Square 
 

$ 200 m 
 

US Equities 

William Blair 
 

$ 100 m 
 

Non US equities 

Overview 
Verus Consulting has requested an analysis on behalf of Contra Costa County ('CCC') for a global equity rebalance.  The schematic for assets in motion is below. We have analyzed 
the costs and risks of the proposed restructuring and present the results of the analysis in the report that follows. Our analysis is based on legacy and target asset lists provided by 
Verus. 
 
Overlap 
We expect the total overlap between the legacy and aggregate target portfolios to be approximately $45 million, or 15% of the legacy value. These assets will be set aside and not 
traded.   
 
Liquidity and Trading Horizon 
The legacy portfolio is more liquidity constrained than the aggregate target portfolio and will drive the trading horizon. The mean percent of average daily volume is 17.5% and 2.4% 
for the legacy and target portfolios, respectively. The most challenging trades are listed on page 8. 
 
We expect to complete 75% - 80% of the transition rebalance on the first trading day and over 95% after day 3. A small amount of trading may require up to 6 days to complete while 
minimizing market impact costs. 
 
BlackRock Objectives 
BlackRock will employ the following strategies to minimize risks and costs over the course of the transition:  
1) Structure a multi-tranche trade to keep the portfolio with the correct exposures throughout the transition period  
2) Source liquidity from a wide variety of counterparties via a competitive bidding process to minimize trading costs 
3) Provide full project management support throughout the implementation timeframe  
 
Key Considerations 
The largest risks and potential costs for this event stem from the regional/country misweights and the concentrated legacy portfolio with a number of large and illiquid positions. See 
the following pages for BlackRock's plan to address these risks and potential costs in the context of our objectives. 



Addressing Key Transition Risks

Verus for Contra Costa County Page 2 of 11

Strategy Summary

The largest risks to this transition are: 
1) Stock specific risks from the concentrated legacy portfolio 
2) Country and regional shifts that need to be managed around the global trading clock. Specifically, the current portfolio is 12% underweight 
North American equities, 4% overweight to developed Asia ex Japan, 4% overweight Central/South American equities, and 4% overweight cash.  
 
BlackRock will implement the following strategies during the course of trading to reduce risk: 
  
Trade Sequencing 
BlackRock will divide the trade into multiple tranches based on liquidity and risk characteristics. The goal is to isolate and neutralize risk through 
trade sequencing to the extent possible. 

 
 Currency Hedging: We will execute currency trades at the inception of the transition in order to reduce currency risk and to hold the 

appropriate currencies for equity settlements. This will require trading approximately $50M of currencies. The largest currency trades will 
be selling developed Asian and emerging markets currencies to buy USD and EUR. BlackRock does not earn revenue from currency 
trading activity. 
 

 Spend cash: The legacy portfolio is overweight approximately $10M of cash, which will be spent as soon as practical on liquid securities  
 

 Correct regional misweights: BlackRock will aim to correct country/regional misweights on the first day of the transition. The largest shift will 
be selling developed Asian assets to fund North American purchases 
 

 Maintain market exposure: after cash has been spent, and in line-with regional/country misweight corrections, we will trade dollar neutral by 
executing sells and buys in tandem. Our global trading desks will manage this locally around the global trading clock, beginning in Asian 
market hours, moving through Europe, and ending in North America 
 

Illiquid Positions 
There are several positions in the Artisan portfolio that have significant liquidity challenges. We expect approximately 15 names to require 
multiple days to trade in order to minimize market impact costs. In order to maintain appropriate market exposure, BlackRock will hold back an 
equal value of liquid target names to purchase at the same point as the illiquid are sold. The buys that will be held back will have similar risk 
characteristics in order to dampen price divergences. For example, we may pair an illiquid energy company with a basket of liquid buys that are 
also in the energy sector. BlackRock uses proprietary technology to scientifically develop pairs that minimize exposure risk. 
 
This strategy reduces exposure risk while BlackRock traders take their time to source optimal liquidity for the less liquid names. 

 
Information Leakage 
BlackRock utilizes its agency broker 'BlackRock Execution Services' (BES) to act as an interface to the market for sourcing liquidity and 
protecting confidentiality.  BlackRock's strategy is to source quotes selectively from multiple counterparties to achieve best execution.  
 
Hedging Note 
BlackRock considered implementing a futures hedge to correct regional misweights at the inception of the rebalance. After a cost/benefit 
analysis, we do not recommend this approach for this event. An optimal futures hedge would only reduce risk from 4.24% to 4.19%.  
 



Costs Minimization

Full Service Project Management

Strategy Summary (cont'd)

Verus for Contra Costa County Page 3 of 11

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The rebalance will require almost $480M of market trading and presents several large and illiquid. BlackRock will use the full scale of its equity trading 
desk to gain best execution. 
 
Liquidity Sourcing 
BlackRock manages over $4 trillion in assets globally.  We are a tier 1 counterparty doing business with over 100 different brokers.  BlackRock 
maintains a global trading presence with dedicated trading teams in San Francisco, New York/Princeton, London, and Hong Kong.  BlackRock transition 
team utilizes the greater BlackRock trading platform in executing our transitions.  Each transition client always receives the follow: 
  
 All transactions executed as fiduciary and agent for our clients 
 Principals of best executions applied to every trade we execute 
 Unparalleled access to liquidity and low transaction costs due to our size and scale 
 100% Transparent pricing, no mark ups applied to spreads or yields on assets 
 Trades are routed to local trading hubs to be executed by local specialists real-time 
 

Equity Trading 
 BlackRock uses a pure agency open-architecture platform with direct and local market access to all key markets 
 The range of available brokers and algorithms allow efficient routing of trades to the best counterparty for each region, market, equity type (large 

cap / small cap) 
 Our Trading Research Group provides a scientific structure to determine the best approach for each scenario 
 Approximately 40,000 Indications of interest (IOIs) are received daily, which help to trade less liquid positions cost effectively 

 

Trading Analytics & Research (TAR) 
 The team maintains the TAR database, which provides the data that drives our trading costs models, our multi-period optimizer (MPO), principal 

bid model 
 TAR makes it possible to dynamically extract the performance of each counterparty by asset class, region, market selection and name. This 

information is used to execute trades with the strongest counterparties in each sub asset class. 

 

BlackRock act as the central point of contact for the transition and will coordinate with all relevant parties on all aspects of the transition. A few key 
considerations for this event are below:  
  
 Timeline: BlackRock will work with all parties to develop a timeline that meets CCC's timing objectives within key stakeholders' constraints 

 
 Asset Transfers:  We will coordinate funding of the target manager and ensure timely settlement 

 
 Custodian Operational:  BlackRock has existing relationships with all major custodians and has direct access to multiple service centers to 

ensure timely settlement.  We would expect that all communication with your custodian will be via SWIFT. We also use SWIFT for daily cash 
and securities reconciliation processes 



Post-Overlap Trading Activity

Open Market Trade

External Cross

Trading Value

Total percentage shown excludes overlapping assets and cash.

64,937,538 13.5

479,838,510 100.0

Verus for Contra Costa County Page 4 of 11

Trade Value Total (%)

414,900,971 86.5

Portfolio Activity

Open Market 
Trade 
69.2% 

External Cross 
10.8% 

Trading 
80.0% 

Overlap 
14.8% 

Cash 
5.2% 

Legacy Value 
$300,000,000 

Target Value 
$300,000,000 

Overlap  
$44,535,555 

Equity  
Buy Trade 

$245,230,576 

Open Market Trade 
$208,445,989 

External Cross 
$36,784,586 

Equity  
Sell Trade 

$234,607,934 

External Cross 
$28,152,952 

Open Market Trade 
$206,454,982 

Transition from legacy to target portfolios 

Portfolio Activity Breakdown 

Cash 
$20,856,512 

Cash 
$10,233,870 



Estimated Transition Cost

Commission

Tax

Spread

Market Impact

Total Transaction Costs

Implementation Shortfall Estimate

Opportunity Risk (+/-)

Implementation Shortfall - lower cost estimate (1 σ)

Implementation Shortfall - higher cost estimate (1 σ)

Implementation Shortfall - lower cost estimate (2 σ)

Implementation Shortfall - higher cost estimate (2 σ)

(0.33)

Total Cost % of Legacy Portfolio Value % of Traded Value

951,878 0.32 0.20

299,848 0.10 0.06

(141,431) (71,700) (213,131) (0.07)

(0.14)(332,174) (319,855) (652,030) (0.22)

Verus for Contra Costa County

(44,017) (114,439)

Page 5 of 11

% of Traded Value

(69,099) (68,681) (137,780) (0.05)

1,251,726 0.42 0.26

(0.03)

(2,555,785) (0.85) (0.53)

(0.03)

(142,662) (0.05) (0.03)

(0.05)(158,456)

(0.04)

(1,603,907) (0.53)

(77,627)

Summary of Total Costs

Sell Buy Total Cost % of Legacy Portfolio Value

(65,035)

Forecast T-cost: -652,030 

Upper IS: 

Lower IS: 

-1,603,907 

299,848 

The above pre-trade cost estimate assumes that market returns are normally distributed. However, returns within equity markets are frequently observed to exhibit characteristics which do not fit a 
normal distribution and therefore outliers in IS may occur more often than expected by the theoretical normal distribution.  

-0.22 

-0.53 0.10 

-2.00 -1.50 -1.00 -0.50 0.00 0.50 1.00 1.50

Implementation Shortfall (%) 

Forecast T-cost

IS Distribution

Lower IS

Upper IS



US Equities

Canadian Equities

UK Equities

European ex UK Equities

Japanese Equities

Pacific Rim ex Japan Equities

Emerging Equities

Fixed Income

Cash

Market Value by Region

Legacy vs. Target Portfolio Misweights

-0.72%

4.09%

33,184,730

12,264,692

11.06%

5.64%

7.05%

6.35%

2.96%

Page 6 of 11Verus for Contra Costa County

33,228,658

5.15%

11.08%

2,908,270

21,153,876 8,889,184

-43,928

16,907,723 19,059,112 -2,151,389

6,901,27617,879,816

0.97%

Portfolio Structure - Region

67.47%

Legacy

57.22%

Target Gap

-10.25%-30,747,853

% Market ValueRegion  Market Value

15,454,440

Market Value

-3,830,972- 3,830,972

% Market Value % Market ValueMarket Value

171,654,633 202,402,487

-

6.12%18,362,711

3.66%

1.28%

-

5.96%

Total 100.00%300,000,000 300,000,000 -100.00%

10,978,5392.30%

-1.28%

-0.01%

-- - - - -

3.54%20,856,512 6.95% 10,233,870 3.41% 10,622,641

-50 m

0

50 m

100 m

150 m

200 m

250 m

US Equities Canadian Equities UK Equities European ex UK
Equities

Japanese Equities Pacific Rim ex Japan
Equities

Emerging Equities Cash Fixed Income

Legacy Target Gap



USD

EUR

JPY

GBP

CAD

HKD

CHF

AUD

KRW

TWD

SEK

BRL

ZAR

Other

Cash

Market Value by Currency

Legacy vs. Target Portfolio Misweights

-

-

2,908,270

-1.31%3,940,968

Total 100.00%300,000,000 300,000,000

3.41%

100.00%

3.54%

1.69%

0.68%

1.12%

0.44%

0.61%

0.42%

5,080,584

2,050,603

3,367,519

-

400,103

4.37%

Target

1,420,397 0.47%

1.29%

14,762,948 6,518,750

0.13%

20,856,512            

16,907,723

1.54%

1,310,344

1,819,986

1,250,3424,617,861

2.13%

2.17%

1.31%

-

5,571,344              

-

1.51%

10,233,870            

13,111,878            

Page 7 of 11Verus for Contra Costa County

-30,747,853

Market Value

171,654,633 202,402,487

15,454,440

% Market Value

Portfolio Structure - Equity Currency

- 3,830,972 -3,830,972

18,362,711

6.35%

Currency

19,059,112

6,390,928

16,202,297 24,806,331

1.86%

-0.47%

6.95%

Market Value

-8,604,034

5.64% -2,151,389 -0.72%

Gap

-10.25%

-2.87%

67.47%57.22%

5.40%

 Market Value% Market Value % Market Value

8.27%

Legacy

3,870,589

-

5.15%

1.28%

8,731,265 2.91% 1,980,554 0.66%

4,530,656

6.12%

-

2.75%4.92%

2.51%

4,130,553

10,622,641

1.38%

0.97%

-1.28%

8,244,198

7,540,534

6,750,711 2.25%

-1,420,397

-3,940,968

-50 m

0

50 m

100 m

150 m

200 m

250 m

USD EUR JPY GBP CAD HKD CHF AUD KRW TWD SEK BRL ZAR Other Cash

Legacy Target Gap



Equity Liquidity

% ADV Summary

Most Illiquid Securities

SEDOL Name Country Trade Value %ADV

B84XBP2 Infraestructura Energetica Nova Mexico

5972643 Eurofins Scientific France

6108179 Harmonic Drive Systems Inc Japan

B08L7X6 Ihs Inc Class A United States

B7FQV64 Raia Drogasil Sa Brazil

BY9D0Y1 Direct Line Insurance Plc United Kingdom

B1XFTL2 Hexagon B Sweden

BN7PJF6 Markit Ltd United States

B60QWJ2 James Hardie Industries Cdi Plc Australia

BQV0SV7 Zalando Se Germany

BGLP232 Moncler Italy

B4YVF56 Brenntag Ag Germany

B144703 Liberty Interactive Qvc Group Corp United States

4595739 Genmab Denmark

3092725 Asos Plc United Kingdom

8,780,872 17.8

(8,251,168) 16.4

Liquidity Analysis

Page 8 of 11Verus for Contra Costa County

(6,660,975)

(4,860,710) 67.7

(5,060,652)

(1,770,245)

(14,642,188)

(4,740,699)

55.3

52.4

39.1

33.7

13.3

(3,570,524) 23.4

(2,620,305) 21.0

32.6

29.3

27.8

(6,390,928)

(4,530,656)

(8,491,236)

(7,171,037)

27.3

(4,020,515) 27.2

0

50

100

150

200

250

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

0 to 10 10 to 20 20 to 30 30 to 40 40 to 50 50 to 60 60 to 70 70 to 80 80 to 90 90 to 100 100 +

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
S

to
c
k
s
 

%
 T

ra
d
e
d
 V

a
lu

e
 

Sell Buy Number of Stocks



The predicted tracking error (PTE) of the legacy portfolio relative to the target portfolio is expected to be approximately 4.24% on an annualized basis.

Exposure Risk Operational Table

Risk Factor Contribution to Tracking Error

Sector No. of Names

Idiosyncratic No. of Currencies

Style

FX

Country

Total

Exposure Shift

Net Trading by Sector

Daily Portfolio Risk

Daily Active Return vs. Daily Tracking Error Estimate

30 7%

Risk Analysis

88%

3 1%

10 2%

Buy Sell

(bps) (%)

424 100%

211

Page 9 of 11Verus for Contra Costa County

371

4710 2%

20 12

-25 m

-20 m

-15 m

-10 m

-5 m

0

5 m

10 m

15 m

20 m

25 m

30 m

Consumer
Discretionary

Consumer Staples Energy Financials Health Care Industrials Information
Technology

Materials Telecommunication
Services

Utilities

-2.00

-1.00

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

1-Nov-15 21-Nov-15 11-Dec-15 31-Dec-15 20-Jan-16 9-Feb-16 29-Feb-16 20-Mar-16 9-Apr-16 29-Apr-16

Daily Active Return Upper Bound (1 σ) Lower Bound (1 σ) 



Transition Transparency Tool

Do you earn revenue from internal crossing? NO

Conflicts of Interest

BlackRock U.S. Transitions

Do you earn revenue by trading foreign exchange? NO

Do you earn revenue by acting in a principal capacity? NO

Do you receive revenue from an affiliate who acts in a principal capacity? NO

Verus for Contra Costa County Page 10 of 11

Do you earn revenue from order-flow payment, or participate in soft-dollar arrangements? NO

TOTAL HIDDEN REVENUE $0

Examining  the True Cost of a Transition 

Transparency is a very important part of evaluating your transition manager.  BlackRock created five straightforward questions to help 
identify and quantify the hidden costs in a transition. These costs represent a conflict of interest between the client and transition 
manager. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BlackRock Transition Management earns revenue solely from commissions and fees fully disclosed to clients. 

BlackRock‘s Fiduciary Responsibility: 

  No  “for-profit” affiliate for crossing 

  No  “for-profit” affiliate for foreign exchange 

  No  charge for foreign exchange executions 

 

 



Disclaimer

Page 11 of 11Verus for Contra Costa County

 
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A. (“BTC”) offers transition services to both its investment management clients and third party clients. Such transition 
services usually include brokerage services through its wholly owned subsidiary, BlackRock Execution Services (“BES”), member FINRA. BES receives commissions 
from the Client for trades that BES executes in the course of transitions services. BES itself purchases clearing or other brokerage services from third parties and/or 
affiliates with some or all of the commission that BES receives. 
 
The information contained herein, together with the performance results presented, is proprietary in nature and has been provided to you on a confidential basis, and 
may not be reproduced, copied or distributed without the prior consent of BTC. 
 
Past or estimated performance is no guarantee of future results. Actual results may differ depending on the size of the account, investment restrictions, transaction 
costs and expenses, when the account is opened, and other factors. Pre-trade analysis and other estimates contained in this document are merely estimates, and 
should not be relied on by investors. 
 
BTC does not provide investment advice regarding any security, manager or market. The information contained in this document is not intended to provide investment 
advice. BTC does not guarantee the suitability or potential value of any particular investment. 
 
Transition portfolios may be difficult to trade in adverse market conditions, and in the event of such market conditions, securities prices and volume can be expected 
to be quite volatile and transaction and market impact costs may be higher than anticipated. In addition, BTC’s use of certain strategies may be affected by 
government or regulatory restrictions. 
 
These materials are being provided for informational purposes only, and are not intended to constitute tax, legal or accounting advice. You should consult your own 
advisers on such matters. Additional information is available on request. Information contained herein is believed to be reliable but BTC does not warrant its accuracy 
or completeness. Information contained herein represents BTC’s own opinions. These materials are neither an offer to sell, nor a solicitation of any offer to buy, 
shares in any fund. 
 
Certain information contained in this document constitutes “forward-looking statements,” which can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as 
“may”, “will”, “should”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “target”, “project”, “estimate”,“intend”, “continue” or “believe” or the negatives thereof or other variations thereon or 
comparable terminology. Due to various risks and uncertainties, actual events or results or the actual performance of the Strategy may differ materially from those 
reflected or contemplated in such forward-looking statements. 



Global Markets 

Project Mock Bid | 11-May-2016 

Strictly Private and Confidential 

Global Equity Transition 

Pre-Trade Analysis prepared for CCCERA and Verus 

 

Citi Global Transition Management  



Executive Summary 

$300 million Global Equity Transition 
 

 In this transition, $300M in international equities will be reallocated from Artisan’s Global Equity fund into two new target portfolios for Jackson 

Square’s Domestic Equity Fund ($200M) and William Blair’s International Equity Fund ($100M). Of the legacy securities, $44.5M, or 15%, will transfer 

in-kind to the target side 

 The sell names pose the key challenge to both expected costs and risks: 

– They are five times less liquid than the buys (13.3% vs. 2.6% of average daily volume), thereby driving the transition’s overall completion schedule, 

and expected to incur 77% of total market impact (pages 6 and 8)  

– They are also heavily concentrated with the top 5 largest sells (HIS, REGN, ABT, ILMN, and APPL) accounting for 24% of the sell list value. This 

concentration exposes the transition’s performance more to idiosyncratic risks, as the chance for a stock specific driver to influence performance 

increases with a portfolio’s concentration (page 7). A factor model analysis (page 17) indicated that over 70% of the tracking risk is idiosyncratic and 

attributed to a handful of concentrated names 

 The annualized tracking error between the buys and sells is fairly stable, looking back through different observations periods: 3.16% over the past 

trading year, 3.22% over the past 6 months, 3.32% over the past 3 months. For the purposes of this analysis, we used the one year number. 

Underlying the tracking error between sells and buys are the following skews, which we would seek to close out early in the trade window: 

– Sector Risk: Prominent selling out of Industrials (-4% | $18M) and buying into Financials (+5% | $25M) 

– Geographic Risk: Large buy skew into the Americas/US (+6%) and moderate skew selling out of Asia Ex Japan (-2%) 

 We checked for earnings catalysts and macro catalysts through the beginning of June that might influence performance during the transition: 

– Earnings will peak on May 18th when 4 names (3.34% of the transition value) will be affected by announcements   

– In terms of macro events, all eyes are on the FOMC Minutes release on May 18th which may create uncertain market conditions and volatility (page 

16) 

 To address the risks and potential costs highlighted above, Citi would trade tactically over ~3 days along an optimized schedule designed to keep the 

fund invested while minimizing residual tracking risk and reducing the skews highlighted above. The bulk of trading (99.97% of transition value) would 

be executed by local Citi trading desks around the globe and 94.80% will self clear through Citi’s walls: 

2 

Total Forecast Cost = Central Point Estimate $847,158  +/- 1σ Tracking Risk of $1,094,151 



Executive Summary 
 

Blue Print 

 

Artisan Global Equity 

$300M 

3 

Jackson Square Domestic 

Equity 

$200M 

Transition Parameters

Project Code Name Mock Bid

Funds Under Transition

Target Trade Start TBD

Target Transition Conclude TBD

Target Hand-Over Date TBD

Securities Cash Total USD Incoming Securities Cash Total USD

277,853,675 20,862,968 298,716,643 Jackson Square Domestic Equity 193,592,572 4,203,847 197,796,419

1,283,357 1,283,357 Cash for Sirona Dental (Takeover) 0 2,203,581 2,203,581

William Blair International Equity 96,165,078 3,834,922 100,000,000

Total 277,853,675 22,146,325 300,000,000 Total 289,757,650 10,242,350 300,000,000

300,000,000

Outgoing

Artisan Global Equity

Cash for Green Mountain (Takeover)

William Blair Intl Equity 

$100M 



Portfolio Analysis 

Transaction Characteristics 

4 

$44.5M, or 15% of the legacy funds would move in-kind to the target side. Post in-kind trading will amount to $233M to sell and $245M to buy. 

Portfolios Legacy Target Combined

Total Value 300,000,000      300,000,000      600,000,000                    

Equity 277,853,675      289,757,650      567,611,325                    

Cash 22,146,325        10,242,350        32,388,675                      

In-Kind Cross Legacy Target Combined

44,534,603        44,534,603        89,069,206                      

Securities 13                      13                      

Shares 400,218             400,218             

Transition  Trade Sells Buys Combined

Post In-Kind Trade 233,319,072      245,223,047      478,542,119                    

Securities 46                      212                    258                                  

% Weight Top 5 Names 24.14% 20.34% 22.2%

Shares 8,345,968          9,469,383          17,815,351                      

Bid Ask (full, bps) 11.4                   6.1                     8.7                                   

1-Day Impact (bps) 12.5                   2.0                     7.1                                   

% Average Daily Volume (ADV) 13.26                 2.64                   7.82                                 

Transition Risk Sells Buys Combined

Post In-Kind Volatility

Annualized Volatility 16.00% 14.64% 3.16%

Daily Volatility / Tracking Cost 1.01% 0.92% 0.20%

Daily Value at Risk 2,351,635 2,261,529 952,592

Beta to MSCI AC World 1.04 1.05 0.03

USD

USD

USD

USD

Equity Value 233M 245M

45M
45M

22M 10M

0M

50M

100M

150M

200M

250M

300M

350M

Legacy Target

Value To Be Traded In-Kind Transfers Cash

Primary 

Exchange 

23%
Internal 

17%
Other / 

External 

69%

Split up of 479M value to be traded by execution 
venue



Transition Cost Estimate Value
 bps on 

Trade 

 bps on 

Fund 

 Contribution 

to Total Cost 

All Commissions 119,977          2.5 4.0 14%

Equity Commission 108,863          2.3 3.6 13%

FX Commission 11,113            0.2 0.4 1%

Stamp Duty & Fees 151,576          3.2 5.1 18%

Explicit Cost Total 271,553          5.7 9.1 32%

Equity Market Impact 339,298          7.1 11.3 40%

Bid-Ask Cost 207,927          4.3 6.9 25%

FX Restricted (Custodian) 28,381            0.6 0.9 3%

Implicit Cost Total 575,606          12.0 19.2 68%

Mean Transaction Estimate 847,158          17.7 28.2 100%

Tracking Risk Estimate 1,094,151       22.9 36.5

0.50 cents Domestic Equity 21,564 

4.0 bp Developed Equity 66,236 

8.0 bp EM Equity (18 bps for India) 21,064 

2.0 bp Freely Traded FX 11,113 

119,977 

Observation Annualized Vol

21 Days 3.29%

-5 18 41 63 Days 3.32%

126 Days 3.22%

252 Days 3.16%

Strategy

bps in cost on the Trade Value of the transition

Comm Rate by Asset Class Comm (USD)

+1σ
Favorable 

Market
Unfavorable 

Market-1σ Mean

Portfolio Analysis 

Transition Strategy & Costs 

5 

Citi would trade tactically over ~3 days along an 

optimized schedule designed to keep CCCERA’s 

fund invested, while minimizing residual tracking 

risk and the regional skews embedded in the 

transition 



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Liquidity Risk Analysis 

  

 
The % of average daily volume on the legacy side is 13.3% and on the target it is 2.6%.   

      

6 

Liquidity 

Buckets 

by % 

ADV

Sells USD % Buys USD % Net Value % Trade Cum. Value % Trade Impact
% Total 

Impact

0 - 1 10 30,303,022       13% 114 80,918,105   33% 50,615,083    11% 111,221,127  23% 29,242      5%

1 - 3 8 47,072,266       20% 83 121,365,106 49% 74,292,840    16% 168,437,372  35% 78,436      14%

3 - 5 7 43,391,183       19% 10 18,211,087   7% (25,180,096)  -5% 61,602,270    13% 69,010      13%

5 - 8 4 18,399,736       8% 3 9,223,229     4% (9,176,507)    -2% 27,622,965    6% 39,212      7%

8 - 10 1 3,693,098         2% 1 6,720,246     3% 3,027,148      1% 10,413,344    2% 12,473      2%

10 - 15 3 12,856,759       6% 0 -                0% (12,856,759)  -3% 12,856,759    3% 24,404      4%

15 - 20 3 20,294,895       9% 1 8,785,269     4% (11,509,626)  -2% 29,080,164    6% 36,193      7%

20 - 25 3 13,294,278       6% 0 -                0% (13,294,278)  -3% 13,294,278    3% 37,268      7%

25 - 30 2 11,025,125       5% 0 -                0% (11,025,125)  -2% 11,025,125    2% 57,405      10%

30 - 40 2 21,294,242       9% 0 -                0% (21,294,242)  -4% 21,294,242    4% 68,972      13%

40 - 50 1 1,760,231         1% 0 -                0% (1,760,231)    0% 1,760,231      0% 24,877      5%

50 - 60 0 -                    0% 0 -                0% -                0% -                0% -            0%

60 - 80 2 9,934,235         4% 0 -                0% (9,934,235)    -2% 9,934,235      2% 69,733      13%

80 - 100 0 -                    0% 0 -                0% -                0% -                0% -            0%

46          233,319,070     100% 212           245,223,042 100% 11,903,972 2% 478,542,112 100% 547,225        100%

478,542,112 478,542,112



Portfolio Analysis 
 

Concentration Risk   

 

Concentration risk is high for the sells and moderate for the buys. The top 5 biggest names to buy and 5 to sell comprise 22% of the trade value.  

     

     

  

     

     

      

7 

  

  

  

  

Top 5 Sells by Market Value Top 5 Buys by Market Value Average Ticket Size

Ticker USD % Sell Ticker USD % Buy Side # Names Avg Size (USD)

IHS US 14,645,867 6.3% CELG US 11,305,635 4.6% Sell 46 5,072,154            

REGN US 14,071,170 6.0% AGN US 11,161,699 4.6% Buy 212 1,156,712            

ABT US 9,547,320 4.1% QCOM US 9,629,750 3.9%

ILMN US 9,204,953 3.9% WBA US 8,973,125 3.7%

AAPL US 8,843,995 3.8% MSFT US 8,808,436 3.6%

56,313,305 24.1% 49,878,645 20.3%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

0 50 100 150 200 250

%
 C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 V
a

lu
e

%
 V

a
lu

e

# Names

Concentration Risk of Buys vs Sells

Sell %

Buy %

Cum Sell %

Cum Buy %



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Top Stocks by ADV & Relative Impact 

 

Below we show the top 10 most illiquid and impactful names to trade for the transition: 

8 

Top 10 Stocks by % of ADV

Name Weight Mkt Value ADV

% USD %

5972643 EUROFINS SCIENTIFIC ORD 1.06 5,070,361 13,732 S 73.2

B84XBP2 INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA NOV 1.02 4,863,874 1,264,685 S 72.5

6108179 HARMONIC DRIVE ORD 0.37 1,760,231 75,602 S 43.8

B08L7X6 IHS CL A ORD 3.06 14,645,867 120,156 S 36.3

BN7PJF6 MARKIT ORD 1.39 6,648,375 192,762 S 34.6

B3WH021 HERMES ORD 0.97 4,632,230 157,782 S 29.2

B60QWJ2 JAMES HARDIE INDUSTRIES CDI 1.34 6,392,895 440,510 S 28.9

B7FQV64 RAIA DROGASIL ORD 0.95 4,534,011 286,533 S 22.7

3092725 ASOS ORD 0.99 4,752,689 86,358 S 22.6

BQV0SV7 ZALANDO ORD 0.84 4,007,578 119,805 S 22.2

Top 10 Stocks by Relative Impact

Weight Mkt Value Relative

% USD Impact %

B08L7X6 IHS CL A ORD 3.06 14,645,867 120,156 S 7.7

B84XBP2 INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA NOV 1.02 4,863,874 1,264,685 S 7.6

B60QWJ2 JAMES HARDIE INDUSTRIES CDI 1.34 6,392,895 440,510 S 6.2

5972643 EUROFINS SCIENTIFIC ORD 1.06 5,070,361 13,732 S 5.2

BN7PJF6 MARKIT ORD 1.39 6,648,375 192,762 S 4.9

6108179 HARMONIC DRIVE ORD 0.37 1,760,231 75,602 S 4.5

BYV2325 S&P GLOBAL ORD 1.57 7,502,054 71,475 S 4.5

2730190 REGENERON PHARMACEUTICALS ORD 2.94 14,071,170 36,466 S 4.5

B3WH021 HERMES ORD 0.97 4,632,230 157,782 S 4.3

B7FQV64 RAIA DROGASIL ORD 0.95 4,534,011 286,533 S 3.0

Name B/S

ID

ID

B/S

Shares

Shares



Portfolio Analysis 
 

Sector Analysis    

 

The sector risk in this transition is high with skews selling out of Industrials (-4% | $18M) and buying into Financials (+5% | $25M). 

     

     

  

9 

Sectors Sells USD % Buys USD % Net Value % Trade Cum. Value
% 

Trade
Impact

% Total 

Impact

Consumer Discretionary 8 36,854,050   16% 44    44,980,900   18% 8,126,850        2% 81,834,950       17% 66,852        12%

Consumer Staples 5 16,629,216   7% 15    15,623,664   6% (1,005,552)       0% 32,252,880       7% 48,851        9%

Energy 2 5,004,484     2% 4      3,708,589     2% (1,295,895)       0% 8,713,073         2% 2,858          1%

Financials 4 26,628,795   11% 52    52,005,157   21% 25,376,362      5% 78,633,952       16% 93,584        17%

Health Care 5 46,134,769   20% 20    48,194,208   20% 2,059,439        0% 94,328,977       20% 95,454        17%

Industrials 5 26,987,585   12% 24    8,762,077     4% (18,225,508)     -4% 35,749,662       7% 80,506        15%

Information Technology 15 63,823,402   27% 34    65,083,921   27% 1,260,519        0% 128,907,323     27% 80,776        15%

Materials 1 6,392,895     3% 10    2,395,959     1% (3,996,936)       -1% 8,788,854         2% 35,142        6%

Telecommunication Services 0 -                0% 5      3,013,149     1% 3,013,149        1% 3,013,149         1% 1,055          0%

Utilities 1 4,863,874     2% 4      1,455,418     1% (3,408,456)       -1% 6,319,292         1% 42,148        8%

Unclassif ied 0 -                0% -  -                0% -                   0% -                    0% -              0%

46 233,319,070 100% 212  245,223,042 100% 11,903,972      2% 478,542,112     100% 547,225          100%

478,542,112    478,542,112     



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Market Capitalization Analysis 

   

 
The weighted average market cap for the sells is $70.B and $60.1B for the buys.   

     

  

10 

Capitalization Sells USD % Sells Buys USD % Buys Net Value % Trade Cum. Value % Trade Impact
% Total 

Impact

Nano Cap 0 -                0% 0 -                0% -                     0% -                   0% -              0%

Micro Cap 0 -                0% 0 -                0% -                     0% -                   0% -              0%

Small Cap 0 -                0% 3 1,426,909     1% 1,426,909           0% 1,426,909        0% 862             0%

Mid Cap 19 90,705,600   39% 79 32,425,772   13% (58,279,828)       -12% 123,131,372    26% 322,828      59%

Large Cap 19 101,511,894 44% 120 179,665,617 73% 78,153,723         16% 281,177,511    59% 203,175      37%

Mega Cap 8 41,101,576   18% 10 31,704,744   13% (9,396,832)         -2% 72,806,320      15% 20,360        4%

46 233,319,070 100% 212 245,223,042 100% 11,903,972         2% 478,542,112    100% 547,225          100%

478,542,112       478,542,112    

Capitalization

Nano Cap 0M 50M

Micro Cap 50M 300M

Small Cap 300M 2B

Mid Cap 2B 10B

Large Cap 10B 100B

Mega Cap 100B +

Range (USD)

0%

0%

0%

39%

44%

18%

0%

0%

1%

13%

73%

13%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Nano Cap

Micro Cap

Small Cap

Mid Cap

Large Cap

Mega Cap

% Value by Market Cap

% Buys

% Sells



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Country Risk Analysis 

   

 The country risk embedded in this restructuring is moderate though there is a notable skew buying into the United States (+$32M | 7%). 100% of the 

traded value will be executed by Citi local trading desks, and 95% of the traded value will self-clear within Citi's extensive global network.  

11 

Countries Sells USD % Sells Buys USD % Buys Net Value % Trade Cum. Value % Trade Impact
% Total 

Impact
Holidays

Hong Kong 3 13,998,250           6% 8        5,768,352             2% (8,229,898)               -2% 19,766,602 4% 23,969              4% No

Sweden 2 8,716,619             4% 6        1,978,964             1% (6,737,655)               -1% 10,695,583 2% 7,974                1% No

Denmark 1 8,240,965             4% 5        1,947,702             1% (6,293,263)               -1% 10,188,667 2% 9,782                2% 16-May-16

Australia 1 6,392,895             3% 4        1,304,114             1% (5,088,781)               -1% 7,697,009 2% 34,409              6% No

Mexico 1 4,863,874             2% 1        177,175                0% (4,686,699)               -1% 5,041,049 1% 41,588              8% No

Brazil 1 4,534,011             2% 2        407,019                0% (4,126,992)               -1% 4,941,030 1% 16,696              3% 26-May-16

Taiwan 1 4,632,230             2% 5        1,295,199             1% (3,337,031)               -1% 5,927,429 1% 24,489              4% No

UK 4 18,393,759           8% 29      15,430,746           6% (2,963,013)               -1% 33,824,505 7% 27,000              5% 30-May-16

Germany 2 6,632,774             3% 9        4,552,464             2% (2,080,310)               0% 11,185,238 2% 10,747              2% 16-May-16

South Korea 1 3,693,098             2% 3        1,632,423             1% (2,060,675)               0% 5,325,521 1% 9,025                2% No

Italy 1 3,555,568             2% 4        2,395,219             1% (1,160,349)               0% 5,950,787 1% 6,988                1% No

UAE 0 -                        0% 1        147,934                0% 147,934                   0% 147,934 0% 116                   0% No

Indonesia 0 -                        0% 1        205,721                0% 205,721                   0% 205,721 0% 127                   0% No

Portugal 0 -                        0% 2        434,875                0% 434,875                   0% 434,875 0% 163                   0% No

Norway 0 -                        0% 2        539,408                0% 539,408                   0% 539,408 0% 348                   0% 16-May-16

Ireland 0 -                        0% 2        569,469                0% 569,469                   0% 569,469 0% 763                   0% No

Singapore 0 -                        0% 2        1,056,798             0% 1,056,798                0% 1,056,798 0% 689                   0% No

Belgium 0 -                        0% 2        1,108,791             0% 1,108,791                0% 1,108,791 0% 356                   0% No

South Africa 0 -                        0% 3        1,424,690             1% 1,424,690                0% 1,424,690 0% 469                   0% No

India 0 -                        0% 5        1,473,995             1% 1,473,995                0% 1,473,995 0% 756                   0% No

Finland 0 -                        0% 3        1,880,726             1% 1,880,726                0% 1,880,726 0% 455                   0% No

Netherlands 0 -                        0% 3        1,962,672             1% 1,962,672                0% 1,962,672 0% 316                   0% No

Japan 5 16,378,494           7% 38      18,550,357           8% 2,171,863                0% 34,928,851 7% 59,103              11% No

France 1 5,070,361             2% 13      7,999,379             3% 2,929,018                1% 13,069,740 3% 29,794              5% No

Spain 0 -                        0% 6        2,949,491             1% 2,949,491                1% 2,949,491 1% 602                   0% No

Canada 0 -                        0% 8        3,832,351             2% 3,832,351                1% 3,832,351 1% 950                   0% 23-May-16

Switzerland 0 -                        0% 7        3,947,292             2% 3,947,292                1% 3,947,292 1% 2,104                0% 16-May-16

United States 22 128,216,172         55% 38      160,249,716         65% 32,033,544              7% 288,465,888 60% 237,447            43% 30-May-16

46 233,319,070         100% 212 245,223,042         100% 11,903,972              2% 478,542,112 100% 547,225                100%

478,542,112 478,542,112



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Regional Risk Analysis 

   

 
The regional risks embedded in this restructuring are high given the buy skew into the Americas (+65) and skew selling out of Asia Ex Japan (-2%). 

     

      

     

     

   

12 

Regions Sells USD

% 

Sells Buys USD

% 

Buys Net Value

% 

Trade Cum. Value

% 

Trade Impact

% Total 

Impact

Americas 24 137,614,057 59% 49   164,666,261 67% 27,052,204      6% 302,280,318     63% 296,682      54%

Asia Ex Japan 5 22,323,578   10% 24   11,432,488   5% (10,891,090)     -2% 33,756,066       7% 59,055        11%

EMEA 11 50,610,046   22% 97   49,269,822   20% (1,340,224)       0% 99,879,868       21% 97,976        18%

Japan 5 16,378,494   7% 38   18,550,357   8% 2,171,863        0% 34,928,851       7% 59,103        11%

Pacific 1 6,392,895     3% 4     1,304,114     1% (5,088,781)       -1% 7,697,009         2% 34,409        6%

46 233,319,070 100% 212 245,223,042 100% 11,903,972      2% 478,542,112     100% 547,225          100%

478,542,112    478,542,112     

selling out of Asia Ex Japan (-2%) and Pacific (-1%).

buying into Americas (6%)

59%

10%

22%

7%

3%

67%

5%

20%

8%

1%

6%

-2%

0%

0%

-1%

-10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Americas

Asia Ex Japan

EMEA

Japan

Pacific

% Value by Region

% Trade

% Buys

% Sells



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Foreign Exchange Analysis 

   

 

13 

 This transition will involve a net sell of 

$20M in foreign currencies versus the 

USD, of which $8M are in restricted 

currency sells  

 In order to minimize FX impact costs 

and risk, Citi would execute the freely 

traded currency trades using agency-

only algorithms. The trades would be 

executed in each region in line with the 

equity executions taking place there 

 Citi would provide full transparency 

around the orders, delivering post 

trade reporting which includes 

timestamps and the intra-dealer 

market at the time of every child fill 

 Note, restricted FX orders (red) cannot 

be dealt by a third party. As your 

transition manager, Citi would review 

the executions to ensure reasonable 

execution levels 

 

Currency Underlying Trade Legacy Target Net Trade

Code Country Status USD USD USD

Total 255,465,395 255,465,392 0 39,494

AUD Australia Free 6,392,895 1,304,114 -5,088,781 1,018 2.0

JPY Japan Free 16,378,494 18,550,357 2,171,863 434 2.0

HKD Hong Kong Free 13,998,250 5,768,352 -8,229,898 1,646 2.0

INR India Restricted 0 1,473,995 1,473,995 3,685 25.0

IDR Indonesia Restricted 0 205,721 205,721 514 25.0

SGD Singapore Free 0 1,056,798 1,056,798 211 2.0

KRW South Korea Restricted 3,693,098 1,632,423 -2,060,675 5,152 25.0

TWD Taiwan Restricted 4,632,230 1,295,199 -3,337,031 8,343 25.0

GBP Britain Free 18,393,759 15,430,746 -2,963,013 593 2.0

DKK Denmark Free 8,240,965 1,947,702 -6,293,263 1,259 2.0

EUR Eurozone Free 15,258,703 23,853,086 8,594,383 1,719 2.0

NOK Norway Free 0 539,408 539,408 108 2.0

ZAR South Africa Free 0 1,424,690 1,424,690 285 2.0

SEK Sweden Free 8,716,619 1,978,964 -6,737,655 1,348 2.0

CHF Switzerland Free 0 3,947,292 3,947,292 789 2.0

AED Dinar Restricted 0 147,934 147,934 370 25.0

BRL Brazil Restricted 4,534,011 407,019 -4,126,992 10,317 25.0

CAD Canada Free 0 3,832,351 3,832,351 766 2.0

MXN Mexico Free 4,863,874 177,175 -4,686,699 937 2.0

USD United States Free 150,362,497 170,492,066 20,129,569 0 0.0

66,918,442 39,494 5.9

Forecast Cost 

USD
bps

28,381 25.0

Total

Restricted Impact (Executed by Custodian)

Freely-Traded Comm (Executed by Citi) 55,566,094 11,113 2.0

11,352,348



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Commissions, Stamp Duty & Exchange Fees Analysis   

   

 
Stamp, duty, and fees comprise 7% of the mean cost estimate.  

14 

Countries Type Sells (USD) Buys (USD)
Comm Rate 

(bps)

Comm 

(USD)

Stamp Duty Rate Sells 

(bps)

Stamp Duty Rate 

Buys (bps)

Stamp Duty 

Total (USD)

United States US 128,216,172  160,249,716  0.5 ¢/share 21,564      0.218                             -                              2,795        

Australia DM 6,392,895      1,304,114      4.00                3,079        -                                 -                              -           

Hong Kong DM 13,998,250    5,768,352      4.00                7,907        10.77                             10.77                          21,289      

India EM -                 1,473,995      18.00              2,653        10.00                             10.00                          1,474        

Indonesia EM -                 205,721         8.00                165           15.10                             5.10                            105           

Japan DM 16,378,494    18,550,357    4.00                13,972      -                                 -                              -           

Singapore DM -                 1,056,798      4.00                423           3.25 (max SGD 600) 3.25 (max SGD 600) 343           

South Korea EM 3,693,098      1,632,423      8.00                4,260        30.00                             -                              11,079      

Taiwan EM 4,632,230      1,295,199      8.00                4,742        30.00                             -                              13,897      

Belgium DM -                 1,108,791      4.00                444           -                                 -                              -           

Denmark DM 8,240,965      1,947,702      4.00                4,075        -                                 -                              -           

Finland DM -                 1,880,726      4.00                752           -                                 -                              -           

France DM 5,070,361      7,999,379      4.00                5,228        -                                 20.00                          16,701      

Germany DM 6,632,774      4,552,464      4.00                4,474        -                                 -                              -           

Ireland DM -                 569,469         4.00                228           -                                 100.00                        5,695        

Italy DM 3,555,568      2,395,219      4.00                2,380        -                                 10.00                          2,395        

Netherlands DM -                 1,962,672      4.00                785           -                                 -                              -           

Norway DM -                 539,408         4.00                216           -                                 -                              -           

Portugal DM -                 434,875         4.00                174           -                                 -                              -           

South Africa EM -                 1,424,690      8.00                1,140        -                                 25.00                          3,562        

Spain DM -                 2,949,491      4.00                1,180        -                                 -                              -           

Sweden DM 8,716,619      1,978,964      4.00                4,278        -                                 -                              -           

Switzerland DM -                 3,947,292      4.00                1,579        -                                 -                              -           

United Arab Emirates EM -                 147,934         8.00                118           12.50                             12.50                          185           

United Kingdom DM 18,393,759    15,430,746    4.00                13,530      -                                 50.00                          70,451      

Brazil EM 4,534,011      407,019         8.00                3,953        3.25                               3.25                            1,606        

Canada DM -                 3,832,351      4.00                1,533        -                                 -                              -           

Mexico EM 4,863,874      177,175         8.00                4,033        -                                 -                              -           

233,319,070  245,223,042  108,863    151,576       



Catalyst Monitor  

 

Earnings Activity Monitor  

   

 
Earnings will peak on May 18th when 4 names (3.34% of the transition value) will be affected by announcements.    

15 

Exp. Report 

Date

# Names 

Reporting

% Transition 

Affected

16-May-16 1 0.15%

17-May-16 1 1.34%

18-May-16 4 3.34%

19-May-16 1 0.32%

20-May-16 2 0.24%

23-May-16 0 0.00%

24-May-16 1 0.81%

25-May-16 0 0.00%

26-May-16 1 0.14%

27-May-16 0 0.00%

30-May-16 0 0.00%

31-May-16 1 1.22%

1-Jun-16 1 0.08%

2-Jun-16 0 0.00%

3-Jun-16 0 0.00%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

0

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

1
6

-M
a
y
-1

6

1
7

-M
a
y
-1

6

1
8

-M
a
y
-1

6

1
9

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
0

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
1

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
2

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
3

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
4

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
5

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
6

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
7

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
8

-M
a
y
-1

6

2
9

-M
a
y
-1

6

3
0

-M
a
y
-1

6

3
1

-M
a
y
-1

6

1
-J

u
n
-1

6

2
-J

u
n
-1

6

3
-J

u
n
-1

6

Earnings Risk# Names Reporting

% Transition Affected



Catalyst Monitor 
 

International Economic Calendar – May 2016  

   

 

* Source: Citi US Equity Trading Strategy

  
16 

May-11 May-12 May-13

Japan flash Mar Leading Index CI Eurozone Mar Industrial Prod. SA MoM Japan Mar Tertiary Industry Index MoM

Japan flash Mar Coincident Index UK May BOE Meeting Germany final Apr CPI YoY

UK Mar Industrial Production MoM UK Bank of England Inflation Report Germany flash 1Q  GDP SA QoQ

UK Apr NIESR GDP Estimate US Apr Import Price Index MoM UK Mar Construction Output SA MoM

US Apr Monthly Budget Statement US Initial Jobless Claims Eurozone flash 1Q  GDP SA QoQ

Japan Mar BoP Current Account Balance US Bloomberg Consumer Comfort US Apr Retail Sales Advance MoM

Japan Buying Foreign Stocks & Bonds Japan Apr Money Stock M2 YoY US Apr PPI Final Demand MoM

Japan Foreign Buying Stocks & Bonds US Mar Business Inventories

**Japan Apr Eco Watchers Survey Current US flash May U. of Mich. Sentiment

May-16 May-17 May-18 May-19 May-20

Japan flash Apr Machine Tool Orders YoY Japan Mar Capacity Utilization MoM Eurozone final Apr CPI YoY Japan Mar All Ind. Activity Index MoM Germany Apr PPI MoM

US May Empire Manufacturing Japan final Mar Industrial Prod. MoM US MBA Mortgage Applications Japan final Apr Machine Tool Orders YoY Japan Apr Convenience Store Sales YoY

US Mar Net Long-term TIC Flows US U.S. April FOMC Minutes Eurozone Mar ECB Current Account SA US Apr Existing Home Sales

**Japan Apr Nationwide Dept Sales YoY Japan 1Q Housing Loans YoY Eurozone Mar Construction Output MoM

Japan Mar Machine Orders MoM Eurozone ECB Minutes

Japan Buying Foreign Bonds & Stocks US Apr Chicago Fed Nat Activity Index

Japan Foreign Buying Bonds & Stocks US Initial Jobless Claims

US May Philadelphia Fed Biz Outlook

US Bloomberg Consumer Comfort

US Apr Leading Index

May-23 May-24 May-25 May-26 May-27

Japan final Mar Leading Index CI Germany final 1Q  GDP SA QoQ Germany May IFO Business Climate UK flash 1Q  GDP QoQ US 1Q  GDP Annualized QoQ

Japan final Mar Coincident Index Germany May ZEW Survey Curr. Situation Eurozone May ZEW Survey Expectations US Initial Jobless Claims US 1Q  Core PCE QoQ

Germany flash May Markit/BME Mfg PMI Germany May ZEW Survey Expectations US Mar FHFA House Price Index MoM US flash Apr Durable Goods Orders US final May U. of Mich. Sentiment

Eurozone flash May Markit Mfg PMI US flash May Markit Services PMI US flash Apr Cap Goods Orders Nondef **Germany Apr Retail Sales MoM

Eurozone flash May Markit Services PMI US flash May Markit Composite PMI US Bloomberg Consumer Comfort **China Apr Leading Index

Eurozone flash May Markit Composite PMI Japan Apr PPI Services YoY US Apr Pending Home Sales MoM

US flash May Markit Manufacturing PMI Japan Buying Foreign Bonds & Stocks US May Kansas City Fed Manf. Activity

Japan flash May Nikkei PMI Mfg Japan Foreign Buying Bonds & Stocks Japan Apr Natl CPI YoY

China Apr Swift Global Payments CNY China Apr Industrial Profits YoY



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Ex-Ante Tracking Risk 

 

17 

 29% of ex-ante tracking risk (predicted risk) can be explained by factors such as Equity (Style, Industry). The remaining 71% of the ex-ante tracking 

risk are contributed from non-factor risks (please see the next page for breakdown).   

Source: Bloomberg LP 



Portfolio Analysis  

 

Ex-Ante Tracking Risk 

 

18 

Please see below the single names that are the non-factor risks of the model. 

Source: Bloomberg LP 



IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: Citigroup Inc. and its affiliates do not provide tax or legal advice. Any discussion of tax matters in these materials (i) is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used or relied upon, by

you for the purpose of avoiding any tax penalties and (ii) may have been written in connection with the "promotion or marketing" of any transaction contemplated hereby ("Transaction"). Accordingly, you should seek advice

based on your particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

In any instance where distribution of this communication is subject to the rules of the US Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC"), this communication constitutes an invitation to consider entering into a derivatives

transaction under U.S. CFTC Regulations §§ 1.71 and 23.605, where applicable, but is not a binding offer to buy/sell any financial instrument.

Any terms set forth herein are intended for discussion purposes only and are subject to the final terms as set forth in separate definitive written agreements. This presentation is not a commitment to lend, syndicate a financing, underwrite or

purchase securities, or commit capital nor does it obligate us to enter into such a commitment, nor are we acting as a fiduciary to you. By accepting this presentation, subject to applicable law or regulation, you agree to keep confidential the

information contained herein and the existence of and proposed terms for any Transaction.

Prior to entering into any Transaction, you should determine, without reliance upon us or our affiliates, the economic risks and merits (and independently determine that you are able to assume these risks) as well as the legal, tax and accounting

characterizations and consequences of any such Transaction. In this regard, by accepting this presentation, you acknowledge that (a) we are not in the business of providing (and you are not relying on us for) legal, tax or accounting advice, (b)

there may be legal, tax or accounting risks associated with any Transaction, (c) you should receive (and rely on) separate and qualified legal, tax and accounting advice and (d) you should apprise senior management in your organization as to

such legal, tax and accounting advice (and any risks associated with any Transaction) and our disclaimer as to these matters. By acceptance of these materials, you and we hereby agree that from the commencement of discussions with

respect to any Transaction, and notwithstanding any other provision in this presentation, we hereby confirm that no participant in any Transaction shall be limited from disclosing the U.S. tax treatment or U.S. tax structure of such Transaction.

We are required to obtain, verify and record certain information that identifies each entity that enters into a formal business relationship with us. We will ask for your complete name, street address, and taxpayer ID number. We may also

request corporate formation documents, or other forms of identification, to verify information provided.

Any prices or levels contained herein are preliminary and indicative only and do not represent bids or offers. These indications are provided solely for your information and consideration, are subject to change at any time without notice and are

not intended as a solicitation with respect to the purchase or sale of any instrument. The information contained in this presentation may include results of analyses from a quantitative model which represent potential future events that may or

may not be realized, and is not a complete analysis of every material fact representing any product. Any estimates included herein constitute our judgment as of the date hereof and are subject to change without any notice. We and/or our

affiliates may make a market in these instruments for our customers and for our own account. Accordingly, we may have a position in any such instrument at any time.

Although this material may contain publicly available information about Citi corporate bond research, fixed income strategy or economic and market analysis, Citi policy (i) prohibits employees from offering, directly or indirectly, a favorable or

negative research opinion or offering to change an opinion as consideration or inducement for the receipt of business or for compensation; and (ii) prohibits analysts from being compensated for specific recommendations or views contained in

research reports. So as to reduce the potential for conflicts of interest, as well as to reduce any appearance of conflicts of interest, Citi has enacted policies and procedures designed to limit communications between its investment banking and

research personnel to specifically prescribed circumstances.

[TRADEMARK SIGNOFF:  add the appropriate signoff for the relevant legal vehicle] 

© 2015 Citigroup Global Markets Inc.  Member SIPC.  All rights reserved. Citi and Citi and Arc Design are trademarks and service marks of Citigroup Inc. or its affiliates and are used and registered throughout the world. 

© 2015 Citibank, N.A.  All rights reserved.  Citi and Citi and Arc Design are trademarks and service marks of Citigroup Inc. or its affiliates and are used and registered throughout the world. 

© 2015 Citigroup Inc.  All rights reserved.  Citi and Citi and Arc Design are trademarks and service marks of Citigroup Inc. or its affiliates and are used and registered throughout the world. 

© 2015 Citigroup Global Markets Limited. Authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority. All rights reserved.  Citi and Citi and Arc Design are 

trademarks and service marks of Citigroup Inc. or its affiliates and are used and registered throughout the world. 

© 2015 Citibank, N.A. London. Authorised and regulated by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (USA) and authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority. Subject to regulation by the Financial Conduct Authority and limited 

regulation by the Prudential Regulation Authority. Details about the extent of our regulation by the Prudential Regulation Authority are available from us on request. All rights reserved.  Citi and Citi and Arc Design are trademarks and service 

marks of Citigroup Inc. or its affiliates and are used and registered throughout the world. 

© 2015 [Name of Legal Vehicle] [Name of regulatory body.]  All rights reserved.  Citi and Citi and Arc Design are trademarks and service marks of Citigroup Inc. or its affiliates and are used and registered throughout the world. 

Citi believes that sustainability is good business practice. We work closely with our clients, peer financial institutions, NGOs and other partners to finance solutions to climate change, develop industry standards, reduce our own environmental 

footprint, and engage with stakeholders to advance shared learning and solutions. Highlights of Citi's unique role in promoting sustainability include: (a) releasing in 2007 a Climate Change Position Statement, the first US financial institution to 

do so; (b) targeting $50 billion over 10 years to address global climate change: includes significant increases in investment and financing of renewable energy, clean technology, and other carbon-emission reduction activities; (c) committing to 

an absolute reduction in GHG emissions of all Citi owned and leased properties around the world by 10% by 2011; (d) purchasing more than 234,000 MWh of carbon neutral power for our operations over the last three years; (e) establishing in 

2008 the Carbon Principles; a framework for banks and their U.S. power clients to evaluate and address carbon risks in the financing of electric power projects; (f) producing equity research related to climate issues that helps to inform investors 

on risks and opportunities associated with the issue; and (g) engaging with a broad range of stakeholders on the issue of climate change to help advance understanding and solutions. 

Citi works with its clients in greenhouse gas intensive industries to evaluate emerging risks from climate change and, where appropriate, to mitigate those risks. 

efficiency, renewable energy and mitigation 



CLIENT NAME

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Global Equity Pre-Trade Analysis

May 11, 2016

TRUST | PRECISION | INNOVATION



    EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Penserra Transition Management LLC ("Penserra") is pleased to present the following pre-trade report to Contra Costa County Employees' 
Retirement Associaation ("CCCERA") and their consultant Verus (“Verus"). The report analyzes a restructuring of global equities between 
three (3) investment managers.

Specifically, the event involves a shift of approximately $300 million from a Artisan global equity strategy ("Legacy Portfol io") to fund 
approximately $200 million in a Jackson Square U.S. equity strategy and approximately $100 million in a William Blair interna tional equity 
strategy (collectively, the two target strategies referred to as "Target Portfolios"). Approximately $43.2 million of the Legacy Portfolio, or 
14%, is projected to overlap with theTarget Portfolios. 

All portfolios analyzed are based on actual holdings provided by Verus, and valued as of May 9, 2016 closing prices.

TRUST | PRECISION | INNOVATION

KEY ATTRIBUTES

 The total cost of the transition event is estimated at -$1,006,209 or about -33.5 BPS of the Legacy Portfolio's value.

 Using an implementation shortfall framework, our analysis shows a trade with a one standard deviation shortfall range of 
+/- 31.0 BPS around a central case trading cost estimate of -33.5 BPS. 

 Recent volatility levels, as measured by some of the market's more widely used volatility indices, have not only 
stabilized but moved slightly lower over the past 20 days having been higher in early March.  The performance between 
the Legacy Portfolio and Target Portfolios has been relatively in line with our standard factor model estimate over the 
same period.

ESTIMATED

COSTS AND

PERFORMANCE

PROPOSED

TRADE

STRATEGY

ADDITIONAL

CONSIDERATIONS

 The active risk (or tracking error) between the Legacy Portfolio and the Target Portfolios is measured to be 5.33% 

annualized, which equates to approximately +/- 31.0 basis points (BPS) over the projected trading period.  

 The extent to which we experience a deviation in price from the previous night's close to execution will drive the risk 
outcome. 

 All relatively less liquid securities are in the Artisan legacy portfolio with 9 names representing between 27% and 122% 
ADV.  We expect to complete 93% of trading on day 1 with potentially three days to complete the balance.

 We believe that managing risk is the best way to control costs and, ultimately, preserve capital. Using a combination of 
algorithms and trading techniques, we will create a strategy that identifies and addresses the largest contributors to risk.

 We evaluated futures based strategies to manage the exposure mismatches across regions but determined that trade 
scheduling around regional closings and openings is a more efficient solution.  We plan to hold approximately $19 million 
in liquid net sells in Asia Pacific until near the close and re-establish exposure shortly thereafter as EMEA markets open.

 With the remaining trade, we will execute in a dollar neutral fashion (purchase buy names in line as proceeds are raised 
from sells) through EMEA and Americas markets as we maximize crossing opportunities and source liquidity through 
various execution venues. 

 We propose to trade net currency at the Trade Date - 1 day (T-1) benchmark 4:00 London Fix to manage currency 
exposure risk.  Small true-up trades will be required once all underlying equity trading has been completed.

 Target portfolios include approximately $5 million in emerging markets securities that are non-transferable and hence 
cannot be purchased in the transition account.  We have included target cash in lieu for these securities as they will need 
to be purchased by the target managers.

 Additionally, we will be mindful of any upcoming corporate earnings (36 in total for the remainder of November) and 
decide on whether to trade before, through or around the announcement periods.

 Project Management - As the lead project manager, it will be our responsible to devise a clear and effective plan 

(with close oversight) for all relevant parties to follow.  

 Economic Calendar - We will monitor the economic news to be released around the anticipated trading period, 

and assess the impact individually.  Specific news to be provided once a timeline has been agreed to.

 Corporate Actions - There is only one (1) corporate actions to report through the end of May.

Page 2

Proprietary and Confidential  



INVESTMENT MANAGER SUMMARY

Managers Equity Value Cash Value Legacy Value Target Value Weight

Artisan 276,553,711         23,446,289          300,000,000          -                          100%

Jackson Square 192,474,606         4,246,962            -                         196,721,568       66%

William Blair 94,577,064           8,701,368            -                         103,278,432       34%

Total 300,000,000         300,000,000

Managers (aggregate) Equity Value Cash Value Legacy Value Target Value Weight

276,553,711 23,446,289          300,000,000          -                          100.00%

287,051,670 12,948,330          -                         300,000,000       100.00%

Total 300,000,000         300,000,000

Note - The above cash values include requested cash, cash in lieu (for non-transferrable securities) and a cash cushion to account for market volatility.

TRADE BREAKDOWN

Stocks Names Shares Value Avg. Price Inkind Value Trade Shares Trade Value

Legacy / Sell 47                     8,821,045             276,553,711        31.35                     43,197,589         8,419,545         233,356,122   

Target / Buy 208                   9,126,848             287,051,670        31.45                     43,197,589         8,725,849         243,854,081   

Total 255                  17,947,893          563,605,381        86,395,178         17,145,394       477,210,203   

Cash Value

Legacy / Sell 23,446,289      

Target / Buy 12,948,330      

Net 10,497,959      

EXPOSURE ANALYSIS

Region Legacy Target Inkind Sell Buy Net Buy/Sell

Pacific 6,390,533             (1,303,643)          -                             6,390,533           (1,303,643)        5,086,890        

Asia Pacific Ex Japan 23,304,036           (7,566,547)          932,354                 22,371,681         (6,634,193)        15,737,489     

Japan 16,913,069           (19,118,302)        531,758                 16,381,311         (18,586,544)      (2,205,233)      

Asia Pacific Subtotal 46,607,637           (27,988,491)        1,464,112              45,143,526         (26,524,379)      18,619,146     

EMEA Ex United Kingdom 31,768,738           (34,247,403)        932,678                 30,836,060         (33,314,725)      (2,478,666)      

United Kingdom 18,404,183           (15,792,793)        -                             18,404,183         (15,792,793)      2,611,390        

GDR -                            -                           -                             -                          -                         -                       

EMEA Subtotal 50,172,921           (50,040,197)        932,678                 49,240,243         (49,107,519)      132,724           
-                            -                           -                             -                          -                         

Americas Ex United States 9,437,647             (4,440,050)          -                             9,437,647           (4,440,050)        4,997,597        

United States 170,335,506         (204,582,932)      40,800,799            129,534,707       (163,782,133)    (34,247,426)    

Americas Subtotal 179,773,153        (209,022,982)      40,800,799            138,972,354      (168,222,183)    (29,249,829)    

Overall 276,553,711        (287,051,670)      43,197,589            233,356,122      (243,854,081)    (10,497,959)    

The table below summarizes the aggregate asset values of both the legacy and target managers evaluated for the proposed transition.  For 

managers that are retained but have their mandate notional reduced/increased, only the net change will be shown as the inkinds are 

assumed.

We highlight the net difference between the legacy and target exposures to frame the regional risk discussion.  Our convention is to view the 

sell program (Legacy portfolio less inkinds) as "Long" exposure while the buy program (Target portfolio less inkinds) is expressed as "Short" 

exposure.  Managing the exposure can significantly reduce active risk within the transition horizon, which in turn helps to manage costs and 

thus preserve asset value.  

Legacy Portfolio

Target Portfolios

Page 3

Proprietary and Confidential  



COST ESTIMATES

Commission Schedule Crossing Estimates by Exchange

U.S. (CPS) DEV (BPS) EM (BPS) Exchange Ext. Cross Open Market

0.85 5.0 10 U.S. 155,457,925     137,858,915   

World 38,656,503       145,422,082   

Trading Cost Item Mean Estimate Mean BPS Total (41%) 194,114,428     283,280,996   

Equity Commissions (139,340)               (4.6)                      

Equity Taxes & Fees (148,432)               (4.9)                      

Explicit Total (287,771)               (9.6)                      

Effective Equity Spread (237,085)               (7.9)                      

Equity Market Impact (481,353)               (16.0)                    

Implicit Total (718,438)               (23.9)                    

Total Estimated Costs (1,006,209)           (33.5)                   

Note:  Mean BPS based on the total notional value of the Legacy Portfolio.

The following graph represents the trade-off between the level of aggressiveness and impact (cost) with a given trade strategy.  In general, 

the more aggressive you are in executing a trade the larger its expected impact (cost) to the transition.  That said, a strategy on the top right 

side of the frontier would be utilized when seeking to achieve an immediate benchmark with minimal cost considerations.  Conversely, the 

bottom left side of the frontier would indicate utilizing a more cost-controlled approach with no set time constraints on achieving a 

benchmark.

Total trading cost estimates are comprised of explicit and implicit costs.  Explicit cost totals include measurable costs such as commissions, 

taxes and fees.  Implicit cost totals include spread and impact using statistical models that incorporate liquidity, observed bid/ask spreads, 

historical volatility and correlation matrices.  

 (18.0)

 (16.0)

 (14.0)

 (12.0)

 (10.0)

 (8.0)

 (6.0)

 (4.0)

 (2.0)

 -

Equity Commissions Equity Taxes & Fees Effective Equity Spread Equity Market Impact

B
P

S

Estimated Costs

(Average Contribution to Shortfall)

 -
 5.0

 10.0
 15.0
 20.0
 25.0
 30.0
 35.0
 40.0
 45.0
 50.0

V
er

y 
P

as
si

ve

P
as

si
ve

N
eu

tr
al

 1

N
eu

tr
al

 2

N
eu

tr
al

 3

A
gg

re
ss

iv
e

V
er

y 
A

gg
re

ss
iv

e

B
P

S

Levels

Ex-Ante Execution Impact Frontier

(Impact BPS at Varying Levels of Urgency)

Page 4

Proprietary and Confidential  



RISK ESTIMATES

Mean BPS

Total Estimated Costs (33.5)                  

Annual              

(%)

De-annualized 

(BPS) *

Risk Projections (effective range) 5.33                    +/- 31.0

* Assumes less than a day's worth of risk.

Lower Est. Upper Est. Lower BPS Upper BPS

Shortfall Boundary (68% Range) -1,934,871 -77,547 -64.5 -2.6

Shortfall Boundary (95% Range) -2,863,533 851,115 -95.5 28.4

RISK AND TREND ANALYSIS

+/- 33.6                            

Daily Active Risk

Because the legacy and target portfolios do not track each other perfectly, there is risk associated with the fact that during a transition 

horizon, prices of target securities we are buying may move at a different rate than prices of legacy securities we are selling.   We work to 

reduce this market related risk through optimized trading and an overall focus on exposure management.  Penserra estimates active risk 

between legacy and target using factor models.  This active risk, when applied to our transition horizon, is the framework for creating a 

confidence interval or range of likely shortfall outcomes around our central trading cost estimate. 

All markets experience unpredictable periods of volatility that are not effectively captured in model forecasts.  For this reason, Penserra 

analyzes the actual performance of portfolios over the previous 20 days.  We then compare and contrast these results with our models to 

better identify momentum trends and actual top/bottom contributors to overall risk when determining our final estimates.

-1σ +1σ

-2σ +2σ

-110.0 -80.0 -50.0 -20.0 10.0 40.0

Basis Points

Estimated Costs

-2.6 BPS-64.5 BPS

Mean -33.5 BPS

-1.50%

-1.00%

-0.50%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

Actual Daily Variance vs. Active Risk - Legacy vs. Target Portfolios

Page 5

Proprietary and Confidential  



LIQUIDITY PROFILE ANALYSIS

93%

ADV Range Sell Value Buy Value Sell Shares Buy Shares Sell Names Buy Names

0 to 5% 118,012,434    214,068,706         1,820,600            8,045,664              23                        189                    

5 to 10% 19,793,019      14,250,031           224,590               216,975                 4                          5                        

10 to 25% 38,321,758      15,535,344           2,514,062            463,210                 9                          3                        

25 to 50% 45,552,143      -                            2,473,335            -                             6                          -                         

50 to 100% 6,610,538        -                            1,373,100            -                             2                          -                         

100 to 250% 5,066,230        -                            13,858                 -                             1                          -                         

250 + -                        -                            -                           -                             -                          -                         

Total 233,356,122    243,854,081        8,419,545            8,725,849              45                       197                    

TOP 10 TRADES BY DESCENDING % ADV (SELL PROGRAM)

Name Sell Sell MV % ADV %WT to Legacy

Eurofins Scientific 14,633                  5,066,230            122.03                   1.69

Infraestructura Energetica N 1,297,800             4,848,997            82.54                     1.62

Harmonic Drive Systems Inc 75,300                  1,761,542            51.27                     0.59

Ihs Inc-Class A 119,900                14,642,188          42.55                     4.88

Raia Drogasil Sa 296,500                4,588,650            37.75                     1.53

Zalando Se 131,030                4,004,309            30.60                     1.33

Markit Ltd 193,300                6,649,520            30.43                     2.22

Direct Line Insurance Group 1,553,171             8,503,169            30.30                     2.83

Hexagon Ab-B Shs 186,828                7,164,307            27.19                     2.39

James Hardie Industries-Cdi 446,847                6,390,533            24.92                     2.13

TOP 10 TRADES BY DESCENDING % ADV (BUY PROGRAM)

Name Buy Buy MV % ADV %WT to Legacy

Kingspan Group Plc 8,210                    216,790               20.97                     0.07

Liberty Interactive Corp Q-A 332,500                8,784,650            18.13                     2.93

Novo-Nordisk A/S-Spons Adr 122,500                6,719,125            11.03                     2.24

Banca Generali Spa 14,719                  398,884               8.85                       0.13

Dentsply Sirona Inc 73,400                  4,442,168            6.24                       1.48

Hiscox Ltd 19,659                  263,404               5.21                       0.09

Crown Castle Intl Corp 96,200                  8,607,014            5.19                       2.87

Smurfit Kappa Group Plc 12,997                  353,340               5.03                       0.12

Techtronic Industries Co Ltd 129,500                493,715               4.98                       0.16

Equinix Inc 25,500                  8,696,520            4.77                       2.90

EMEA Ex United Kingdom

Americas Ex United States

Americas Ex United States

Japan

Pacific

EMEA Ex United Kingdom

United States

EMEA Ex United Kingdom

Region

United States

Asia Pacific Ex Japan

United States

United States

United Kingdom

Region

United Kingdom

United States

EMEA Ex United Kingdom

Estimated Completion Rate (Day 1):

United States

97%

United Kingdom

EMEA Ex United Kingdom

United States

 -

 50,000,000

 100,000,000

 150,000,000

 200,000,000

 250,000,000

0 to 5% 5 to 10% 10 to 25% 25 to 50% 50 to 100% 100 to 250% 250 +

Tradelist Liquidity Profile (Overall) 

Page 6

Proprietary and Confidential  



LIQUIDITY PROFILE

ASIA-PACIFIC
Bucket Sell Value Buy Value

0 to 5% 22,926,727   26,709,601           

5 to 10% 3,729,566     -                            

10 to 25% 16,725,691   -                            

25 to 50% -                     -                            

50 to 100% 1,761,542     -                            

100 to 250% -                     -                            

250+ -                     -                            

Total 45,143,526      26,709,601          

Europe/Middle East/Asia (EMEA)
Bucket Sell Value Buy Value

0 to 5% 190,380           47,875,100           

5 to 10% 2,715,781        1,015,628             

10 to 25% 21,596,067      216,790                

25 to 50% 19,671,785      -                            

50 to 100% -                        -                            

100 to 250% 5,066,230        -                            

250+ -                        -                            

Total 49,240,243      49,107,519          

AMERICAS
Bucket Sell Value Buy Value

0 to 5% 94,895,327      139,484,005         

5 to 10% 13,347,672      13,049,182           

10 to 25% -                        15,503,775           

25 to 50% 25,880,358      -                            

50 to 100% 4,848,997        -                            

100 to 250% -                        -                            

250+ -                        -                            

Total 138,972,354    168,036,962        

Tradelist Liquidity Profile (Americas)

Tradelist Liquidity Profile (EMEA)

Tradelist Liquidity Profile (Asia Pacific)

Utilizing smart order routing technology that incorporates liquidity from exchanges, dark pools, algorithms and crossing networks, we have 

the ability to access both lit and dark liquidity  Our trading platform aggregates all of the trading venues, real-time fills, and performance 

numbers under one view so we can manage the trading process and risk associated with a specific transitions.  Our approach is built upon 

complete transparency in execution venue and method.

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

0 to 5% 5 to 10% 10 to 25%25 to 50%50 to 100%100 to 250% 250+

Sell Value

Buy Value

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

0 to 5% 5 to 10% 10 to
25%

25 to
50%

50 to
100%

100 to
250%

250+

Sell Value

Buy Value

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

0 to 5% 5 to 10% 10 to
25%

25 to
50%

50 to
100%

100 to
250%

250+

Sell Value

Buy Value

Page 7

Proprietary and Confidential  



SECTOR PROFILE

GICS Legacy Value Weight Target Value Weight Difference

Industrials 26,981,041           11.57% 8,760,765              3.59% 18,220,276       

Materials 6,390,533             2.74% 2,157,296              0.88% 4,233,237         

Utilities 4,848,997             2.08% 1,452,523              0.60% 3,396,474         

Energy 4,999,607             2.14% 3,712,136              1.52% 1,287,471         

Consumer Staples 16,725,249           7.17% 15,619,851            6.40% 1,105,397         

Information Technology 65,158,902           27.95% 64,071,602            26.25% 1,087,300         

Telecommunication Services -                        0.00% 3,013,438              1.23% (3,013,438)        

Health Care 46,129,810           19.78% 50,380,275            20.64% (4,250,465)        

Consumer Discretionary 35,294,432           15.14% 44,689,358            18.31% (9,394,926)        

Financials 26,637,172           11.42% 50,182,059            20.56% (23,544,886)      

MARKET CAP PROFILE

Bucket Sell Value Buy Value

Micro 190,380           -                            

Small -                        -                            

Mid 22,805,870      (8,971,273)           

Large 210,359,872    (234,882,808)       

Total 233,356,122    (243,854,081)       

Sector misweights contribute to the active risk of a transition.  We systematically look for opportunities to address sector misweights within 

an exposure neutral implementation strategy.  Managing sector exposures provides an opportunity to minimize active risk and thus allow 

additional time to source liquidity and minimize market impact costs.

Global market capitalization characteristics are valuable in creating a macro perspective for transition events.  Market capitalization details 

often provide insights into portfolio level liquidity and trading cost characteristics and are therefore useful in the early stages of strategy 

development.

 (30,000,000)

 (20,000,000)

 (10,000,000)

 -

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

 60,000,000

 70,000,000

In
du

st
ri

al
s

M
at

er
ia

ls

U
ti

li
ti

es

E
ne

rg
y

C
on

su
m

er
 S

ta
pl

es

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

H
ea

lt
h 

C
ar

e

C
on

su
m

er
 D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls

GICS Sector Exposure

Sell Buy Net

Page 8

Proprietary and Confidential  



EQUITY EXPOSURE PROFILE

Code Exchange Sell Buy Net Taxes + Fees Country

AU ASX 6,400,830             (1,305,413)          7,706,243              -                          Australia

AR Argentina -                            -                           -                             -                          Argentina

AV Vienna -                            -                           -                             -                          Austria

BB EN Brussels -                            (1,109,382)          1,109,382              -                          Belgium

BZ Sao Paulo 4,592,294             (412,011)              5,004,305              -                          Brazil

CB Bogota -                            -                           -                             -                          Colombia

CH Shanghai -                            -                           -                             -                          China

CI Sant. Comerc -                            -                           -                             -                          Chile

CN Toronto -                            (3,857,501)          3,857,501              -                          Canada

CP Prague-SPAD -                            -                           -                             -                          Czech Republic

DC Copenhagen 8,241,599             (1,948,860)          10,190,458            -                          Denmark

EY Egypt (EGX) -                            -                           -                             -                          Egypt

FH Helsinki -                            (1,881,769)          1,881,769              -                          Finland

FP EN Paris 5,070,253             (8,003,721)          13,073,974            15,986                France

GA Athens -                            -                           -                             -                          Greece

GR Xetra 6,632,669             (4,038,325)          10,670,995            -                          Germany

HB Budapest -                            -                           -                             -                          Hungary

HK Hong Kong 14,009,326           (5,771,911)          19,781,237            21,739                Hong Kong

ID Dublin -                            -                           -                             -                          Ireland

IJ Indonesia -                            -                           -                             -                          Indonesia

IM BrsaItaliana 3,555,499             (2,396,519)          5,952,018              2,393                  Italy

IN Natl India -                            -                           -                             -                          India

IT Tel Aviv -                            -                           -                             -                          Israel

JP Tokyo /JASDAQ 16,394,319           (18,611,786)        35,006,105            -                          Japan

KS Korea SE 3,732,528             -                           3,732,528              11,189                S. Korea

LI London Intl -                            -                           -                             -                          United Kingdom

LN London 18,418,798           (16,031,326)        34,450,123            80,048                United Kingdom

MC Casablanca -                            -                           -                             -                          Morocco

MK Kuala Lumpur -                            -                           -                             -                          Malaysia

MM Mexico 4,852,847             (176,568)              5,029,416              -                          Mexico

NA EN Amsterdam -                            (1,963,804)          1,963,804              -                          The Netherlands

NO Oslo -                            (539,829)              539,829                 -                          Norway

NZ NZX -                            -                           -                             -                          New Zealand

PA Pakistan -                            -                           -                             -                          Pakistan

PL EN Lisbon -                            (435,111)              435,111                 -                          Portugal

PR Lima -                            -                           -                             -                          Peru

PM Philippines -                            -                           -                             -                          The Philippines

PW Warsaw -                            -                           -                             -                          Poland

RM MICEX Main -                            -                           -                             -                          Russia

RU RTS -                            -                           -                             -                          Russia

SJ Johannesburg -                            (1,427,493)          1,427,493              -                          S. Africa

SM Continuous -                            (2,951,073)          2,951,073              -                          Spain

SP Singapore -                            (1,056,764)          1,056,764              -                          Singapore

SS Stockholm 7,169,996             (1,980,415)          9,150,411              -                          Sweden

TB Bangkok -                            -                           -                             -                          Thailand

TI Istanbul -                            -                           -                             -                          Turkey

SW Switzerland -                            (985,662)              985,662                 -                          Switzerland

TT Taiwan 4,647,593             -                           4,647,593              -                          Taiwan

US NYSE/NASDAQ 129,637,571         (164,004,560)      293,642,131          2,850                  United States

VC Caracas -                            -                           -                             -                          Venezuela

VX SIX Swiss Ex -                            (2,964,278)          2,964,278              296                      Switzerland

Country exposure differences within a transition can introduce trade timing risk - the risk associated with not being able to buy target 

securities at the same time legacy securities are sold.  To manage global exposures, we can apply trade scheduling or derivative solutions 

within the transition horizon to create transition strategies designed to minimize shortfall.

Page 9

Proprietary and Confidential  



ATTESTATION FROM PENSERRA













TRANSITION TEAM CONTACTS

The Penserra Transition Management team would like to thank you for the opportunity to provide this analysis.  

Please feel free to reach out to us at 1 (855) 736-7337.

Thank you.

Steve Lowden    (Primary Contact)

Managing Director, Sales & Marketing

C  (253) 228-2032

Keith Wilson   (Secondary Contact)

steve.lowden@penserra.com

Managing Direction, Head of Transition Management

calvin.lee@penserra.com 

DISCLAIMER

The information included in this material has been taken from trade and other sources considered reliable. No representation is made that this information is 

complete and should not be relied upon as such. Any opinions expressed in this material reflect our judgment at this date and are subject to change. This material is 

not intended to provide investment advice. All strategies referred to herein are among various investment strategies that are managed by Penserra Transition 

Management LLC as part of its investment management fiduciary services. Penserra Transition Management LLC is a registered investment advisor in the State of 

New York. Investing and trading involves risk, including possible loss of principal. Past performance does not guarantee future results. 

This material is provided for informational purposes only and does not constitute a solicitation or offering of shares or units of any fund or other security in any 

jurisdiction in which such solicitation or offering is unlawful or to any person to whom it is unlawful. No part of this material may be reproduced in any manner 

without the prior written permission of Penserra Transition Management. 

O  (925) 594-5006

keith.wilson@penserra.com

Calvin Lee 

Sr. Vice President, Portfolio Manager

O  (925) 594-5012

Penserra does not earn revenue from internal cross trades.

Lastly, Penserra earns no other revenues other than those listed on this report and itemized in the post-trade report.

As an appointed Transition Manager, we execute all events to the best of our ability and declare the following statements to be true:

Penserra manages all transitions as a fiduciary.

Penserra does not operate an internal dark pool or electronic communication network (ECN).

Penserra does not advertise order flow.

Penserra does not earn any revenues from trading foreign currencies (FX).

Page 10

Proprietary and Confidential  

mailto:steve.lowden@penserra.com
mailto:calvin.lee@penserra.com
mailto:keith.wilson@penserra.com


Verus Investments

MAY 2016

Pre-Transition Summary & Analysis – Contra Costa

County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA)

$300mm global equity restructure



Table of contents

Why choose Russell for this transition? 3

Understanding incentives 4

Proven track record 5

Consistently reduced market impact relative to peers 6

Transition matrix 7

Solution overview 8

Estimate of controllable costs & performance distribution 9

Risk management Risk & performance factors 10- 11

Historical returns 12

Appendix 13 - 27

Copyright © Russell Investments 2016. All rights reserved. This material is proprietary and may not be reproduced, transferred, or distributed in any form without prior written permission from Russell

Investments. It is delivered on an “as is” basis without warranty. Russell Investment Group is a Washington USA corporation, which operates through subsidiaries worldwide, including Russell

Investments, and is a subsidiary of The London Stock Exchange Group.



Why Russell for this transition? Results matter

1. Russell Implementation Services Inc. (RIS) acts as a 1940 Act Investment Advisor, the highest fiduciary

standard, with a duty of loyalty and standard of care equivalent to our Client’s ongoing investment

managers.

Other transition providers may contract as an advisor or trustee, but then delegate all trading to

an affiliated firm which does not have the same fiduciary responsibility to the Client.

2. RIS will approach this event as a portfolio management project, designing an implementation strategy

using derivatives to minimize opportunity costs and deliver the best outcome for the Client.

3. RIS has an extensive track record of delivering successful outcomes for our transition clients.

4. RIS delivers high quality execution through our agency-only multi-venue platform. We use a diverse

3

4. RIS delivers high quality execution through our agency-only multi-venue platform. We use a diverse

set of quality execution venues to minimize transaction costs for our clients. We encourage you to

review our SEC 606 Report to see our most often used venues: http://www.russell.com/us/institutional-

investors/disclosures/sec-606.page

Other transition providers may offer marginally lower commission rate without the high quality

execution. They often concentrate their orders in low quality execution venues which have low

explicit costs, but deliver inferior execution and are saturated with conflicts that are detrimental

to the transition client’s performance. We suggest a simple Google search for other providers

SEC 606 reports and compare them to RIS. The difference is obvious.

5. RIS transparency - “Russell brings honesty and transparency to an industry that unfortunately

lacks both.” - Consultant, PLANSPONSOR Magazine 2006 Transition Management Survey



Understanding the incentives
Questions for consultant or client to ask

RIS TM Other Provider

Do you provide your TM services as a fiduciary?
Yes, as 1940 Act

Investment Advisor
?

Does your TM contract delegate trading to a non-

fiduciary affiliate?
No ?

Does your firm have an affiliated execution venue

(ECN, crossing network, etc.) that it regularly

sends TM orders to?

No. RIS has no internal

venue bias
?

4

sends TM orders to?

Does your firm or its affiliates receive payments

from external execution venues for TM trade

flow? Please provide a copy of your most recent

SEC Rule 606 report.

No. SEC Rule 606 report at

the following link:
http://www.russell.com/us/institutional

-investors/disclosures/sec-606.page

?

Does your firm or its affiliates execute securities,

currency or derivative trades in a principal

capacity?

No. RIS only trades in an

agency capacity
?

Are any of the execution and/or clearing costs for

equity trades deducted from the execution price

of the trade rather than the commission (ie Net

Trading)?

No. Execution and clearing

fees are deducted from the

gross commission

?



Proven track record
Consistency in estimates and maximized risk-adjusted performance…

Implementation shortfall (IS) vs. estimate
Russell implementation universe – 5 year composite ending December 2015

Mean: -4.82 bps

Std Deviation: 33.51 bps

No. Events: 1056

5

Source: Russell Transition Management Performance Composites, 5 year composite ending 2015. Past performance is not a guarantee of

future results. For illustrative purposes only.

In 2015, Russell Investments was ranked

#1 in “Global Cost Performance vs.

Estimate” in CIO’s “2015 Transition

Manager Survey”. The 2015 results were

based on responses from 385 global

asset owners on the portfolio transitions

they mandated and the managers they

used in 2014.



Quarter Russell Market Impact

(bps)

Elkins/McSherry Market

Impact (bps)

Russell Saving vs.

Elkins/McSherry Market

Impact Average

Q1-2010 -9.3 -19.2 9.9

Q2-2010 -4.6 -22.8 18.2

Q3-2010 -13.7 -22.2 8.5

Q4-2010 -13.2 -23.1 9.9

Q1-2011 -12.5 -21.4 8.9

Q2-2011 -6.8 -25.4 18.6

Q3-2011 -15.4 -20.1 4.7

Q4-2011 -7.9 -24.8 16.9

Q1-2012 -4.6 -11.7 7.1

Consistently reduced market impact relative to peers
Externally verified by Elkins McSherry

6

Q2-2012 -7.8 -21.3 13.5

Q3-2012 -5.9 -22.9 17.0

Q4-2012 -9.4 -24.7 15.3

Q1-2013 -5.1 -18.6 13.5

Q2-2013 -9.7 -23.2 13.5

Q3-2013 -8.4 -20.6 12.2

Q4-2013 -7.9 -27.1 19.2

Q1-2014 -15 -27.1 12.1

Q2-2014 -5.6 -24.1 18.5

Q3-2014 -2.8 -23.6 20.8

Q4-2014 -5.4 -21.6 16.2

Q1-2015 -10.6 -22.8 12.2

Q2-2015 -14.8 -31.3 16.5

Q3-2015 -10.8 -25.1 14.3

Q4-2015 -15.1 -27.2 16.0

Average -12.8 -26.6 14.8

Source: Elkins McSherry. Data as of 31 December 2015. Highlight cost of global equity trading relative to full Elkins McSherry universe (both buy and sell side

firms). Data is benchmarked against the "arrival price“.



Transition matrix

10-May-16 10-May-16

Manager Mandate Market Value Weight Manager Mandate Market Value Weight

Artisan Global Equity 300,000,000 100.0% Jackson Square Domestic Equity 200,000,000 66.7%

William Blair International Equity 100,000,000 33.3%

Total $ 300,000,000 100.0% Total $ 300,000,000 100.0%

Legacy allocation Target allocation

7

› The above matrix displays the allocation of legacy and target assets for the proposed restructure as of May 10th, 2016.

› For this restructure, a transition account would be recommended to liquidate the legacy assets and build the target portfolios.

› Russell will work with the legacy and target managers to coordinate, instruct and manage all asset transfers to and from the

transition account thus reducing the workload on Verus/CCCERA’s staff while providing operational risk controls to the transfer

process.

› Russell would communicate closely with the target managers to deliver the desired target portfolio in a prompt manner.

› Russell will create, execute and manage a tailored project/implementation plan to achieve the client’s timeline and exposure

objectives.

Total $ 300,000,000 100.0% Total $ 300,000,000 100.0%



Solution overview

Keys to a successful outcome:

› Meticulous project management to mitigate operational risks, while minimizing burden on Verus/CCCERA’s staff.

› Portfolio risk management within an execution platform that minimizes the impact costs for the set of portfolios involved

in this event.

Category Estimate or Assumption

Value to trade › ~USD 478.7 million or 159.5% of the beginning portfolio value.

Retained security value › ~USD 44.6 million or 14.9% of the beginning portfolio value.

8

Transaction costs › Mean expected cost of -45.4 bps at the portfolio level.

› +/- 34.1 bps for 1 standard deviation (68% confidence level) at the portfolio level.

Tracking error › 5.25% annualized tracking error between the legacy and target portfolios (ex-ante).

Trade horizon & strategy › 2 days for 90+% completion, 5 days for 100%.

Factor analysis › Please see appendix for detailed attribution.

Strategy › We recommend a risk reducing strategy of investing available cash as soon as possible on

day one, then trade dollar neutral until the transition is complete.

This pre-transition summary is based on analysis of the legacy and target portfolio regarding the number of securities

retained by the target portfolio from the legacy portfolio, the tracking error between the legacy and target portfolio, and the

liquidity of the amount to be traded.



Transition cost outcomes

Mean Expected Cost
-45.4bps +/-34.1bps
(@68% confidence)

Assets Value USD Weight

Portfolio value 300,153,791 100.0%

Equity security value 278,007,466 92.6%

Cash value 22,146,325 7.4%

Retained security value 44,577,895 14.9%

Value traded 1 478,738,881 159.5%

Cost estimate and performance distribution

9

-200.0 -174.2 -148.5 -122.7 -96.9 -71.2 -45.4 -19.6 6.2 31.9 57.7 83.5 109.2

1 standard deviation

Expected costs Value USD
%of

portfolio 2

%of value

traded 3

Explicit impact 314,301 10.5 bp 6.6 bp

Equity brokerage 5 159,095 5.3 bp 3.3 bp

Foreign exchange brokerage 5 10,923 0.4 bp 0.2 bp

Taxes and market fees 144,283 4.8 bp 3.0 bp

Implicit impact 1,047,915 34.9 bp 21.9 bp

Equity spread and impact 1,027,485 34.2 bp 21.5 bp

Foreign exchange spread and impact 20,430 0.7 bp 0.4 bp

Expected transaction cost 1,362,216 45.4 bp 28.5 bp

The cost estimate table to the left breaks down the explicit and
implicit costs associated with the transition.

Mean Performance Estimate: -45.4 basis points.

Performance Risk: ± 34.1 bps at 1 standard deviation (68%
confidence level).

The chart above illustrates the distribution of potential transition
outcomes centered on the expected mean cost. It is based upon
the tracking error between the legacy and target portfolio (5.25%
ex-ante), the trade horizon and a risk decay function based on
this transitions specific trading strategy.

1- 'Value traded' - equals the to tal value of all securities bought and all securities so ld;

2 - '%of portfo lio ' - percentage calculated by taking cost/ portfo lio value.

3 - '%of value traded' - percentage calculated by taking cost / value traded.

5 - Agency brokerage rates: US equity: 1.25 cps, CA equity: 1.25 cps, Non-US equity: 5 bps, Foreign exchange: 2 bps



Risk management
Risk and performance factors

Performance factors RIS strategy

Confidentiality  To protect CCCERA, RIS will be discrete with event

information keeping event details on a “need to know

basis” to mitigate information leakage

Market Exposure Risk  Due to the regional deltas and shifting of assets, cash

exposure will need to be managed carefully.

 To reduce cash exposure, opportunity risk and tracking

error to the target portfolio, RIS will:

 Implement and execute a trade strategy that

allows us to move quickly and efficiently into

Risk Factor
vs. Target

(% annualized)

Tracking Error 5.25%

Risk Factor
Contribution

(% Active Risk)

Asset Selection (idiosyncratic) 90.0%

Common Factor 10.0%

Style 4.0%

Indus tries 2.4%

Country 2.5%

10

allows us to move quickly and efficiently into

the target.

 Utilize a dollar neutral trade strategy once cash

exposures are in line.

Currency Risk  Currency shifts exist due to regional shifts.

 Special consideration must be given to prefunding

markets such as TWD in the target portfolio.

 Given the recent volatility observed in the currency

markets, Russell would propose utilizing a currency

hedge and use of currency forwards to reduce this risk.

The risk table above shows the risk factor
breakdown and contribution of common
factor risk characteristics to the total ex-
ante tracking error as calculated by
Axioma. This model is forward looking in
that it analyzes the factor exposures
between the two portfolios and then uses a
co-variance matrix to predict the tracking
error.

Country 2.5%

Currency 0.2%

Market 1.0%

Covariance 0.0%

Total 100.0%



Risk management
Risk and performance factors (continued)

Performance factors RIS strategy

Liquidity › The overall liquidity of the transition is expected to be moderate with ~100% completion following 5 days of trading.

› Prompt trading into the target positions is required to best reduce the risk between legacy and target portfolios.

› The sell side is slightly less liquid hence, will drive the pace of trading.

› The liquidity profile allows for the prompt reduction of risk. The proposed timeline for trading best balances

opportunity costs which increase with time against the spread and impact controllable costs which decrease with

the period over which the trade occurs.

Asset Risk › We will leverage RIS’s multi-venue execution platform which aggregates liquidity provided by all available venues,

allowing us to move out of the legacy and into the target portfolio efficiently and quickly.

› RIS will explore and act on crossing opportunities saving on spread and impact thus reducing minor costs when and

where it makes sense.

11

where it makes sense.

› RIS will maintain anonymity in the marketplace, mask intent and protect the Client’s assets against performance

deterioration associated with information leakage by using a wide array of non-affiliated execution venues.

Operational Risk &

Cash Management

› This transition involves regional shifts which require precise management of transition account cash and matching

of settlement cycles. RIS will ensure that settlement cycles are matched-off, cash is meticulously managed all

leading to a seamless funding of the target portfolio.

› This transition also involves emerging markets which can prove to be non-transferable if an omnibus custodial

structure is not in place. RIS will work with the custodian and target managers to implement the most cost effective

and efficient trade strategy.

Project Management › Commingled fund in-kind redemptions and require strong project management and coordination.

› RIS’s goal is to reduce the impact of the transition on the Verus/CCCERA’s investment staff. Through careful

communication, daily transition updates and a detailed calendar and deliverables schedule, Russell will keep Verus

and the CCCERA apprised of daily activity.

› RIS will act as a Fiduciary and manage all aspects of the transition from beginning to end ensuring administrative

burden is minimized for Verus and the CCCERA’s staff.



1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

Daily delta

+1 Std. Deviation -1 Std. Deviation

Average Holdings-Target

Risk management
Historical returns

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%

20.0%

Cumulative return

Holdings portfolio Benchmark index Target portfolio

12

-1.00%

-0.50%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

Jan-31 Feb-10 Feb-20 Mar-01 Mar-11 Mar-21 Mar-31 Apr-10 Apr-20 Apr-30 May-10 May-20

The daily delta chart illustrates the daily performance
difference between the legacy and target portfolio over the past
three months. As shown, there are several instances where the
daily delta is greater than one standard deviation and times
where it exceeds two.

The cumulative return chart illustrates the historical returns
of the legacy and target portfolio and the benchmark (MSCI
World Index) over the prior three months. The annualized
tracking error analyzing the raw returns of the portfolios (ex
post) over the past 3 months was 8.1%.

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

Jan-31 Feb-10 Feb-20 Mar-01 Mar-11 Mar-21 Mar-31 Apr-10 Apr-20 Apr-30 May-10 May-20



Appendix

Factor analysis Liquidity summary 14

Market cap summary 15

Sector summary 16

Country summary 17

Currency summary 18

Timeline & Deliverables 19

T Standard reporting 21 – 26

13

T Standard reporting 21 – 26

Glossary of terms 27



Factor analysis
Liquidity summary

Liquidity Range # Shares Value USD Weight # Shares Value USD Weight # Shares Value USD Weight

< 2.5% 157 7,990,065 223,863,845 51.9% 16 968,100 70,251,264 34.1% 141 7,021,965 153,612,581 68.1%

2.5 - 5% 26 1,557,037 82,912,633 19.2% 5 724,043 36,924,689 17.9% 21 832,994 45,987,944 20.4%

5 - 10% 9 491,201 29,877,674 6.9% 4 222,466 19,758,929 9.6% 5 268,735 10,118,745 4.5%

10 - 15% 3 1,434,194 11,060,033 2.6% 2 1,311,894 4,339,648 2.1% 1 122,300 6,720,385 3.0%

15 - 25% 5 649,445 23,442,318 5.4% 3 311,506 14,439,230 7.0% 2 337,939 9,003,088 4.0%

25 - 50% 7 2,623,216 50,188,912 11.6% 7 2,623,216 50,188,912 24.4% 0 0 0 0.0%

50 - 100% 1 1,268,500 4,880,175 1.1% 1 1,268,500 4,880,175 2.4% 0 0 0 0.0%

100 - 250% 1 13,719 5,076,195 1.2% 1 13,719 5,076,195 2.5% 0 0 0 0.0%

250 - 500% 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0.0%

> 500% 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Sell Buy

14

> 500% 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0.0%

Total 209 16,027,377 431,301,786 100.0% 39 7,443,444 205,859,043 100.0% 170 8,583,933 225,442,743 100.0%

Top 5 largest positions Side Shares Value USD % ADV

IHS INC-CLASS A (ihs) Sell 120,200 14,651,178 40.7%

REGENERON PHARMACEUTIC (regn) Sell 36,500 14,084,255 4.5%

CELGENE CORP (celg) Buy 109,500 11,305,875 2.4%

ALLERGAN PLC (agn) Buy 49,600 11,160,000 1.0%

QUALCOMM INC (qcom) Buy 184,700 9,632,105 1.9%

Top 5 illiquid positions Side Shares Value USD % ADV

EUROFINS SCIENTIFIC (5972643) Sell 13,719 5,076,195 117.4%

INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGE (B84XBP2)Sell 1,268,500 4,880,175 75.1%

IHS INC-CLASS A (ihs) Sell 120,200 14,651,178 40.7%

RAIA DROGASIL SA (B7FQV64) Sell 287,400 4,545,638 35.2%

DIRECT LINE INSURANCE (BY9D0Y1) Sell 1,551,447 8,517,799 30.1%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

< 2.5%

2.5 - 5%

5 - 10%

10 - 15%

15 - 25%

25 - 50%

50 - 100%

100 - 250%

250 - 500%

> 500%

% of value to trade

L
iq

u
id

it
y

ra
n

g
e



Factor analysis
Market cap summary

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Active differences Portfolio Portfolio

Market Cap Value USD Weight Market Cap Value USD Weight Market Cap Value USD Weight

More than 50B 96,033,997 34.5% More than 50B 124,026,755 42.8% More than 50B -27,992,759 -8.2%

10B - 50B 80,484,959 29.0% 10B - 50B 126,977,014 43.8% 10B - 50B -46,492,055 -14.9%

5B - 10B 74,628,759 26.8% 5B - 10B 27,891,116 9.6% 5B - 10B 46,737,642 17.2%

1B - 5B 26,859,752 9.7% 1B - 5B 10,967,488 3.8% 1B - 5B 15,892,264 5.9%

500M - 1B 0 0.0% 500M - 1B 0 0.0% 500M - 1B 0 0.0%

250M - 500M 0 0.0% 250M - 500M 0 0.0% 250M - 500M 0 0.0%

50M - 250M 0 0.0% 50M - 250M 0 0.0% 50M - 250M 0 0.0%

Less than 50M 0 0.0% Less than 50M 0 0.0% Less than 50M 0 0.0%

Total 278,007,466 100.0% Total 289,862,373 100.0% Total -11,854,907 0.0%

15

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

More
than

50B

10B -
50B

5B - 10B 1B - 5B 500M -
1B

250M -
500M

50M -
250M

Less
than

50M

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

More
than 50B

10B -
50B

5B - 10B 1B - 5B 500M -
1B

250M
- 500M

50M -
250M

Less
than

50M

Active differences



Factor analysis
Sector summary

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio Active differences

Sectors Value USD Weight Sectors Value USD Weight Sectors Value USD Weight

Cash 22,146,325 7.5% Cash 10,242,027 3.4% Cash 11,904,298 4.1%

Energy 5,004,271 1.7% Energy 3,710,740 1.2% Energy 1,293,531 0.5%

Materials 6,414,655 2.2% Materials 2,402,789 0.8% Materials 4,011,866 1.4%

Industrials 27,949,371 9.5% Industrials 9,719,477 3.2% Industrials 18,229,894 6.2%

Consumer Discretionary 32,368,161 11.0% Consumer Discretionary 45,265,580 15.1% Consumer Discretionary -12,897,419 -4.1%

Consumer Staples 16,833,495 5.7% Consumer Staples 15,815,446 5.3% Consumer Staples 1,018,050 0.4%

Health Care 50,240,588 17.0% Health Care 52,270,464 17.4% Health Care -2,029,876 -0.4%

Financials 26,652,933 9.0% Financials 52,056,361 17.3% Financials -25,403,429 -8.3%

Information Technology 102,911,516 34.8% Information Technology 104,169,054 34.7% Information Technology -1,257,538 0.1%

Telecomm Service 0 0.0% Telecomm Service 3,016,369 1.0% Telecomm Service -3,016,369 -1.0%

Utilities 4,880,175 1.7% Utilities 1,460,924 0.5% Utilities 3,419,251 1.2%

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio
8.00%

Active differences

16

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

C
a
s
h

E
n

e
rg

y

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

In
d

u
s
tr

ia
ls

C
o

n
s
u
m

e
r

D
is

c
re

tio
n
a
ry

C
o

n
s
u
m

e
r

S
ta

p
le

s

H
e
a
lt
h

C
a
re

F
in

a
n

ci
a
ls

In
fo

rm
a
tio

n
T

e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

T
e
le

c
o

m
m

S
e
rv

ic
e

U
ti
li
ti
e
s

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio

-10.00%

-8.00%

-6.00%

-4.00%

-2.00%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

C
a
s
h

E
n

e
rg

y

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

In
d

u
s
tr

ia
ls

C
o

n
s
u
m

e
rD

is
cr

e
ti
o
n
a
ry

C
o

n
s
u
m

e
rS

ta
p

le
s

H
e
a
lt
h

C
a
re

F
in

a
n

ci
a
ls

In
fo

rm
a
tio

n
T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

T
e
le

c
o

m
m

S
e
rv

ic
e

U
ti
li
ti
e
s

Active differences



Factor analysis
Country summary

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio Active differences

Countries Value USD Weight Countries Value USD Weight Countries Value USD Weight

Cash 22,146,325 7.4% Cash 10,242,027 3.4% Cash 11,904,298 4.0%

Australia 6,414,655 2.1% Australia 1,308,549 0.4% Australia 5,106,107 1.7%

Belgium 0 0.0% Belgium 1,110,097 0.4% Belgium -1,110,097 -0.4%

Brazil 4,545,638 1.5% Brazil 408,669 0.1% Brazil 4,136,968 1.4%

Canada 0 0.0% Canada 3,853,057 1.3% Canada -3,853,057 -1.3%

Denmark 8,251,130 2.7% Denmark 1,950,119 0.6% Denmark 6,301,011 2.1%

Finland 0 0.0% Finland 1,882,966 0.6% Finland -1,882,966 -0.6%

France 5,359,994 1.8% France 8,292,623 2.8% France -2,932,629 -1.0%

Germany 7,291,335 2.4% Germany 5,208,513 1.7% Germany 2,082,822 0.7%

Hong Kong 14,746,325 4.9% Hong Kong 6,522,461 2.2% Hong Kong 8,223,864 2.7%

India 0 0.0% India 1,475,680 0.5% India -1,475,680 -0.5%

17

India 0 0.0% India 1,475,680 0.5% India -1,475,680 -0.5%

Indonesia 0 0.0% Indonesia 206,132 0.1% Indonesia -206,132 -0.1%

Italy 3,559,785 1.2% Italy 2,398,047 0.8% Italy 1,161,737 0.4%

Japan 16,938,398 5.6% Japan 19,092,844 6.4% Japan -2,154,446 -0.7%

Korea 3,871,723 1.3% Korea 1,812,819 0.6% Korea 2,058,904 0.7%

Mexico 4,880,175 1.6% Mexico 177,649 0.1% Mexico 4,702,526 1.6%

Netherlands 0 0.0% Netherlands 1,964,909 0.7% Netherlands -1,964,909 -0.7%

Norw ay 0 0.0% Norw ay 539,135 0.2% Norw ay -539,135 -0.2%

Portugal 0 0.0% Portugal 435,388 0.1% Portugal -435,388 -0.1%

Singapore 0 0.0% Singapore 1,057,045 0.4% Singapore -1,057,045 -0.4%

South Africa 0 0.0% South Africa 1,434,117 0.5% South Africa -1,434,117 -0.5%

Spain 0 0.0% Spain 2,953,002 1.0% Spain -2,953,002 -1.0%

Sw eden 8,720,368 2.9% Sw eden 1,979,832 0.7% Sw eden 6,740,536 2.2%

Sw itzerland 0 0.0% Sw itzerland 3,953,752 1.3% Sw itzerland -3,953,752 -1.3%

Taiw an 4,640,320 1.5% Taiw an 1,263,697 0.4% Taiw an 3,376,623 1.1%

United Arab Emirates 0 0.0% United Arab Emirates 147,928 0.0% United Arab Emirates -147,928 0.0%

United Kingdom 13,672,259 4.6% United Kingdom 16,039,628 5.3% United Kingdom -2,367,369 -0.8%

United States 175,115,361 58.3% United States 202,418,547 67.4% United States -27,303,186 -9.1%



Factor analysis
Country summary

Cash

Australia

Belgium

Brazil

Canada

Denmark

Finland

France

Germany

Hong Kong

India

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio

Cash

Australia

Belgium

Brazil

Canada

Denmark

Finland

France

Germany

Hong Kong

India

Active differences

18

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

India

Indonesia

Italy

Japan

Korea

Mexico

Netherlands

Norway

Portugal

Singapore

South Africa

Spain

Sweden

Switzerland

Taiwan

United Arab…

United Kingdom

United States

-10% -8% -6% -4% -2% 0% 2% 4% 6%

India

Indonesia

Italy

Japan

Korea

Mexico

Netherlands

Norway

Portugal

Singapore

South Africa

Spain

Sweden

Switzerland

Taiwan

United Arab Emirates

United Kingdom

United States



Factor analysis
Currency summary

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio Active differences

Currency Value USD Weight Currency Value USD Weight Currency Value USD Weight

Australian Dollar 6,414,655 2.3% Australian Dollar 1,308,549 0.5% Australian Dollar 5,106,107 1.9%

Brazilian Real 4,545,638 1.6% Brazilian Real 408,669 0.1% Brazilian Real 4,136,968 1.5%

British Pound 13,672,259 4.9% British Pound 15,822,412 5.5% British Pound -2,150,153 -0.5%

Canadian Dollar 0 0.0% Canadian Dollar 3,853,057 1.3% Canadian Dollar -3,853,057 -1.3%

Danish Krone 8,251,130 3.0% Danish Krone 1,950,119 0.7% Danish Krone 6,301,011 2.3%

Euro 16,211,114 5.8% Euro 24,462,762 8.4% Euro -8,251,648 -2.6%

Hong Kong Dollar 14,746,325 5.3% Hong Kong Dollar 6,522,461 2.2% Hong Kong Dollar 8,223,864 3.1%

Indian Rupee 0 0.0% Indian Rupee 1,475,680 0.5% Indian Rupee -1,475,680 -0.5%

Indonesian Rupiah 0 0.0% Indonesian Rupiah 206,132 0.1% Indonesian Rupiah -206,132 -0.1%

19

Indonesian Rupiah 0 0.0% Indonesian Rupiah 206,132 0.1% Indonesian Rupiah -206,132 -0.1%

Japanese Yen 16,938,398 6.1% Japanese Yen 19,092,844 6.6% Japanese Yen -2,154,446 -0.5%

Korean Won (South) 3,871,723 1.4% Korean Won (South) 1,812,819 0.6% Korean Won (South) 2,058,904 0.8%

Mexican Peso 4,880,175 1.8% Mexican Peso 177,649 0.1% Mexican Peso 4,702,526 1.7%

Norw egian Kroner 0 0.0% Norw egian Kroner 539,135 0.2% Norw egian Kroner -539,135 -0.2%

Singapore Dollar 0 0.0% Singapore Dollar 1,057,045 0.4% Singapore Dollar -1,057,045 -0.4%

South African Rand 0 0.0% South African Rand 1,434,117 0.5% South African Rand -1,434,117 -0.5%

Sw edish Krona 8,720,368 3.1% Sw edish Krona 1,979,832 0.7% Sw edish Krona 6,740,536 2.5%

Sw iss Franc 0 0.0% Sw iss Franc 3,953,752 1.4% Sw iss Franc -3,953,752 -1.4%

Taiw an Dollar 4,640,320 1.7% Taiw an Dollar 1,263,697 0.4% Taiw an Dollar 3,376,623 1.2%

United Arab Emirates Dirham 0 0.0% United Arab Emirates Dirham 147,928 0.1% United Arab Emirates Dirham -147,928 -0.1%

US Dollar 175,115,361 63.0% US Dollar 202,418,547 69.8% US Dollar -27,303,186 -6.8%



Factor analysis
Currency summary

Australian Dollar

Brazilian Real

British Pound

Canadian Dollar

Danish Krone

Euro

Hong Kong Dollar

Indian Rupee

Legacy portfolio Target portfolio

Australian Dollar

Brazilian Real

British Pound

Canadian Dollar

Danish Krone

Euro

Hong Kong Dollar

Indian Rupee

Active differences

20

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

Indian Rupee

Indonesian Rupiah

Japanese Yen

Korean Won (South)

Mexican Peso

Norwegian Kroner

Singapore Dollar

South African Rand

Swedish Krona

Swiss Franc

Taiwan Dollar

United Arab…

US Dollar

-8% -6% -4% -2% 0% 2% 4%

Indonesian Rupiah

Japanese Yen

Korean Won (South)

Mexican Peso

Norwegian Kroner

Singapore Dollar

South African Rand

Swedish Krona

Swiss Franc

Taiwan Dollar

United Arab EmiratesDirham

US Dollar



T Standard performance overview

Russell led the development of the T Standard and

has been using the T Standard since its 2003

inception*.

 The T Standard is an industry-standard methodology

defining rules for treatment of the critical factors that

drive portfolio performance during a transition. It is

analogous to the CFA Institute’s performance

standards.

 The T Standard is a simple, time-weighted rate of

return. It “plugs the gap” by measuring the entire

T Standard Performance
Implementation Shortfall

Time

Priced on Close of

Termination Date

Legacy Portfolio
Priced on Close Prior

to Inception Date

Target Portfolio

21

return. It “plugs the gap” by measuring the entire

transition time frame and allows performance

attribution for pre-transition, implementation and

post-transition periods. T Standard implementation

shortfall is the arithmetic difference between the

return of the transition portfolio and the return of the

target, performed daily.

 This methodology brings the same rigor and

consistency that institutional investors expect from

their traditional investment managers to transition

management.

Pre-Transition Implementation Post-Transition

* The T Standard was updated in December 2008. T Standard 2.0 reflects feedback from plan sponsors, transition providers and consultants to clarify

ambiguities and expand reach into uncovered areas and improve the level or transparency.



T Standard reporting

Estimated Transition Costs Equities Bonds FX
Futures/Hedging

Instruments
Other Total Total

(USD) (USD) (USD) (USD) (USD) (USD) %*

Transition Manager Commissions &

Fees (ex other broker commissions)
159,095 - 10,923 170,018 0.057%

Other Broker Commissions - - 0.000%

Taxes & Other Charges 144,283 144,283 0.048%

Bid Offer Spread & Market Impact 1,027,485 - 20,430 - 1,047,915 0.349%

22

Bid Offer Spread & Market Impact 1,027,485 - 20,430 - 1,047,915 0.349%

Risk Fee (i.e. for principal trades) - 0.000%

Pooled Fund Spreads or Charges (not

included above)
- - 0.000%

Total Implementation Shortfall (IS)

Mean Estimate
1,330,863 - 31,353 - - 1,362,216 0.454%

Opportunity Cost +/- 1,023,524 0.341%

Implementation Shortfall - Upper

Estimate (+1 s.d.)
2,385,741 0.795%

Implementation Shortfall - Lower

Estimate (-1 s.d.)
338,692 0.113%

Tracking error (Target to Legacy

portfolio
+/- 5.3%

* All % figures to be expressed as a % of the Total Value of Assets in Transition



T Standard reporting

Asset Values Equities Bonds Pooled Funds Cash Other Total

(not included in

other categories)

(USD) (USD) (USD) (USD) (USD) (USD)

Legacy Value of Assets 278,007,466 - - 22,146,325 300,153,791

Target Value of Assets 289,887,205 10,266,586 300,153,791

Value of Retained Assets (i.e. in kind

transfers)
44,577,895 44,577,895

Transaction Values

23

Transaction Values

Value of Assets to Sell (inc crossing) 233,429,571 - - - 233,429,571

Value of Assets to Buy (inc crossing) 245,309,310 - - - 245,309,310

Total Value of Transactions 478,738,881 - - - 478,738,881

Transaction Information

Estimated Value of Crosses 143,621,664 143,621,664

Day 1 % Complete 90% % % % 90%

Day 3 % Complete 99% % % % 99%

Day 5 % Complete 99% % % % 99%



The T Standard method for the calculation of portfolio performance during a transition is as follows:

1. Implementation shortfall shall be taken as the arithmetical difference between the return on the actual portfolio and the return on the target

portfolio.

Example:

 A portfolio starts with a value of $121,650,000, and the target portfolio has the same value. The actual portfolio ends with a value of

$119,987,000, while the target portfolio ends with a value of $120,351,000. The target portfolio is a paper portfolio rather than an actual one

 The return on the actual portfolio is (119,987,000  121,650,000) - 1 = -1.37%

 The return on the target portfolio is (120,351,000  121,650,000) - 1 = -1.07%

 The implementation shortfall is 0.30% or 30 basis points in this case. This is equivalent to saying that performance against a target portfolio

benchmark was -30 basis points over the relevant period

T Standard
Calculation & methodology

24

benchmark was -30 basis points over the relevant period

2. Calculation of returns shall be performed daily.

The performance report to the client should include this daily breakdown.

3. Returns shall be based on time-weighted total portfolio return, using closing prices.

This should include the impact of all factors affecting the portfolio or the benchmark, including corporate actions, target portfolio changes, etc.

Pricing sources used by a transition manager should be consistent and verifiable; this includes foreign exchange rates used to value non-

domestic holdings. Pricing sources should be disclosed, as should the treatment of holidays.

4. Returns shall be calculated from the date on which the terminated manager no longer has discretion over the portfolio until the date on which the

incoming manager has discretion. Where there is no terminated manager (such as a funding from cash, or a rebalancing event where an existing

portfolio is being reduced but not terminated) returns shall be calculated from the earliest reasonable date (The Total Transition Period”).

The transition manager will not generally be aware of the termination at the time it occurs, and may indeed not even have been formally

appointed. As a result, and because the target portfolio is probably unknown at this point, the calculation of returns should be backdated once

this information is available (including corporate actions).



5. The total transition period shall be split into pre-implementation, implementation and post-implementation periods. The implementation period

begins at the close prior to all of the external factors being resolved that are necessary for the transition manager to be able to trade. In practice

this normally means the close prior to a certified list of holdings being delivered to the transition manager.

Questions over the accuracy of the certified list should not delay the start of the implementation period unless they are so large as to preclude

the start of activity.

It is conceivable that trading (for example, hedging activity) might begin before the certified list is delivered or all of the other external factors are

resolved, in which case performance from the close prior to the start of trading to the start of the implementation period (the initial

implementation period, which might in the case of hedging activity be termed the hedging period) should be separately broken out.

The start of trading is the point at which the price of any trade is set. For example, some trading strategies involve the trade being processed on

one day, but based on a price referenced to the previous day’s close. This is equivalent in effect to trading on the close of the previous day. The

implementation period therefore cannot be based on the price achieved, since it has potentially been influenced by the trade itself. A further day

T Standard
Calculation & methodology

25

implementation period therefore cannot be based on the price achieved, since it has potentially been influenced by the trade itself. A further day

back must be used as the start of the implementation period.

It is important for clients to understand the relevance of the start of the implementation period when assessing the results of a transition.

The end of the implementation period is the close after trading ends.

6. Changes to the target portfolio and cash flows shall be incorporated with effect from the previous night’s close.

The target portfolio is the complete list of holdings desired by the incoming managers), including any cash explicitly requested. This includes

those securities or instruments that are not actually purchased by the transition manager.

Target portfolios sometimes get changed, for a number of reasons, and these changes should be reflected in the return calculation for the target

portfolio from when they are made. To be consistent with the methodology proposed in these standards, this means the target portfolio should

be updated as at the close prior to the change in target list being reviewed.

The holdings in the target portfolio for the calculation of its return should not, however, be rebalanced unless indicated by the incoming

manager. Even if the target list consists of percentages in specified holdings, the target portfolio should be struck in terms of number of shares

at the start of the implementation period and only rebalanced to the indicated percentages if directed by the incoming manager.



7. Where externally-managed pooled funds are involved in the target or initial portfolio, these shall be included in the total return calculation

wherever possible, irrespective of how investment/disinvestment is actually handled.

Example:

 A target portfolio consists at the close on May 10th of 100,000 units of a weekly-valued pooled fund, which is worth $4,056,000 based on the

most recent valuation, which was May 5th, and $58,946,000 in direct holdings. The total target portfolio value at May 10th is taken as

$63,002,000.

 In some situations, costs may be incurred on externally-managed pooled funds that do not hit the transition account, for example, a different

NAV may apply to a client exiting a pooled fund than applies to other clients. The transition manager should make every reasonable effort to

identify any material costs and include these in the performance calculation. If, despite these efforts, costs remain unknown then this fact

should be disclosed.

8. If a transition manager shows, in addition to the results described above, additional results calculated on a different basis, then all differences in

T Standard
Calculation & methodology

26

8. If a transition manager shows, in addition to the results described above, additional results calculated on a different basis, then all differences in

the calculation should be clearly disclosed.

The calculation set out above is based on the outcome experienced by the investor. Depending on the circumstances of the particular event, the

transition manager may want to provide additional information to throw light on the factors that produced that outcome.

There are a number of ways in which a transition manager might validly argue that a better assessment of his own performance is given by a

different calculation than the one described above, either in terms of the time period covered, the holdings included or some other aspect of the

calculation.

Example:

 A firm might show a second set of results, which removes the impact of “stale’ valuations for pooled funds or illiquid holdings.

The basis of such additional calculations should be clearly disclosed and consistently applied. To this end, transition managers are encouraged to

identify in advance the basis for any additional results they will be calculating. Clients should pay particular attention to calculations which have

not been identified in advance, to calculations identified in advance but not made, to calculations not widely made by other transition managers,

to calculations which appear to have been made selectively and to calculations which might exclude performance impacts which are attributable

to the transition manager. In all cases, these calculations are in addition to and not in place of the standard calculation.



Glossary of terms

Assumptions

The following fixed assumptions apply

Implementation Shortfall (IS)

IS - Mean Estimate

Opportunity Cost

IS - Upper Estimate

Calculation is consistent with T Standard methodology from close of business the day prior to trading commencing (i.e. cob T - 1).

Calculation includes the estimated cost of completing all transactions, except for any assets specified in the Excluded Assets

table below is calculated as a percentage of the value of assets in transition.

Reflects the transition manager's realistic assessment of the expected mean cost (excluding opportunity cost).

The potential variation in expected cost.

A higher estimate of implementation shortfall which may result from unfavourable market movements (calculated to a one

27

IS - Upper Estimate

IS - Lower Estimate

Risk Fee

Retained Assets

Transactions Required

Crossing

Other Costs

The value of retained assets (i.e. in kind transfers) reflects the value of existing assets in the Legacy portfolio that can be retained

for the Target portfolio the value of retained assets is calculated on one side of the in kind transfers only.

The value of transactions assumes the completion of all transactions, except for any assets specified in the Excluded Assets

table below the value of transactions includes crossing but excludes retained assets.

Crossing is a transaction that the transition manager reasonably expects will incur zero, or minimal, bid offer spread and market

impact cost.

Unless otherwise specified, this estimate makes no allowance for other costs such as custody, legal or consultant fees.

A higher estimate of implementation shortfall which may result from unfavourable market movements (calculated to a one

standard deviation confidence interval).

A lower estimate of implementation shortfall which may result from favourable market movements (calculated to a one standard

deviation confidence interval).

The all inclusive cost of executing all or part of the required transactions via a principal trade.



Copyright © Russell Investments 2016. All rights reserved. This material is proprietary and may not be reproduced, transferred, or distributed in any

form without prior written permission from Russell Investments. It is delivered on an “as is” basis without warranty. Russell Investments is a trade

name and registered trademark of Frank Russell Company, a Washington USA corporation, which operates through subsidiaries worldwide and is

part of London Stock Exchange Group.

www.russellinvestments.com/institutional



 

  

P
R

E-
TR

A
D

E 
A

N
A

LY
SI

S 

Vertas Brokerage Consulting 

Village Square II, Suite #252 

Baltimore, MD 21210-1935 

Phone: 646-479-7706         

E-Mail: smalinowski@vertasgroup.com 
 

INDEPENDENT BROKERAGE CONSULTING |FIDUCIARY OVERSIGHT | REAL TIME TRADE COST 

ANALYTICS| VENUE NEUTRAL ORDER ROUTING | EXCEPTIONAL CLIENT SERVICE 
 

Contra Costa County 

Global/Domestic Equity 

May 11, 2016 



Contra Costa County 

PRE-TRADE ANALYSIS 1
 

 

 
Vertas Brokerage Consulting has developed the following estimate of expected costs and savings associated 
with the proposed equity transition on behalf of the Contra Costa County. 
The transition involves: 

 Transition: Current holdings of $300 Million in global equities targeting $300 Million in global/domestic equities 

 Net trade value: Liquidating $233.15 Million (Sells), Purchasing $244.83 Million (Buys) 

 Liquidity Issues: High 

 Volatility Level: Moderate 

 Trade Duration: Two -Three Days 

 
 
 

 
  

Legacy Target Total
Number of Securities 46                                      212                                                               258                                                       

Total Value (USD) 300,000,000.00$           300,000,000.00$                                       600,000,000.00$                               

Total Shares 8,719,632.00 9,857,201.00 18,576,833.00

Average Position Size 180,857.52 44,608.56 68,901.01

Average Position Value 5,068,383.04$                1,154,878.21$                                            1,852,634.89$                                    

In Kinds 400,186.00 400,186.00 800,372.00

In Kind Value (USD) 44,535,229.00$              44,535,229.00$                                          89,070,458.00$                                 

Net Shares 8,319,446.00 9,457,015.00 17,776,461.00

Cash 22,319,151.00$              10,630,590.00$                                          32,949,741.00$                                 

(T-1) Value  (USD) 233,145,620.00$           244,834,181.00$                                       477,979,801.00$                               

Managers

Legacy Target

Artisan Global Jackson Square William Blair

Trade Balance

Regions % Country %

Europe 20.78% United States 61.69%

Asia 14.66% Japan 7.32%

North America 62.47% United Kingdom 7.08%

Latin America 2.09% Hong Kong 4.13%

France 2.71%

Germany 2.32%

Sweden 2.24%

Denmark 2.10%

Taiwan 1.25%

Italy 1.22%

Sector % South Korea 1.11%

Technology 23.31% Mexico 1.06%

Healthcare 18.38% Brazil 1.03%

Cyclical Consumer Goods & Services 18.15% Switzerland 0.82%

Industrials 13.86% Liquidity

Financials 13.33%

Non-Cyclical Consumer Goods & Services 6.68%

Basic Materials 2.44%

Energy 1.87%

Utilities 1.31%

Telecommunication Services 0.69%

Sells, 49% Buys, 51%

10% 13% 6% 2% 1%
0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

5% 10% 25% 50% 100% 200% +

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 %

ADTV %

   PRE TRADE EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY 



Contra Costa County 

PRE-TRADE ANALYSIS 2
 

 

 

 

Implementation Shortfall: This strategy seeks to minimize cost by managing the risk associated with 
overnight market movement, estimated transaction costs, intra-day volatility and liquidity. The Vertas 
system employs institutional trading algorithms and accesses multiple liquidity sources to quantitatively 
"parcel" the portfolio relative to portfolio performance and market movement on the trade date in order 
to achieve proceeds improvement versus T-1 valuations. 
 

 
 

The Vertas venue-agnostic, liquidity seeking evaluation model utilizes real time trade cost analytics and 
conflict free order routing to optimally source liquidity from more than 45 execution alternatives in order 
to achieve best execution and timing without the revenue-driven concerns of “broker” owned dark pools 
and the associated potential conflicts of interest inherent in today’s decentralized market structure.  
 
In addition to the $8 trillion historical data set members of the Vertas team pioneered in the 
development of the industry’s first performance based broker selection model, our risk management 
oversight process now utilizes the industry’s first “Venue Neutral Liquidity Scorecard”, a proprietary, 
multi-factor client protection platform for monitoring intraday price movement and execution 
optimization. The “Scorecard” provides the Vertas Trade Oversight Team with enhanced state-of-the-art 
capability to monitor liquidity on a venue by venue basis and measure slippage versus a variety of real-
time benchmarks (T-1, implementation shortfall, arrival price, execution price before and after each 
execution, short term momentum and reversion and average fill size).  The result is a fully transparent, 
Fiduciary-compliant process that optimizes performance, reduces risk and ensures best execution with 
no conflicts of interest. 
 

 
  

Vertas Trading Strategy

Recommended Trading Strategy For This Trade: Implementation Shortfall

Liquidity Venue
Distribution of 

Executions

Slippage vs. 

2s Bmk (bps)

Slippage vs.  

5s Bmk (bps)

Slippage vs. 

10s Bmk (bps)
Post Lit

Remove 

Lit
Dark Route out Fill Rate

Avg. Exec. 

Size

ARCA 8.0% 0.58 0.59 0.98 23.9% 63.2% 0.0% 12.9% 31.6% 146

Broker/Venue A 12.0% 1.40 1.60 2.01 25.3% 61.2% 0.0% 13.5% 38.4% 122

Broker/Venue B 4.0% 1.68 1.86 1.99 21.9% 72.5% 0.0% 5.6% 20.4% 167

BATS 0.1% 3.14 3.18 2.92 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 10.9% 131

Broker/Venue C 2.3% 0.37 0.35 0.32 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 2.5% 178

BATS Y 20.6% -0.09 0.14 0.44 78.2% 21.8% 0.0% 0.0% 42.7% 112

Broker/Venue D 0.4% 3.27 3.71 3.96 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.8% 137

Broker/Venue E 1.1% -0.16 -0.17 -0.21 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 10.9% 155

Broker/Venue F 23.2% -0.93 -0.69 -0.22 93.1% 4.8% 0.0% 2.1% 66.8% 116

EDGA 3.0% 0.88 1.05 1.84 11.0% 78.8% 0.0% 10.2% 20.1% 184

EDGX 0.9% 4.91 5.19 5.34 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 2.0% 122

GETCO 1.0% 0.26 0.28 0.26 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 5.5% 160

NASDAQ 0.2% -0.22 -0.26 -0.44 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 3.4% 129

Broker/Venue G 1.2% 4.55 5.08 5.58 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 2.3% 214

Broker/Venue H 0.0% -0.08 -0.12 -0.08 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.2% 178

Broker/Venue I 0.6% 0.10 0.16 0.14 68.0% 32.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.1% 213

NASDAQ BOSX 9.0% 0.98 1.49 2.14 29.6% 67.9% 0.0% 2.6% 20.1% 145

NYSE 10.3% 0.95 1.41 1.84 9.8% 70.9% 0.0% 19.4% 62.5% 208

Broker/Venue J 2.0% 4.10 4.34 4.53 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 28.4% 127

TOTAL 100.00% 0.34 0.59 0.98 47.3% 36.8% 10.1% 5.8%

Liquidity Scorecard

The performance versus benchmark statistics show price reversion versus short term execution benchmarks, calculated by observing the mid-quote price X seconds before and 
after each execution. Positive numbers represent slippage relative to the benchmark average price. Negative values represent relative outperformance relative to the benchmark 
average price.   

*THE ABOVE TABLE IS A SAMPLE ONLY AND NOT INDICATIVE OF THE ACTUAL ROUTING OF YOUR TRADE NOR ITS' PERFORMANCE

TRADING STRATEGY 

BROKER SELECTION 



Contra Costa County 

PRE-TRADE ANALYSIS 3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Execution Type Market Value Shares % of Transition

Inkind Transfer 89,070,458.00$       800,372.00                                   15.71%

Traded Positions 477,979,801.00$     17,776,461.00                              84.29%

Total 567,050,259.00$     18,576,833.00                              100.00%

Bps $

Fixed Costs -1.65 (78,853.58)$                                 

Market Impact / Spread -54.70 (2,614,549.51)$                            

FX Spread Cost -1.96 (93,678.24)$                                 

Taxes & Fees -3.30 (157,675.53)$                               

Cost Subtotal -61.61 (2,944,756.86)$                            

-1σ +1σ

Volatility Range (Timing) Bps -16.90 16.90

$ ($807,785.86) $807,785.86

-1σ +1σ

Total Cost Range Bps -78.51 -44.71

$ ($3,752,542.72) ($2,136,970.99)

TRADE SUMMARY 

COST ESTIMATES 

-4
4
.7

1
 B

p
s 

-1σ +1σ 

-9
5
.4

1
 B

p
s 

-2
7
.8

1
 B

p
s +2σ -2σ 

 

-7
8
.5

1
 B

p
s 



Contra Costa County 

PRE-TRADE ANALYSIS 4
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 BROKER SELECTION 



Contra Costa County 

PRE-TRADE ANALYSIS 5
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Ticker Side Potential Timing Cost (Bps) % of Basket Value

VRX Buy -2.41 1.36%

DIB Buy -1.83 0.03%

2474 Buy -1.69 0.05%

2308 Buy -1.59 0.08%

6504 Buy -1.53 0.03%

6770 Buy -1.51 0.04%

2454 Buy -1.48 0.04%

3658 Sell -1.47 0.97%

YELP Buy -1.34 0.22%

3008 Buy -1.33 0.04%

Ticker Side Potential Liquidity Cost (Bps) % of Basket Value

JHX Sell -1,258.65 1.33%

RADL3 Sell -133.77 0.94%

6324 Sell -112.89 0.37%

ERF Sell -88.80 1.05%

IHS Sell -81.53 3.06%

ASC Sell -65.95 0.99%

REGN Sell -59.60 2.94%

MRKT Sell -57.06 1.39%

VRX Buy -52.06 1.36%

ZAL Sell -38.08 0.81%

TOP 10 OUTLIERS: LARGEST TIMING COST 

 

TOP 10 OUTLIERS: LARGEST LIQUIDITY COST 

 



Contra Costa County 

PRE-TRADE ANALYSIS 6
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

($10,000,000)

($5,000,000)

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

U
S 

D
ol

la
r

E
ur

o

S
w

is
s 

Fr
an

c

C
an

ad
ia

n 
D

ol
la

r

Ja
pa

ne
se

 Y
en

In
di

an
 R

up
ee

S
ou

th
 A

fri
ca

n 
C

en
ts

A
us

tra
lia

n 
D

ol
la

r

S
in

ga
po

re
 D

ol
la

r

N
or

w
eg

ia
n 

K
ro

ne

In
do

ne
si

an
 R

up
ia

h

U
AE

 D
irh

am

S
ou

th
 K

or
ea

n 
W

on

U
K 

Pe
nc

e

Ta
iw

an
 D

ol
la

r (
N

ew
)

B
ra

zi
lia

n 
R

ea
l

M
ex

ic
an

 P
es

o

D
an

is
h 

K
ro

ne

S
w

ed
is

h 
K

ro
na

H
on

g 
Ko

ng
 D

ol
la

r

($15,000,000)

($10,000,000)

($5,000,000)

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

C
an

ad
a

Fr
an

ce
Ire

la
nd

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
S

w
itz

er
la

nd
N

et
he

rla
nd

s
S

pa
in

Is
ra

el
Ja

pa
n

Fi
nl

an
d

In
di

a
A

us
tra

lia
B

el
gi

um
S

in
ga

po
re

S
ou

th
 A

fri
ca

N
or

w
ay

B
er

m
ud

a
P

or
tu

ga
l

D
en

m
ar

k
In

do
ne

si
a

U
ni

te
d 

Ar
ab

 E
m

ira
te

s
Ita

ly
H

on
g 

Ko
ng

Ta
iw

an
S

ou
th

 K
or

ea
G

er
m

an
y

B
ra

zi
l

M
ex

ic
o

Lu
xe

m
bo

ur
g

C
hi

na
S

w
ed

en
U

ni
te

d 
Ki

ng
do

m

CURRENCY DISTRIBUTION: 

COUNTRY TRADE BALANCE: 

Global DISCLOSURE: This pre trade report is an estimate of costs and is not a guarantee of future results. This document is for information purposes only, is not intended to 
provide a sufficient basis on which to make an investment decision and should not be regarded as an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any financial product. Vertas 
Brokerage Consulting is a unit of Percival Financial Partners, Ltd. The information in this document is confidential and intended for use only by the designated recipient(s). It 
is the property of Vertas Brokerage Consulting or its affiliates. If you are not the intended recipient, please return the document to Vertas Brokerage Consulting and destroy all 
copies of it, including any copies from your computer. Unauthorized use, disclosure, dissemination or copying of this document or any part hereof is strictly prohibited.  



Placement Agent 
Disclosures

March 24, 2016
CCCERA 112



CONTRA COSTA COUNTVEMPLOVEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT RE: USE OF PLACEMENT AGENTS 

The undersigned is a current or proposed "External Manager" for the Contra Costa 
County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA"), as defined under CCCERA's 
Placement Agent Disclosure Policy, adopted on June 9, 2010 ("Policy.") We have 
received a copy of the Policy from CCCERA. We hereby disclose to CCCERA the 
following information, which we represent and warrant to be true and correct as of the 
date hereof: 

1 . Neither we nor any of our principals, employees, agents or affiliates has 
compensated or agreed to compensate, directly or indirectly, any person or entity to 
act as a Placement Agent (as defined in the Policy) in connection with any 
investment by CCCERA, except as disclosed on Attachment 1 to this Disclosure 
Statement. 

[IF THERE IS NOTHING TO DISCLOSE IN ATTACHMENT 1, ITEMS 2·6 ARE 
INAPPLICABLE.] 

2. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 2 
to this Disclosure Statement a resume for each officer, partner or principal of the 
Placement Agent (and any employee providing similar services) detailing the 
person's education, professional designations, regulatory licenses and investment 
and work experience, and whether any such person is a current or former CCCERA 
Board member, employee or Consultant or a member of the immediate family of any 
such person. 

3. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 3 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of any and all compensation of any kind 
we have provided or have agreed to provide to a Placement Agent, including the 
nature, timing and value thereof. 

4. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 4 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of the services to be performed by the 
Placement Agent. 

5. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 5 
to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement Agent or any of its 
affiliates are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the 
Financial Industry Regulatory Association or any similar regulatory agent in a 
country other than the United States and the details of such registration or 
explanation of why no registration is required. 



6. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attached as 
Attachment 6 to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement 
Agent or any of its affiliates are registered as a lobbyist with any state or national 
government. 

We further represent and warrant as follows: 

A. We shall provide an update of any changes to any of the information included in 
this Disclosure Statement within fourteen (14) business days of the occurrence of the 
change in information. 

B. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, if any, prior to acting as a 
Placement Agent with regard to CCCERA, to disclose to CCCERA in writing any 
campaign contribution, gift (as defined in Government Code section 82028) or other 
item of value made or given to any member of the CCCERA Board or Staff, or 
Consultant (as defined in the Policy), during the prior twenty-four month period. 

C. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, during the time it is receiving 
compensation in connection with a CCCERA investment, to disclose to CCCERA any 
campaign contribution, gift or other item of value made or given to any member of the 
CCCERA Board or Staff, or Consultant, during such period. 

EXTERNAL MANAGER 

Name of Entity 

Print Name \..k\.\~k vl=t?tt\ P IOr-J 

Its \[il(....I e~S..\ De;N-\ 

2 



Please note that Taylor is my maiden name and attachments 5 and 6 are filed with the agencies and state 
with my married name of Samantha Chew.  
 
Attachment 1 
As an employee of BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A.  Samantha Taylor receives a salary and 
discretionary bonus, which is not in connection with any one investment and/or client.  See Attachment 3 
for more information on BlackRock’s approach to compensation. 
  
Attachment 2  
Samantha Taylor, Vice President, is a member of BlackRock's Institutional Client Business (ICB). She is 
responsible for developing and maintaining relationships with institutional investors, including private and 
public pension plans.  Prior to moving to her current role, she was responsible for developing and 
implementing marketing strategies and messaging within BlackRock’s Institutional Marketing team. Prior 
to joining Blackrock in 2010, Ms. Taylor was a Marketing Manager at Forward Management. She was 
responsible for all aspects of marketing for separately managed and institutional accounts. Prior to joining 
Forward Management in 2003, Ms. Taylor was an Associate Regional Director at ING Managed Account 
Group in New York where she was responsible for managing internal sales and client service for 
separately managed accounts for financial advisors. Ms. Taylor earned a BS degree in business 
administration from College of Charleston. Ms. Taylor has a FINRA Series 7 and a FINRA/SEC 66 
licenses. 
 
Attachment 3  
BlackRock's approach to compensation reflects the value senior management places on its employees 
and its client relationships.  Consequently, the compensation structure has been designed to attract and 
retain the best talent, to reinforce stability throughout the organization, to encourage teamwork, and to 
align our interests with those of our clients.  The predominant compensation model includes salary and a 
discretionary bonus reflecting firm, business area and individual performance and the success of the 
business product are.  There is no dollar amount specifically allocable to the proposed CCCERA 
investments. 
  
Attachment 4 
Samantha Taylor is an employee of BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A. (BTC) and associated 
with a BlackRock affiliated broker dealer.  As an employee of BTC, Placement Agent acts as account 
manager to various institutional accounts managed by BTC and its affiliates. 
  
Attachment 5 
Samantha Taylor is registered with the Financial Regulatory Association (FINRA) and the Securities 
Exchange Commission (SEC). 
 
Attachment 6   
Samantha Taylor is registered as a lobbyist with the State of California. 
 
 
 
  



Attachment 1 
As an employee of BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. Laura Champion receives a salary and 
discretionary bonus, which is not in connection with any one investment and/or client.  See Attachment 3 
for more information on BlackRock's approach to compensation. 
 
Attachment 2 
Laura Champion, Vice President, is a member of the US and Canada Institutional team within 
BlackRock's Institutional Client Business. She is responsible for developing and maintaining relationships 
with institutional investors, including public and private pension plans, foundations and endowments. 
 
Ms. Champion's service with the firm dates back to 2011. Before assuming her current responsibilities, 
Ms. Champion previously worked as a Business Development Associate in iShares within the Wealth 
Advisory channel where she was responsible for developing and maintaining relationships with financial 
advisors across the retail business. Prior to joining BlackRock in 2011, Laura worked for Bank of America 
Merrill Lynch in Institutional Equity Research Sales in San Francisco where she focused on developing 
and maintaining relationships with institutional investors, corporate management teams and research 
analysts with an emphasis on regional roadshow coordination and marketing. 
 
Ms. Champion received a B.A. in Global and International Studies and a B.A. in French Literature from 
the University of California Santa Barbara. She holds the Series 7 and 63 licenses. 
 
Attachment 3 
BlackRock's approach to compensation reflects the value senior management places on its employees 
and its client relationships.  Consequently, the compensation structure has been designed to attract and 
retain the best talent, to reinforce stability throughout the organization, to encourage teamwork, and to 
align our interests with those of our clients.  The predominant compensation model includes salary and a 
discretionary bonus reflecting firm, business area and individual performance and the success of the 
business product are.  There is no dollar amount specifically allocable to the proposed CCCERA 
investments. 
 
Attachment 4 
Laura Champion is an employee of BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.(BFM) and associated with a 
BlackRock affiliated broker dealer.  As an employee of BFM, Placement Agent acts as account manager 
to various institutional accounts managed by BFM and its affiliates, including BlackRock Institutional Trust 
Company, N.A. (BTC, which manages Transition Management mandates). 
 
Attachment 5 
Laura Champion is registered with FINRA as Registered Representatives of BlackRock Investments, LLC 
(BRIL), an affiliated broker-dealer of BFM and BTC. 
 
Attachment 6   
Laura Champion is registered as a lobbyist with the State of California. 
 
 
 



CONTRA COSTA COUNTYEMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT RE: USE OF PLACEMENT AGENTS 

The undersigned is a current or proposed "External Manager" for the Contra Costa 
County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA"), as defined under CCCERA's 
Placement Agent Disclosure Policy, adopted on June 9, 201 O ("Policy.") We have 
received a copy of the Policy from CCCERA. We hereby disclose to CCCERA the 
following information, which we represent and warrant to be true and correct as of the 
date hereof: 

1. Neither we nor any of our principals, employees, agents or affiliates has 
compensated or agreed to compensate, directly or indirectly, any person or entity to 
act as a Placement Agent (as defined in the Policy) in connection with any 
investment by CCCERA, except as disclosed on Attachment 1 to this Disclosure 
Statement. 

[IF THERE IS NOTHING TO DISCLOSE IN ATTACHMENT 1, ITEMS 2-6 ARE 
INAPPLICABLE.] 

2. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 2 
to this Disclosure Statement a resume for each officer, partner or principal of the 
Placement Agent (and any employee providing similar services) detailing the 
person's education, professional designations, regulatory licenses and investment 
and work experience, and whether any such person is a current or former CCCERA 
Board member, employee or Consultant or a member of the immediate family of any 
such person. 

3. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 3 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of any and all compensation of any kind 
we have provided or have agreed to provide to a Placement Agent, including the 
nature, timing and value thereof. 

4. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 4 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of the services to be performed by the 
Placement Agent. 

5. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 5 
to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement Agent or any of its 
affiliates are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the 
Financial Industry Regulatory Association or any similar regulatory agent in a 
country other than the United States and the details of such registration or 
explanation of why no registration is required. 

1 



6. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attached as 
Attachment 6 to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement 
Agent or any of its affiliates are registered as a lobbyist with any state or national 
government. 

We further represent and warrant as follows: 

A. We shall provide an update of any changes to any of the information included in 
this Disclosure Statement within fourteen (14) business days of the occurrence of the 
change in information. 

B. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, if any, prior to acting as a 
Placement Agent with regard to CCCERA, to disclose to CCCERA in writing any 
campaign contribution, gift (as defined in Government Code section 82028) or other 
item of value made or given to any member of the CCCERA Board or Staff, or 
Consultant (as defined in the Policy), during the prior twenty-four month period. 

C. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, during the time it is receiving 
compensation in connection with a CCCERA investment, to disclose to CCCERA any 
campaign contribution, gift or other item of value made or given to any member of the 
CCCERA Board or Staff, or Consultant, during such period. 

EXTERNAL MANAGER 

Clirrw t/J,/f!aJJk 
afll'e of 'Entity 

By: ,~~ 
uthOfiZed Signatory 

Print Name !J,111/t~ Jlv//; /'!M111 /I 
/ 

2 



1 

 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTYEMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT RE: USE OF PLACEMENT AGENTS 

The undersigned is a current or proposed "External Manager" for the Contra Costa 
County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA"), as defined under CCCERA's 
Placement Agent Disclosure Policy, adopted on June 9, 2010 ("Policy.")  We have 
received a copy of the Policy from CCCERA.  We hereby disclose to CCCERA the 
following information, which we represent and warrant to be true and correct as of the 
date hereof:  

1.  Neither we nor any of our principals, employees, agents or affiliates has 
compensated or agreed to compensate, directly or indirectly, any person or entity to 
act as a Placement Agent (as defined in the Policy) in connection with any 
investment by CCCERA, except as disclosed on Attachment 1 to this Disclosure 
Statement.  

 
[IF THERE IS NOTHING TO DISCLOSE IN ATTACHMENT 1, ITEMS 2-6 ARE 

INAPPLICABLE.] 
 
2.  To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 2 

to this Disclosure Statement a resume for each officer, partner or principal of the 
Placement Agent (and any employee providing similar services) detailing the 
person’s education, professional designations, regulatory licenses and investment 
and work experience, and whether any such person is a current or former CCCERA 
Board member, employee or Consultant or a member of the immediate family of any 
such person.  

 
3.  To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 3 

to this Disclosure Statement a description of any and all compensation of any kind 
we have provided or have agreed to provide to a Placement Agent, including the 
nature, timing and value thereof. 

 
4.  To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 4 

to this Disclosure Statement a description of the services to be performed by the 
Placement Agent.  

 
5.  To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 5 

to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement Agent or any of its 
affiliates are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the 
Financial Industry Regulatory Association or any similar regulatory agent in a 
country other than the United States and the details of such registration or 
explanation of why no registration is required.  



2 

 

6. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attached as 
Attachment 6 to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement 
Agent or any of its affiliates are registered as a lobbyist with any state or national 
government. 

 
We further represent and warrant as follows: 
 
A. We shall provide an update of any changes to any of the information included in 
this Disclosure Statement within fourteen (14) business days of the occurrence of the 
change in information.  

 
B. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, if any, prior to acting as a 
Placement Agent with regard to CCCERA, to disclose to CCCERA in writing any 
campaign contribution, gift (as defined in Government Code section 82028) or other 
item of value made or given to any member of the CCCERA Board or Staff, or 
Consultant (as defined in the Policy), during the prior twenty-four month period. 

 
 C. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, during the time it is receiving 

compensation in connection with a CCCERA investment, to disclose to CCCERA any 
campaign contribution, gift or other item of value made or given to any member of the 
CCCERA Board or Staff, or Consultant, during such period. 
 
 
 
Dated:  ______________________  EXTERNAL MANAGER 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
       Name of Entity 
 
 
      By:  _____________________________ 
       Authorized Signatory 
 
      Print Name________________________ 
 
      Its _______________________________ 
        
 
 

March 17, 2016

Penserra Transition Management LLC

George Madrigal

CEO



CONTRA COSTA COUNTYEMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT RE: USE OF PLACEMENT AGENTS 

The undersigned is a current or proposed "External Manager" for the Contra Costa 
County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA"), as defined under CCCERA's 
Placement Agent Disclosure Policy, adopted on June 9, 201 O ("Policy.") We have 
received a copy of the Policy from CCCERA. We hereby disclose to CCCERA the 
following information, which we represent and warrant to be true and correct as of the 
date hereof: 

1. Neither we nor any of our principals, employees, agents or affiliates has 
compensated or agreed to compensate, directly or indirectly, any person or entity to 
act as a Placement Agent (as defined in the Policy) in connection with any 
investment by CCCERA, except as disclosed on Attachment 1 to this Disclosure 
Statement. 

[IF THERE IS NOTHING TO DISCLOSE IN ATTACHMENT 1, ITEMS 2-6 ARE 
INAPPLICABLE.] 

2. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Atiachment 2 
to this Disclosure Statement a resume for each officer, partner or principal of the 
Placement Agent (and any employee providing similar services) detailing the 
person's education, professional designations, regulatory licenses and investment 
and work experience, and whether any such person is a current or former CCCERA 
Board member, employee or Consultant or a member of the immediate family of any 
such person. 

3. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 3 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of any and all compensation of any kind 
we have provided or have agreed to provide to a Placement Agent, including the 
nature, timing and value thereof. 

4. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 4 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of the services to be performed by the 
Placement Agent. 

5. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 5 
to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement Agent or any of its 
affiliates are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the 
Financial Industry Regulatory Association or any similar regulatory agent in a 
country other than the United States and the details of such registration or 
explanation of why no registration is required. 

1 



6. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attached as 
Attachment 6 to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement 
Agent or any of its affiliates are registered as a lobbyist with any state or national 
government. 

We further represent and warrant as follows: 

A. We shall provide an update of any changes to any of the information included in 
this Disclosure Statement within fourteen (14) business days of the occurrence of the 
change in information. 

B. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, if any, prior to acting as a 
Placement Agent with regard to CCCERA, to disclose to CCCERA in writing any 
campaign contribution, gift (as defined in Government Code section 82028) or other 
item of value made or given to any member of the CCCERA Board or Staff, or 
Consultant (as defined in the Policy), during the prior twenty-four month period. 

C. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, during the time it is receiving 
compensation in connection with a CCCERA investment, to disclose to CCCERA any 
campaign contribution, gift or other item of value made or given to any member of the 
CCCERA Board or Staff, or Consultant, during such period. 

EXTERNAL MANAGER 

1·---)\_ \ ~.) fj i_ \ ... 1... ·~·:s '{;;\ }\ '+ \{j ·! :'\-+··;::)-\·~·"Ci{\ 
Name of Entity 

Print Name ___ .-_/1;1;_;f+--"'l~·~72_· _Lt_ckv~·~ 

2 

Troy L Rucker 
Managing Director 

Russeil lmplamenatlon Services Inc. 



Attachment 1 

Steve Cauble, an employee of Russell Investment Group, acts as a Placement Agent (as defined in the 

Policy) in connection with investments by CCCERA. 

Brittany Meisner, an employee of Russell Investment Group, acts as a Placement Agent (as defined in 

the Policy) in connection with investments by CCCERA through contact with their Consultant. 

  



Attachment 2 

Education, professional designations, regulatory licenses and investment and work experience for Steve 

Cauble and Brittany Meisner are below.  Neither Steve nor Brittany is a current or former CCCERA Board 

member, employee or Consultant or a member of the immediate family of any such person. 

Steve Cauble, Regional Director - Americas Institutional 
B.A. in Finance from the University of Arizona.  
Licensed Registered Representative, FINRA Series 7 and 66. 
 
Steve Cauble is a regional director for Russell Investments’ Americas institutional business. He leads 
Russell’s business relationships with major corporate and public pension plan clients and other large 
pools of capital in the western U.S.  Steve is responsible for coordinating Russell’s advice, asset 
management, and implementation resources to create customized investment solutions to improve 
fund performance and reduce risk for clients. 
 
Steve joined Russell in 2001 with the Analytical Services group.  In his previous role, he worked as a 

strategic partner to plan sponsors, leveraging the Russell Indexes, peer group universe data, and risk and 

analytics tools to monitor investment managers and overall fund performance. 

Prior to joining Russell, Steve spent four years in London with WRQ Incorporated, where he established 

WRQ UK, Plc, a Regional office providing sales and technical support to clients in the UK, Ireland, and 

South Africa. 

Steve started his career at Rank Xerox New Zealand, Ltd. and Xerox Corporation where was active in 

sales, management, and product launch specialist roles. 

Steve is a registered representative of Russell Institutional Services Inc., an SEC registered investment 

adviser and FINRA member firm.  

Brittany N. Meisner, CFA, CAIA - Regional Director, U.S. Consultant Relations, Americas Institutional 

B.S., Business Finance, University of Nevada, Las Vegas 

Licensed Registered Representative, FINRA Series 7, 66 

 

Brittany Meisner is a Regional Director for the Consultant Relations group of the Americas Institutional 

business at Russell Investments.  Brittany communicates Russell’s value to institutional consultants 

through Russell’s defined contribution services, investment management and implementation 

management services. 

Brittany became a member of Russell’s Americas Institutional Group in August 2015.  Prior to joining 

Russell Brittany was a member of the Consultant Relations team at Neuberger Berman where she was 

responsible for assisting in the development of the firm’s institutional consultant relationships.  Prior to 

Neuberger Berman Brittany was a Senior Marketing and Research Associate for the Institutional 

Consultant Relations team at Nuveen Investments.  She began her career as a Senior Performance 

Analyst at NEPC. 

Brittany is a CFA® charterholder and is a member of the CFA Society of Chicago and Seattle.  She has 

earned the Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst designation. 



Attachment 3 

 

Russell Investment Group has not previously provided any placement agent compensation of any kind 

relating to CCCERA.  To date we have not done any business with CCCERA. 

 

Were CCCERA to contract with Russell Investment Group compensation would be made to Steve Cauble 

and Brittany Meisner as per their compensation packages. 

Steve Cauble’s compensation is based off a percentage of revenue to Russell ranging from 5%-20% and 

is payable upon receipt for payment of services rendered. 

Brittany Meisner’s compensation is a discretionary bonus taking into account relationships won and lost 

as well as other performance based metrics. 

 

  



Attachment 4 

Please refer to Attachment 2 for a description of services performed by each Placement Agent. 

  



Attachment 5 

Details of the registrations Russell Institutional Services Inc. are below: 

• Registered as a broker-dealer with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and the 

States of Washington, Ohio, New York, Rhode Island, Texas and Vermont. 

• Registered as an investment advisor with the SEC. 

• Member firm of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), with worldwide brokerage 

correspondent relationships.  Exempt from registration as an international dealer with the Ontario 

Securities Commission. 

• Registered as an MSRB and appointed to the Irish Regulatory Authority. 

• Subject to examination and reporting requirements of the SEC and FINRA. 

• Cleared by Central Bank of Ireland to act as an investment manager of Irish funds (since August 20, 

2007). 

 

Steve Cauble is a Licensed Registered Representative, FINRA Series 7 and 66. 
Brittany Meisner is a Licensed Registered Representative, FINRA Series 7 and 66. 
  



Attachment 6 
 

Steve Cauble is not registered as a lobbyist with any state or national government. 
Brittany Meisner is not registered as a lobbyist with any state or national government. 
 



CONTRA COSTA COUNTYEMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT RE: USE OF PLACEMENT AGENTS 

The undersigned is a current or proposed "External Manager'' for the Contra Costa 
County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA"), as defined under CCCERA's 
Placement Agent Disclosure Policy, adopted on June 9, 2010 ("Policy.") We have 
received a copy of the Policy from CCCERA. We hereby disclose to CCC ERA the 
following information, which we represent and warrant to be true and correct as of the 
date hereof: 

1. Neither we nor any of our principals, employees, agents or affiliates has 
compensated or agreed to compensate, directly or indirectly, any person or entity to 
act as a Placement Agent (as defined in the Policy) in connection with any 
investment by CCCERA, except as disclosed on Attachment 1 to this Disclosure 
Statement. 

[IF THERE IS NOTHING TO DISCLOSE IN ATTACHMENT 1, ITEMS 2-6 ARE 
INAPPLICABLE.] 

2. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 2 
to this Disclosure Statement a resume for each officer, partner or principal of the 
Placement Agent (and any employee providing similar services) detailing the 
person's education, professional designations, regulatory licenses and investment 
and work experience, and whether any such person is a current or former CCCERA 
Board member, employee or Consultant or a member of the immediate family of any 
such person. 

3. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 3 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of any and all compensation of any kind 
we have provided or have agreed to provide to a Placement Agent, including the 
nature, timing and value thereof. 

4. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 4 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of the services to be performed by the 
Placement Agent. 

5. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 5 
to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement Agent or any of its 
affiliates are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the 
Financial Industry Regulatory Association or any similar regulatory agent in a 
country other than the United States and the details of such registration or 
explanation of why no registration is required. 



6. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attached as 
Attachment 6 to th is Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement 
Agent or any of its affiliates are registered as a lobbyist with any state or national 
government. 

We further represent and warrant as follows: 

A. We shall provide an update of any changes to any of the information included in 
this Disclosure Statement within fourteen (14) business days of the occurrence of the 
change in information . 

B. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, if any, prior to acting as a 
Placement Agent with regard to CCCERA. to disclose to CCCERA in writing any 
campaign contribution , gift (as defined in Government Code section 82028) or other 
item of value made or given to any member of the CCCERA Board or Staff, or 
Consultant (as defined in the Policy), during the prior twenty-four month period. 

C. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, during the time it is receiving 
compensation in connection with a CCCERA investment, to disclose to CCCERA any 
campaign contribution, gift or other item of value made or given to any member of the 
CCCERA Board or Staff, or Consultant, during such period. 

Dated: 3/17/2016 EXTERNAL MANAGER 

Percival Financial Partners, Ltd. d/b/a Vertas 

Name qf Entity 

sy:~.~~jf_.____v--"---fi;u_, __ 
Autnorized Signatory 

Print Name Kenneth P. Taylor.Sr. 

Its President/CEO 

2 



Attachment 1 

 

Percival Financial Partners d/b/a Vertas Brokerage Consulting has agreed to compensate 
Cary Hally.  Not in connection with any investment as the policy states, but in connection 
with transition services. 

 

   



 

Attachment 2 

 

Kenneth Taylor, Sr. is the only officer, partner or principal of Vertas. 

Mr. Taylor began Percival Financial Partners, Ltd. in October 1996. Prior to starting his own 
firm, he was Vice President for National development at a Maryland based investment 
banking firm, and VP at a local Maryland bank for 17 years. Mr. Taylor holds a B.A. degree in 
economics from Morgan State University. His current licenses include: Series 6, 7, 24, 28 and 
63. 

   



 

Attachment 3 

Cary Hally is a full time employee paid a salary plus a sliding scale (10%‐15%) of all revenue 
generated by any of his accounts.  CCCERA will be designated as his account, so to the extent 
there are fees generated, he will get his resulting commission.   Again Cary Hally works only 
for Vertas and is an internal employee of the company. 

 

   



 

Attachment 4 

Cary Hally will be the direct liaison with the fund and its investment consultant.  He will 
ensure that the lead consultant and administration team at Vertas is aware of any and all 
issues with CCCERA and will ensure daily that the proper human assets are made available 
when and if our services are needed.  He will help do any on‐site and telephonic pre and 
post trade reporting and manage the relationship. 

 

   



 

Attachment 5 

 

Cary Hally is Series 7/63 registered with FINRA. 

   



 

Attachment 6 

 

Cary Hally is not registered as a lobbyist with any governmental entity. 



MAY 25, 2016

Cash Overlay Providers

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association



VERUSINVESTMENTS.COM

SEATTLE  206‐622‐3700
LOS ANGELES  310‐297‐1777

SAN FRANCISCO  415‐362‐3484

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and eligible 
institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, outlooks, projections and 
other “forward‐looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing 
entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment 
Advisors Act of 1940, as amended. 

Table of contents

Overview 3

Overlay providers 8

Recommendation 11

Appendix 13

Manager evaluations 17

Placement Agent Disclosures 24

2



Overview

3
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



INTENDED PORTFOLIO ACTUAL PORTFOLIO

The challenge

— Excess cash prevents the portfolio from being fully invested according to policy

 Example: a 60/40 portfolio with 4% cash may actually be a 58/38/4 portfolio

— Tracking error thus results from the portfolio being out of balance relative to its policy

— Over time, cash generates a “drag” on return since it underperforms most other asset classes

60%

40%

Stocks Bonds

58%

38%

4%

Stocks Bonds Cash

Holding cash in a portfolio is usually necessary, but comes with side effects

4
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



PORTFOLIO WITHOUT CASH OVERLAY PORTFOLIO WITH CASH OVERLAY

The solution
— Through the use of derivatives, cash overlay strategies efficiently gain exposures in a portfolio 

to reduce the effects of holding cash.

— Derivatives allow the portfolio to gain the expected exposures to various asset classes without 
investing in the “physical” securities.

— Overlay strategies may “equitize” the cash position or rebalance a portfolio as desired.

— For CCCERA, overlay offers operational efficiency to effect general asset class rebalancing 
while specific investment strategies are being identified

5
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Services and expected benefits

Strategy Expected Benefit

Cash equitization / liquidity management Improve returns and flexibility

Passive rebalancing / asset allocation Allows the realignment of asset class exposures 
without the transaction costs associated with 
physicals and does not disrupt underlying managers

Duration matching / liability‐driven investing Provide low cost and flexible means to modify 
effective duration or to match assets to liabilities

Volatility management Provides flexibility for cheaply adjusting beta risk and 
implementing hedges

Active insights Discretionary tilts and active management with the 
goals of increasing returns

6
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Overlay provider search
— Verus conducted a search on behalf of CCCERA for the following overlay services:

 Cash equitization – Will allow CCCERA to maintain its 1% cash allocation in order 
to meet its liquidity needs while neutralizing the drag on performance associated 
with holding cash over the long term; and/or

 Rebalancing – Will provide CCCERA with a flexible and cost efficient means of 
maintaining target asset class exposures.

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 7



Overlay providers

8
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Provider details

9

Parametric Portfolio Associates, LLC Russell Investments State Street Global Advisors

Headquarters Seattle, WA Seattle, WA Boston, MA

Firm Inception 1987 1936 1792

Overlay Service Inception 1987 1992 1995

Ownership Majority‐owned subsidiary of Eaton 
Vance Corp.

Will be owned by TA Associates and 
Reverence Capital Partners

Wholly‐owned subsidiary of State Street 
Corporation

Indicative Fee Schedule ‐ $1,500/month plus
‐ 0.15% first $50 mil of notional value
‐ 0.10% on the next $100 mil
‐ 0.05% on the next $350 mil
‐ 0.03% on the next $500 mil
‐ 0.02% thereafter

‐ Minimum Fee: $75,000 per year

‐ Option 1: Annual $200,000 base fee 
plus
‐ 0.015% to 0.05% of notional value

‐ Option 2: Annual $50,000 base fee 
plus
‐ 0.05% to 0.10% of notional value

‐ 0.05% first $100 mil of notional value
‐ 0.04% next $400 mil of notional value
‐ 0.03% thereafter
‐ Minimum Fee: $50,000 per year

Fees at notional
amounts:

$250mm
$500mm

$1,000mm

$243,000
$368,000
$518,000

$175,000 ‐ $325,000
$275,000 ‐ $550,000
$350,000 ‐ $1,050,000

$110,000
$210,000
$360,000

Product Mix ‐ Fund cash equitization
‐ Manager cash equitization
‐ Overlay transition and reallocation 

management
‐ Rebalancing
‐ Exposure management
‐ Currency management
‐ Interest rate management

‐ Cash equitization
‐ Exposure management
‐ Beta management for portable alpha
‐ Liability‐driven investing
‐ Fund restructuring
‐ Tactical asset allocation
‐ Currency overlays
‐ Liquidity management

‐ Beta replication
‐ Liquidity management / cash 

equitization
‐ Completion
‐ Custom hedging
‐ Currency management
‐ Tactical overlay
‐ Income generation

Sources: Parametric, Russell, State Street

May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Provider details (continued)

10

Parametric Portfolio Associates, LLC Russell Investments State Street Global Advisors

Reporting Daily tracking report available online 
which include
‐ fund cash levels
‐ manager values
‐ asset class exposures
‐ margin summary
‐ custom portfolio metrics

Customized reporting that can include:
‐ synthetic index replication analysis
‐ counterparty exposure
‐ total fund risk management
‐ liquidity at risk
‐ overlay highlights

Full suite of customizable daily reporting 
that can include:
‐ portfolio exposures
‐ manager balances
‐ summary of flows
‐ attribution
‐ counterparty exposure

Advantages ‐ Core business is focused on portfolio 
solutions

‐ Experience with highly customized 
overlays 

‐ Extensive use of asset class, sub‐
asset class, and style specific 
instruments including futures, 
forwards, swaps, and ETFs 

‐ Daily tracking reports available 
online

‐ Low relative base fee

‐ Experience with large overlay
mandates

‐ Largest asset base
‐ Two separate fee structures available
‐ Customized reporting available

‐ Most competitive fee structure
‐ Overlay management is a core 

business at SSGA
‐ Experience with highly customized 

overlays 
‐ Extensive use of asset class, sub‐

asset class, and style specific 
instruments including futures, 
forwards, and ETFs 

‐ Customized reporting available
‐ Global trading desk

Considerations ‐ Smaller relative client and asset base
‐ High relative asset based fee

‐ Two ownership changes since 2014
‐ High relative base fee (specifically 

“option 1”)
‐ Overlay exposures gained primarily 

through the use of broad market 
futures

‐ Smallest relative client and asset 
base.

Sources: Parametric, Russell, State Street

May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Recommendation

11
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Overlay provider recommendation
— Retain Parametric as the overlay manager subject to due diligence, a 

successful onsite visit, and legal review by authorizing the Chief Executive 
Officer to execute the necessary agreements. 

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 12



Appendix

13
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Risks
Risk Description

Basis risk Risk attributable to uncertain movements in the spread between a futures price and a spot price

Communication / Information risk Overlay index exposures are maintained based on underlying investment values provided by one 
or more third parties.  There are often delays in the receipt of updated information which can lead 
to exposure imbalance risks.  Inadequate communication regarding cash flow moves into and out 
of fund and manager changes can lead to unwanted asset class exposures and loss.

Tracking error Futures (synthetic) returns do not perfectly track benchmark index returns. This divergence 
between the price behavior of a position or portfolio and the price behavior of a benchmark is 
tracking error and impacts performance.

Margin /  Liquidity risk Potential that the market moves in a manner adverse to the futures or swap position causing a 
mark‐to‐market loss of capital to the fund and a resulting need to raise liquidity or to close 
positions; this could happen at a time when underlying fund or positions are also declining in 
value.

Leverage Creation of market exposure in excess of underlying collateral value may lead to significant capital 
losses and result in position liquidation.

Counterparty Counterparty credit risk on OTC trading and trade disruption risk related to exchange traded 
futures.

Collateral The program may experience losses on the underlying designated assets in addition to potential 
losses on the index market exposure overlaying these assets. 

Market risk Market performs in a way that was not anticipated. For example, cash outperforms capital 
markets.

14
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Forwards and Futures
— Forward contracts: More credit risk, price fixed at the start, cash flows settled on delivery

 Traded OTC as customized contracts that are privately negotiated between parties

 Entail more credit risk and market risk as they are not backed by the exchange’s clearing house

 Settled at the forward price agreed on at the trade date

 No cash flows until delivery

— Futures contracts: Protected by clearing house, price fixed on last trading day, cash flows settled with 
margin calls

 Exchange traded, standardized instruments transacted through brokerage firms

 Default exposure lives with the exchange’s clearing house

 Settled at the settlement price fixed on the last trading day of the contract

 Requires initial margin and periodic margin calls

— Similarities: Forward settlement via cash or physical asset, require leverage

 Both contracts are binding agreements to act at a later date

 May be physically settled or cash settled

 Both require leverage

15
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Notices & disclosures
Past performance is no guarantee of future results.   The information presented in this report is  provided pursuant to the contractual agreement (the “Contract”) by 
and between Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (“Client”) and Verus Advisory, Inc. (“Company”). In the event of conflict between the terms of this 
disclosure and the Contract, the Contract shall take precedence. Client is an institutional counter‐party and in no event should the information presented be relied upon 
by a retail investor. 

The information presented has been prepared by the Company from sources that it believes to be reliable and the Company has exercised all reasonable professional 
care in preparing the information presented. However, the Company cannot guarantee the accuracy of the information contained therein. The Company shall not be 
liable to Client or any third party for inaccuracy or in‐authenticity of information obtained or received from third parties in the analysis or for any errors or omissions in 
content.  

The information presented does not purport to be all‐inclusive nor does it contain all information that the Client may desire for its purposes. The information presented 
should be read in conjunction with any other material furnished by the Company. The Company will be available, upon request, to discuss the information presented in 
the report that Client may consider necessary, as well as any information needed to verify the accuracy of the information set forth therein, to the extent Company 
possesses the same or can acquire it without unreasonable effort or expense. Nothing contained therein is, or should be relied on as, a promise, representation, or 
guarantee as to future performance or a particular outcome. Even with portfolio diversification, asset allocation, and a long‐term approach, investing involves risk of 
loss that the client should be prepared to bear.  

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward‐looking statements.” Such statements can be identified by the use of terminology such as 
“believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipates,” or the negative of any of the foregoing or comparable terminology, or by discussion of strategy, or 
assumptions such as economic conditions underlying other statements. No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward‐looking 
information will be achieved. Actual events may differ significantly from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Risk controls and 
models do not promise any level of performance or guarantee against loss of principal.

16
May 25, 2016
CCCERA



Manager evaluations

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 17



 
Overlay Services Manager Evaluation 
Parametric Portfolio Associates, LLC 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: Seattle, WA 

Firm Inception: 1987 (Parametric) 

1972 (predecessor firm) 

Overlay Services 
Inception: 

1987  

Ownership: Majority-owned subsidiary 
of Eaton Vance Corp. 

Product Mix: Fund cash equitization 

Manager cash equitization 

Overlay transition and 
reallocation management 

Rebalancing 

Exposure management 

Currency management 

Interest rate management 

Indicative Fee 
Schedule: 

$1,500/month plus: 

- 0.15% first $50 mil 
of notional value 

- 0.10% on the next 
$100 mil 

- 0.05% on the next 
$350 mil 

- 0.03% on the next 
$500 mil 

- 0.02% thereafter 

Minimum Fee: $75,000 per 
year 

Fee at notional 
amounts: 

$250mm 

$500mm 

$1,000mm 

 

 
$293,000 

$543,000 

$1,043,000 

 
Firm Background and History 
Parametric Portfolio Associates, founded in 1987, is a 
majority-owned subsidiary of Eaton Vance Corp that 
focuses on the delivery of engineered portfolio solutions, 
including rules-based alpha-seeking equity, alternative and 
options strategies, as well as implementation services 
including tax-managed core equity, futures overlay and 
centralized portfolio management.  
 
Eaton Vance owns 93% of the firm with the remaining 
equity ownership at Parametric distributed among senior 
management and investment professionals. Parametric is 
comprised of three investment centers – Seattle 
(headquarters), Minneapolis and Westport, CT. The firm’s 
institutional overlay strategies reside within the 
Minneapolis investment center which was formerly The 
Clifton Group (founded in 1972) prior to Parametric’s 
acquisition of the firm in 2012.  
 
As of December 31, 2015, Parametric had 318 employees, 
including 76 investment professionals, and approximately 
$152bn in assets under management including $65bn in 
overlay strategies managed out of Minneapolis.  
 
Strategy Background 
Parametric has over 30 years of exposure management 
experience dating back to The Clifton Group. The firm’s 
cash overlay services are known internally at Parametric as 
Policy Implementation Overlay Services (PIOS). The 
objectives of PIOS are to: 1) increase day-to-day 
availability of cash and provide operational efficiency for 
cash flow management, 2) eliminate performance drag 
due to unintended cash, 3) enable staff to obtain a daily 
snapshot of total fund exposures, and 4) maintain asset 
class exposure during manager changes.  
 
 



 

2 

Key Investment Professionals 
The Minneapolis investment center’s team is experienced 
and deep with 35 investment professionals and 80 team 
members in total, and is focused predominantly on 
providing overlay services. Minneapolis CIO Jack Hansen 
has been with the firm for more than 30 years.  
 
Parametric uses a team approach whereby no one 
individual manages a client portfolio. Parametric believes 
that the team approach is a key aspect in providing clients 
with continuity as it mitigates the risks involved with the 
departure of key personnel, and brings together the 
experience and perspective of a number of investment 
professionals. Each team consists of portfolio managers 
and investment analysts who all work closely together to 
manage each client’s overlay mandate. 
 
Process 
Parametric’s cash overlay program provides an efficient 
way for portfolios to maintain their target asset allocation 
in a systematic fashion through cash securitization at the 
fund and manager level and to rebalance asset classes 
back to target within defined bands.  
 
The process for establishing an overlay program begins 
with the creation of detailed investment policy guidelines. 
Parametric works with the client’s staff, board, and 
consultant in developing an overlay investment philosophy 
to reflect specific fund objectives. Items to be determined 
include: assets to be incorporated in the program, target 
allocations, how cash is to be applied to the overlay 
program, fund rebalancing thresholds, asset class 
benchmarks, and reporting needs. The final guideline 
document is used to determine how overlay positions are 
adjusted as markets, exposures, and cash balances change 
over time. 
 
The cash overlay program is invested using a wide array of 
instruments including futures, forwards, swaps, index 
funds, and ETFs. The decision to use specific instruments is 
made based on client guidelines, market availability of 

instruments for the specific asset class or sub-asset class, 
liquidity, tracking error, and cost.  
 
Cash balances are reviewed daily by Parametric’s analysts 
and portfolio managers, and changes to exposures are 
made based on the client’s guidelines. All open futures 
positions are marked-to-market daily, and trades are 
reviewed and verified by the portfolio management team 
and trade order managements system prior to execution 
to ensure compliance with policy guidelines.  A daily 
account specific tracking report is posted to Parametric’s 
website for client viewing that includes a comprehensive 
view of the portfolio’s exposures including fund cash 
levels, manager values, asset class exposures and 
imbalances relative to target allocations, margin summary, 
and custom portfolio metrics (e.g. funded ratio). 
 
Risk Management 
Parametric seeks to minimize risks through a team-based 
portfolio management approach that utilizes electronic 
trade confirmation, a daily portfolio monitoring process, 
and operational safeguards including daily mark-to-market 
and segregated margin accounts. Parametric also utilizes a 
proprietary risk management system that incorporates 
accounting, trading and portfolio management functions.  
 
Performance 
Parametric estimates that a 2% residual cash balance over 
the last 10 years in a plan with a policy mix of 60% 
equities, 35% fixed income, and 5% commodities would 
have resulted in performance slippage of 9 bps per year. 
 
Potential Concerns 
Minneapolis CIO Jack Hansen remains actively involved in 
the firm; however, succession planning should be 
monitored given that Hansen has been with Parametric for 
over 30 years. 
 
Smaller relative client and asset base. 
 
Higher relative asset based fee. 
 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 



 
Overlay Services Manager Evaluation 
Russell Investments 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: Seattle, WA 

Firm Inception: 1936 

Overlay Services 
Inception: 

1992 

Ownership: Will be owned by TA 
Associates and Reverence 
Capital Partners 

Product Mix: Cash equitization 

Exposure management 

Beta management for 
portable alpha 

Liability-driven investing 

Fund restructuring 

Tactical asset allocation 

Currency overlays 

Liquidity management 

Indicative Fee 
Schedule: 

Option 1: Annual $200,000 
base fee plus: 

- 0.015% to 0.05% of 
notional value  

Option 2: Annual $50,000 
base fee plus: 

- 0.05% to 0.10% of 
notional value  

Fee at notional 
amounts: 

$250mm 

$500mm 

$1,000mm 

 

 
$175,000 - $325,000 

$275,000 - $550,000 

$350,000 - $1,050,000 

 
 
 

Firm Background and History 
Founded in 1936, Russell Investments is headquartered in 
Seattle, WA and has over 350 investment products which 
focus on 5 capabilities: asset allocation, capital markets 
insights, factor exposures, manager research, and portfolio 
implementation. Russell operates from U.S. offices in 
Seattle, New York, Chicago, San Diego, and Milwaukee. 
 
Russel Investments is currently owned by the London 
Stock Exchange Group, however in October 2015 it was 
announced that private equity firms TA Associates and 
Reverence Capital Partners will be acquiring Russell from 
the London Stock Exchange Group. It is expected that 
Russell will retain its operational independence following 
the close of the transaction in June 2016. 
 
As of December 31, 2015, Russell had approximately 1,800 
employees across 21 offices worldwide, and approximately 
$241.8bn in assets under management including $509bn 
in exposure management strategies. Russell has 
approximately 76 exposure management clients globally 
including large public funds, corporate plans, foundations, 
insurance companies, and other institutions. 
 
Strategy Background 
Russell has over 25 years of overlay services experience, 
known internally at Russell as Dynamic Exposure 
Management. The objectives of these services are to 
identify, analyze, and minimize unintended exposures in 
order to increase return and reduce risk using a variety of 
synthetic tools.  
 
Key Investment Professionals 
Russel’s overlay team is comprised of 23 dedicated team 
members. Portfolio managers have an average of 13 years 
of experience.  
 



 

2 

The portfolio management team is responsible for the 
overall outcome of the client’s overlay program, and 
manage all portfolio and custodial data including margin 
and collateral. They monitor daily cash balances to ensure 
there is sufficient liquidity to meet the client’s obligations, 
as well as perform reconciliations with the client’s 
custodian. 
 
Process 
Russell’s Dynamic Exposure Management services seek to 
provide plans with increased efficiency as overlays provide 
more flexibility to enact changes to portfolios in a cheaper 
and quicker way compared to trading physical assets. 
 
While plans must often hold cash in order to make benefit 
payments, capital calls and distributions, and purchases 
and redemptions, Russell’s Dynamic Exposure 
Management services seek to reduce the unintended 
impact of cash by overlaying with futures in order to 
capture desired risk premium while retaining immediate 
liquidity and reducing transaction costs.  
 
Mandates can be designed in various ways based on the 
client’s preference of where they want discretion to 
reside. On one end of the spectrum, “client-directed” 
mandates rely on the client to direct Russell to make 
allocation changes. This option is used by clients who are 
looking to make periodic updates to tactical asset 
allocation targets, make tactical market access trades, and 
use options as tactical hedges. Under “guideline-specified” 
mandates, Russell uses rules-based overlays, set by the 
client, in order to manage cash, currency, or asset class 
exposure, and is often used as part of a liability driven 
investing program. Finally, clients can grant discretion to 
Russell to manage their overlay program which often takes 
the form of enhanced asset allocation overlays, downside 
protection programs, and derivative-based smart beta. 
 
Risk Management 
While the portfolio management team is responsible for 
the day to day activities and monitoring of the overlay 

program, Russell has dedicated quant, operations, and 
trading teams to assist in the implementation and risk 
management of the overlay program. The quant team is 
responsible for designing custom strategies and providing 
analytical support, the trading team provides 24-hour 
trading services, and the compliance team performs daily 
compliance reviews and periodic internal audits. 
 
Another facet of Russell’s risk management program is the 
broad and diverse list of counterparties used by the 
Dynamic Exposure Management team. Russell uses a 
panel of over two dozen global, non-affiliated banks and 
four trading platforms in order to diversify counterparty 
risk and manage execution costs. 
 
Russell also provides customized reporting to overlay 
clients in order to help provide detailed information about 
portfolio exposures including but not limited to counter 
party exposure, total fund risk management, liquidity at 
risk, and overlay highlight reports.  
 
Performance 
Using back-tested market data from December 31, 1987 
through December 31, 2014, Russell estimates that 
overlaying a 2.5% average cash exposure would have 
resulted in a 12 bps gain per year for the total fund.  
 
In general, Russell expects that managing total fund 
liquidity utilizing an equitization overlay can add 10-15 bps 
to total fund returns annually, and reduce tracking error 
by 75%. 
 
Potential Concerns 
Two ownership changes since 2014. 
 
High relative base fee (specifically “option 1”). 
 
Overlay exposures gained primarily through the use of 
broad market futures.  
 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 



 
Overlay Services Manager Evaluation 
State Street Global Advisors (“SSGA”) 

LAST UPDATED: MAY 2016 
 

S E A T T L E                |       L O S  A N G E L E S              |             S A N  F R A N C I S C O             |             V E R U S I N V E S T M E N T S . C O M  

PROVIDER DETAILS 

Headquarters: Boston, MA 

Firm Inception: 1792 

Overlay Services 
Inception: 

1995 

Ownership: SSGA is a division of State 
Street Bank and Trust 
Company, a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of State Street 
Corporation (NYSE: “STT”) 

Product Mix: Beta replication 

Liquidity management / 
cash equitization 

Completion 

Custom hedging 

Currency management 

Tactical overlay 

Income generation 

Indicative Fee 
Schedule: 

.05% on the first $100 mil 

.04% on the next $400 mil 

.03% thereafter  

Fee at notional 
amounts: 

$250mm 

$500mm 

$1,000mm 

 

 
$110,000 

$210,000 

$360,000 

 
Firm Background and History 
State Street Global Advisors (“SSGA”) is a unit of State 
Street Bank and Trust Company which is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of State Street Corporation, a publicly traded 
bank holding company.  
 

SSGA is the investment management arm of State Street 
Corporation, and works with corporations, private and 
public pension plans, endowments and foundations, 
sovereign wealth funds, and central banks. SSGA is well 
known as a pioneer in index investing, and has capabilities 
spanning both active and passive strategies and traditional 
and alternative asset classes. The firm also provides 
services to institutional investors including currency, cash, 
and risk management solutions. As of 12/31/2015, firm 
AUM was $2.2 trillion. 
 
Strategy Background 
All overlay services, including beta replication, completion 
strategies, return seeking strategies and various 
applications of custom hedging, are conducted by SSGA’s 
Investment Solutions Group (“ISG”) out of their 
headquarters in Boston, MA.  
 
Overlay management is a core business at SSGA. The firm’s 
first dedicated cash equitization strategy was created in 
1983, and they began managing their first exposure 
management mandate in 1995.  Today, ISG manages 66 
exposure management portfolios accounting for 
approximately $38.6 billion of ISG’s more than $167 billion 
of assets under management (as of December 31, 2015).   
 
There are four key principles underlying State Street’s 
philosophy for overlay strategies: 1) Exposure 
management is an investment management function and 
requires an understanding of how asset classes, 
currencies, and key portfolio characteristics interact in 
order to best create the desired exposures; 2) Liabilities 
mater and therefore portfolio design should reflect a 
thorough understanding of these liabilities and associated 
risks; 3) Decisions should be driven by trade-offs between 
costs and risks as clients have varying tolerances for 
tracking error, liquidity risk, and counterparty risk; 4) 
Ongoing management and monitoring is critical.  
 



 

2 

Key Investment Professionals 
State Street’s ISG is led by CIO Daniel Farley, supported by 
a team of 16 portfolio management professionals in 
Boston. SSGA utilizes a team based approach to managing 
overlays and there are roughly 25 investment 
professionals globally, including 12 portfolio managers, 
that work directly on exposure management mandates. All 
overlay clients are assigned a lead portfolio manager to 
serve as a primary point of contact as well as multiple 
backup portfolio managers.  
 
Process 
SSGA’s exposure management investment process brings 
together many investment and operational functions 
within the broader organization in order to effectively 
manage exposures in line with client objectives. SSGA 
works with clients to define the mandate in terms of the 
scope of services to provide, and once the mandate is 
defined, the team’s focus turns to portfolio design. At that 
point, the team selects the optimal basket of derivatives 
and physical instruments based upon the client’s 
preferences in terms of cost versus tracking error, liquidity 
and counterparty risk. The baskets may be as simple as a 
single future or more complex including futures/swaps, 
ETFs and funds where appropriate.  
 
The primary portfolio manager builds the client portfolio 
within State Street’s proprietary exposure management 
system according to client documentation, which includes 
external manager mapping to asset classes and 
benchmarks, setting up policy benchmark and ranges, 
establishing currency benchmarks, and defining the 
instrument universe. Both portfolio setup and ongoing 
basket creation require formal approval by a backup 
portfolio manager. 
 
Once the initial portfolio is constructed, the next step in 
the process is the monitoring and management stage.  At 
this point, the specific responsibilities are dependent upon 
the nature of the mandate but typically encompass 
assessing market data, manager balances, and cash flow 
information in conjunction with the targeted market 

exposures of the overlay and instructing on any required 
trades. 
 
Risk Management 
SSGA’s independent Risk Management Group was 
established in 2008 and is comprised of investment, 
model, counterparty, liquidity, and operational risk 
management teams, and as such takes on a variety of roles 
with regards to monitoring, supporting and managing risks 
for overlay clients. SSGA uses proprietary and third-party 
risk models (such as MSCI BarraOne or Barclays POINT) to 
assess various elements of portfolio risk.  
 
State Street’s philosophy on risk management in overlay 
portfolios is that unlike single strategy active managers, 
plan level overlays typically cover all or most of a client’s 
portfolio and consequently entail commensurate risks. As 
a result, it is important to have strong risk controls. SSGA 
has created a robust platform to manage overlay 
mandates with a series of overlapping checks and balances 
across investment, liquidity and operational guidelines. 
 
The daily process of risk monitoring exposures involves 
multiple teams within State Street and relies heavily on 
the firm’s portfolio management, operations, and trading 
functions. One of State Street’s key risk controls is to 
require a “four eyes check” on any trade before it can be 
sent to the trade desk. Therefore it is essential that a 
number of PMs are keenly aware of the intricacies of each 
client portfolio. 
 
Performance 
State Street believes that each 1% held in cash is projected 
to cost about 3 bps in return for a portfolio with strategic 
targets of 60% global equities, 30% fixed income, and 10% 
private equity. 
 
Potential Concerns 
Smaller relative overlay client and asset base compared to 
other overlay providers. 
 
 

This report is provided for informational purposes only and nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold a security or pursue a particular investment strategy. The information in this report reflects prevailing market conditions and our judgment as of this date, which 
are subject to change.  This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or 
reliability. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.”  Due to a variety of factors, actual events may differ significantly 
from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 



Placement Agent 
Disclosures

May 25, 2016
CCCERA 24





















CONTRA COSTA COUNTYEMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT RE: USE OF PLACEMENT AGENTS 

The undersigned is a current or proposed "External Manager" for the Contra Costa 
County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA"), as defined under CCCERA's 
Placement Agent Disclosure Policy, adopted on June 9, 201 O ("Policy.") We have 
received a copy of the Policy from CCCERA. We hereby disclose to CCCERA the 
following information, which we represent and warrant to be true and correct as of the 
date hereof: 

1. Neither we nor any of our principals, employees, agents or affiliates has 
compensated or agreed to compensate, directly or indirectly, any person or entity to 
act as a Placement Agent (as defined in the Policy) in connection with any 
investment by CCCERA, except as disclosed on Attachment 1 to this Disclosure 
Statement. 

[IF THERE IS NOTHING TO DISCLOSE IN ATTACHMENT 1, ITEMS 2-6 ARE 
INAPPLICABLE.] 

2. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Atiachment 2 
to this Disclosure Statement a resume for each officer, partner or principal of the 
Placement Agent (and any employee providing similar services) detailing the 
person's education, professional designations, regulatory licenses and investment 
and work experience, and whether any such person is a current or former CCCERA 
Board member, employee or Consultant or a member of the immediate family of any 
such person. 

3. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 3 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of any and all compensation of any kind 
we have provided or have agreed to provide to a Placement Agent, including the 
nature, timing and value thereof. 

4. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 4 
to this Disclosure Statement a description of the services to be performed by the 
Placement Agent. 

5. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attach as Attachment 5 
to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement Agent or any of its 
affiliates are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the 
Financial Industry Regulatory Association or any similar regulatory agent in a 
country other than the United States and the details of such registration or 
explanation of why no registration is required. 

1 



6. To the extent of any disclosure set forth on Attachment 1, we attached as 
Attachment 6 to this Disclosure Statement a statement whether the Placement 
Agent or any of its affiliates are registered as a lobbyist with any state or national 
government. 

We further represent and warrant as follows: 

A. We shall provide an update of any changes to any of the information included in 
this Disclosure Statement within fourteen (14) business days of the occurrence of the 
change in information. 

B. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, if any, prior to acting as a 
Placement Agent with regard to CCCERA, to disclose to CCCERA in writing any 
campaign contribution, gift (as defined in Government Code section 82028) or other 
item of value made or given to any member of the CCCERA Board or Staff, or 
Consultant (as defined in the Policy), during the prior twenty-four month period. 

C. We shall cause our engaged Placement Agent, during the time it is receiving 
compensation in connection with a CCCERA investment, to disclose to CCCERA any 
campaign contribution, gift or other item of value made or given to any member of the 
CCCERA Board or Staff, or Consultant, during such period. 

EXTERNAL MANAGER 

1·---)\_ \ ~.) fj i_ \ ... 1... ·~·:s '{;;\ }\ '+ \{j ·! :'\-+··;::)-\·~·"Ci{\ 
Name of Entity 

Print Name ___ ·-'--/ 1;1;_;f+--"'l'--. _,,72_· -'1,.,(-'-ckv'-'·-"-

2 

Troy L Rucker 
Managing Director 

Russeil lmplamenatlon Services Inc. 



Attachment 1 

Steve Cauble, an employee of Russell Investment Group, acts as a Placement Agent (as defined in the 

Policy) in connection with investments by CCCERA. 

Brittany Meisner, an employee of Russell Investment Group, acts as a Placement Agent (as defined in 

the Policy) in connection with investments by CCCERA through contact with their Consultant. 

  



Attachment 2 

Education, professional designations, regulatory licenses and investment and work experience for Steve 

Cauble and Brittany Meisner are below.  Neither Steve nor Brittany is a current or former CCCERA Board 

member, employee or Consultant or a member of the immediate family of any such person. 

Steve Cauble, Regional Director - Americas Institutional 
B.A. in Finance from the University of Arizona.  
Licensed Registered Representative, FINRA Series 7 and 66. 
 
Steve Cauble is a regional director for Russell Investments’ Americas institutional business. He leads 
Russell’s business relationships with major corporate and public pension plan clients and other large 
pools of capital in the western U.S.  Steve is responsible for coordinating Russell’s advice, asset 
management, and implementation resources to create customized investment solutions to improve 
fund performance and reduce risk for clients. 
 
Steve joined Russell in 2001 with the Analytical Services group.  In his previous role, he worked as a 

strategic partner to plan sponsors, leveraging the Russell Indexes, peer group universe data, and risk and 

analytics tools to monitor investment managers and overall fund performance. 

Prior to joining Russell, Steve spent four years in London with WRQ Incorporated, where he established 

WRQ UK, Plc, a Regional office providing sales and technical support to clients in the UK, Ireland, and 

South Africa. 

Steve started his career at Rank Xerox New Zealand, Ltd. and Xerox Corporation where was active in 

sales, management, and product launch specialist roles. 

Steve is a registered representative of Russell Institutional Services Inc., an SEC registered investment 

adviser and FINRA member firm.  

Brittany N. Meisner, CFA, CAIA - Regional Director, U.S. Consultant Relations, Americas Institutional 

B.S., Business Finance, University of Nevada, Las Vegas 

Licensed Registered Representative, FINRA Series 7, 66 

 

Brittany Meisner is a Regional Director for the Consultant Relations group of the Americas Institutional 

business at Russell Investments.  Brittany communicates Russell’s value to institutional consultants 

through Russell’s defined contribution services, investment management and implementation 

management services. 

Brittany became a member of Russell’s Americas Institutional Group in August 2015.  Prior to joining 

Russell Brittany was a member of the Consultant Relations team at Neuberger Berman where she was 

responsible for assisting in the development of the firm’s institutional consultant relationships.  Prior to 

Neuberger Berman Brittany was a Senior Marketing and Research Associate for the Institutional 

Consultant Relations team at Nuveen Investments.  She began her career as a Senior Performance 

Analyst at NEPC. 

Brittany is a CFA® charterholder and is a member of the CFA Society of Chicago and Seattle.  She has 

earned the Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst designation. 



Attachment 3 

 

Russell Investment Group has not previously provided any placement agent compensation of any kind 

relating to CCCERA.  To date we have not done any business with CCCERA. 

 

Were CCCERA to contract with Russell Investment Group compensation would be made to Steve Cauble 

and Brittany Meisner as per their compensation packages. 

Steve Cauble’s compensation is based off a percentage of revenue to Russell ranging from 5%-20% and 

is payable upon receipt for payment of services rendered. 

Brittany Meisner’s compensation is a discretionary bonus taking into account relationships won and lost 

as well as other performance based metrics. 

 

  



Attachment 4 

Please refer to Attachment 2 for a description of services performed by each Placement Agent. 

  



Attachment 5 

Details of the registrations Russell Institutional Services Inc. are below: 

• Registered as a broker-dealer with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and the 

States of Washington, Ohio, New York, Rhode Island, Texas and Vermont. 

• Registered as an investment advisor with the SEC. 

• Member firm of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), with worldwide brokerage 

correspondent relationships.  Exempt from registration as an international dealer with the Ontario 

Securities Commission. 

• Registered as an MSRB and appointed to the Irish Regulatory Authority. 

• Subject to examination and reporting requirements of the SEC and FINRA. 

• Cleared by Central Bank of Ireland to act as an investment manager of Irish funds (since August 20, 

2007). 

 

Steve Cauble is a Licensed Registered Representative, FINRA Series 7 and 66. 
Brittany Meisner is a Licensed Registered Representative, FINRA Series 7 and 66. 
  



Attachment 6 
 

Steve Cauble is not registered as a lobbyist with any state or national government. 
Brittany Meisner is not registered as a lobbyist with any state or national government. 
 






















































	agenda 5.25.16
	THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:

	Item 3
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Cover page
	Table of contents
	Tab I - Investment Landscape
	Tab II - Investment Performance Review
	Tab III - Risk Dashboard

	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 14
	Item 16
	Item 17



